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Chairman M i l ler opened the hearing on SB 2351 . 

Senator Wanzek, District 29 i ntroduced SB 2351 (see attachments #1 a and #1 b) 

Senator Klei n :  The agriculture committee heard during the p resentation by the commodity 
g roups in January and we heard the concerns that Senator Wanzek has pointed out in the 
Dairy I ndustry .  The emai ls that I 'm getting seem to imply that by passing this the 
corporations wil l be able to buy sections of land across the state and monopolize the 
landownership .  What I heard you say was that there's only an opportunity for 640 acres of 
land . To make it s imple for me, if we had ten dairies to come to N D  how many sections of 
land wou ld we have to g ive up? 

Senator Wanzek: First of al l, u nderstand that is the maximum.  Many of these operations 
may not want that m uch land .  These types of operations focus on operating the dairy farm. 
They are most l ikely going to purchase most of their feed from surrounding farmers. Having 
said that, if ten of them came the most they cou ld ever own or lease--and we included 
lease because we don't want them coming in and leasing up a bunch of land either--if ten of 
them came there cou ld be ten sections. There are 62,000 sections of farm land. I insisted 
that restriction be in  there, SD does not have a restriction . I feel pretty strongly about the 
lands staying in the hands of our fam ily farmers and having them in control .  

Vice Chairman Luick:  I s  i t  possible for that corporate farm--whether dairy or swine 
structure--to d ivide and purchase more sections of land u nder a d ivision of that 
corporation? 

Senator Wanzek:  That's a good question; it's my understanding that if you're operating 
u nder one entity, that one entity cou ld on ly own or lease one section of land . The rationale 
behi nd the one section is that there are environmental regu lations where there are setback 
requ i rements. I envision very few of these are going to uti l ize a fu l l  section, they're going to 
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contract their feed production and they won't need a fu l l  section .  Some of them wil l  
probably only need 40-80 acres to put the faci l ity and operation up. I see potentia l for a 
neighborhood of farmers and local community businessmen coming together. 

Senator Klei n :  You spoke briefly about keeping the land in the hands of the family farmers, 
why wou ldn't we want to expand this for the crop farmers? What would the d ifference be? 

Senator Wanzek:  When it comes to crop farming, many young people who want to get into 
that industry a lready have equ ity partners cal led land lords.  If a young farmer wanted to get 
into crop farming and was required to buy a l l  of his land , there is no way he cou ld get into 
farming because it would take a huge sum of capital .  But in  many instances, young farmers 
are able to get in  because they have these equity land lords .  It a l lows our younger 
generation to get into crop farming .  When you go in to bui ld a dairy, you're in it all on your 
own and it's hard to get investors. Some say that dairy farmers can a lready do this under a 
genera l  partnersh ip .  But I l ike the corporate shield because I know the l im it to my l iabi l ity 
and I am wil l ing to invest half a mi l l ion or a mi l l ion in  it--that's the extent of my risk. If I go in  
as a general partner, my risk is losing everyth ing--the rest of  the farm and my personal 
assets--if there was some sort of incident that cost a huge l iabi l ity. 

Senator Oba n :  I don't th ink  anyone thinks that we shouldn 't do anyth ing and I do look 
forward to asking them for their  ideas if this is own that they're opposed to. Going back to 
something you said in your  testimony at the beginn ing on your first page, you said that 
"we've tried many other approaches to this problem over the years and they obviously are 
not working . "  Can you help me understand what we have tried and why they haven't been 
working? 

Senator Wanzek:  Many of them dealt with cred it; they looked at ways to g ive credit to dairy 
farmers. Farmers don 't necessarily need to take on more debt; a lot of us a lready have a 
h igh level debt to the point where it puts the business in  jeopardy. We need someone who 
is wi l l ing to share the risk rather than taking out a bank loan. There have been a number of 
programs and efforts with the dairy coalition and dairy efforts with the dairy coord inator 
trying to faci l itate development and get development off the ground. We mostly approach it 
from the standpoint that we are going to provide loans and lending and that presents a 
problem in  today's environment. Not many fami ly farmers want to take on 6-8 mi l l ion 
dol lars' worth of debt. 

Senator Warner: I would l ike to address the labor question, it seems to me where we've 
seen these kinds of corporate structures come in the way they get out from under risk is by 
lowering their labor costs. I th ink we see the solution in other a reas has been through low 
cost immigrant labor. The benefits offered to them are helping them signup for Medicaid, 
the supplement to their income comes in the form of food stamps .  How does that benefit 
the genera l  economy when we subsid ize corporate agricu lture by al lowing them access to 
the common wea lth in that way rather than paying market price for their labor? How do we 
benefit fami ly farm agricu lture when we undercut them by subsid izing corporate 
agriculture? 

Senator Wanzek: I 'm not sure--are you certain these ind iv iduals who are working on these 
dairy farms are apply ing for these things? 
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Senator Warner: I 'm saying that at $ 1 2  an hour they are .  

Senator Wanzek: I don't know whether that's true or not, I know from visiting some of the 
corporate dairy farms that they employee these people and the ones that I 've met seem to 
be satisfied with their jobs. That m ight be an issue we are going to have to address, but in 
most instances that wouldn 't be the case. The one dairy that I'm th inking of provides 
housing and amenities and complete fami l ies come in and work. With new technology, we 
a re getting into the robotic age and there wil l  be more mechanized a nd more technology 
involved in the labor. 

Senator Warner: I wou ld never d ismiss immigrant labor and the q ual ity of their work ethic. 
That raises a question about the impact of the tax structure that we're raising here. I think 
we can reasonably expect that if  a dairy had 10 employees , it would but 1 0-20 kids in the 
school system. Yet the dairy is only paying p roperty taxes on the land . It's not paying on 
any of the capital construction costs, so as l ittle as $3,000-4 ,000 per section of land. How 
you justify the kinds of tax exemptions that we are g iving to these very intensive agriculture 
industries? 

Senator Wanzek:  I 'm sure the body wi l l  address that whether they should be taxed or not. I 
know that right now we have some ind ivid ual dairies that are sti l l  in existence that are under 
the same scenario .  These operations wil l  generate additional wages and dol lars that wi l l  
br ing in  other taxes as wel l .  I bel ieve that the benefits wi l l  far outweigh any challenges. 
When it comes to immigrants, a lmost everyone in this room come from a l ine of immigrants; 
these people are coming here looking for an opportunity and hope. 

Chairman M i l ler: Are you aware of the farm exchange labor program ?  These are family 
farms that are uti l izing this now. The labor issue isn't centered around if it's a corporate 
entity or not. The labor issue is simply a labor issue. 

Senator Wanzek:  You're right, the labor issue wil l  be there regard less of the structure of 
the business. I see this corporate structure as business tool .  It's not the answer for every 
operation, it's not the on ly issue that helps enhance our  l ivestock p roduction. I bel ieve that 
one of the major barriers to develop is the inabi l ity to generate equity capital, so it's 
probably the number one barrier, but it's not the only thing we shou ld do to enhance 
l ivestock operations. 

Chairman Mi l ler: You serve on appropriations and you are wel l  aware of the welfare 
p rograms we create as a state, we set those thresholds as a government. If a corporation is 
abusing the system, we have to share in  some of that blame. 

Senator Wanzek: We have wage and labor laws they have to adhere to, and I wou ld 
suspect and want them to be responsible corporate citizens and adhere to our laws. 

C h a i rman M i l ler: As far as foreign labor goes, that's a federal pol icy correct? 

Senator Wanzek:  Correct. I know there are farmers in  our area that are util izing that 
progra m .  
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Senator Klei n :  You spoke about the current corporate structures that we are al lowing 
u nder current law and I believe you have on at your  farm? 

Senator Wanzek: Yes. 

Senator Kle i n :  Could your little corporation invest in your cousin's corporation? 

Senator Wanzek :  From what I understand, I wou ld not be ab le to do that. 

Chairman M i l ler:  What are the degrees of kinship? 

Senator Wanzek:  I t  is my understanding in ND that it goes to the third degree of kinship 
which would be a unts and u ncles , parents, siblings ,  and first cousins.  

Doug Goehring, Agricu lture Comm issioner: (33:30) Testified in support of SB 2351 (see 
attachment #2) 

Senator Klei n :  Just to confirm what Senator Wanzek stated in his testimony, only 9 states 
have any sort of corporate farm law and of those ND is the only state without exemptions. 
Is that correct? 

Doug Goehri n g :  To my knowledge, that is correct. 

Senator Klei n :  When you travel with other commissioners, are there issues in other states 
where they are being overrun by major corporations buy up land and taking over? 

Doug Goehri n g :  Those types of discussions have not happened . The group you are 
referring to is cal led the National Association of State Departments of Agriculture .  It's 
comprised of commissioners ,  secretaries, and directors of agriculture from different states .  
Those discussions don't come up ,  we tend to  discuss what we can do to  enhance and 
develop. A lot of  states deal more with biosecurity than anything else but they love animal 
agriculture and what it brings to their rural  communities. The one thing about animal 
agriculture is the mu ltiplier effect on economies. The fact that in agriculture itself, which is 
about a 3 .7 mu ltip lier effect in our economy, animal agricu lture ranges from 4 .5  - 9. So it 
adds a lot of value back into agricu lture and the economy. 

Senator Oba n :  There's no doubt in my mind that you have spent a lot of time to figu re out 
how to address an issue that is clearly a problem. When you gave a presentation to us a 
few weeks ago, you said you have been working with a group of people to figure out the 
best approach to this. Who has been a part of those discussions? Were there other 
conclusions or is this the on ly suggestion that came out of it? 

Doug Goehri n g :  The g roup was comprised of barley p roducers, corn prod ucers, soybean 
producers, and a lot of dairy farmers and a few swine producers . I wouldn't say these were 
a formal  matter, but we have sought ways of add ressing some of these issues. There have 
been a lot of things over the years that haven't been considered and I wouldn't consider 
them. In  this situation ,  it made a good argument to consider what SD has done given the 
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success that they've had . I decided to make a presentation to the agriculture community 
and let the ag riculture community decide how they wanted to p roceed . I made suggestions 
that there should be land ownership l imitations .  There's a perception that if you are going to 
own large amounts of land,  that is competition . Our  farmers and ranchers don't need 
competition ;  they need enterprises that wi l l  complement their efforts in agriculture .  

Senator Oba n :  Were either of the largest N D  farm advocacy groups apart of these 
conversations? 

Doug Goehri n g :  No, but how often do those groups show up at my office and propose a 
solution?  I 've been asked here lately why they haven't been part of the d iscussions. I serve 
and sit on many committees, commissions, and task forces. I am simply presenting the 
information ;  these g roups are the ones who need to have a d iscussion , and then they need 
to determine when working with the legislators how you're going to move forward and what 
you're going to consider and what you're going to do. 

Senator Oba n :  I 'm not making any assumptions or  accusation about the way we came 
about th is .  But when you say a l ittle decision ,  this isn't a l ittle decision--it's a pretty big one. I 
j ust want to make sure that the voices of two groups who represent al l  of these producers 
have a part in these d iscussions. 

Doug Goehri n g :  Since it's not my decision, it wasn't for me to put that in front of them. As 
far as d iscussion ,  I d id ask Farmers Un ion because I knew they were going to be the most 
concerned and sensitive to th is.to come in and th ink about it. Before anyone else knew 
what my presentation was going to be about, I asked Farmers U nion to come in and we 
talked about it. I wanted to let them know so when the meeting happened, they wou ld have 
an opportun ity to th ink about it and not necessari ly feel l ike they were being bl indsided . 

Chairman M i l ler: This conversation has been evolving through the legislative process for 
years. 

Senator Klei n :  We had a removal of corporate farm laws back in 2003, which I voted 
against but this b i l l  would reach those parameters we were looking at in 2003. Would it be 
your  assumption that we' re only looking at a narrow change in the law; there won't be a 
bunch of folks buying up a bunch of property in  the state? 

Doug Goehri n g :  I n  the presentation that I made, I d id s uggest that there would only be 
three areas: ( 1 )  Feed lots (2) Dairy (3) Swine. I wi l l  oppose the b i l l  if it goes any further than 
that. I don't get to make a vote, but I wi l l  oppose it if it goes beyond that. I bel ieve this 
particular b i l l  complements agriculture in ND ,  not compete with it. 

Submitted testimony from Walt Bones, Previous Secretary of Agricultu re in SD: (see 
attachment #3) 

Senator Klein :  I n  our previous d iscussion , we had some concerns about the impact on the 
social commu nity as these dairies are establ ished in our  state. I n  you r  experience, has SD 
felt a major concern when they open these dairies that we wil l  have this group that is using 
cheap labor? Is that a concern SD has seen that we should be addressing? 
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Doug Goehri n g :  I 've not heard those conversations or concerns from SD. The dairies and 
the swine operations I have vis ited, the lowest paying job I 'm aware of was $ 1 1 .40 an hour 
and they were provided with housing . On my farm, my top paying position is $ 1 3  an hour 
and they're not on Med icare. That doesn't mean that there aren't s ituations that force 
people into a place where they have to seek assistance someplace else. Some of those 
labor jobs went a l l  the way up into the upper teens, low twenties. There were other jobs that 
were office jobs and veterinarians; those certain ly pay a lot more . Everyone d id seem 
happy and there were fami l ies working there too so there were two or three incomes. 

Senator Warner: Since I 've been in the leg islature, we passed triple LP legislation, Limited 
Liabi l ity/Limited Partnersh ips. Why do you think that that model is inadequate? Why do we 
need to take another step when we haven't seen the kind of results from the triple LP that 
we were expecting? 

Doug Goehri n g :  The on ly th ing I can attest to is some of the chal lenges that we 
experienced when working these faci l ities was that they wanted to come in  and do an LLP. 
The problem was wh ich surprised us was that if there was a corporate structure to one of 
those partners ,  it was deemed out of compl iance and they could not operate. That's what 
we ran into when working with a facil ity that d id want to come to N D  and be under an LLP; 
we tried to help them and look at the options but they were den ied based on having two 
farmers who were incorporated . 

Senator Warner: I 'm no expert on corporate law, but farmers do not incorporate, they 
belong to a corporation that they own . A corporation of a business entity is a th ing which 
has been g iven substance or body and is incorporated . But these farmers sti l l  remain 
ind ividuals. How is i t  that they d isqual ify themselves as ind ividuals from using some portion 
of their capita l which was outside of the capital corporation structure and investing in 
another enterprise? Certain ly if you were invested as a farmer, you could sti l l  invest 
ind iv idual  money i n  a stock market. How do you d isqual ify yourself by own ing part of a 
fam i ly farm corporation when you sti l l  remain ind ividual and you sti l l  have capital which is 
l iqu id and can be moved around? 

Doug Goehri n g :  I 'm no expert in corporate law, but maybe one  felt l ike they didn't want to 
personal ly be a part of something but they wanted the corporate structure in p lace since 
that's probably where most of the capital or assets are. I 'm not sure .  I know when we tried 
to help them with their s ituation, and out of the 240 entities, people that were shareholders 
and stockholders, a couple of those farmers in  there were part of that structure and it 
cou ldn't exist so they cou ld n't come to N D. 

Chairman M i l ler: Do you know if there's a typical average for equ ity held by a farmer in 
ND? 

Doug Goehri n g :  I do  not  have that information, but I cou ld provide i t  to  you .  I suppose i t  al l  
depends on how long you've been at this fame. 
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C lark Price, Farmer and Ran cher: (58:41 )  (See attachment #4) Testified in support of SB 
2351 and proposed an amendment to include feed lots. 

Chairman Mi l ler: (1 : 04 :2 1 )  Wou ld you sti l l  support the b i l l  without the amendment? 

Clark Price: I would sti l l  support the b i l l  but I wou ld prefer the amendment. 

Senator Klein :  You talked about the expansion into feedlot and you talked about how SD 
changed that law ten years ago, has there been a major take over by corporations in SD? 
The whole concern I would see is the competitive nature of you competing with Cargi l l  or 
Tyson .  Do you have any statistics that wou ld support that that has been a p roblem in  SD? 

C lark Price: I 'm not aware of any takeover of any sort. I am aware of some of the farmer 
organ izations that combine and make corporations. I would l ike to correct you ;  SD has had 
the feed lot exemption in thei r  law since 1 974. 

Chairman M i l ler: What is the case with N E? 

C lark Price: I 'm not certain  about N E  law; my nutrition ist is from N E  so I d id ask him a 
couple questions on how many corporate feed lots are there .  He said that there is some 
corporate structure but it hasn't taken over the state. 

Senator Warner: I appreciated you r  comments relative to band ing together you r  farm with 
you r  neighbors to form business structures. I remember fifteen yea rs ago that those were 
exactly the same a rguments we heard with the development of the triple LP, the Lim ited 
Liabi l ity/Limited Partnership .  That's sti l l  an existing business structure witin ND which is 
perfectly legal. Why don't your  pursue that route? 

Clark Price: I 'm not an expert on the corporate structu re versus the LLLP structure, b it 
when I set up my fam i ly corporation ,  we consulted some professionals in  the industry and 
they told me that the feedlot structure needs to be the coop structure. I t's legal to do that in 
you r  family structure but not outside you r  fami ly structure. I'm no expert on it, but that was 
the advice that I go. 

Senator Klei n :  You spoke to SD, what I heard you say is that its g roups of ind ividuals who 
gather together, it's not something huge outside of the state i nterest, it's folks who wou ld 
l ike to invest in  thei r  neighbors .  I s  that what we're seeing,  smal l  ind ividual farms, fami ly 
g roups, neighbor groups, or commun ity groups--is that what those corporations are in SD? 

Clark Price : That is exactly how I envision this law to al low and b ring equ ity in to get this 
done. I personally bel ieve it's the reason why we're not seeing g rowth in the feed lot sector 
in this state, because it is such an intense capital and management investment to the point 
where we don't have the expertise on a small scale. I do bel ieve that this wil l  add value to 
the community. 

Senator Oba n :  I 've told people who are opposed to th is that I don't l ike the sl ippery slope 
argument. I don't th ink  it is a good enough argument to not do something .  However, you 
bring in number three in to add to th is demonstrates that everyone wil l  have an interest at 
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some point that wi l l  probably be left off of here. Doesn't that prove what their concern is, if 
anybody who comes up here who supports th is but wants to add their interest in, does that 
g ive them a better a rgument? 

Clark Price: I'm not sure I understand;  from my perspective, the hog and the dairy industry 
today are in d i re straits for getting something done. I bel ieve the feed lot industry in this 
state is in the same position.  We produce a large number of high qual ity in this state and 
with the Aberdeen plant s itting there ready to rol l ,  we need to have a structure that wil l 
a l low us to feed cattle in this state. We have the cheapest feed anywhere in the nation, let's 
add some value to it and the large scale feedlot structure is a perfect way to do it. 

Senator Klein :  You're here for yourself; you're not representing any Stockman's or Beef 
organization? But you also understand that early on i n  the commodity g roup presentation 
that you guys were somewhat included . But at this point, you are just representing yourself. 

C lark Price: I am representing myself; I hope that we wi l l  get the organ ization's support 
once this language is added to the b i l l. 

Senator Klei n: So you are an independent person here on your  own ,  and we heard some 
d iscussion that some groups weren't involved in the decision. Do you do service with those 
g roups? 

Clark Price: Absolutely. 

Senator Larsen:  So you are representing them on a smal l  scale and you are one of those 
guys .  

Clark Price: I am one of those guys and I am a member of those organizations as well. 

Senator Larsen : Are you going to buy more stuff if you have more cows then? 

Clark Price: I wi l l ,  absolutely. 

Kenton Holle,  Dai ry Farmer, ND M i l k  Prod ucers Association,  Mandan N D :  (see 
attached #5) ( 1 :  1 1  :56) Testified in support of SB 235 1 .  

He also stated in  add ition to h is testimony that the idea of a corporate farm i s  a larming to 
some but that fear  is because animal agriculture is under attack by special  i nterest g roups. 
He said that these g roups l ike to label corporate farms as factory farms. No matter what 
size the farm is, it's the dedication to the farm and the an imals that matters. He said that 
there's too m uch at stake for a dairy farmer to abuse his cows, land,  or employees. 

He also addressed the issue of labor. He stated that he had 1 2-1 5 employees on his farm 
and employees students to help with special projects. He said that he did not have cheap 
labor on h is farm because if someone wants good help ,  they have to pay them wel l. His 
wage scale varied from $30,000-50,000 a year, when housing meals, and hourly wage is 
included . 
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Chai rman M i l ler: You have an integrated relationship with your  fel low dairy farmers in  your  
area correct? How dependent are you on volume from other people to make i t  work? 

Kenton Hol le:  That is a g reat question because dairy is a commun ity because we are 
relying on a lot of special infrastructure. We need specialized equipment and people who 
can work with modern technology and equipment. We need nutritionist and veterinarians. 
No matter what our d ifferent operation looks l ike, we have a lot of things in  common. As we 
begin to lose our dairy far neighbors,  the abi l ity to secure that infrastructure d isappears with 
them. As we beg in  to lose producers,  we lose people who are wi l l ing to buy that mi lk .  
Without a sou rce for that mi lk  to go, what choice wi l l  we have than to shut down so we are 
very dependent on one another. Seeing an industry g row within our state wil l  only make 
those opportun ities more avai lable to us where we a re able to secure the kind of 
i nfrastructure help that we need . 

Senator Warner: I appreciate you r  comments about the positive impacts that you've done 
with you r  dairy and you r  community. It seems almost impol ite to point out that you did al l  of 
that without a corporate structure. I have a g reat respect for the intel l igence and the insight 
that you are b ring to this issue. We have a poverty of detai l  on the bi l l  before us,  it's only a 
couple of paragraphs. One of the issues I would l ike to ask for you r  advice on, I don't 
u nderstand how we see the beginning of these projects develop. I s  there some sort of 
certificate of intent? We've seen the acquisition of farmland which has to be the first step 
before construction . What's to prevent a corporation or an insurance company or a hedge 
fund from coming in and buying up one sections of land and hold ing that land unti l the 
market forces ind icate that it's prudent to bui ld .  What's to p revent them from buying up land 
and holding it u nti l market forces are up and capita l flow goes a d ifferent d i rection so they 
sel l  the land back into the market take their profits out of state and put it back into their 
corporate structure .  How do you in itiate these projects to become legitimate dairies without 
being just the acqu isition of land? 

Kenton Holle:  I th ink that the steering of land is necessary in  order to set up a faci l ity. 
Going back to the decision we made in order to move, a nd obviously our scale is much 
smaller than what the larger scale is, there is more to dairy farm than just the land that it is 
on .  There are requ i rements that need to be met in regards to animal  waste , bu i ld ing 
structures , township permits , etc. That may be a job that fal ls into you r  laps to make sure 
that with in the structure there is an accountabi l ity that's held forward i n  these corporations 
who make the intent to put up a dairy faci l ity and don't fol low through. Certainly to get 
financing to do the move that we d id ,  there were checkl ists that we needed provide to 
p rovide assurances to the financing part that we had things in order to put up a facil ity and 
make it work. I th ink that there is a varied point of view that comes into that picture as far as 
where are the restrictions in place to make sure that what is said is done. 

Senator Warner: If th is is going to go forward , I see that as an issue. I sense that you have 
a deep insight, a nd I wou ld appreciate your  thoughts. 

Senato r  Klein :  A lot of these things do get settled in the rule making authority that we g ive 
to the authority in the state. I wou ld assume that the agriculture commission would have the 
ru le making a uthority which wou ld come before the administrative rules. As a member of 
the dairy industry, do you see any push back from you r  industry? We're a lways concerned 
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about the completive nature of al lowing someth ing to happen that hasn't happened in  the 
past. 

Kenton Hol le:  I don't bel ieve that's present at a l l .  I think that the dairy industry has been 
trying since 2000 to bu i ld  up ourselves and keep our i ndustry viable.  We rely on one 
another and who wants to be part of a losing program. When da iry farms leave the area, it's 
a domino effect. When we see increase and ral lying ,  it brings spi rit back into the industry. 
As far as competitive nature ,  we are al l  competitive. We also al l  thrive on one another and I 
enjoy going to da i ry farms to get ideas. 

Senator Kle i n :  The processor needs to have x amounts gal lons of mi lk  coming to his door 
every day. As you lose p roducers ,  does that increase your  costs? Are those big concerns? 

Kenton Hol le:  I th ink  that if we use the example that we've seen over the past number of 
years of mu ltiple large g ra in terminals being bui lt i n  our state, they haven't put them out on 
the prairie h i l ls ,  they've put in  the area where there's potentia l  for gra in to be shipped to 
them . Fortunately we're twenty mi les from our plant right here in Bismarck. But as we've 
seen the number of processing plants decl ine, there are individuals in the state who are 
paying 2 dol lars a hundredweight of mi lk for sh ipping costs. If we can see any type of 
additional processing faci l ities bu ilt i n  the state, we'l l  get some competition then for the mi lk  
to be able to go to d ifferent places. The cows need to come first, you can't put  up a facil ity 
and expect the cows to come. 

Jerry Messer, Dai ry Farmer from Richardson, N D :  (1 : 36:1 3) Testified in support of SB 
2351 . Offered three a rg uments in support: 
( 1 ) Where we're at. We're not doing wel l  as a state a nd I see other states that are doing 

better in  improving their industry. We're in a d ifferent s ituation in ND. We have the 
opportun ity to do th ings that other states can 't do because we found reven ue of wea lth 
we never had before. There a lot of royalty owners in N D  who are looking for a home for 
their wea lth . There a re a lot of outside opportunities, but a lot of these people wou ld l ike 
to invest back into agriculture in  ND .  

(2) This bi l l  affects me as a dairy farmer as  I have to pay to get the mi lk to the market. I 
have been fortunate in  the last couple of years because some of my mi lk has been able 
into 5 gal lon bags and goes to the man camps which has helped me d iversify. The rest 
of my mi lk  gets sh ipped to SD. As a farmer, I understand because we pay freight for 
everyth ing .  
What you see happening in the other states is  the structure they are using and why they 
picked SD when they could have picked any other state. These people are coming from 
other states that a re u rbanizing .  The upper Midwest is one of the cheapest and most 
abundant feed supplies in the nation .  Two or three years ago, we got a l ittle lax th inking 
that $7 corn and $8 was going to stay there forever. Right now diversification is one of 
the key things our  agricu lture commun ity needs. I t's not just about being a part of a 
corporation , it's the abi l ity to g row commun ity and provide dol lars to help that 
commun ity g row. These people come and invest in every commun ity their i nvolved i n .  

(3) What's the futu re of da i ry? What makes us  want to be  part of the dairy industry and 
grow in the state of N D? Between now and 2020,  the world is going to need 30 bi l l ion 
more pounds of da i ry products. We have to decide ( 1 )  if the US a p lace that could 
supply dairy p roducts? Quicker than anywhere else in  the world , the US could supply 
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that need . (2) Where in the US can we grow? The upper Midwest is one of the number 
one areas that the g rowth of dairy and can fi l l  the need of those exports and needs 
domestical ly and international ly .  We've developed markets overseas that have never 
been developed before and we have the abi l ity to continue those markets because the 
protein needs in I nd ia ,  China,  and other th i rd world countries. As the m iddle class 
moves up a step,  the first thing they want is western d iet and a big part of that is protein 
needs from dairy. We can be part of the people that help solve that problem. 

Senator Warner: Nobody in  the room is d isputing the positive aspects of an imal agriculture 
and that there's lots of room for g rowth but almost every word that came out of your  mouth 
seems to be doable u nder current law under double LPs or triple LPs. It's very easy for oi l  
money to invest into partnerships. The bi l l  we have before us opens up the corporate 
ownership of land . What's the d istinction that the b i l l  before us enhances. 

Jerry Messer: My hope would be that some of these bigger da i ries would move into our 
state. Liqu id ity is a big part of them and they have share d rives which al lows shareholders to 
be part of that investment in that dairy and then they take the other part of the equity and 
invest in a da i ry and bui ld a d iary. So then you as a shareholder have the opportunity to 
share the reven ues from the income from that dairy. 

Senator Warner: But that's sti l l  a trip le LP, a Lim ited Liabi l ity/Limited partnership. Those are 
main street businesses investing in  local farms .  All of that's legal u nder current law. 

Senator Klei n :  I know you've been around a whi le and we've talked about the programs 
that we've tried . I worked with you ,  the previous agricu ltu re commissioner, and we tried to 
work out some programs. We heard today that those programs have not been able to solve 
this p roblem. Can you address that s ince you were there at the beg inning? 

Jerry Messer: I th ink  the biggest question is is there is a way for us to continue the dairy 
industry without putting as m uch burden on the dairy themselves but bringing other partners 
in  to al low us to share that responsibi l ity. Whether it's an LLP or a corporation,  whatever it 
takes, we need to u nderstand that the dairy industry wil l  contin ue to dwindle under what's 
happening. We have no cheese p rocessing plant in the state whatsoever. Since SD has 
changed there law, and I 'm not going to say that this was j ust because they changed their 
law but it happened to coincide, they have 7 major worldwide cheese manufactures in their 
state. For some reason these plants have decided to make their home in  the upper Midwest 
and they need mi lk. My question  is what can we do as an industry to supply those needs 
from our state rather than see MN,  SD, and IA take a l l  the p roduction? Every month ND 
continues to decl ine and  thei r  states rise. 

Senator Klei n :  You're on the dairy promotion board, despite a l l  of our past effort obviously 
the LLPs the triple LPs are not working because we've got them. Obviously you think there 
is something more that would better adapt to what we' re doing here. 

Jerry Messer: That's our  true bel ief. The true bel ief is that there is some reason these herd 
owners have felt this as an important tool to invest into da i ry in other states. That one of the 
main reasons that I support it is because they saw the value of other states and that's where 
they're moving. They're not a thousand mi les away from us ,  they're across the border and 
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it's not just one o r  two da i ries, ten to fifteen dairies that a re 1 , 000-2 , 000 cows. They d o  it 
very wel l ,  they're very much part of the community. 

Jeff Enger, Farmer, Marion, N D :  ( 1 49:50) (See attachment #6) Testified support of SB 
2351 . 

Dwight G rotberg, Farmer, Ba rnes County, ND: ( 1  :54:25) Testified in  support of SB 2351 . 
I th ink Senator Warner asked the question about what there wou ld be to stop a corporate 
farm from coming in  buying up parcels of land. I had an experience with Cenex Harvest 
States who a re bui ld ing 3 and a half b i l l ion dol lar fert i l izer production faci l ity. I sat through 
the township meetings and l istened to al l  the pros and cons of bring that s ize of a business 
in our  commun ity and I decided to sel l my quarter section to CHS because of the benefit it 
would bring to our  commun ity. I asked for a clause in our  contract that wou ld al low me to 
farm the land if it was not bu i lt on yet, my concern was that the quarter section would g row 
up in  weeds .  They sti l l  have not bu i lt on that section and it is in weeds. 

I 'm more concerned about that kind of a business more than I am concerned about a dairy 
farm coming in  for less tha n  600 acres simply because to my knowledge CHS has already 
purchased two sections of land with the hopes of find ing the place they can bui ld their faci l ity 
on .  I sti l l  support CHS, but I release that whi le CHS is a customer owned company, they 
also do function as a corporation . My concern and other people that I 've talked about bring 
large dairies in  particu lar into the state. I 've only heard of a half section ,  320 acres being 
needed for that s ize of an operation .  The concerns that I 've heard so far would not stop me 
from supporting th is b i l l .  

Harvey Hoff, N D  Dai ry Coal itio n :  ( 1  :58: 1 4) (see attachment #7) 

Submitted testimony from Alan Qual,  Dairy Farmer Lisbon , N D :  (2 :00 :24) (see attachment 
#8) 

Craig Jarolimek, Pork Prod ucer: (2:00:46) (see attachment #9) 

Chairman Mi l ler:  (2:05:54) You have large hog operations that a re operating in ND already, 
do you think that we a re currently l imiting other compan ies u nfai rly in investment 
opportunities, do you see g reater potential once we change this law? 

Craig Jarol imek: Absolutely. As you know, I 've not on ly been involved in production but I 've 
a lso been involved in the pork industry as a whole. Through my experiences and 
acquaintances , ND is in want of pork production. The current law causes fear, there's no 
other way to say it. They say that they don't want to have that strugg le. If this law is 
changed , it wil l open that opportun ity for those entities to start to partner with people in N D. 

Senator Warner: You painted a very rosy scenario about this transition from corporate 
agriculture back into sole p roprietorsh ips. We've seen in  other states , particular with hogs 
and chickens, that some of these things are structured in  s uch a way that the person lu red 
into assuming the sole proprietorsh ip ends up with a bunch of abandoned worn bui ld ings 
and the corporation takes the equ ity a nd capital when they leave. Could you speak a l ittle bit 
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to that issue of protecting you ng farmers who are using this mechanism as a way of 
establ ishing sole proprietorsh ips? How do we protect them when the capital d isappears? 

C raig Jarol imek: The model that I see that happens in MN and other hog operating states 
is qu ite simple. The people who actual ly want to have the g rowers raise the hogs for them 
become a big brother who helps them through the financing situation .  They actual ly want 
them to be a sole proprietor. They may look at that young person and say that we'l l  help you 
to this point but we want you to have some ownership itself. I know of one coop elevator in  
I owa cal led Rock Val ley that has a good p rogram where a person can enter into the swine 
feed ing operation and he can choose his percent of ownership .  Each year on a calendar 
year, he has the opportunity change that percentage. So as his equity and expertise g rows, 
he can make that choice. Those type of scenarios are out there. Those business models are 
p roven and they work. A lot of the operations that have these contract g rowers encourage 
percent of ownership because they feel their percentage wil l  be looked at better. The way 
that the bui ld ings a re bui lt now is much enhanced and longer l ife. 

Tam ra Heins, rancher, New Salem : (2:1 0: 33) (see attachment #1 0) 

Submitted Testimony from Seth Bacon, ND Pork Counci l :  (2: 14 :4 1 )  (see attachment #1 1 )  

Scott Rising, N D  Soybean G rowers Association :  (2: 1 6:1 0) (see attachment #1 2a-1 2c) 

Submitted Testimony, Bruce G ibbens, Gibbens Law Office, Cando, N D :  (2:21 :26) (see 
attachment #1 3) 

Opposition 

Mark Watne, President of N D  Farmers U n ion : (2:21 :50) (see attachment # 14) 

Senator Klei n :  (2:33:5 1 )  Jerry Messer cou ld talk about a l l  the things that the dairy 
p romotion folks have done. Do you mi lk cows? 

Mark Watne :  No ,  I don't own them . 

Senator Klein : What I hear is the enthusiasm from the dairy industry that we cannot ignore. 
They're the ones out in the trenches trying to make a d ifference. We have partnered over 
the years, many n umber of times with the state trying to expand that--obviously it is not 
working .  You referenced 49 dairies coming to SD that d idn't need that law, wel l  then 
obviously if we provide this opportunity; maybe we won't need those corporations. Maybe 49 
folks will come--we don't know that. The d ifficult thing for me is to see that sort fo 
enthusiasm from people who a re in  the trenches and then to come and say let's go home 
and sta rt promoting it. 

Mark Watne :  It is true that you can suggest that we aren't going to do anything but we d id a 
lot of things. This bi l l  is only about al lowing another business model. There are a lot of tools 
here that a re a l lowable that a re not being used . That tel ls me that there is some other barrier 
and I think we can't ignore the barrier of price .  We can 't ignore the barrier of the logistics to 
the market place and then suggest that this b i l l  is the fix. We need to do all that at the same 
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time and we need to have g reater conversations and have more people involved in trying to 
figure out the solution .  

Senator Klein :  We have heard about a variety of d ifferent corporate structures, but  as I 
reca l l  you organ ization was not on board with that as we worked through that some years 
ago u nti l we final ly careful ly defined how we cou ld come with a structure that wou ld 
represent some sort of cooperative, cooperation .  This whole mi lk thing is a national ly d riven 
pricing scheme and strategy which is beyond what we in ND can do .  You look at that 
national marketing strategy and there are farmers who a re frustrated that they have to fol low 
some sort of convoluted marketing strategy that creates th is price. I th ink we've attempted to 
change al l  of those and agriculture makes our l ittle commun ities grow. We certain ly know 
that l ivestock agriculture is a mu lt ipl ier. Is this the right th ing to do? I haven't supported a 
total expansion ;  I th ink we a re looking at a very narrow change in what we are doing here. 

Senator Larsen:  I l ike this flow chart of how the SD da iry farms are in  decl ine. And then I 
also l ike the analogy of the b igger truck. I n  a farm industry, there's more g ra in in a hopper of 
a b igger combine. As I look at this flow chart, and we're down to 260 farms in  SD, we have 
1 9, 000 cows i n  N D  but there's a permitting for another 25,000 in  SD. Did they not bui ld a 
b igger truck in SD and how many head of cattle a re on each one of these farms? So it must 
be working for them? 

Mark Watne:  I t's not working for the existing dairies; it 's the dairies that are g rowing in s ize. 
So if that's the model you would prefer, then we can have a debate on whether this truly 
helps the existing dairies. You can suggest with that s l ide too that if they've added some 
new ones, they a re sti l l  g iv ing away a bunch. I th ink you make some good observations. 

Chairman M i l ler: Are you saying that in  SD the existing dairies are now opposed to any 
expansion? 

Mark Watne :  I don 't have any idea . 

Vice Chairman Luick:  You had eluded to that the fact that there's maybe an opportun ity for 
the state to set up a faci l ity for processing . What would be the d ifference between that 
particular state owned/operated/corporated entity rather than a d ifferent structure of some 
other ind ivid ual? 

Mark Watne: I 'm not suggesting that we have state owned dairy, I 'm suggesting that we 
have state owned processing . It can be a public/private opportun ity to them, simi lar to the 
state mi l l  and elevator, the state mi l l  and elevator doesn't farm. With that I did include that 
you need to do sign ificant research to figu re out where you go into the market channels with 
th is add itional product. We're short of mi lk here as I understand ;  maybe they need to pay a 
l ittle more. I find it odd that you are not thinking about what d rives the so-cal led free 
enterprise: what d rives supply is price. 

Vice Chairm a n  Luick:  I f  you look at it that way then we probably wi l l  have to throw our 
hands in the a i r  and say that we wil l  buy i t  from whoever wi l l  produce it for a lesser cost and 
that is then going to be shipping i t  i n  from other states. And that mi lk wi l l  be g rown and 
produced by corporate entities in  those other states . 
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Mark Watne :  I d isagree with that because I bel ieve American fam i ly farms can produce th is, 
we just need to find our  path forward on where we're going to market the product. I think we 
can compete j ust as wel l .  I don't know if there is an efficiency with the corporation farming.  I 
do know that the American farmers are excel lent at what they do. I do know that we over 
produce every market and unti l  we figu re out the avenue to sel l more of that product or turn 
to another product, we have times when prices are bad. When prices are bad, cred it d ries 
up. Everything we want to happen is based on  the price of it. A corporation isn't going to 
come into a bank in N D  or a cred it union and say that they want to bui ld a dairy and we want 
to borrow money from you .  They aren't going to get the l uxury of saying that because we're 
a corporation we don't want any responsibi l ity to it, we simply just want to borrow money 
from you .  That doesn't change--it's the economics that are real ly important here. The 
economics of doing dairy in ND has to change so that we can pay these hard working 
people for what they do and what they want to do. 

Chairman Mi l ler: I f  we went down the avenue of creating state owned processor, we wou ld 
have to expand our  dairy herd immensely in order to feed that machine. 

Mark Watne :  I sn 't that what we're trying to do? 

Chairman Mi l ler: Exactly, but I don't understand why you would suggest a state facil ity 
when we're not at capacity at this time in our current faci l ities now. 

Mark Watne:  Because it's going to go along with add itional work. We are going to find 
avenues to enter into the market place where we can truly create an advantage and we are 
going to define our  market p lace. Every business out there that's trying to figure out how to 
market to this new generation of people is looking for the avenue of how people want it and 
to th ink that we can l ive in  the same way that we are today a nd g row it when we have a 
smal l  popu lations and a logistics d isadvantage to the market p lace means that someone is 
not looking at how do we sell th is product for a price that makes it work for our dairy farmers. 
U nti l you have that conversation, you can change the business model as much as you want. 
Even a dairy coming in here has to step back and ask how they are going to market their 
product and how am I going to exist in price fluctuations that aren't i n  the interest of me 
succeed ing .  This is fundamental economics. 

Cha i rman M i l ler: isn't that the advantage of having a corporation, you have the abi l ity to 
retain  earnings despite the h ighs and lows of the market? That's the advantage of d ry g ra in, 
I 'm on a cash basis so I can choose to hold off on some money one year, and balance my ta 

Mark Watne :  I don't see that a corporation is more efficient than a fami ly farm, I th ink we 
can do the same th ing .  I see in  a corporation is that they have the abi l ity to not l ive up to 
responsibi l ities . I agree that there's less risk, but do we real ly want l ivestock production in  
N D  be able to  walk away and leave a mess when i t  doesn 't work? 

Senator Klein: That begs the question with on ly n ine states in the country having a 
corporate law, a nd 97% of the dairies being family owned , are there messes al l  over the 
country from the 3% of corporations existing? 
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Mark Watne: I don't have a n  answer--1 know we have toured some states where there were 
hog and pou ltry operations and there a re a number of instances of abandoned barns. 

Justi n Sherlock, Farmer, Dazey, ND: (2 :46: 1 0) (see attachment #1 5) Testified 1n 
opposition to SB 235 1 . 

M ichelle Zeisch,  Rancher, Petti bone, ND:  (2:50:30) I am a former dairy producer. I don't 
believe that some of the benefits that they've been talking about that wi l l  come with 
corporate farming a re completely true. When we were mi lk ing,  the bigger dairies got the 
bigger breaks on a l l  of their costs and the smal ler producers made up the d ifference. So if 
the bigger corporations got $ 1 .80,  we got $2.20 to average it out to $2 a hundredweight. 
There won't be more vets in the state because they wil l  be isolated and contracted to their 
corporations. The corporations wil l  be dominated by people out of state. It comes down to 
the base price of mi lk ,  so perhaps there should be a program in place to help support the 
p rice of mi lk or establ ish a ret irement program for retired dairymen . 

Senator Oba n :  Did you say you used to be in dairy; if so, why a ren't you anymore? 

M ichelle Zeisch : It was because of price. We were gett ing paid $9 a hundredweight for the 
mi lk and we were paying $5 for a bushel of corn and the mi lk company would deduct for 
th ings beyond our  contro l .  We cou ldn't make it economically feasible. 

Larry Kinev, Independent Beef Association of America:  (2 : 57 :23) (see attachment #1 6) 

Tom Asbridge, Bismarck, N D :  (3:00:22) (see attachment # 1 7) 

Chairman M i l ler:  (3: 1 4 :05) You speak in broad terms and I wonder if some of you r  
d iscussion is based i n  national numbers ,  but you look at S D  and they're permitting cattle, 
b ui ld ing and expand ing their da i ries. So obviously there's room for g rowth a nd people want 
to move those businesses into our state. Dairy is not a strictly intra net operations. Our  
barrier in  th is state is our  corporate law. 

Tom Asbridge: I wou ld d isagree with your premise; I don't find any evidence that it is 
g rounded in  fact. There a re more cows in  SD and they did increase, that is indisputable. 
Some of that was Cal ifornia cows and dairy operations moving . That's almost entirely 
because of u rban sett ing in Cal ifornia is pushing agriculture out just l ike it did orange g roves . 
Most of them have come to SD for those reasons, but I can't see any profit in those 
businesses and there won't be any investors in a nonprofit industry. My concern isn't the 
da i ry industry, the corporate structure that we are talking about and the opportun ity for that 
to evolve into a total corporate structure and corporate farming lends itself to cheap, 
m istreated labor. 

C harles Linderman,  Carrington ,  ND:  (3: 1 9 :39) (see attachment #1 8) 

C h ristopher Dodson,  Executive Director of N D  Cathol ic Conference :  (3:26: 05) (see 
attachment #1 9) • 
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Senator Warner: (3: 3 1  : 00) I n  the Compendium of the Social Doctrine of the Church, I need 
to be refreshed on a chapter deal ing with the 1 9th century pope who had written an 
encyclical about the dangers of using humans and h uman labor as a commodity. Back to 
the argument I made a whi le ago, these enterprises rely on underpaid labor and in order for 
that labor to succeed on l iving on the wages that they pay; they need to rely on the social 
services avai lable from the state. Can you remind me the name of the pope and add ress 
this issue of the commoditization of human labor? 

Ch ristopher Dodson:  Pope Leo XI I I  and what he said was developed further by 
subsequent popes. I n  1 939 when Aloisius Muench wrote the Manifesto on Rural Life, he 
was looking at what wou ld happen if we al low the industria l ization of farming or the industrial 
ownership of farming and what the consequences wou ld be for treating humans as 
commodities and mere labor as economic cogs. That has borne out and when you talk to 
the bishops from other states, it used to be that primary concerns of the cathol ic bishops 
when it came to agricultu re were the fami ly farmers. Now the pr imary concern is the working 
cond itions and the treatment of the laborers. We can debate whether the success in SD is 
due to them changing the law, but we do know that the changes in  SD accord ing to the 
President of the SD Dairy Producers has led to immigration reform being their top priority 
because they must rely on undocumented workers. We strongly support immigration reform 
and believe we should open up our  arms to migrants . But we have to recogn ize that is a 
consequence that is beyond the dol lars and cents and success of a single dairy farm , there 
a re consequences when you start chang ing the fundamental laws wh ich have to do with 
how we as an entire society relate to the land and food and clothing that we produce. It's a 
un ique vocation beyond any other for that reason.  It affects who we are as a community and 
that's where we talk about the sou l  of agricultu re. 

Chai rman Mi l ler:  What's the churches position on corporations in general? 

Ch ristopher Dodson :  The church does not have a position on corporations, but l ike any 
economic or legal structure, everything has to be evaluated accord ing to what we know 
about the human person .  For example, when Pope Leo XI I I  first started writing about this 
and it became doctrine of the church , it was in response to the g rowth in the industrial 
revolution and the sh ift between ownership being part of labor and ownership being part of 
capita l .  The church is teaching is not that capita l is in itself inherently evi l but it raises new 
questions about what happens when we separate ownership from the labor and production .  

Chairman Mi l ler:  You have to look at  this in a h istorical fash ion, the church at  that time 
there were people who were transition ing from a serfdom and l iving u nder the ru le of a king 
who owned everything, an autocratic system and the pope was trying to offer guidelines for 
businesses to behave. 

Christopher Dodson : This was settled pretty clearly by Pope John Paul  I I  saying that these 
pronouncements about labor and capita l ism and ownership a re not mere papal expressions 
or concerns about the cond it ions of the time but a re actual doctrines which are immutable 
and apply forever . 

Senator Larsen :  When I was l istening to the testimony earl ier today, someone brought up 
the question asking why we don't j ust open up corporate farming to everyone, including 
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g ra in farming .  The person said we a l ready are because someone is renting property from 
someone who l ives down in Arizona.  We have al l  these people renting properties from 
people they may not know and we have people coming in  from d ifferent countries to help 
farm it, so shou ld they not be doing that either? 

Christopher Dodso n :  That's a d ifficult question to ask. Everyth ing is on a degree in a 
sense, there a re better ways to do things. But the fact that someone does something one 
way wh ich is not the preferred way doesn't mean that we al l  have to do it. There a re always 
preferences on  how things a re done and we respond according to the t ime. Just because 
someth ing is not intrinsically wrong does not mean it's not a mora l  issue. 

Senator Larsen : So you're saying it's not a moral issue for these folks to be small g rain 
farming renting property from people they don't know and then h ir ing these people from 
other countries? 

Christopher Dodson : On the contrary, everything is a mora l  issue. 

Chairman Mi l ler: I understand what you said about Pope John Paul and this is important to 
me because I'm Catholic and I bel ieve very much in my faith . But I th ink what Pope John 
Paul  was talking about in  th is var ious encyclicals always have the context of the time and 
place in which they were said . Throughout h istory they wil l  reign true, but there's a reason 
why they were said when they were said . 

Ronda Throener, Farmer, Cogswel l ,  N D  (3: 39:53) Testified in opposition to SB 2351 . She 
expressed concern over the vague language in the b i l l .  She also stated that when 
corporations come in, there won 't be a d i rect connection with that land and it's important for 
people to stay in connection with the land . She requested that the senate take their time 
making a decision on the b i l l .  

Senator Klein :  If th is b i l l  happens to pass, there a re sti l l  a lot of opportun ities to correct any 
issues or  concerns you might have as it goes through the process. 

Roger Zeti k, Sterl i n g  N D :  (3:43:20) Testified in opposition to SB 235 1 . Talked about the 
m istreatment h is dad experienced at the hand of a corporation and stated that corporations 
lack personal  connection with their labor. 

Keith S m ith ,  Madock, N D :  (3:45:25) Testified in opposition to SB 235 1 . He stated that 
there a l ready is a corporation stipu lation in  the law and exceptions to the laws . 

Jim Kerzman,  Mott, N D :  (3:48:08) Testified in opposit ion to SB 235 1 . He stated that he 
wou ld hate to see the l ifestyle change in ND .  

Chairman Mil ler closed the hearing on  SB 235 1 . 

• 
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M i n utes : II Attachments: #1 

Chairman Mi l ler handed out an amendment offered by Clark Price (see attachment #1 ) 

Senator Kle in :  M r. Price made a great a rgument, certain ly we have commodities that 
cou ld be recycled rather than shipped out. I can see where that would potentia l ly be a 
positive but I th ink our  concentration has been on the industries where we've seen the most 
decl ine and concerns.  H is gravest concern is losing a processing p lant; I 'm not ready to add 
th is in there. 

Chairman Mi l ler: I just wanted to put th is before the committee so we can talk about it .  I 
th ink we are making a big change here as it is and we want to see what happens with that 
before we go too far. 

Senator Larsen : How many feed lots are currently in  ND? 

Chairman Mi l ler:  I don't know--they come in a l l  shapes and sizes so I couldn't tel l  you how 
many feed lots there a re. 

Senator Klei n :  I bel ieve that the idea with the Aberdeen processing plant reopen ing is that 
there could be positive opportun ities because it wou ld be a close sou rce to process those 
an imals. 

Chairman Mi l ler: There a re simi lar l iab i l ities and issues, wh ich is why the same argument 
can be made to incorporate a feed lot into th is b i l l .  If this committee is not wi l l ing to even 
entertain a motion ,  I 'd just as soon d ispose of the amendment. 

Senator Warner: I 'm not going to move the amendment. But one of the ongoing 
d iscussions we've had about cattle marketing prices is that there's a lways been the issue of 
captive supply--having corporations own processing plants and feed lots so they can 
monopol ize and regulate. The corporations can hold back their own feed when price times 
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are low but then flood the market with thei r own cattle at times to d rive down prices as wel l .  
I 'd be very leery of adopting corporate structures which incl uded feed lots in  ND .  

The committee decided to d ispense with the amendment. 

Senator Larsen moved Do Pass on SB 235 1 . 

Vice Chairman Luick seconded the motion .  

Chairman Mi l ler i nvited any d iscussion on the b i l l .  

Senator Oba n :  I came into the hearing with an open mind and I th ink we'd be much more 
su ited to study th is over the interim and find out what the answer to this problem is. We a l l  
acknowledge that th is  is a prob lem and nobody wants these ind ustries to be strugg l ing .  We 
do need to find an answer, but my fear is that we are open ing up a can of worms I don't 
know if we want to open up .  

Senator Warner: I mentioned in  the hearing that I have trouble imag in ing the genesis of 
these projects. I 'm concerned that these corporations a re going to privately eva luate 
locations and secretly purchase land.  No corporation or hedge fund is going to tip thei r 
hand that they a re an entity with very deep pockets when it comes to negotiating the price 
of land . Only once they have establ ished that they have a land are they going to begin the 
permitting process .  Even if the permitt ing process goes forward smooth ly, corporations are 
going to face the same market and price problems that anyone else does. These 
corporations are on ly going to establ ish those enterprises if there's actual ly money to be 
made. I mentioned in  the hearing that no government has any business ordering a capital ist 
enterprise to go into an enterprise where it's going to lose money. The corporations are 
going to need price as much as sole proprietorsh ips a re going to need price. So they are 
not going to bu i ld un less the price structure is there to support the enterprise . So we end up 
having corporations/corporate entities/hedge funds own ing farmland in  N D  which they wil l  
just sit on unt i l  they have a price in  which to go forward with the enterprise. 

Un less you have price, there's no reason why anyone could make any money at these; 
whether it's a corporation or  these very efficient fami ly farm operations that we have 
trad itional ly rel ied on .  I can't see where incorporating the land or  al lowing corporate 
investors to come in rea l ly helps anyway, we need price. If there is a price and a market, 
ND is very enterprising and farmers are going to find a market. 

Senator Kle in :  I 've been in a lot of conversations, I 've tried to understand why there is a 
concern that corporations and hedge funds wi l l  buy land al l  over. I 've considered what 
happens in the other states with corporations and how they survive. They have survived 
because these a re corporations and are not necessari ly land investors . I th ink we are 
talking about a g roup of ind ividuals who may not be related , but a re going into this to 
prod uce dairy. This b i l l  is pretty specific that you need to own or lease that land for the 
purpose of a dairy . If you do not put a dairy on that land,  than you need to d ivest that 
property if they do not put a faci l ity on that property. Having said that, they have to fi le as a 
corporation in ND ;  they would need a permit from the agriculture department and the health 
department. I don't see the land concern as being an issue. 
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This d iscussion began in  early January when we l istened to the commodity g roups and I 
heard the da i ry folks say that we have a problem . Is this the only solution? Maybe not, but 
we've tried a lot of th ings.  Gary Hoffman is a gentleman who worked very hard for the 
promotion of dairy in ND .  He spent a lot of time here and we worked with other areas to 
squi rrel up some money to try to lu re da i ries to ND .  Yesterday, he sent a message tel l ing 
me that this is a good idea , we've tried everyth ing and we need to move this forward . When 
he said that, it rem inded me of a b i l l  we had earl ier this week about the right to try. This is a 
narrow opportun ity to g ive the da i ry ind ustry the right to try. I don 't want to have this expand 
i nto crop land and I th ink it has been written very tightly. 

Chairman Mi l ler: I agree; when I read the various case law that has been laid out in other 
states regard ing th is issue and I read cases from the supreme cou rt of ND ,  they talk about 
the dormant commerce clause. They are talking about the abi l ity for Americans to freely 
conduct business across state l ines . When you try and inh ib it that, you run into trouble. The 
reason why our  law has not been successfu l ly chal lenged is because no one has gone 
after it. The concern that I 'm hearing from people is that this is a carve out that is going to 
explode. But every corporation and person is freely capable to conduct business as a da i ry 
or  swine in  N D  u nder this p roposal .  It's not an issue of interstate commerce, it's an issue of 
ND a l lowing or d isal lowing a certain business wh ich we do a l l  the time. I feel our  carve out 
is strong and proper and as a landowner and a gra in farmer, I have no worry. 

Senator Oba n :  I agree that this is very specific and I th ink you sort of helped reiterate the 
point people a re trying to make in that when you start poking holes in this is when it starts. 
That's perhaps why it hasn't been cha l lenged , because there a re no holes. 

Chairman Mi l ler: My point is that we can't d iscriminate against you because of what state 
you ' re from. There was some ta lk about people saying that the corporation has to be owned 
by people from ND .  That's when we start creating a problem; if we sta rt doing that then we 
are into constitutional  issues . This bi l l  is saying that anyone can own th is and I wou ld say 
that in that fami ly component, is the reason why it's held up is that you cou ld be a fami ly 
member from any other state. If we tried to l imit the corporate structure to people from ND,  
we'd be in  trouble.  

Senator Oba n :  My point is that we are doing a carve out for two specific industries with in 
agriculture. Why doesn't that become d iscrimination with someone who wants to do that 
with g rain? 

Chairman Mi l ler: I t 's  a whole new enterprise; it'd be l ike if  we want to prohibit u ranium 
min ing in  ND, we could do that. I t  wouldn't violate the commerce clause. I 'm confident in 
what we've done here. I 've spent a lot of hours trying to th ink of a better way to write this or 
trying to carve out a way in the triple LP model and inject a corporation into there if 
somebody wanted to invest into that model . But that's when you get into more trouble, you 
can't do that. If we're going to go down this road,  this is the right way in  the language that 
we have before us . 

Senator Larsen :  As I looked at the testimony one thing that kept coming back to me was in  
the 1 930s, we had 500,000 m i lk cows ; now we have 1 9 , 000.  So clearly from the thirties to 
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now, someth ing's happen ing .  When I heard in the testimony of these great ideas that we 
should have more research , we don't have time for research--we have 1 9, 000 cows and 
dwindl ing .  They want us to have the state own a faci l ity? I 'm not i nto state government 
own ing more stuff-- 1 th ink we need less government and getting government out of the way 
and letting it have a chance,  what's it going to hurt? We are law makers so if it is bad , we 
can come back and fix it--that's our job. 

Senator Wa rner: A point on the 500 , 000 cows, s imu ltaneously we were the number one 
export of cream--we cou ld n't afford to export the bu lk of whole m i lk because of d istance 
and proxim ity to market. So we refined off the cream ,  sold the cream,  and wasted the mi lk 
or fed the mi lk to hogs,  which is why we had so many hogs in the state at the same time. 
We certa in ly never had the market; nobody was d rinking that m uch mi lk. The other point I 
wanted to make was that this most recent election on which we had Measure 5 where we 
had a specter of outside interests coming in  and buying up agricultura l  land for 
conservation use. Al l  the way across the pol itical spectrum we saw people's alarm about 
outside interests coming in  and buying up agricultura l  land and competing with ND's 
farmers. I ,  for one, would never in itiate a referendum or support a referendum. I fi rm ly 
believe as a member of the leg islature that this is my forum and voice in  the matter, what 
we do with th is I ' l l  make it work. But I 'm not the only guy in the room and I have to bel ieve 
that that spectrum is sti l l  out there of referendum.  I would have to think,  g iven the political 
atmosphere of N D  a nd the unpopularity of corporate ownership of farmland and the stance 
of one of the major rel ig ions within the state, I would have to bel ieve there's going to be a 
referendum if this passes . I 'm not going to support it. 

Senator Kle i n :  I take a l ittle issue with Senator Larsen saying that government should get 
out of the way; we should , but there are times when we need to have some regu lation .  
Once aga in ,  I bel ieve that Measure 5 would suggest that they cou ld come in  and just buy 
up whatever property they wanted with our money. We are saying with th is b i l l  that you can 
have a section of land , but you have to put a dairy on it . I th ink there's a d ifference. In 2 0 0 3 , 
I voted against open ing this thing wide open because I don 't th ink we should have 
corporations own ing mega farms.  I sti l l  bel ieve that the land is for the farmers and i n  this 
case, a section would be for the dairy company. I don't th ink th is is open ing up anyth ing , I 
th ink it's very narrow. 

Seeing no further d iscussion ,  a Roll Cal l  vote was taken. Yea : 4; Nay: 2; Absent: 0.  

Chairman Mi l ler wil l  carry the b i l l .  

L - --- --
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Explanation or reason for i ntrod uction of bi l l /resol utio n :  

Relating to  the ownership or  leasing of farm and ranch land by  corporations.  

M i n utes : Attachments #1 -1 7 

Senator Wanzek: Sponsor of the Bi l l  (Attachment #1 ) 

( 1 7 :55) 
Refers to Attachment #1 , page 21 . The numbers for swine in 2014  accord ing to the 
National  Agricu ltural  Statistics Service show Iowa with 20 ,900,000 head , M innesota with 
7 ,850, 000 head , Nebraska with 3, 1 00 ,000 head and South Dakota with 1 ,250,000 head . 
North Dakota had 1 39 ,000 head . I t  takes about 25 bushels of corn to produce a market 
hog . 25 bushels of corn today is worth about $75 to $85. If you put it through that hog it 
becomes worth $260 to $270. The rural agricultu re dol lar turns over five times in a 
community. So one hog wou ld add about $1 ,200 impact to a commun ity. By adding 
another 1 00 ,000 hogs that is $ 1 20 ,000 , 000 of economic impact. These are b i l l ion dol lar 
industries in  other states. 

In Iowa corn farmers don't export much of their corn . They use it al l  with in  their state. Their 
basis is a plus over the Ch icago board of trade. Ours in  past years has been around a 
dol lar under. 

Our ind ividual fam i ly farms can't afford to get into this business al l  on their own . What if we 
had a law that said no farmer can farm the land unless he owns the land? There wou ldn 't 
be hard ly any beg inning young farmers in our industry. But they have equ ity investors i n  
the form of  land lords.  When a young farmer wants to get i nto a dairy o r  hog operation now 
they have to fund it a l l  by themselves. 

I u nderstand there has been a poll done. I bel ieve it is a lead ing poll seeking a desired 
resu lt. I believe in  that organ ization , but take that into account when you consider the pol l .  
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(2 1 : 50) 
Representative Dwight Kiefert: Think about how we got here .  The on ly commodity that 
is regulated in price is the dairy ind ustry. The Mi lk Board's m ission statement is to provide 
an adequate supply of mi lk for North Dakota . They set the price. In the past ten years they 
have seen a decl ine in da i ries in the state. Why didn't they ra ise the price of mi lk to make it 
profitable? 

Senator Wanzek: This b i l l  is not the only solution .  Other dairies in other states face the 
same federal rules and regu lations and yet their da i ry industry is thriving .  One of the 
reasons is they have exemptions for investment into da i ry. There are other th ings we can 
look at in addition to enhance our l ivestock industries in North Dakota . 

Representative C raig Head land : How does the size of the average farm in I owa compare 
to the average size i n  North Dakota? 

Senator Wanzek:  Acreage wise the Iowa farms are smaller. 

Representative C raig Head land:  Why are they smal ler? 

Senator Wanzek: I n  my opin ion,  because there is l ivestock opportun ity. They use their 
commod ities with in the state and don't have to ship it out. 

Representative C raig  Headla n d :  You are suggesting they don't have to be as large 
because they can squeeze more profit per acre .  The fact that they can get a better price 
from operations with in the state helps everybody. 

Senator Wanzek: This b i l l  is about provid ing a cooperative effort to complement each 
other. 

Representative C raig  Head land:  If I am going to compete with Iowa as a corn farmer, I 
need an avenue to get rid of that corn. Sh ipping out on the rai l  is not the solution. This is 
more of a benefit to a fami ly farmer than a h indrance. 

Senator Wanzek:  J ust raising the price 50 cents wou ld add around $ 1 60 mi l l ion to the 
corn value for our  farmers.  

Representative Joshua Boschee : (Referring to Attachment #1 , page 1 9) If we a l low for 
the exemptions,  what wou ld success look l ike? How many more head wou ld be 
successfu l? 

Senator Wa nzek: Success wou ld be reversing the trend . I th ink we could get back to the 
late 90s or early 2000s. It is not going to change overn ight. 

Representative Joshua Boschee: Since 1 930 we have seen a d ramatic decrease in  a l l  
states in dairy. When looking at ind ividual  states, from the most recent h igh point to today 
there are three states: I l l inois ,  North Dakota , and Nebraska have seen a decrease. What 
is our goal? 
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Senator Wanzek: Prod uction agricu lture has become that much more efficient. A cow 
prod uces more today than in  the 1 930s. That is typical i n  a l l  of agricu lture. But with our 
trend we won't have a da i ry ind ustry if  we don't try someth ing .  

Representative Jessica Haa k: Can you g ive a breakdown of what percentage of cows in 
South Dakota are owned by corporations and what percentage are owned by fami ly farms? 

Senator Wanzek: I can get that information to you .  Family farmers can sti l l  dairy. It takes 
economies of scale . The average person cannot afford this. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Those numbers wou ld be important. When you are giving 
the numbers of the investment, where did you get the numbers? 

Senator Wa nzek:  The Department of Agricu lture or NDSU.  

Vice C h a i r  Wayne Trottier: The ma in  objective i n  the da i ry ind ustry is  to  keep our current 
processing plants going .  

Senator Wa nzek:  That is the biggest concern . The people impacted have come to me 
and asked for this help . In Stutsman County there are only fou r  or five da i ries left. If they 
don't get enough dai ries , it wi l l  close a processing plant. Then transportation costs wi l l  
i ncrease or the da i ry wil l  have to go out of  business . 

Rep resentative Diane Larson:  This b i l l  l imits the size to 640 acres. If i t  were a fami ly­
owned operation ,  there would not be a l imit? 

Senator Wanzek: Fami l ies wou ld not be restricted . We don't want outside interests 
coming i n  and buying or leasing large segments of land . Most operations want to focus 
their efforts into operating the da i ry. They don't want to spend time producing feed . The 
reason we chose 640 acres is so there can be an al lowance for setbacks. Many wou ld not 
purchase that much land . 

Representative Alan Fehr: The average person is wondering about  zon i n g ,  smel l ,  waste 
products, etc. 

Senator Wanzek: We sti l l  maintain a l l  local zoning ord inances . We have laws in the 
Century Code that deal with confined animal feed ing operations and the permitting process. 
They have to go through the Health Department, EPA. With the newer technologies the 
odor is control led. Manure is a positive resource. Most farmers wou ld rather use manure 
than synthetic fert i l izer. 

Representative Diane Larson:  I got a phone cal l  about a concern that manure would 
have seeds for noxious weeds. 

Senator Wanzek: That wou ld be poor qual ity feed with weed seeds. They don't feed the 
cows garbage because they won 't get top qual ity production .  

1 
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Representative Dwight Kiefert: When losing our processors , it was mentioned they 
wou ld have to ship out of state. Federal law prohib its that. Export ing to South Dakota 
won't be an option.  

Senator Wanzek: I thought there was a cheese plant in Pol lock, South Dakota that takes 
North Dakota mi lk .  

Chairman Den nis Johnson:  I th ink cheese is a d ifferent situation . 

(40:40) 
Senator Mi l ler: (Attachment #2a & #2b) 

Refers to Century Code (Attachment #2b) .  

Fami ly farmers have to make a conscious decision to sel l  or lease this land to a 
corporation . 

Currently we are l im ited to a third degree of kinship in  our fami ly corporation .  Second 
cousins have to d issolve the corporation . Fathers were partnered with fi rst cousins and 
that worked u nti l this point .  

Why is the corporate structure advantageous? There are l iabi l ity protections that you can't 
get with a l im ited l iabi l ity company or an LLLP. There is the abi l ity to withhold earnings, tax 
advantages, etc. Taking on massive amounts of debt opens you up to large amounts of 
l iabi l ity. 

I n  South Dakota they are using the l imited partnersh ip method . But they may use a 
corporate partner. 

We are not going to see massive corporations coming in . They wi l l  be smal l  fami ly-owned 
corporations. We won't see the massive Walmart-type corporations buying dairies . 

If you are not engaged in da i ry or  swine, you wil l  have to d ivest the land in three years . 

I bel ieve we are doing the right thing for North Dakota agriculture .  This wi l l  bring more 
wealth into rural North Dakota . 

(46 :30) 
Representative Jessica Haak: Do you believe North Dakota farmers and ranchers wou ld 
be better served by gett ing rid of the corporate farming law? 

Senator Joe M i l ler: Yes , if we enhance our  current law by provid ing more of these types of 
carve outs, they wou ld be better served if we go down that avenue 

Representative Tom Kad i n g :  I f  I had a dairy operation ,  cou ld I get someone in person to 
invest in my dairy without being a corporation? 
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Senator Joe Mi l ler: Yes he can invest if he wants to expose h imself to that l iabi l ity. You're 
deal ing with sewage systems, etc. with a great deal of risk. If there is a problem, the 
investor as a person would be exposed to l iabi l ity and could lose everything he owns .  

Representative Diane Larson : If you have a corporation ,  you can l imit your l iabi l ity but a 
person won't. A farmer would lose everything? This corporation would al low only a certain 
amount of l iabi l ity? 

Senator Joe Mi l ler: I can't answer al l  of that. A corporation has to have insurance. There 
are people waiting to attack agricu lture along with any success. 

Representative Alan Feh r: I s  there anyth ing currently that would prevent second cousins 
from forming joint ventures and continue to operate? 

Senator Joe M i l ler: With a new corporation but they wou ld have to do away with the 
current structure that has been bu i lt over generations. 

(53: 00) 
Doug Goehring,  North Da kota Ag ricultu re Comm issioner: (Attachment #3a) 

South Dakota does grant exemptions for dairies and feed lots . Starting in 201 4  South 
Dakota has permitted 22,681 new head and added 7 , 930 more head to its existing dairies. 
That is over 30,000 head in just an 1 8  month period . 

Our processors have been importing m i lk to keep the facil ities open . If we lose many more 
operations we may have to close our processing plant in central  North Dakota. That wou ld 
cause our farmers to transport their mi lk many mi les at a sign ificant cost or qu it mi lking and 
sell the cows. 

Our l ivestock numbers are decl in ing .  Beef is holding steady. Swine production from 2003 
to 20 1 3  has gone down by 1 0%.  Dairy has declined by 55%. North Dakota produces an 
abundance of feed stocks. We provide a bio secure environment. We have an opportun ity 
to use the manure and offset other costs of production for our g ra in  farmers. We h ave the 
abi l ity to support services such as feed mi l ls and veterinarians. We do need more 
d iversification that wi l l  complement what we have--not compete with it. 

(56 :00) 
Representative Dwight Kiefert: The North Dakota Mi lk Board sets the price the dairy 
farmers receive . Why d idn't they raise the price so the dairy farmers would have a profitable 
atmosphere? 

Doug Goeh ri n g :  I have no control over the Mi lk  Stabi l ization Board .  There are economies 
of scale that after a point it seems to be more profitable. In 1 960 we had 1 9 .2 mi l l ion dairy 
l ivestock in the county and we produced 1 23 b i l l ion pounds of mi lk .  Today we have 60% 
less cows in the Un ited States and we are producing 202 b i l l ion pounds of mi lk. We have 
become more efficient. The size of the operation has to be large enough so they can 
operate efficiently. 



House Agriculture Committee 
SB 2351 
March 5, 201 5  
Page 6 

A 1 ,600 cow dairy operation costs about $7 .5 to 9 .5  mi l l ion .  When we talk to one of the 
managers of the larger operations, he wasn't as concerned about the price of mi lk as he 
was about how h is operation is runn ing and the relationships needed for h is feed in case 
there is a d rought. With others provid ing the feed they can concentrate on just mi lk ing 
cows. 

Representative Diane Larson:  Can you help me understand the d ifference between the 
l iabi l ity issues of a corporation and an ind ividual farmer? 

Doug Goeh ri ng : No, I can't. When this conversation started , we were looking at an LLP. 
If you have two farms that are incorporated , they can 't be part of an LLP. That wou ld be a 
corporate farm structure .  We need to clarify with exemptions in  Century Code. I would be 
opposed to going any further than a dairy, a swine, or a feed lot operation .  

Representative Alan Fehr:  Wil l  economies of scale be enough to turn around the dairy 
industry? 

Doug Goeh ring : If we have more dairies and more production, we would be getting the 
mi lk from with in  our state . The processing faci l ity in Bismarck has a 600 cow/day deficit. If 
we lose production,  we either need to import more m i lk or close the plant. 

The two largest producing counties in the state are Morton and Emmons County. If we lose 
this plant we only have the cheese plant in South Dakota and Cass Clay in Fargo­
Moorhead . 

Representative Jessica Haak :  Are you offering an amendment for feed lots? 

Doug Goeh ri ng : No I am not offering an amendment. At the beg inn ing feed lots were in 
the d iscussion a long with dairy and swine? 

Representative Jess ica Haak: Do you bel ieve open ing up the corporate farming law could 
lead to further opening of the law? 

Doug Goehri n g :  If by adding feedlots it would g ive more weight to the b i l l? 

Representative Jessica Haak: No, i t  g ives weight to the argument that by offering these 
two exceptions, this is the fi rst step to repeal ing the corporation farming law. 

Doug Goehri n g :  That is a judgment cal l .  Those three areas wou ld best compl iment North 
Dakota . I would oppose going any further.  

There are three areas here that l imit what can be done. This wil l  help them . No one sees 
this as competition .  We can form some d ifferent structure to operate u nder. 

Representative Jessica Haa k: Can you g ive insight as to who you had conversations 
with? 
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Doug Goehri n g :  The l ivestock ind ustry has reached out to corn and soybean farmers . 
More emphasis was put on the issue during this last year when more dairy farmers have 
said they are h u rt ing. 

We spend t ime with South Dakota at l ivestock shows . They have opportun ities and are 
getting the business. They can feed dairy heifers. 

Representative C raig Head land:  How fami l iar are you with the decision by the 81h circuit in 
tossing out the corporate farming laws in  Nebraska and South Dakota? 

Doug Goehri n g :  I only know a l ittle about it. It wouldn't be fai r  for me to comment. 

Representative C raig Head land : I t  appears it was thrown out because of the 
d iscriminatory nature to keep out large corporations. That is what we are talking about here.  
If  chal lenged here in  North Dakota , the same decision wou ld be made by the 81h circuit. 

Doug Goehri n g :  I have had conversations with our attorney. There are those in  
agriculture that want to have a d ifferent structure. I n  M innesota they have 250 farmers 
involved in a dairy operation.  They have 242 farmers involved in a hog operation .  So far 
the chal lenges have come from nonprofit organ izations that want to own and purchase land 
in  North Dakota . 

Representative Jessica Haak: Do you know what percentage of da i ry farmers are 
corporate and what percentage are fami ly owned in  South Dakota? USDA says 93% of al l  
farms in  the U . S .  are fami ly owned and operated . What percent of the 93% are dairies? 

Doug Goehring:  I am not sure .  If they are LLPs, do they have a corporate partner? One 
corporate partner wou ld requ i re operating under the corporate structure .  In my 
conversations with the Secretary of Agriculture in South Dakota about the 30,000 head they 
have perm itted this year, he d id say that 7 ,930 of those were to existing dairies. The 
remaining was new permitted . We cou ld find that information for you .  

Handed out testimony from Walt Bones, Former South Dakota Secretary o f  Agricult u re .  
(Attachment #3b) 

( 1 : 1 9) 
C raig Jarol imek, Pork P rod ucer, Walsh County: (Attachment #4) 
(1 :25 :47) 
Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: One of the concerns about dairy is to keep a processing plant 
open.  Currently there are no pork processing plants in the state. Is there a demand for 
processing pork? 

C raig Jarol imek: Absolutely. John Morrel l  in Sioux Fal ls is always seeking animals. The 
Brandon plant owned by Maple Leaf foods is at a deficit of 1 0 ,000 hogs a day. They would 
l ike to run double sh ift. Exchange rates vary and affect the opportun ity. More opportun ity 
may exist in the future .  You legislate for the future .  We are the only state in the un ion that 
can export l ive hogs to Canada because we haven't had pseudorabies. 
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Vice Chair Wayne Trottier:  One of the negatives I hear, where are the workers going to 
come from? How many people are employed at a farrowing barn with 5 ,000 or 6 ,000 sows? 

C raig Jarol imek: A 5 ,000 farrowing operation needs about 1 4  or 1 5  fu l l  time workers and 3 
to 4 part time workers. They l ike to employ youth on weekends or ho l idays or summer 
months. If you bu i ld it, they wil l  come. It is the same with the o i l  industry. More competition 
raises wages. They are ski l led workers. Being a manager of a 5 ,000 swine operation is a 
ski l l .  Many of them make six figures. They make more than a school superintendent. The 
part time workers wi l l  be in the $ 1 2  to $ 1 5  range. 

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier:  If this b i l l  passes , wi l l  th is be fin ish ing un its or  farrowing un its 
that come to the state? 

C raig Jarol imek: I am involved in a farrowing operation .  We export isowean pigs to 
partners in  Iowa . An isowean pig is a 2 1 -day-old weaned pig transported to where the corn 
and fin ishing markets are .  We have bio security and h igh health . We have al l  the feed 
g rains and land mass to d istribute the nutrients and the manure .  That wou ld come with in a 
year of this b i l l .  Then the fin ishing un its would fol low. The fin ish ing is more of an 
opportunity for ind iv iduals that may have a job in town but want to  be involved in agriculture .  
That is  not a fu l l  time job.  

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: The other concern is the waste and d isposal and setbacks. 
Setbacks being how far away you have to be from a home or farm . What are the current 
regu lations for setbacks? 

Craig Jarol imek:  The State Health Department wou ld have those numbers. The 
perm itting and appl ication process is qu ite thoroug h .  I t  takes at least a year and includes 
public hearings. You have to also have county approva l .  I don't know of a ny violations.  
Our State Health Department does a good job of oversight. 

Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier:  One of the larger barns in North Dakota is not only in Cass 
County but in the city of Fargo. That is the NDSU hog barn . 

Representative C raig Headland:  I n  looking at the numbers,  i t  appears someth ing 
happened between 1 995 and 2000. We lost about 1 /3 of our  hog production.  The same 
thing happened in  neighboring states where they implemented the law prohib iting corporate 
farming.  It looks l ike they m oved to Iowa . Can you add anything? 

Craig Jarol imek: We have increased production in the swine industry. We have gone from 
weaning 8 pigs to 1 4 . Sows now have 2 Yi l itters per year rather than 1 l itter. Some 
n umbers are mislead ing .  Our  market weights have also gone up. 

The commitment for swine is not as much as for dairy but i t  is close. We also lost some 
market when Cloverdale closed . We used to run a 1 60 sow farrow-to-fin ish operation .  We 
lost network in  our  area with other prod ucers leaving .  We used to load a semi load of hogs 
weekly with other producers to go to John Morrel l .  We can't do that today without the other 
producers .  You can 't control the markets so you have to control the inputs. 
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Chairman Dennis Johnson : Would you share about the basis of corn and the value we 
can add to corn? 

C raig Jarol imek: Senator Wanzek eluded that Iowa is a corn deficit state . They import 
corn . Corn is mostly al l  they raise. You a lso see a lot of hog barns. Their basis is zero . 
Some of the best operations are two or three brothers that have a farm and are involved 
with another farm and have no debt and are feeding their corn to Iowa select hogs. It is a 
guaranteed income.  The corn market may fluctuate but that hog operation supports them. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Are there provisions in  current law that would al low 
investments into your operation? 

C raig Jarol imek: Yes. I am involved i n  one, an LLLP. I got involved in  2006 . We 
attracted some partners in  I owa. We were able to bui ld two 5 ,000 head fin ishing barns. We 
could do that because I knew people. I served as President of the National  Pork Producers 
Counci l .  We have to submit yearly reports to make sure we are operating under the law. 
Oversight is very important to protect our  state. 

Representative Jessica Haak: If th is is a solution for animal operations, why would we not 
open this up to a l l  operations? 

C raig Jarol imek: That is for you to decide. 

( 1 :4 1 )  
Jerry Messer, Farmer: We have a dairy herd and a beef herd .  We raise corn , wheat, 
barley, canola, soybeans, field peas, and alfa lfa .  The m i lk truck comes to my place every 
other day to pick up mi lk .  Some of it goes to the fluid industry out i n  the man camps. When 
it doesn't go there, it goes to Pol lack, SD to be fin ished into cheese . 

By the year 2020 there wi l l  be a need for 35 b i l l ion more pounds of m i lk worldwide. The 
M idwest area is one of the areas that can fi l l  the need . We have an abundant feed supply. 
We have reasonable land prices. 

Of the top twelve priced markets in the Un ited States, we are in  the top five. Last year I 
averaged $22 . 50 per hundred weight for my mi lk .  Dairy and beef are the best producers on 
our farm. This b i l l  is not a negative but an opportun ity to invest in agricu lture in this state. 
They are not looking to take over a community. They want to be a part of it. They have a 
strong faith-based l ifestyle which they portray onto their workers . 

Refer to charts (Attachment #5) 
F lu id mi lk is trending downward . The number one occasion for m i lk is breakfast. We need 
to capture that mi lk need for other parts of the day. 

Every seventh day of m i lk prod uction in  the U .S .  is exported overseas. We have found what 
they need . 

Greek yogurt takes 3 ounces of mi lk to make 1 ounce of yogu rt and has gone over very wel l .  
Regular yogurt takes 1 ounce of mi lk to make 1 ounce of yogurt .  
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Coca Cola came to us and said they wanted to be part of the da i ry industry. Fairl ife is the 
result of a partnersh ip with Coca Cola.  Fairl ife wi l l  compete against a lmond , soy, and rice 
commodity mi lk  beverages. Fairl ife has twice as much prote in ,  twice as much calcium ,  half 
the sugar and lactose free. 

We convinced Domino's pizza to put 30% more cheese on their pizza.  S ince then Domino's 
stock has gone from $8 per share to over $ 1 00 per share .  

We have used other tools and they haven't worked. 

( 1  :50:37) 
Representative Jessica Haak: Did you visit with the owner of the dairy in  South Dakota 
about the number of workers and the average salary? 

Jerry Messer: I ' l l  tel l  you about mine. We milk 250 cows. We have four  workers. My 
average salary is $ 1 4 . 50 to 1 6 .50 per hour. No other state is as prosperous as North 
Dakota. We should g rab some of that royalty money in  western North Dakota and invest it 
into agriculture .  That wou ld keep it in North Dakota . 

Representative Jessica Haak: Isn 't there a provision in  law now to a l low people to invest 
in your operation .  

Jerry Messer: Yes. Opening th is  corporate farming bi l l  is hard because i t  is the unknown. 
You as a committee can watch this progress. 

Representative Dwight Kiefert: You said North Dakota is #5 as far as the top ranked 
price .  Who is #1 and what is the price? 

Jerry Messer: N umber 1 is the flu id mi lk states . I n  answer to your other question,  the M i lk 
Stabi l ization Board sets a min imum retai l  price for mi lk .  If a company from Minnesota wants 
to ship mi lk  to North Dakota that min imum price cannot be u ndercut. Without that, mi lk 
would come in from other states undercutting our price and run us out of business. That 
price fluctuates accord ing to supply and demand . 

Florida is #1 by about $4 per h undred weight because 1 00% of their m i lk goes into flu id .  
The h igher the uti l ization in  federal orders, the h igher the price for mi lk .  The lowest 
markets in the nation a re Idaho,  Cal iforn ia ,  and Colorado .  

Representative Dwight Kiefert: Looking a t  $4 per hundred . Wou ld we be  in this 
pred icament if we had $4 per hundred more in the last ten years? 

Jerry Messer: That is hard to say. We have an aging population of farmers. If we can 
bring back young people, we need to have opportun ity for them. Corporate farming wi l l  
help. The main focus is to tel l  consumers what we are doing and if i t  is safe for them . 

Representative Jessica Haak: You testified that by 2020 we wil l  have a g reat need for 
m i lk .  How do we rank as a country as far as producing flu id mi lk? 
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Jerry Messer: We are n umber 1 in the world for flu id m i lk .  Ch ina and I nd ia are two of the 
main needs for prote in .  Ch inese consumers don't trust their mi lk .  We are working on five 
in itiatives. One of them is to provide China with fluid m i lk .  So we are exporting with ESL 
(Extended Shelf Life) . It is heat treated m i lk that has 1 0  to 1 6  months shelf stabi l ity. They 
can ship it over warm in conta iners.  

(2:00) 
Jeff Enger, Farmer and Livestock Producer, Marion,  N D :  (Attachment #6) 

(2: 05) 
Kenton Hol le, Dai ry Farmer South of Mandan : (Attachment #7) 

The da iry coalition has been active in  trying to save our industry. We have had success but 
not enough to stop the decl ine.  

I n  20 1 4  we had the highest record prices ever and we sti l l  saw a decline in  dairy cow 
n umbers .  What are we doing to save the industry? This b i l l  l im its to 640 acres. There are 
existing facil ities in North Dakota that wou ld shadow 640 acres and wou ld look more l ike a 
corporate farm . I wou ld not support corporate farming without restrictions. 

Ten years ago we moved our farm from New Salem to south of Manda n .  Without the help 
of fami ly we would not be in  business. We can't pred ict how this wi l l  help. This is another 
tool for structu re of a business. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Where do you take your mi lk to process? 

Kenton Holle:  Bismarck, Land 0 Lakes plant. That is the same plant that my grandfather 
sh ipped to. 

Representative C raig Headland:  Does that plant run at fu l l  capacity? 

Kenton Hol le:  Yes. There is mi lk  com ing from outside of the state. It is 600 cows short. 
We could double our capacity and fi l l  that plant. 

Representative C raig Headland:  Wasn't there a Cass Clay processing plant in  Mandan 
that has closed? 

Kenton Hol le:  It closed in  2005 or 2006. 

(2: 1 5) 
Havey Hoff, Dairy Farmer: (Attachment #8a) 

Also handed out testimony from Alan Qual who cou ld not attend.  (Attachment #8b) 

(2: 1 9) 
J i m  Gibbens, Farmer and Businessman, Cando, ND:  I own the largest sow barn in  the 
state. 
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Chairman Den n is Johnson:  How d o  you impact the loca l  commun ity? 

Jim Gibbens: The 6 ,000 sow barn has about 44 fu l l  t ime employees. It has over $2 
mi l l ion impact in wages. There are 80 students in the school d istrict in Cando that are 
i nvolved in the business that we run .  Iowa l ikes to import Canadian isowean pigs because 
of the colder cl imates they have a h igher health status. I n  Cando, N D  it is cold and a lso a 
h igh health area. There is always a need for capita l .  

Doug Lem ieux, Rolette, N D :  (Attachment #9) 
When I served in the leg islature I voted for corporate farming in North Dakota. As a 
producer I am at risk a l l  the t ime. If we could incorporate our farms, we cou ld l imit our 
l iabi l ity . 

We do not have a da i ry farmer left in  Rolette County. When Pride Da iry closed in Bottineau 
and Cass Clay pu l led out, our cost of transportation was too h igh .  Every dairy farmer shut 
down their barns. We lost feed sales, etc. We invest b i l l ions of dol lars outside of North 
Dakota . It may be PERS, Workforce Safety and Insurance, or  the Legacy Fund.  We need 
to look at investing in  North Dakota . 

My handout (Attachment #9) ta lks about what happened in  the 30s and in the teens. The 
old Chinese proverb says "you should study where you can from so you know where you 
can go." In the early 1 900s we al lowed corporations and insurance compan ies to take the 
land away from the smal l  farmer. We as a government have the abi l ity to control large 
corporations that come in. Right now al l  pork is processed outside of North Dakota. We 
used to have a lot of hog farms in  Rolette County. We don't any more. 

The true fiscal responsibi l ity that comes with a l lowing corporate farming is the education of 
students that do not speak Engl ish.  

I n  1 998 there was a strike in  Canada . They shut down their  processing of hogs. The 
ramifications on pork production in North Dakota , South Dakota , Minnesota , and Iowa are 
that we wiped out a lot of hog farmers .  Had we been corporate hog farmers , we cou ld have 
l im ited our losses because the corporation wou ld have been broke but we wou ldn't have 
lost a l l  the farmers off the land . When agricu lture suffers the local communities suffer. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Are you suggesting that opening corporate farming for 
da i ry and swine, the state wi l l  be on the hook for more investments? 

Doug Lem ieux: I th ink it would be good if we had corporate farming a l l  across . We cou ld 
l imit the corporations.  We can 't remain back in the 1 900s. 

Representative Jessica Haa k: Wil l  the state have to make further investments? 

Doug Lemieux: If we bring in  people we wil l  have to invest in  b i l ingual education.  The 
border patrol has to check for proper documentation . 
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(2 :34:34) 
Tam ra Heins, New Salem, Executive Director of the ND Pork Counci l :  
(Attachment # 1  Oa) 

(2 :38 :50) 
Representative Jessica Haak: We have heard concerns about finding labor. In your  
testimony you are saying they are going elsewhere to  get a job .  Which one is it? 

Tam ra Heins : Our enrol lees in  the programs are going other places to find jobs. 

Read testimony from Seth Bacon,  President of ND Pork Cou n c i l :  (Attachment #1 0b) 

(2:40:53) 
Jenn ifer Holle, Di rector of ND Dairy Coal itio n :  Read testimony from several dairy 
prod ucers from South Dakota who were unable to attend.  

--Marv Post, President of SD Dairy Producers (Attachment #1 1 a)  

--Rodney El l iot, Drumgoon Dairy, Lake Norden , SD (Attachment #1 1 b)  

(2:48 :40) 
Representative Jessica Haak: What is the size of a local commun ity that Marv Post 
refers to? 

Jenn ifer Hol le:  I th ink he is talking about h is community. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Did he submit numbers to see how it grew? You have 
taxes paid . Do you know what it was before they opened? 

Jenn ifer Hol le:  I can get those numbers .  

Clark Price, Feed lot Operator, Washbu rn,  ND:  Would l ike to  add feedlot amendment 
(Attachment #1 2a) 

As a sole proprietor, I have to pay 1 00% of my self-employment tax. U nder the corporate 
structure that tax stays in  the company as working capita l .  

Every pound of beef produced takes about ten pounds of corn or DDGs (dried d isti l ler's 
g ra in) .  That one pound of beef today is worth $1 .60.  If you take that ten pounds and 56 
pounds a bushel of corn , it takes about 5.6 times that $1 .60 which turns into about $9 corn . 
That wi l l  a l leviate a lot of rai l  problems. We put that beef on t ires and take it to a processor. 
We have a processor south of our  border in Aberdeen.  That plant has the capacity to 
process around 425, 000 head per year. We produce the best genetics in the country. We 
need to supply to that plant. 

(2: 54) 
Refer to g raph (Attachment #1 2b) It is a travesty to have that smal l  of amount of cattle fed 
in  our  state when we a l l  the resources.  
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Table comparisons of ownership (Attachment #1 2c) 

Representative Jessica Haak:  Do we have anything now that l im its risk? 

Clark Price: There is in the LLP structure .  As was d iscussed earl ier if there is a 
corporation that would l ike to invest i n  that, we can't under current law. 

Representative Jessica Haak: I was talking about risk. We do have a structure that l imits 
risk. 

Clark Price: Yes. U nder the LLP structure we can l im it risk. 

Chairman Den nis Johnson : Did you offer this amendment to the Senate hearing? 

Clark Price: Yes . 

Also handed out testimony from another feed lot operator, David Spickler, who couldn't 
attend .  (Attachment # 1 2d) 

Gabe Thom pson,  Cow/calf prod ucer and Small  G ra i n  Farmer: (Attachment #1 3) 

(3 :02 :38) 
We in North Dakota are notorious about not embracing change read ily. It has taken us 80 
years to have th is d iscussion on some l im ited exemptions .  I don't foresee the flood gates 
suddenly open ing .  

Representative Jos h ua Boschee: I came in opposed . Hearing the support has brought 
me to the midd le . There hasn't been one attorney to say this wou ld n't open the flood gates . 

Gabe Thompson :  This b i l l  requ i res the prod uction faci l ity be on the 640 acres. I don't 
know how many corporations are going to form separate entities to prod uce on each 
section .  

Representative Jessica Haak: Commissioner Goehring testified that he met with 
l ivestock and g ra in producers over several years . Why are you not in the orig ina l  b i l l? 

Gabe Thompson:  Our industry d idn 't pursue th is as aggressively as we should have. 

(3: 05:20) 
Roger Effertz, Effertz Key Ranc h,  I ncorporated, Velva, N D :  (Attachment # 14) 
We are a fam i ly corporation . We would l ike to expand with another fam i ly corporations or 
several farmers i n  the area. We can do that under a partnersh ip plan; but I wou ld l ike this 
option . 

We have out-of-state corporate ownership of cattle in  feed lots today. 
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I asked our fami ly attorney what would be the "sl ippery slope" argument. He said this 
wou ld strengthen our position against any challenge of our whole corporate farming law. 
H is basis was the commerce clause. We are not restricting commerce now on the areas in  
th is b i l l .  

(3 :  1 1 ) 
Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier: There is a point of expertise i n  the l ivestock industry. There is 
also a point of expertise in runn ing a feed lot. Is that true? 

Roger Effertz: The last 500 to 700 pounds that you put on an animal are critical as far as 
management, nutrition ,  etc. I need to have a rel iable manager on the payro l l .  

Representative Jessica Haak: You say adding this amendment would be an opportun ity 
for the l ivestock industry i n  North Dakota . Would you want to open this for al l  farming 
operations? 

Roger Effertz: There are h uge farms in  th is state. There is a l ready corporate farming in 
farming.  It is the government that helps people farm . From the l ivestock sector i t  is  
d ifferent. It takes a large amount of assets. Confinement l ivestock is un ique. 

Rep resentative C raig Headland:  There are other states with laws that are open to 
corporate ownersh ip .  How many other states have corporations own ing al l  the cattle? 

Roger Effertz: I don't see an issue. We feed cattle in Nebraska and South Dakota . The 
manager of the plant in Aberdeen owns a corporate formed lot in Kansas. It doesn't affect 
the industry. 

Representative C raig Head land:  Corporations in some states may dominate the feed ing 
aspect of raising the cattle; it is sti l l  the farmer or rancher who is ca lving ,  back grounding , 
etc. 

Roger Effertz: The bal l  is in the cow/calf court. They are a lways needed . 

Representative Craig Head land : The way th is b i l l  is drafted with the 640 acres, there isn't 
an  opportun ity for an outside corporation .  

Roger Effertz: I don't see them coming in  here .  

Chairman Den nis Joh nson : The 640 acres was put in th is  b i l l  for a reason .  When you 
look at other states south of us with un l im ited acreage, are they buying acres or are they 
buying cattle? 

Roger Effertz: They are focused on the operation .  I f  they are successful in feed ing cattle, 
they wi l l  reinvest it back in  and do more feed ing . 
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(3: 1 8) 
And rew Holle:  Read testimony from G reg Moes , South Dakota Farmer: 
(Attachment # 1 5) 

Andrew Hol le : I see a lot of dairy farms start ing to leave. We had a g reat year in 20 1 4 .  
20 1 5  wil l probably b e  a l ittle rocky. How many more wil l  leave? What does that mean for 
us? We produce 1 /5 the mi lk  that goes to the Land 0 Lakes plant in Bismarck. 
When I looked at this bi l l ,  i t is not corporate farming . It is farm fami l ies that are 
incorporated. Today I m i lk 600 cows and we have about a $5 mil l ion investment i n  our 
farm. If I want to keep the plant open in town if these farms exit, I need to expand by five 
times to keep the supply. $5 mi l l ion times 5 more partners is $25 mi l l ion .  How do I come 
up with that money? Now I am in partnership with my parents .  If you become incorporated 
you can a l low others to buy shares and become part of your  business. 

We prod uce fert i l izer and manure .  I just had four  people contact me in  the last week 
making sure we wi l l  put manure on their crops this spring .  

(3:22: 1 5) 
Lyn n  Hovde, Farm & Ra nch i n  Wi l l iston/Watford City area : My son needs tools to best 
operate his business . The capital requ i rements are huge. 

Our grain producers have become dependent on ra i l  to market their commodity. The 
d ifference in price between the Ch icago Mercantile Exchange and the local market has 
become so wide .  I f  they could sell it to a dairy or feed lot, it wou ld save freight and 
enhances the local commun ity . 

I wou ld l ike the bi l l  to incl ude a l l  confinement l ivestock operations. We should have picked 
up the bal l  and i ncluded beef. We have a peak market for beef. Then you don't worry 
about things. Someday we wi l l  be in the dairy or hog s i tu at ion . 
The opponents to this b i l l  don't have an alternative. This also g ives opportun ities for our 
an imal  science g raduates . Many are seeking employment out of state. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Why not open th is up to al l  farming? 

Lyn n  Hovde: Confinement agriculture is so capital intensive. It can 't be l umped with g ra in 
farming.  I t  takes expertise and special ization . I am not afraid of competition .  If 
corporations come, it is because they see a profit. 

Dennis Mi l ler, District 1 5, Past President of the Landowners Association:  A number 
of us invested in a hog feed ing operation in  Iowa . We would have preferred to i nvest in 
North Dakota . The restrictions that one of our neighbors had in getting their hog feeding 
operation told us investing couldn 't be done in  a timely manner. Iowa didn't have problems 
and it was easy. The land restriction of 640 acres sometimes is not enough for d isposal of 
manure. We have so many regu lations that cause people to move out of the state . We 
have wetland issues in  North Dakota that they don't deal with i n  other states. We have 
1 1 , 500 Fish and Wildl ife easements . We have ru les that d iscriminate between wildl ife and 
water. 
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OPPOSITION : 

Mark Watne, N D  Farmers Union President: (Attachment #1 6a) 

(3 :37) 
Refers to charts (Attachment #1 6b) If you look at dairies in  South Dakota, they have 
declined faster than North Dakota . The bi l l  passed in  2008 to al low for corporation dairies. 
That trend line on the chart d idn 't even bump up. They substituted corporate dairies for 
fami ly da i ries. When looking at the 201 2 census, of the dairies that came after that passed , 
49 of the 51  were fami ly farm dairies. You can have a fami ly corporate dairy in North 
Dakota . Why cou ldn 't we even attract one? 

The second and third charts show the North Dakota pig crop and g ross income from hogs. 
We are growing in hogs. When looking at what caused the decline: the price of 1 2  cents 
per pound , the recession,  pork oversupply, and the swine flu .  

The price in  I owa i s  $3 .59 for corn . I n  Edgeley, N D  it i s  $3.29 which i s  3 0  cents basis. We 
had some terrible basis. We shou ld push the rai l road for the dol lars they cost everybody in  
the state. 

Family corporations are a l lowed up to 1 5  people. 

Don't ignore the "sl ippery slope . "  It is more than dairy and swine. 

In answer to Representative Diane Larson--yes, corporations have less responsibi l ity 
because they on ly have at risk what the shareholders invest. 

Representative Diane Larson : Typical ly in business people don't want competition .  I n  
this situation it i s  the people that are in the industry, that fear i f  someth ing else isn't done, 
their own operations wi l l  be at risk. Why are you opposed to making their industry 
stronger? 

Mark Watne:  It is not al l  da i ry farms that want th is. Isn 't it good to have a processor  to 
want more mi lk? If they have al l  the mi lk they need , don't they pay less? Look at the South 
Dakota chart .  This doesn't save the fami ly dairies currently here now. They are losing the 
same number of da i ries as we are over the same period of time. 

When you want to add value you start with feed. Now we are saying we are going to stop 
and a l low a corporation to own the system between the retai ler and the farmer. We need 
the dairy farms as our products and find a market to enter and integrate the dairy farms up 
--just l ike we did with ethanol and pasta . When the prices drop you have the abi l ity to offset 
with some ownership elsewhere.  Simply adding more production to a market system that is 
concentrated and overproduced does not solve the problem. 

Representative Craig Headland:  You said this b i l l  is about ownership of land. The bi l l  is 
specific on how much ownership they wou ld al low. They have to have an operation or  
d ivest that land with in  three years. If we have to g ive up a couple of sections of land to 
generate some interest in  da i ry, how is that putting al l  family farms at risk? 
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Mark Watne: This is a very broad b i l l .  The l imitation is written wrong and opens the door 
wide open.  

Representative C raig Headland:  This is not about the ownership of land but choosing the 
structure of how you want to operate your  business. When Farmers Un ion chose to bui ld 
the restaurants in  Wash ington ,  DC,  they chose LLCs. Why is it good in that example to 
have a corporate structure and here you are d isagreeing with it? 

Mark Watne:  Yes, we are an LLC. The challenge is when you have a cooperative you 
have to track someth ing that is del ivered , sold , or bought from the cooperative . We d id 
make the bylaws to match a cooperative . One member--one vote . We have d istribution 
back to the investors. Then we insure that farmers wou ld own over 50% of that at all times 
and be i n  charge of the board .  

Representative C raig  Headland:  There were other benefits . Opening the first restaurant 
was a risky venture .  It created some chal lenges . One of the benefits of sett ing up the LLC 
is it did shield those investors from a finance agency from coming after the assets of the 
people who chose to put that money at risk. 

Mark Watne: That wasn't the purpose. The LLC sti l l  signed the guarantee and certain 
partners had to sign .  We couldn 't figure out the avenue to track the food to the market. 
The goal was to ed ucate the consumers of the Un ited States. We do that with 30, 000 
people a week. We run it l ike a cooperative. 

Representative Craig Headland:  I 've eaten at your  restaurants and we appreciate them. 
But we are talking about a specific industry that is on the brink of col lapse. If you want to 
help, you can help us with the language to get where we want to go instead of just 
opposing it. 

Mark Watne:  Our members set pol icy. Our restau rants are an avenue to d iversify income 
and move up the food chain .  S imply adding another business model doesn't change the 
economics of dairy. We need to spread our risk over a broader base. 

Representative C raig Headland:  You said it is the economics in the dairy industry as the 
reasons why we don't have them. Dairies are viable businesses but the challenge is 
generating further investment. We want to g ive them opportun ity to access capita l .  

Mark Watne: I t  took us five or s ix  years of good prices in  g ra in  before we saw young 
people come back to g ra in  farming .  I f  the prices stay economica l ,  fami ly farmers wi l l  start 
doing dairy again .  We have to make it profitable. 

Representative C raig Headland:  You can't compare grain farming to what it takes to get 
into dairy or hogs. If you have a wi l l ing land lord , you can start farming . Do they have the 
same opportun ity if they want to mi lk  cows? 

Mark Watne :  Rented land can be taken from you at any t ime. The profitabi l ity is way more 
important. 
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Representative C raig Head land : If I was a young person with a wi l l ing land lord ,  I could 
put in a crop for less than $1 00,000. That is not the same for da i ry and swine. 

Raymond Martinson, Sargent County Farmer: (Attachment #1 7) I ra ised hogs until 
1 998. When NAFTA (North American Free Trade Agreement) passed in 1 994 and al lowed 
free access along with the strike in Canada , it took the market from us to 1 2  cents. 

I have a l ist of the top 25 hog producers in  this country. The bottom one raises more hogs 
than the whole state of North Dakota. Smithfield Foods,  owned by a Chinese company, 
owns over 800,000 sows. How can anybody compete with that? 

We talk about basis on our  corn. Ethanol plants help but now it is back to 60 to 90 cents . 

We have one dairy left in our  county and it is an LLP. Some investors bought it but it is sti l l  
in bankruptcy. Prod ucers have sold feed to it  but they have not been paid . Their manure is 
priced the same as commercial ferti l izer. When it  was run by a sing le farmer, we sold feed 
and got a check every month and we took manure in the fal l .  When you take it away from 
the local farmer, things change. 

Representative Jessica Haak: You are out of the swine industry. Why? 

Raymond Marti nso n :  I d id n't have the resources to survive at 1 2  cents per pound? There 
was no incentive to continue.  

Representative C raig Head land:  I don't believe basis is the reason we have to do th is. I f  
you don't bel ieve that we wi l l  have a lot of dairies or swine operations locating here,  what is  
the danger? 

Raymond Martinso n :  I don't think this wil l  save the industry. It has to be individual 
in itiative. I wou ld l ike to more work on LLPs or other avenues. 

--Recess until after floor session this afternoon--
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Continuing after floor session with opposition 
Mark Watne, N D  Farmers U n ion President at the pod ium:  

Representative Cynth ia Schreiber Beck: On the chart that you provided with the number 
of dairies in South Dakota compared to North Dakota . Do you have the number of cattle? 
To me the sign ificant amount would be the head number rather than the number of farms. 

Mark Watne: The number of head is up in South Dakota and the prod uction is up. This 
d idn 't fix the decl ine .  A dairy farm in South Dakota is a 388 cow average .  

Representative Cynthia Schrei ber Beck :  I am th inking the number of cattle is  the 
important element in prod uction ,  not the number of farms.  

Mark Watne: I represent fami ly farms. My job is  to maximize the number of farms. We 
don't put a size on farms.  

Representative Alan Fehr: If we pass this, I am not convinced it wi l l  make a big 
d ifference. From the numbers in South Dakota it doesn't look l ike there was a flood of 
corporations that moved in .  What is the worst case scenario if we try this? 

Mark Watne:  I t  is hard to predetermine what wi l l  happen . Corporations tend to want to 
own everything except for the h igh cost assets l ike the barns. If they can do better 
elsewhere ,  they pick up the business and move. Things don't last very long. A private 
da i ry may get pushed out. Shareholders aren't going to do this for free. They want a 
return on their i nvestment. Some of that ranges from 1 0  to 20 percent. 
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Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: The term fami ly farm is often misused . We have a fami ly 
farm in our area and they farm 50 or 60 quarters. Isn 't that true? 

Mark Watne:  We don't care about size .  We just want a fam i ly operation that l ives in that 
community and are responsible for what that farm does . 

Representative Cynth ia Schreiber Beck: Corporate vs . fam i ly. What is the number of 
farms with the fami ly corporate structure in North Dakota? 

Mark Watne:  I don't have that information . The Secretary of State wou ld have that 
information .  

Kristi Sch losser Carlson,  N D  Farmers U n ion General Counsel :  (Attachment #1 ) 

The language in  the b i l l  is broad and open.  

( 1 8:25) 
Representative C raig Headland:  I th ink we need legal cou nsel down here to offer 
testimony i n  regards to this .  

Tom Asbridge: (Attachment #2) 
(2 1 : 00) 
What kind of state are we going to have? The rapid decl ine in the hog and dairy ind ustry 
has been going on s ince 1 980. This band aid is fool ish . How can investment capita l fix • this? The m i lk futures are just one of the problems. Now we let investors determine the � 
price of mi lk .  It has noth ing to do with the value of flu id m i lk i n  your d iet. There should be a 
correlation between the n utrients in  that food and what it is worth . This b i l l  on ly adds to the 
confusion . How wi l l  i nvestment cure the price structure? 

The number of farms is important. Those farms are what keep the rura l  communities 
going.  Is it the intent to red uce the n umber of farms and concentrate a l l  the people in  
Fargo and Bismarck? 

Parity is the measure of farm production vs. a l l  the other sectors of the economic world and 
what price needs to be paid so they are in  balance. The farm won 't have to acqu i re h uge 
debt to survive . We had three periods in  our country where everyth ing was in  balance 
--1 9 1 0  to 1 9 1 4 , 1 925 to 1 929,  and 1 947 to 1 949. Many emember the farms were paid off 
and mach inery was paid for with cash with no debt. It was the result of the Stegal l  
Amendment to the War Stabi l ization Act that obl igated the market place to 90% of parity 
with 1 1 5% cap.  This was at no cost to the taxpayer. 

For 20 1 4  farm income--net farm income and oppose it to the parity n umber that should 
have been paid for the commod ities and wasn't paid , amounts to about $700 bi l l ion in  the 
national economy. N DS U  says farm money turns seve n times. That means we have a 
shortfa l l  of $4 .7 tri l l ion in  the national economy. That is measured in  a l l  the new debt which 
is the same number s ince 1 952. Agricu lture needs income. Income creates capita l .  The 
absence of income shri nks capita l .  



• 

House Agriculture Committee 
SB 2351 (Afternoon) 
March 5,  201 5 
Page 3 

What happens when the market col lapses? Land needs to be in  the hands of individuals 
who wil l stay here .  

(35: 30) 
Representative C raig Head land:  What is your  expertise? 

Tom Asbridge: I was a member of the Commod ity Futures Trad ing Commission. I served 
as National D i rector of American Agriculture Movement in Washington .  I 've traded 
commod ities. I was a reg istered trader with 1 % of al l  the feeder contracts i n  the nation . I 
was i n  an economic th ink tank for 35 years and that is a l l  we do is study these issues. 

We should have publ ic debate outside this room. 

(37 : 30) 
Representative C raig Head land:  You said the reason dairy is dead is because of price. 
You're tel l ing me that I am in business because the government props me up .  I found your  
testimony to be  condescending .  

Tom Asbridge : It wasn't meant to be offensive. It was meant to be h umorous. You are 
talking about a m icro issue. I am talking about macroeconomics . Everyone testifying for 
this is ta lking about expanding their business. If you are in  a profitable business, why do 
you need investment capital? If you do, there is an abundance of banks and insurance 
compan ies . 

Representative C raig Headland:  I have been successfu l i n  my endeavor. You're making 
assumptions that I can get money to build a dairy. You can't. The margin is based on 
numbers and the profit per cow wou ldn't justify any bank to bui ld a dairy. 

Tom Asbridge:  On a m icro basis if you know what you are doing and you want to expand , 
you can if you are profitable. 

Representative C raig Head land:  I n  earlier testimony we talked about the amount of mi lk 
needed in the world . The way our structure is today we aren't providing it here.  Wou ldn't i t  
be beneficial to produce milk here? 

Tom Asbridge: No,  it  is the wrong premise. Somebody is going to feed the world . 
Somebody needs to feed North Dakota . We are short of mi lk so we are importing . 

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: We have lost our work eth ic over the years . Meat production 
requ i res you to be there 24/7 . The younger people would be wi l l ing to work 40 hours per 
week. With a corporation I can see a young person get ahead and buy into that corporation .  

Tom Asbridge: I t  is true , but it misses the mark.  That isn't relevant to the issue. If dairy 
farms were profitab le ,  the size wou ld be i rrelevant. Government has no business being 
involved in the size of a farm or ranch. That should be d ictated by the profits. You are 
transferring risk to somebody else because you are worried it m ight not make it. 
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John Maddock:  (Tel ls story of how farms have increased in  size with less farmers and 
smal ler rural  towns and schools closing . )  If this bi l l  is passed who knows how the acres wil l  
increase each legislative session .  

Shelly Ziesch,  Ra ncher and Dairy Farmer: March 1 7 ,  1 997 was the last day we m i lked 
cows. We loaded them on a truck. It sti l l  bothers me today. It represents fai lure .  The 
price of mi lk was $9/hundred . Corn was $5/bushel .  We hung on a long as we could .  We 
d idn't declare bankruptcy. We worked hard to get out from underneath that debt. We did it 
in beef cattle. 

We felt we got pushed out of the dairy ind ustry. We were a Grade A dairy. Our inspector 
told us we weren't big enough .  He was told he should crack down on  any dairy with fewer 
than 1 50 head because his superiors d idn 't want that size of da i ry out there anymore. We 
along with our friends and neighbors were written up  for everything you can think of 
including dust on the l ight bulbs,  a muddy d riveway the end of March , etc. 

There is nothing that can replace the care and concern of an owner. Corporate boards as 
owners wil l be located elsewhere. 

CRP (Conservation Reserve Program) caused ru in to the commun ity. People moved to 
larger cities. I have heard arguments that we wi l l  have more vets, dairy services, 
nutrition ists , etc. Most corporations h i re their own .  They get the volume d iscounts with the 
cost passed on to the smal ler local producers .  

Can the 640 acres b e  on one section o r  can it b e  in  multiple tracts? What i s  the min imum 
number of an ima ls? I can see a lot of money being funneled i nto shell corporations and 
purchasing land with no business plan and possibly buying the prime land that others need . 

The dairy industry wants to become CEOs and manage people rather than an ima ls .  

Bessy's Best Dairy got the contract for a restaurant i n  town . They make yogurt, cheese 
and a lot of other products except for cream .  The processor in Bismarck told the restau rant 
they can't sell them the cream.  So the restaurant has to make a separate trip to the store. 
We have to keep the competit ion fa ir. Corporations d on't play fa ir  and it is not a level 
playing field when they have bottomless pockets. 

Lamb and wool prod ucers aren't getting involved with the corporate band wagon.  Their 
numbers have decreased . I n  2008 they developed a program for a starter flock for young 
producers .  Applicants are g iven ten young ewes and the use of a ram .  I n  the second, 
th i rd ,  and fou rth year they repay 20% of the orig ina l  cost of the first ten sheep. That money 
goes back into the program for the future. The North Dakota pork producers and dairy 
don't have simi lar ideas. 

Senator Wanzek said capita l is not there. A mi lking parlor can start small and not 
everything has to be new. 
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Offered solutions: 
-Have a state-funded price support for farmers with a stipu lation for young producers. 
-Start a dairy and hog program for the young people l ike the lamb and wool producers 
have. Maybe the beef industry wi l l  fol low. 
-Develop an internship program for col lege students requ iring them to work on a dairy or 
hog farm with a scholarship attached . Have a mentor or  advisor i nvolved . Some 
d iscourage their kids from farming and ranching.  

I understand corn and soybean g rowers wanting a better price for their prod uct. Many 
gra in prices are reflective of the rail service . 

Most of the farms are 93% fami ly owned . How many are hobby farms with just a few cows, 
hogs, etc .? Many are going organic with gardens and sel l ing at farmers markets. 

Please vote no because a corporation is not as l ikely to care for the land l ike we do. 

Don Tripp,  Pork P rod ucer: Most of the reasons Iowa and North Dakota are d ifferent has 
noth ing to do with the law. It is the cl imate and g rowing season .  North Dakota gets 9 
inches of moisture .  I owa gets 33 inches annually. I n  I owa it is 2 Yi acres per cow/calf un it. 
In North Dakota it is 1 0  acres per cow/calf u nit. A large pasture in North Dakota is 500 
acres. In Iowa it is 80 acres. 

I can't see how this b i l l  is going to add anything to North Dakota agricu lture .  

( 1 : 1 8) 
Roger Zatocha, Stirum, N D  (Attachment #3) 

During the tough times of the 70s and 80s the phi losophy of the Federal Land Bank was if 
you have the equ ity make the loan . The main office chastised our  local bank board for 
standing up and saying the payments couldn't be made. 

You cannot borrow yourself out of debt. If you are making money you are going to spend it. 
Corporations aren't going to do it for noth ing .  This is not the way to go. 

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: If you r  banker said you need 35% equ ity before he wi l l  lend 
you any money but then wi l l  g ive you 50%. Wouldn't that make it easier? If the investors 
come in to start a dairy or swine operation and they come up with 50%, that would be a lot 
easier to make a go of it if you don't have the whole debt to repay immediately. 

(1 :26) 
Roger Zatocha:  Back in the Russian gra in  dea l ,  farmers got $ 1 2  per bushel for durum . 
The banker said to get bigger. When the 80s came along and the prices were down , the 
banker said "Why did you l isten to me?" 

If  the money is there, it is not necessary to get a corporation .  This law wi l l  not stop 
corporations from getting more sections. Corporations don't take as good care of the land 
as one owner wou ld .  
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Representative C raig Headland:  When you mentioned more sections, what wou ld be 
wrong with that? 

Roger Zatoch a :  You are competing against you neighbor. Corporations wi l l  find a way to 
work out the angles. 

Representative C raig Head land:  If there is profit there ,  they could . Someone wou ld have 
to be wi l l ing to sell the land and work for them. I don 't th ink corporations are out there 
wait ing to gobble up the land.  We haven't seen that in other states. 

Roger Zatocha: I t  goes back to economics. If the money is there they wi l l  be there. 

Representative C raig Headland:  I f  there is no economic benefit, I don't th ink there is 
anything to worry about. 

Roger Zatocha: I d isagree. 

Randy Richards, Steele Cou nty Farmer: (Attachment #4) 

It has been said it takes mi l l ions of dol lars to invest. Our LLC which is owned by 1 4  
shareholders has an operating l i ne of credit of $ 1 8 mil l ion .  I n  the world of finance no one 
g ives money un less you put skin in  the game. It is about being profitable and susta inable. 

(1 : 35) 
Representative C raig  Headland:  If you wanted to invest in dairy today you couldn't do it. 

Randy Richards : Yes, I could invest as a person and take the risk of losing what I have 
invested . 

Representative C raig Headland:  The rest of your assets would not be as risk? 

Randy Richard s :  No.  It is a Lim ited Liabi l ity Corporation .  The on ly risk I have is what I 
have invested i n  there u n less I s ign a personal guarantee. Otherwise it is just the dol lars I 
have put in .  My farming operation is not at risk. 

Christopher Dodson,  Executive Di rector of the ND Catholic Conference: 
(Attachment #5) 

( 1 :42) 
Representative Diane Larson : The previous speaker said people can invest in a LLC. 
This is a l ready being done. What the bi l l  is proposing isn't even a change in  common 
practice. 

C hristopher Dodson : U nder the current system there sti l l  has to be a relationship of 
fami ly to have ownership of the land . 
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Vice Chair Wayne Trottier:  You said by going to corporations, they won't take care of it. 
The experience I have had with large hog farms--they are regu lated and have to have a 
plan.  The manure has to be injected into the soil at a rate that doesn't exceed what is 
recommended . I as a smal l  producer can spread the manure any way I want to. 

The large hog u nits' motto is "We care . " They do care about their neighbors,  faci l ities, 
churches, commun ities, and are ded icated people. 

Ch ristopher Dodson:  You are confusing the type of covenantal relationship that must 
exist for generations as opposed to mere regu lations. How far are we removing the 
relationship with the land? 

Chairman Den nis Johnso n :  Are your  views the same way with U .S .  Fish and Wildl ife and 
Ducks Unl imited with their ownership across the state? 

Ch ristopher Dodson:  The principles would be the same. It is a lways preferred that the 
people own ing the land are working the land .  

David Pors borg ,  Farmer from Oliver County and retired hog producer: I am 
concerned the word ing of this b i l l  m ight put dairy and swine fami ly corporations we have 
now within the l im it of the 640 acres. The bi l l  says to sort out da i ry and swine. Once the 
gate is open ,  how wi l l  it be closed? 

S hawn Kaylor, Verendrye Electric Cooperative : I am on the Board of Directors. At our 
last board meeting we d iscussed SB 2351 . We voted to stand in  opposition of th is b i l l .  

( 1  :49: 5 1 )  
J usti n Sherlock, Dazey, N D :  (Attachment #6) 

If we are going to change our  ph i losophy in how we view agriculture ,  we should have publ ic 
debates . There should be publ ic forums. It should be a pol itical issue during campaigns. 
To push this through in a month is not g iving it the respect that it deserves. 

Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier: Do you understand the problem that the dairy and swine 
people are asking for help in some way? 

J usti n Sherlock: I do recogn ize the need . Where was the d iscussion before this on a 
larger scale? I do feel capital is ava i lable.  If they have a sol id business plan, why do they 
need outside investors? I would sti l l  have to show corporate investors that my idea is 
profitable. Are the loans from the Bank of N D  large enough? Maybe they have to offer 
additional cred it. 

Chairman Dennis Johnso n :  We get the commod ity reports each year during session .  
This has been going on for several sessions. What we are trying t o  do i s  look at dairy and 
swine. It wasn't farm groups that asked . It was the producers . 
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Justin Sherlock: I t  seems l ike this came out of nowhere. I am afraid of opening up the 
door to lawsuits . A Federa l  court cou ld say you cannot favor certain sectors and strike 
down our entire corporate farming law. Subsidiary corporations cou ld be formed . There 
are too many loopholes the way it is written .  

Chairman Den nis Johnson : Have you looked at the South Dakota corporate farming 
law? 

J ustin Sherlock: No.  

Chairman Den n is Johnson:  The corporate farming law does stay in  place expect for the 
exemptions. 

Representative Cynth ia Schrei ber Beck:  You have restrict ions on the back of your 
testimony. Item #2 is taken care of. There is a t ime requ i rement. 

J ustin Sherlock: I d id not see that. Some legal  analysis needs to occur. 

Brad G reff, Dai ry Farmer 1 979-94, Mott-Regent, N D :  We q uit because of the price .  My 
concern is that we do have a lot of hunters in our area. Many investors have purchased 
land that is no longer farmed . This last year there was 5,000 acres with the majority of it, 
4,200 acres , being bought by a man from Oregon .  He has no intention of farming it and left 
most of it in  CRP.  One from M issouri ,  who bought land , is asking $5,000 per acre. If this 
does pass, corporations can pay more per acre . 

My dairy inspector from the state told me to get out of da i ry farming because of the cold . 
don't think open ing this up wil l  bring dairy .  We aren't a dairy state . The cows have to be 
housed inside. It does cost a lot. 

I n  my area in  1 980 there were 1 9  dairy farmers and now there is 1 .  They couldn 't make a 
profit. 

But to a l low someone from outside and buy the 640 acres--when they leave , do they have 
to sell it to someone from North Dakota? I don't feel it is right for outside investors. 

Perry Ostmo, S ha ron,  N D :  Several farmers have lost land to bigger farmers. This bi l l  is 
going to compound that problem. This simple bi l l  doesn't restrict what is important. The 
current law was enacted through  the in itiated measure process. It protects the current and 
future farmers. This opens the gate for out-of-state nonfami ly corporate pool of money at a 
time when the average North Dakota farmer can hardly afford the purchase of land . 
The intention of da i ry and swine is only a deception for the abuse of this law 

Representative C raig Headland:  How is that? 

Perry Ostmo: If a corporation were to move in next to me and buy 640 acres . What is the 
min imum number of l ivestock? 
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Representative C raig Head land : It has to be either a da iry or swine operation and it has 
to be a function ing corporation .  

Perry Ostmo:  640 acres is more than is needed . 

Chairman Den n is Johnso n :  That is the maximum number of acres. South Dakota has no 
restrictions. Most of them have 80 acres or 1 60 acres. There is no money in buying land . 
They put the money into l ivestock and bui ld ings. 

Perry Ostmo:  This is just the start. Next session wi l l  be more 

Representative C raig Headland:  That is specu lation .  

Jim Teigen , Rugby: (Attachment #7a & b son) 

(2: 1 6) 
There are 27 states that cannot supply their need for mi lk .  If a l lowing corporate farming is 
the answer, why do we sti l l  have 27 states that aren't producing enough mi lk for their 
citizens? Why isn't it just North Dakota? 

It was said this morning that corporations l im it risk .  L imiting risk is the same as walking 
away from financial commitment. 

Representative Diane Larson:  I 've heard from severa l people that we are setting up for a 
s imi lar situation as to what happened in  the housing col lapse by l imit ing the risk in  their 
investment. I don't see a correlation . I n  the housing col lapse banks were told by the 
federa l government to issue loans when they d idn't have the proper backing to do that. I n  
this situation they can't get investors in  a corporation un less they have the business plan .  

Jim Teigen : The advantage is to al low an investor to walk  away from an obl igation. They 
may have bi l ls they are not paying .  It is sh irking responsib i l ity 

R. Jay Paul ,  former dairy farmer, Rugby, ND:  Read from article in the  Farm Forum 
written by Stan Wise, Farm Forum Ed itor. (Attachment #8) 

This ed itor is from South Dakota and we are model ing this law after South Dakota . 

Dairies i n  Cal iforn ia are gett ing forced out because dairy needs more water. Their people 
need the water. A dairy cow needs twice as much water as that of a stock cow. The price 
they receive for their land in Cal ifornia is way more than they have to pay when coming 
here. We can't compete with that. Leave the dairies in  South Dakota . 

Corporations wi l l  buy their feed as cheap as they can .  

I sold m y  calves three weeks ago for the most money in  m y  l ife . I sold 59 head and came 
home with a l ittle over $90,000. I don't want more competition .  



House Agriculture Committee 
SB 2351 (Afternoon) 
March 5, 201 5 
Page 1 0  

Bob Kuylen ,  Farmer, South Heart, ND:  The banks in  the western part of the state are 
fu l l .  They are insured out. If a project is viable, the money is there .  My banker said in 
1 978 there were 60 dairies on h is portfol io. Now there are two and one of them is thinking 
about qu itting. 

The price is what puts out the dairy farmers. Last week I was in  Washington,  DC for a 
USDA outlook meeting .  They figu re the price of mi lk wi l l  be back down to $ 1 4 .  Your  
average investor wants to  see a 1 0  to  25% return on their money. That money is  not in 
agriculture. 

Coming from western North Dakota , there are real ly bad actors in  o i l .  The same wi l l  be in  
agriculture .  We care about the land because we want to pass i t  down.  

(2 : 38) 
Bob Kuylen, South Heart, N D :  The average age of farmers is 58 years old . There are a 
lot in  the 70-year old range. They have a lot of equ ity. If they sel l ,  they wil l  get hooked on 
taxes . Why can't we have an incentive for retir ing farmers/ranchers that could be a mentor 
to young people? We cou ld g ive them a tax break if they sell at a d iscou nt rate to a young 
farmer. Free market to some does not exist. We do this for doctors, dentists , etc. 

If corporate America takes over farming in the Un ited States they wi l l  set the price of food . 

Neutra l :  

(2:40) 
Clara Jenkins ,  Secretary of State Office: (Attachment #9) 

The section that requ i res the attorney general  to do compl iance checks--it is possib le that 
the only way the attorney general  wi l l  find out about these organ izations is if their  neigh bors 
compla in .  Then they could ask us for the records.  The compl iance check wil l  be a lot more 
involved . 

(2 :48) 
Representative C raig  Headland:  Who makes the decision on the land purchase? 

Clara Jen kins:  The purchase of the land is made before we get the document. Once the 
deed is recorded in  the county, the recorders are sending the information. We have no 
idea what type of data base they maintain to make sure they don't exceed the 640 acre 
l imitation . 

Representative C raig  Head land:  There was a question earl ier whether an LLC could be 
set up for a dairy today? 

Clara Jenkins : Yes they can .  

Representative C raig Head land:  With members unrelated? 
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Clara Jenkins: They have the same requirement of k inship .  

Representative C raig Headland:  You can't have 1 5  people that are unrelated to form an 
LLC . 

Clara Jen kins:  No.  

Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier: Those that question i f  North Dakota is su itable for dairy or  
swine--Swine are totally environmentally control led so the weather doesn't matter. I n  the 
summer time it is not as warm and humid as in southern cl imates .  

Would Kenton Hol le address weather conditions for dairies? 

(2 : 5 1 )  
Kenton Holle:  The future of dairy based on weather-- We work with a nutrition ist from 
Wisconsin .  He is  amazed at  the abi l ity to  produce mi lk  here .  Our  winters are cold . We 
have to design the barns and corrals for that. I n  the summer we don't have the humid ity . 
Our  mi lk cows are a l l  i nside. The barn is 1 50 feet by 500 feet. I wou ld never want to mi lk 
cows in Arizona.  We can acqu i re alfalfa hay for a lower price . You have to design the 
faci l ities to hand le the environment. 

Representative Jess ica Haak: Has the bank ever turned you down? 

Kenton Hol le:  Yes. Part of it had to do with a level of equ ity that was requ i red . Part of it 
had to do with the fact that we were the only dairy customer. They didn't have the expertise 
to handle our  situation. We bought the dairy from a bank. When we wanted to grow they 
weren't wi l l ing to work with us.  We used the Bank of ND .  But we needed to find a lead 
lender in order to participate with the Bank of ND.  That wasn't easy. We have a bank in 
North Dakota but we also have a bank from Minnesota that is financing which was found by 
my daughter-in-law. 

Representative Jessica Haak: When were you turned down? 

Kenton Holle: We started in  20 1 2 .  We did the deal i n  December of 201 3 .  

Chairman Den n is Johnso n :  Closed the hearing 
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Representative C raig Headland : I have two versions of amendments that do the same 
th ing .  The first version,  Amendment #1 5 .0895 .01 004 (Attachment #1 ) , addresses the 
concerns of the attorney genera l .  It spells out the domestic corporation wi l l  be l im ited to 
640 acres. They will have to have a dairy farm operational with in  three years. The dairy 
farm is also permitted as a CAFO (concentrated animal feed ing operation) .  It does the 
same for swine.  It g ives the Agriculture Commissioner authority to adopt and enforce rules 
and notify the Secretary of State or the Attorney Genera l  if there would be a compl iance 
issue. Then the current corporate laws would govern . 

Representative C raig Head land:  Moved amendment #1 5 .0895 .0 1 004 .  

Representative Alex Looysen : Seconded the motion . 

Representative Jessica Haak: Would the Agriculture Department need to add FTEs to 
implement the rule making process? 

Representative C raig Head lan d :  We put this together with the help of the Ag . Dept. 
There are no add itional FTEs needed . 

Representative Alan Feh r: I 'm trying to sort out if this amendment sti l l  has the problems 
the orig inal  bi l l  had in terms of al lowing proh ibitions to not apply to corporations. 

Under the orig inal  b i l l ,  the language says proh ibitions on ownership and leasing of land do 
not apply to corporations own ing and operating a dairy or faci l ity for production of swine. 
That means they are now opted out of the exclusions. Does this language also opt them 
out of the exclusions such as they can buy other land? 



House Agriculture Committee 
SB 2351 
March 6, 201 5 
Page 2 

Representative C raig Head land:  That is one of the concerns we have addressed . We 
are not going to preclude a corporation if they want to partner with another corporation on 
another section of land and enter a d ifferent structure. They wi l l  have that opportunity. But 
why would they? 640 acres under Corporation A might have its l im itations. If they want to 
partner with someone else and expand their operations,  this language wil l  a l low it. But 
Corporation A wou ld n't be able to buy another section. 

(7 : 53) 
Representative Alan Fehr: Under the orig inal bi l l if a corporation met the requ i rements 
under subsection a ,  they are opted out and could buy other land not j ust 640 acres. Once 
they met that requ i rement now the proh ib itions d idn 't apply to them. 

Representative C raig Head land:  That is what we were told so we are clarifying .  
The Agriculture Commissioner is going to write ru les in subsection 4 to clarify. 

Representative Alan Fehr: Would you a l low adding the word "exclusive" in subsection 1 
and 2 of the amendment? 

Chairman Den n is Johnson:  The attorneys are the ones that put th is together and said 
the language wou ld be tight. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Would that clean up for example if big dairy wants to 
invest in a dairy farm and has a d ifferent farmer in 20 counties. Could they own land in 20 

• counties with a d ifferent partner under a d ifferent corporation title? 

Representative C raig Head land:  In theory, yes. 

Chairman Den n is Joh nson : We are the last state to look at leg islation l ike this and it 
hasn't happened in other states. 

A Roll Call vote was ta ken :  Yes --11_, No 0 , Absent 0 . 

Amendment 1 5.0895.01 004 passes. 

Representative C raig Head land:  I have another version of the same language to add 
feed lots. Hand out amendment #1 5 .0895 .01 003 (Attachment #2) .  

I don't think our intention i s  to  open the door to  fu l l  corporate farming . We d id have many 
people tel l  us the need for feed ing operations to be included in th is b i l l .  We owe it to them 
to have the d iscussion .  I ta lked with the b i l l  sponsor and he is going to leave it up to us. 

Representative C raig Headland:  Moved amendment #1 5 . 0895 .0 1 003. 

Representative Alex Looysen : Seconded the motion .  
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Representative Diane Larson : I wi l l  resist this amendment. Swine and dairy made a 
compell ing story in  the need for more people involved to stay in  business . I d idn 't feel the 
same for feed lots . 

Representative Alan Fehr: I wi l l  echo that. Our hearing was not on feed lots. That may 
be for another legislative session . 

Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier: We did hear from some feed lot owners and operators 
concern ing the Aberdeen processing plant. They are counting on North Dakota feed lots . I 
appreciate that. We can look at this in another session . Corporations come with money 
avai lable to last through some hard times. 

The hog plant in  Brandon,  Manitoba is waiting for North Dakota hogs.  We al l  know the 
dairy situation .  

Representative Dwight Kiefert: I wi l l  vote against the amendment. It is  not fair  to the 
Stockmen's Association to receive an amendment this late in the game without going 
through all the channels. 

Representative C raig Head land:  We know this as a sensitive issue. I don't th ink any of 
us want it opened up for fu l l  corporate farming.  I nvestment to get equ ity is d ifferent than 
getting more into debt. 

Chairman Den n is Johnso n :  I understand where the feeders are coming from. I f  this 
works, we can look at other options down the road .  

A Roll Cal l  vote was ta ken :  Yes _L, N o  _1 Q_, Absent 0 

Amendment #1 5.0895.01 003 fai led.  

Representative Alex Looysen :  Moved Do Pass as amended . 

Representative Tom Kad i n g :  Seconded the motion 

Representative Dwight Kiefert: I don't see it as a rescue for the dairy operation .  What 
dairy needs is a fai r  price . A corporate dairy can't survive either without making a profit. 
The mi lk price has to be adjusted which is set by the national mi lk board . I wi l l  resist the 
bi l l .  

Representative Diane Larson : Some of the same fami ly farms in  dairy could have friends 
help to invest in  their program.  More people are needed in order to keep the processors 
open.  Usual ly you don't want competition .  The people that want to keep their businesses 
viable are the ones asking for th is. 

Representative Craig Head land:  I am in support of the bi l l  also. It is not about price 
support. It is about a l lowing for a size of a dairy so the volume can provide a profit and 
then a l lowing for an investment into that. 
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Representative Jessica Haak: We now have corporate farming for those l iving in North 
Dakota . We want people here to ca l l  North Dakota home. Agricu lture impacts every part of 
our economy. It is important to keep those dol lars in  the state and to keep people l iving on 
the land . I wil l strongly resist this b i l l .  

Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier: Having h igher prices for mi lk  in other parts of the country 
probably sti l l  resu lts i n  less net than North Dakota because of the other costs. I n  other 
states the cost of feed , land,  and labor are h igher. The marg in  of profit is in the calves and 
manure .  

Swine producers that had to qu it d idn't have the equ ity behind them to continue on . 
When going to Farm Service Agency Agriculture Credit, hogs and dairy have a bad 
reputation for going b roke. Swine prod ucers have become so much more efficient with the 
big un its . Most of the private smal l  producers get 1 5  to 1 8  pigs per sow per year. The barn 
at Larimore right now is turn ing out 27 to 28 pigs per sow per year. They can operate for a 
lot less . That is d ue to management, genetics , nutrition , etc. 

Representative Tom Kad i n g :  There are a lot of m isconceptions about corporations. Al l 
are not bad . They are a tool that farmers can use . You can raise funds, get legal 
protection ,  etc. I wi l l  support this .  

Representative Dwight Kiefert: We heard prod ucers qu it because of the price .  No 
matter who has the dairy they have to make a profit. 

A Roll Cal l  vote was ta ken :  Yes �, No 5 , Absent 0 

Do Pass as amended carries . 

Chairman Den n is Johnson wil l  carry t h e  b i l l .  
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Chairman Den nis Joh nson : We thought we had this bi l l  ready for the fu l l  house to vote . 
With the word "concentrated" or defin ing what we meant by the size of the dairy or swine 
operation ,  it would be perceived as el iminating smaller operations l ike an AFO or an imal 
feed ing operation .  

Karl Rockeman ,  Di rector o f  Water Qual ity, ND Department o f  Health at  the pod ium. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson : When we amended th is b i l l ,  we put into language a 50-head 
dairy and 500-head swine operation .  That wou ld el iminate an AFO. 

Referring to amendment #1 5 .0895 .01 005 (Attachment #1 ) 
The language on letter c as we rewrote it on both sections, we added in  "an animal feeding 
operation" before "or as a concentrated animal feed ing operation . "  Th is would address 
either one. 

Ka rl Rockeman, ND Depart. of Health : I have prepared a diagram to help explain that. 
(Attachment #2) An animal  feed ing operation is a broader term . A concentrated an imal 
feeding operation is a subset of the overa l l  animal feed ing operations.  The concentrated 
animal operations have to meet some add itional criteria .  The larger faci l ities , such as 700 
head of dairy cattle or more, are considered concentrated simply by size. The small and 
med ium size operations, they are designated as concentrated because of some 
environmenta l impact to our water qual ity. That is not desirable. The Department of Health 
does not have any permitted smal l  or med ium concentrated animal feed ing operations. We 
have perm itted an imal  feed ing operations with in  the state. 

Chairman Den n is Johnso n :  You do have oversight if need be? 
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Karl Rockeman: Correct. Our oversight for our permitted operations covers animal 
feeding operations not solely the concentrated ones. We do permit those. As part of the 
permit they are required to have a system to manage their manure and the runoff to use 
appropriately to grow crops. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: The way our bill is written with a 50-head minimum on the 
dairy, would you still be required to oversee that project if there were 25 head for example? 

Karl Rockeman: For smaller than 50 head , we may be involved. Typically those size 
operations are not required to have a permit, but they are eligible. 

Representative Craig Headland: Moved to reconsider the committee's actions and bring 
this bill back to committee. 

Representative Alex Looysen: Seconded the motion. 

Voice vote taken. Motion passed . 

Representative Craig Headland: Moved the Amendment 

Representative Alex Looysen: Seconded the motion 

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes _L, No 4 , Absent __ 1_ 

Amendment 15.0895.01005 passes. 

Representative Alex Looysen: Moved Do Pass as amended. 

Representative Craig Headland: Seconded the motion 

Representative Jessica Haak: This says they have to have a permit to be an AFO or 
CAFO. If they don't, would they still be allowed to incorporate? 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: They are allowed to incorporate by going through the Ag . 
Dept. The AFO or CAFO designation just determines what the operation is considered to 
be in . 

A Roll Call vote was taken : Yes 8 , No 4 , Absent 1 

Do Pass as amended carries. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson will carry the bill. 

• 



15.0895.01004 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative Headland 

March 6, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2351 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with : 

".1. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited liability 
company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company, provided: 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

b. The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the land 
is acquired; and 

c. The dairy farm is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
fifty cows. 

2. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company, 
provided: 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

.!:L The swine production facility is operational within three years from the 
date the land is acquired; and 

c. The swine production facility is permitted as a concentrated animal 
feeding operation by the state department of health and consists of at 
least five hundred swine. 

~ The agriculture commissioner shall by rule develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section. 

4. a. If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating within the 
exceptions provided by this section, the commissioner shall notify the 
secretary of state and the attorney general. 

b. A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01004 
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Title. 
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Representative Headland 

March 6, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2351 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with: 

"1.,_ This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited liability 
company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company provided : 

§..:. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

~ The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the land 
is acquired ; and 

c. The dairy farm is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
fifty cows. 

2. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company 
provided: 

§..:. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

~ The swine production facility is operational within three years from the 
date the land is acquired; and 

_g_,_ The swine production facility is permitted as a concentrated animal 
feeding operation by the state department of health and consists of at 
least five hundred swine. 

3. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a cattle feedlot by a domestic corporation or a limited 
liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a cattle feedlot by a 
domestic corporation or a limited liability company provided: 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

~ The cattle feedlot is operational within three years from the date the 
land is acquired; and 

_g_,_ The cattle feedlot is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
two hundred fifty cattle . 

4. The agriculture commissioner by rule shall develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section . 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01003 



5. a. If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating within the 
exceptions provided by this section. the commissioner shall notify the 
secretary of state and the attorney general. 

~ A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 15.0895.01003 
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15.0895.01005 
Title.03000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Representative D. Johnson 

March 13, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2351 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 954 of the House Journal, 
Senate Bill No. 2351 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with: 

".1. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited liability 
company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company. provided: 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

b. The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the land 
is acquired; and 

c. The dairy farm is permitted as an animal feeding operation or as a 
concentrated animal feeding operation by the state department of 
health and consists of at least fifty cows. 

2. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company . 
provided: 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

b. The swine production facility is operational within three years from the 
date the land is acquired; and 

c. The swine production facility is permitted as an animal feeding 
operation or as a concentrated animal feeding operation by the state 
department of health and consists of at least five hundred swine. 

~ The agriculture commissioner shall by rule develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section. 

4. a. If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating within the 
exceptions provided by this section. the commissioner shall notify the 
secretary of state and the attorney general. 

~ A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01005 



Date: 3/6/2015 

Roll Call Vote#: 1 ----'-----

House 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2351 

Agriculture 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 15.0895.01004 

Committee 

---------------------~ 

Recommendation 
~ Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Rep. Headland Seconded By _R_e_.p_._L_o_oy._s_e_n ____ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson x Rep. Joshua Boschee x 
Vice Chairman Wayne Trottier x Rep. Jessica Haak x 
Rep. Bert Anderson x Rep. Alisa Mitskog x 
Rep. Alan Fehr x 
Rep. Craig Headland x 
Rep. Tom Kading x 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert x 
Rep. Diane Larson x 
Rep. Alex Looysen x 
Rep. Cynthia Schreiber Beck x 

Total (Yes) 13 No 0 ----------- --------------~ 

Absent O 
----------------------------~ 

Floor Assignment Re . ----'------ ---------------------
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Administrative rule by the Agriculture Department 

~- -----~----------------~~~-~~~~~~~~~ 
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Date: 3/6/2015 

Roll Call Vote#: ---=2 ___ _ 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2351 

House Agriculture Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 15.0895.01003 
---------------------~ 

Recommendation 
IZI Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Rep. Headland Seconded By Rep. Looysen 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson x Rep. Joshua Boschee x 
Vice Chairman Wayne Trottier x Rep. Jessica Haak x 
Rep. Bert Anderson x Rep. Alisa Mitskog x 
Rep. Alan Fehr x 
Rep. Craia Headland x 
Rep. Tom Kading x 
Reo. Dwiaht Kiefert x 
Reo. Diane Larson x /"\ 
Rep. Alex Loovsen x / ( (.. J 
Reo. Cynthia Schreiber Beck x / • I ll ~~ 

'/ /\ , l - ./ 
(./""' ./""" 

/ 
r 

Total (Yes) 3 No 10 ----------- _..:....::_ ____________ ~ 
Absent O 

-=----------------------------~ 

Floor Assignment __:_;R...::..ei.:..c. _______________________ _ 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Add feedlots 
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Date: 3/6/2015 

Roll Call Vote # : 3 

House 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2351 

Agriculture 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

-------

Committee 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Recommendation 

Other Actions: 

D Adopt Amendment 
~ Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
~ As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
D Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By _R_e__.p_._L_o~oy._s_e_n _____ Seconded By _R_e~p_. _K_a_d_in~g _____ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson x Rep. Joshua Boschee x 
Vice Chairman Wayne Trottier x Rep. Jessica Haak x 
Rep. Bert Anderson x Rep. Alisa Mitskog x 
Rep. Alan Fehr x 
Rep. Craig Headland x 
Rep. Tom KadinQ x 
Rep. DwiQht Kiefert x 
Rep. Diane Larson x 
Rep. Alex Looysen x 
Rep. Cynthia Schreiber Beck x 

Total (Yes) 8 No 5 
~~~~~~~~~~- -~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Absent 0 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Floor Assignment Rep. Dennis Johnson 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 
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Date: 3/13/2015 

Roll Call Vote#: ---'-1 __ _ 

House 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2351 

Agriculture 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description : 

Committee 

~--------------------~ 

Recommendation 
D Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: ~ Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Rep. Headland Seconded By _R_e_.p_._L_o_oy._s_e_n ____ _ 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson Rep. Joshua Boschee 
Vice Chairman Wayne Trottier Rep. Jessica Haak 
Rep. Bert Anderson Rep. Alisa MitskoQ 
Rep. Alan Fehr 
Rep. Craig Headland / 
Rep. Tom Kading I Jo I 

Rep. Dwight Kiefert I I Fl /-: 
Rep. Diane Larson I II v / / 
Rep. Alex Loovsen j - '<"" I JU 

. 
rV 

Rep. Cynthia Schreiber Beck I /) I \_ / ,....c-LV'-
I 

...,., 
/J nt- ') -> 
v \../ ------I ~ 

I 
Total (Yes) No 

Absent 

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



• 
Date: 3/13/2015 

Roll Call Vote #: 2 ------

House 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2351 

Agriculture 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 15.0895.01005 

Committee 

---------------------~ 

Recommendation 
~ Adopt Amendment 
D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By Rep. Headland Seconded By Rep. Looysen 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson x Rep. Joshua Boschee x 
Vice Chairman Wayne Trottier x Rep. Jessica Haak x 
Rep. Bert Anderson x Rep. Alisa Mitskoq x 
Rep. Alan Fehr x 
Rep. Craiq Headland x 
Rep. Tom Kading x 
Rep. Dwight Kiefert AB 
Rep. Diane Larson x 
Rep. Alex Looysen x 
Rep. Cynthia Schreiber Beck x 

Total (Yes) 8 No 4 

Absent 1 -----------------------------
Floor Assignment Re . --'----------- --------------
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 

Adds animal feeding operation 
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Date: 3/13/2015 

Roll Call Vote#: __ ..;:;...3 __ _ 

House 

2015 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 2351 

Agriculture 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 15.0895.01005 

Committee 

---------------------~ 

Recommendation 
D Adopt Amendment 
~ Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
~ As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By _R_e~p_. _L_o~oy~s_e_n _____ Seconded By Rep. Headland 

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 
Chairman Dennis Johnson x Rep. Joshua Boschee x 
Vice Chairman Wayne Trottier x Rep. Jessica Haak x 
Rep. Bert Anderson x Rep. Alisa Mitskog x 
Rep. Alan Fehr x 
Rep. Craig Headland x 
Rep. Tom KadinQ x 
Rep. DwiQht Kiefert AB 
Rep. Diane Larson x 
Rep. Alex Looysen x 
Rep. Cynthia Schreiber Beck x 

Total No ----------- --------------~ 
8 4 (Yes) 

Absent 1 -----------------------------
Floor Assignment Rep. Dennis Johnson 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 9, 2015 8:32am 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 42_001 
Carrier: D. Johnson 

Insert LC: 15.0895.01004 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2351: Agriculture Committee (Rep. D. Johnson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
(8 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2351 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with : 

".1. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited 
liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a 
domestic corporation or a limited liability company, provided: 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not 
exceed six hundred forty acres (258.99 hectares]; 

tL The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the 
land is acquired: and 

c. The dairy farm is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
fifty cows. 

~ This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company, 
provided: 

.§... The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not 
exceed six hundred forty acres (258.99 hectares]; 

tL The swine production facility is operational within three years from 
the date the land is acquired; and 

c. The swine production facility is permitted as a concentrated animal 
feeding operation by the state department of health and consists of 
at least five hundred swine. 

~ The agriculture commissioner shall by rule develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section . 

~ ~ If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating within the 
exceptions provided by this section, the commissioner shall notify 
the secretary of state and the attorney general. 

tL A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 42_001 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 13, 2015 3:50pm 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 46_015 
Carrier: D. Johnson 

Insert LC: 15.0895.01005 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2351: Agriculture Committee (Rep. D. Johnson, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
(8 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2351 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 954 of the House 
Journal , Senate Bill No. 2351 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with : 

".1. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited 
liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a 
domestic corporation or a limited liability company, provided: 

~ The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not 
exceed six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

~ The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the 
land is acquired: and 

~ The dairy farm is permitted as an animal feeding operation or as a 
concentrated animal feeding operation by the state department of 
health and consists of at least fifty cows. 

2. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company, 
provided: 

~ The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not 
exceed six hundred forty acres [258 .99 hectares]; 

~ The swine production facility is operational within three years from 
the date the land is acquired ; and 

~ The swine production facility is permitted as an animal feeding 
operation or as a concentrated animal feeding operation by the state 
department of health and consists of at least five hundred swine. 

~ The agriculture commissioner shall by rule develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section. 

~ ~ If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating within the 
exceptions provided by this section, the commissioner shall notify 
the secretary of state and the attorney general. 

~ A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 46_015 
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Testimony on SB 2351 

Senator Terry Wanzek 

Senate Agriculture Committee 

Good morning Chairman Miller and Senate Agriculture Committee members. 
My name is Terry Wanzek, State Senator from district 29. 

In my many years in the legislature, there always is an issue, now=aml-.then, that 
is very difficult to address and/or discuss. Many times these issues bring out 
strong emotions, passion, and conviction, one way or another. While they are 
difficult to deal with and it would be easier to ignore them and just leave them 
alone, that would be j\:lst plaifl irresponsible and a dereliction of our duty as a 
state legislator. We are charged with addressing problems facing our state and 
seeking solutions. We are expected to deal with the tough issues, not just the 
easy ones! 

This is one of those bills. Will it be the answer? I believe it could be. Only time 
will tell. But we cannot afford to ignore and do nothing about this issue. If it 
should not work, as I see it, we would be no worse off for trying. We have tried 
many other approaches to deal with this problem over the years, and they 
obviously are not working. This bills proposal has been implemented in other 
surrounding states and seems to be working. This bill would be very similar to 
the current law in SD. It patterns the SD law. 

This bill is an attempt to help the dying Dairy industry and our declining Swine 
Industry in this state by opening the door, just a little bit, to allow capital 
investment into these two specific agriculture enterprises. This is accomplished 
in SB 2351 by exempting Dairy and Swine operations from our anti-corporate 
farming law. However, the bill would restrict these types of agriculture 
operations to a total of 640 acres of farmland, owned or leased. SD law is 
unlimited in acres owned or leased. 

There are 9 states with anti-corporate farming laws. Three of them, Nebraska, 
South Dakota and Iowa's laws were ruled unconstitutional recently under the 
dormant commerce clause. Kansas totally repealed its anti-corporate farming 
law in 2012. Almost all of them allow livestock exemptions of one kind or 

' another, except for our law (ND}. 
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These farming industries, dairy and swine, have been on a steady decline over 
the past years, especially the dairy industry. ND Dairy production fell by 41.5% 
from 2002 to 2013, from 585 million lbs.(2002) to 320 million lbs.(2014). ND 
Dairy cow numJ>ers went down 60% from 40,000 (2002} to 16000 (2014). Dairy 
production i~ i-1990 was 1.1 billion lbs. and 85000 milk cows. If you look back to 
the 30's to 40's we had over 500,000 dairy cows in ND and over 2 billion lbs. of 
milk. At one time ND led the nation in the production of cream! Today we are 
down to 91 dairy farms with a number of those likely to quit within the year. In 
2002 we had over 350 dairy farms. We already have ND dairy processors 
importing milk. These processing plants will be in jeopardy of closing if there is 
no milk production in ND. I hope we are not too late! 

In comparison, SD has increased, over the past 13 years, from 86,000 dairy cows 
in 2002 to 97,000 cows in 2014. 7000 head were just added in last 6 years since 
SD passed their corporate farming exemption for dairy. Another.~'f,<ifad are 
already permitted to enter into SD in 2015. SD Dairy production went from 
1.29 billion lbs. of milk in 2002 to 2.02 billion lbs. of milk in 2013, an increase of 
730 million. SD's annual production increase alone is more than double what ND 
produces currently in total annual milk production. All this information is from 
NASS (National Ag Statistical Service of the USDA). 

I believe our farm producers need access to the same business tools that other 
state's farmers have to be competitive. I believe this measure can make a 
difference. Not many family farmers want to take on the risk and labor 
commitment alone anymore, nor do they have the personal capital it requires, 
to develop such an enterprise like a current dairy farm. I believe capital 
generation is a barrier to development. We need more opportunity to access 
equity capital, not just capital debt. Today a 1600 head dairy farm demands 
anywhere from 7 to 10 million dollars in investment to construct. A hog facility 
is between $16-18 million. 

Some say this will bring "out of state" investment into our state. Is that bad 
thing? That could happen, but I also see this as an opportunity for our state's 
farmers and other community citizens to build from within, to expand on an 
existing dairy for instance. Case in point, this could be my cousin, who happens 
to be one of the remaining 91 dairy farms. He is adding robots to milk cows and 
may be interested in expanding his herd but can't swing it alone. He has 
mentioned he may be interested in seeking equity partners. He does not need 
more debt; he needs someone willing to take on some of the risk with him. 

0 
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If we do nothing to enhance our mi lk  production in ND, we wil l lose our dairy 
industry and our processors. Our fel low ND citizens wil l continue to consume 
dairy products l ike mi lk; cheese, ice cream, yogurt, butter etc. and they will be 
shipped in from SD or M N  or another state at a higher cost and ironical ly, most 
l ikely produced on a corporate dairy farm ! One way or another, ND citizens wil l 
be supporting corporate dairies. I prefer to support dairies vested within our 
own state. 

M r. Chairman and Senate Ag committee members, I would l ike to share with 
you that I am a fourth generation family farmer. My G reat G randparents, both 
maternal  and paternal, were some of the fi rst farmers to cultivate land in 
Stutsman County in the 1880's. We have a 5th generation of Wanzeks' currently 
starting their careers and preparing to take over our family farm, and hopeful ly 
the 6th generation, our grandchi ldren, wi l l  have that opportunity too. 

Our ancestors fol lowed a Catholic priest to ND and started a mission church and 
have been instrumental in bui lding our Catholic Church, our community and our 
farm in its current location. So, I get it when it comes to supporting and 
protecting our family farms and community way of l ife. But farming sti l l  comes 
down to the fact that it is a business. It is a business that has to be financia l ly 
successfu l to stay within our family. 

As much as some of us would l ike things to be the way they were in the good 
old days, a family farm on every section raising crops and a few mi lk cows, a few 
beef cattle, a few hogs, a few sheep and chickens, it is not rea lity today! Our 
farms have changed but I contend they are sti l l  mostly operated by fami l ies. 
USDA says 93% of a l l  our farms in the US today are family owned and operated. 

I, as  a family farmer in ND, personal ly do not feel my/our way of l ife wil l  be 
threatened by this measure. This can help and wil l  assist our fami ly farmers by 
presenting more opportunities. It wi l l  d iversify our ag economy. It wil l  provide 
balance between grain and animal production. These kind of operations will 
need to contract with our local farmers to grow feed for the cows and receive 
the manure, a very high qual ity organic ferti l izer. It would a lso benefit the corn, 
soybean, feed, implement, etc. industries by providing additional demand for 
feed, equipment, supplies, electricity, etc. I could go on and on. Just a small 
increase in demand for corn or feedstock could create at least $ mi l l ions 
increase in agricultural income. These are �alue �dded a�riculture operati�ns. () � .:., Cl_ � 1 /\. f � """"- � � .A"'v IJ MM_� 
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The ND Century Code wi l l  continue to protect and remain consistent with 
keeping the land in the hands of family farmers. That is where the true power 
l ies, a l lowing our family farmers to remain in control of the land through 
ownership or leasing. As our state coat of arms motto reads "Strength from the 
Soil" ,  our family farmers gain their strength from the soi l ! We are keeping the 
soil in control of family farmers. 

There wi l l  be some here today who will tel l you that this won't work. If that is 
true, what is their worry? We wil l  be no worse off than we currently are. I 
would also encourage those who wil l  oppose this effort, and I respectfu l ly 
recognize that is their right, to offer their solution to this problem. To sum up 
my position on this issue, "doing nothing is not an option" ! Thank you and I wil l 
try to answer any questions. 



North Dakota Dairy Industry: By the Numbers 
1115/2015 

Two largest dairy producing counties in North Dakota: Emmons and Morton 

*Dairy Production: 
• North Dakota dairy production fell from 585 million lbs. (2002) to a low of 342 million lbs. 

(2013) 
o 41.5% decrease 
o Still falling 
o Since 2007, lost 102 million pounds of production 

• 23. 0% decrease 
• South Dakota dairy production steadily increased from 1.4 million lbs. (2002) to 2.0 million 

lbs. (2012) 
o 53 .8% increase 
o Since 2007, added 3 .3 billion pounds of milk production 

• 22% increase 
*Dairy Headcount: 

• North Dakota: Down from 40,000 (2002) to 16,000 (2014) 

o 60.0% dz~sa-
• South Dakota: '"from 9~ (2002) to 97,000 (2014) 

i ·:;i /~'~' ~increase 'B'kf>1YO 
o Increased 7,000 head just six years after passing corporate farming reform 

• From 90,000 in 2008 to 97,000 in 2014 
o 25,000 head already permitted to enter the state in 2015 

Costs to construct a dairy facility: 
• Minimum herd size recommendation: 1600 head 
• Cost: $,4800-$5,900/cow; $7 .68 - $9 .44 million total 

Smaller dairy operations: 
• Can utilize robotic milkers effectively 
• Robotic milkers cost approximately $250,000 

• One robot milks 55-60 cows/day 

Processors: 
• Currently there are two large-scale, fluid milk processors in the state: 

o Dean's Foods, Bismarck 
o Kemps/Cass-Clay, Fargo 

• Dry, specialty cheese plant in Polluck, SD heavily supplied by North Dakota milk 
• As milk production in North Dakota continues to fall, the likelihood of losing a dairy processor 

greatly increases. 

*Further information available on pg. 2 graphs 1 



North Dakota Swine Industry: By the Numbers 
1115/2015 

Two largest swine producing counties in North Dakota: Grand Forks and Towner 

*Swine Production (thousand pounds): 

• North Dakota swine production fell from 6.7 million lbs. (2003) to a 5.2 million lbs. 
(2013) 

o 22.4% decrease 
o Still falling 

• South Dakota swine production steadily increased from 604.4 million lbs. (2003) to 
702.3 million lbs. (2013) 

o 16.2% increase 

*Swine Headcount: 

• North Dakota: Down from 150,000 (2003) to 135,000 (2013) 
o 10% decrease 

• South Dakota: Down from 1.3 million (2003) to 1.2 million (2013) 
o 7. 7% decrease 
o Proposing bill to add swine exemption this year 

Costs to construct a swine facility: 

• 5,400 head farrowing unit start-up cost: $16 million 
o Structure: $12 million 
o Animals, feed, labor: $4 million 

• Annual Operating Expenses: $5-6 million 

Feedstuffs used in 5,400 head farrowing operation (annually) 

• Com: 150,000 bushels 
• Soybean Meal: 750 tons 
• DDGs: 2,500 tons 
• Minerals, Vitamins & Minor Grains: 250 tons 

*Further information available on pg. 2 graphs 1 
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State Non-Corporate Farming Laws 
1/26/2015 •r=' �h

.

t states have laws that prohibit or limit corporate farming-Kansas completely repealed their law in 20 12.  

South Dakota, including exemptions for: 
o Certain breeding stock, products and facilities 
o Certain greenhouse operations 
o Facilities for feeding poultry or producing meat or eggs 
o Dairy on agricultural lands 
o Banks and trust companies-Purchase of agricultural land through pooled investment fund 
o Land owned by a corporations as of July 1 ,  1 974 
o Encumbrance taken for security exempt 
o Gifts to nonprofit corporations exempt 
o Farms, for scientific, medical, research, or experimental purposes exempt if sale of products incidental 
o Raising breeding stock for resale exempt-nurseries and seed farms 
o Livestock feeding 
o Family farm and authorized corporations 

• Family farm-majority of stock held by family members 
• North Dakota 

o No exemptions 
• Oklahoma, including exemptions for: 

o Exemptions limited to domestic corporations 
o Engages in research and or/feeding arrangements concerned with the feeding of livestock or poultry, but 

only to the extent of such research and/or feeding arrangements or such livestock or poultry operations 
o Engages in operations concerned with the production and raising of livestock or poultry for sale or use as 

breeding stock 
o Swine operations, including only directly related operations, such as facilities for the production of 

breeding stock, feed mills, processing facilities, and providing supervisory, technical and other assistance 
to any other persons performing such services on behalf of the corporation 

o Engages in poultry operations, including only directly related operations, such as operating hatcheries, 
facilities for the production of breeding stock, feed mills, processing facilities, and providing supervisory, 
technical and other assistance to any other persons performing such services on behalf of the corporation 
to the extent of such operations in this state by the corporation on the effective date of this act 

o Engages in forestry 
o Non-profits 
o Presently engages in fluid milk processing 

• Iowa, including exemptions for: 
o Authorized farm corporation 

• Stockholders do not exceed 25, are all natural persons or acting in a fiduciary capacity for the 
benefit of natural persons or nonprofit corporations 

o Land owned by nonprofit corporations 
o Land owned by municipal corporations 
o Agricultural land held for research or experimental purposes 

• Minnesota, including exemptions for: 
o Authorized farm corporations 

• No more than five shareholders, who are natural persons and obtain specific amounts of their 
receipts from agriculture, actively engaged 

o Authorized livestock farm corporation 
• Engaged in production of livestock other than dairy 
• All shareholders are natural persons, fami ly farm trusts, or family 
• Revenue does not exceed 20% of gross receipts 
• Does not own more than 1 5  00 acres of agricultural land 



o Religious fanns 
• Wisconsin, including exemptions for: 

o Owned by a corporation on June 5, 1 974 
o Acquired to meet pollution control requirements 
o Engaged primarily in research, breeding operations or the production of any crop primarily for seed 

• Nebraska, including exemptions for: 
o Family Fann corporations 
o Non-profit corporations 
o Indian tribal corporations 
o Held by a corporation to meet the requirements of pollution control regulations 
o Raising poultry 
o Alfalfa production 
o Growing seed, nursery plants, or sod 
o Mineral rights on agricultural land 
o Custom spraying, fertilizing, or harvesting 

• Missouri, including exemptions for: 
o Authorized farm corporation: all shareholders are natural persons and it must receive two-thirds or more 

of its total net income from farming 

• Kansas 

• Family farm corporation includes corporations created for the purpose of farming, 
• At least one-half of the voting stock is held by and at least one-half of the stockholders are 

members of a family related to each other within the third degree of consanguinity, 
• At least one stockholder must be actively operating a farm 

o Completely repealed in 20 1 2. 

-ri.e United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit has struck down the Nebraska, South Dakota and Iowa laws / .  i on the dormant commerce clause. 
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'( 

rop i n  da iry d isco u rag i n g  

JANUARY 1 8 , 20 1 5  7 : 1 5 AM • BY JESSICA HOLDMAN 

A drop in  the number of North Dakota dairy farms -­
from 350 in  2000 to 9 1  today -- has led to scrutiny of 
a state law that a l lows on ly fam i ly members to form 
farming corporations. 

Whi le the rule p rotects ifaiii i lY-owned enterprises from 
corporate· entit ies, farm numbers have dropped so 
low that the viabi l ity of m i l k-processing faci l it ies in the 
state has become endangered , accord ing to Doug 
Goehring , the state's commissioner of agricu lture . 

Some p roducers say they would l ike to fol low South Dakota's lead to a l low corporate farming in an 
effort to l u re more dairy operators i nto the state . 

"Our dairy industry is hu rt ing terrib ly," Goehring said .  

P, - � resu lt ,  Goehring p roposed to a l low exceptions to North Dakota's non-corporate farming law 
.1 i ries, swine operations and feedlots to a fu l l  room of legis lators during the fi rst week of the 

s lative sess ion .  

" I f  the legis lature wants to  take this u p  and  the ag  community wants to  push it ,  then I would think it 
probably wou ld happen (th is session ) , "  said Goehring ,  add ing producers need to own the issue in 
order to faci l itate the change. 

In 2000 , the re were about 49 ,000 da i ry cows. Now, there are about 1 6 ,000 dairy catt le, accord ing 
to Goehring .  For swine operations ,  the headcount has decreased from 1 8 ,500 pigs in 2000 to 
1 3,900 .  Beef cattle numbers have remained more stable ,  and a new s laughter p lant schedu led to 
come on l ine i n  Aberdeen ,  S . D . ,  next year  has more ranchers interested in starting feed lots . 

"Da i ry has p robably been the one that has been the most hurt and in  more d i re need. We just 
continue to see decl i nes ,"  said Goehring ,  adding that out-of-state p roducers see benefits to 
moving thei r  operations to North Dakota , but they would need to corporate to make it financia l ly 
feasib le .  

Jerry Messer, who raises dairy cattle on Beaver Creek Ranch in  Richardton , said ,  when South 
Dakota twea ked its laws to a l low mu lt ip le dairy investors i nstead of just one fami ly, the state 
became successfu l at recru iting da i ries . 

itive ram ificat ions 
· rant da i ry industry a lso benefits corn growers by a l lowing them to d ivers ify and make more 

ney, accord ing to Messer. 

" I n North Dakota , corn goes to two p laces: I t  either goes to the ethanol p lants or on a tra in  to 
http://bismarcktribune.com/news/agnews/drop-in-dairy-discouraging/article_02ab0a8b-25c3-53b4-8aab-a2f0d3d326b4.html?print=true&cid=print 1/2 
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a nother market," said Goehr ing,  add ing that gra in  fa rmers want a nother option for their gra in .  "Fo� 
every 3 , 300 bushels of feed that is consu med by a cow or p ig ,  that means one less rai l  car going 
out of the state ."  

}-� Qort i n g  m i l k  
J mi lk  processing fac i l ity i n  central North Dakota has been operating at a 600-cow-a-day 

ficit, forcing it to import mi l k  into the state . 

"When operations have to start doing that, p lants start closing doors , "  Goehring said .  "We don't 
have enough cows in centra l  North D akota anymore ."  

Goehring gave the exa mple of  a 25-partner outfit a long the border. Farmers partnered with a dairy 
operation,  provid i ng feed whi le the one fam i ly operated the da iry.  The dairy wasn't in  com petition 
with the farmers for land because it was content to a l low others to g row feed whi le it did what it 
does best - manage the animals .  

" I  th ink it's those type of structures that seem appeal ing and seem to be worki ng,"  Goehring said . 

Kenton Hol le ,  of N o rthern Lights Dairy of Manda n ,  agreed there is room for expansion of the 
industry .  

" I  th ink  that there's a rea l  possib i l ity i n  North Dakota to  see some l ivestock industries expand , "  
said Ho l le ,  add ing the adoption o f  current laws governing corporate farming wou ld help.  

Hol le said he d id not know of any da iry processing plants i m porting out-of-state mi lk .  He said he 
thinks mi lk  produced i n  the state now is adequate to keep them runn ing . 

I 

. •  1 k  that's the key to it right  there , "  Hol le said of partnerships between dairies and farmers 
wing feed crops.  If a law change were to be proposed , he says there should be a cla use 

prohib it ing larg e  produce rs from buying up large amou nts of land to plant their feed . 
I nvestment dol lars 
Produce rs need the ab i l i ty to pool resources because dairy operations cost so much,  according to 
Goehri n g ,  who said an operation often needs to be mi lking 600 to 800 cows to break even and a 
1 ,600-head dairy operation takes several  m i l l ion dol lars to start. 

"Most farmers don't have that kind of money s itting around,"  he said , and many banks won't lend it 
to a s ing le investor. 

"Because our state has been primari ly g rain production . . .  lenders are not very fam i l iar with 
an imal  agriculture. I t's hard for them to understand the ebbs and flows that exist in the l ivestock 
industry ,  and they have more apprehension about lend ing,"  he said .  

Messer, who is chairman o f  the M idwest Dairy Association and a member of  the North Dakota 
Dairy P romotion Commission,  sa i d ,  with much of its new oi l  wealth , North Dakota is in a good 
positio n  to recruit more dai ries . 

He suggested creating a n  investment fund for those with o i l  roya lties who want to su pport North 
r 'ta agriculture .  He  said the i nvestors would get tax write-offs and the fund would su pplement 

,,rograms offered by the Bank of North Dakota for starting and g rowing farmers.  

http://bismarcktribune.com/news/agnews/drop-in-dairy-discouraginglarticle_02ab0a8b-25c3-53b4-8aab-a2f0d3d326b4.htrnl?print=true&cid=print 212 
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Repea l i ng corporate fa rm i ng laws 
ren Speidel • Daily News newsmonitor@midconetwork.com I Posted: Wednesday, February 4, 
:00 p m  

fo compensate for the decline in both dairy and swine 

Jroduction, the North Dakota Legislature is looking into 

�epealing its corporate farming laws . 

3oth industries have shown significant declines the past 1 0  

fears . Legislators say without intervention, swine and dairy 

Jroduction may disappear from the North Dakota plains. If 

:he current law is amended, it would only allow corporate 

:arming in the swine and dairy industries. 

\Jorth Dakota has had anti-corporate farming laws on the 

:tate books since 1 932.  Until 1 98 1 ,  all corporations were 

Repea l i n g  corporate fa rm ing  
laws 

>rohibited from farming within the state until the Legislature To compensate for the decline in both dairy 

Lmended its law to prohibit corporations from owning or and swine production, the North Dakota 

eas-- · land used for farming or ranching. 

rry Luick, R-District 25,  supports repealing the 

:orporate farming laws, as long as there are limits. He said 

Legislature is looking into repealing its 

corporate farming laws. 

he trend among corporate farms is to buy valuable farmland and squeeze out local farmers. The Legislature 

s looking to limit the amount of land that can be purchased to only the property on which the facility will 

1e located, Luick said. 

�llowing limited corporate farming by itself should not be a deterrent, Luick said, since many N.D. farmers 

lready have formed corporations . Corporations themselves are more about tax structures and to limit 

[ability. 

le said there are large dairies in other states interested in locating to North Dakota, but only if they have 

1e protection of a corporation. 

'he Legislature has looked at amending its corporate farming law during the past three sessions. Luick said 

e thinks this is the year it will be amended to allow corporate dairy and swine farms. 

'he past 1 0  years have shown significant decreases in swine and dairy production within the state as there 

)0 fewer head of hogs and 20,000 fewer head of dairy cows. 

akota had 467 dairy producers in 2003. That number dropped to 9 1  dairy producers in 20 1 3 .  Since 

ien, Luick said, two more dairies have closed and two more are on the brink of closure, to leave North 

http://www.wahpetondailynews.com/news/repealing-corporate-farm i ng-laws/arti cle _ ef12a 1 c0-ac86-1 1 e4-889e-5b8d23ce6b71 .htm l?mode= print 1/2 
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)akota with about 87 dairy producers. 

'North Dakota is importing milk. We've never had to do that before," Luick said. 

� ,;--- � was raised on a beef and hog farm, and said his neighbor operated a dairy. He understands the work 

cd in keeping a dairy operation running. "Kids are not wanting to pick up a dairy business. The 

)hysical demands and commitment isn't  there to milk twice a day," he added. 

fo compound the issue, processors themselves are looking at pulling out of the state because there aren't 

mough materials to stay operational. 

festimony was heard in the Senate Agriculture Committee that shifts are being cut at two dairy processing 

)lants, Cass Clay in Fargo and Dean Foods in Bismarck, since milk production is down. 

)airy farming in the United States is undergoing dramatic changes, driven by both supply and demand 

:actors, according to a report by the Economic Research Service with the U.S .  Department of Agriculture. 

fhe number of dairy farms with fewer than 200 cows is shrinking rapidly while very large operations, with 

l ,000 to 30,000 cows on one site account for rapidly growing shares of production. 

)airy production continues to increase in South Dakota and Minnesota, according to monthly numbers 

deased Jan. 22 by the National Agricultural Statistics Service, an arm of USDA. So far, North Dakota 

loesn't  produce enough milk to be included in the report. South Dakota produced 1 83 million pounds of 

nil)r · · December, 6.4 percent more than the same month a year ago, while Minnesota produced 784 

1JOunds, up from 766 million pounds in the same period a year earlier. 

('here are two Grade A dairies in Richland County. Luick said repealing the corporate farm ownership 

lmong dairy and swine operations should benefit local dairies. 

Juick said he sees many benefits to corporate farming, such as better utilizing com for feed, alfalfa, 

oybean meal and other ethanol plant byproducts. "It is another market for grain raised in a specific area. 

Ve are shipping way too much soybean and grain out of this state. We should focus on adding value to that 

1roduct and utilize it here in our state," he added. 

http://www.wahpetondailynews.com/news/repealing-corporate-farming-laws/article _ ef12a1 c0-ac86-1 1e4-889e-5b8d23ce6b71 .htm l?mode=print 212 
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it i -corporate exe m ptions pro posed for dai ry, swi ne 

JANUARY 26,  20 1 5  5 :00 PM • BY JESSICA HOLDMAN 

As the dairy industry continues to shri nk  in North Dakota , lawmakers are looking to save it by 
al lowing operators to i ncorporate . 

Sen.  Terry Wa nzek,  R-Jamestown , introd uced a b i l l  Monday that would exe mpt certain dairies 
and swine o perations from the state's anti-corporate farming law. 

Wanzek, a fourth-generation fam i ly farmer, said the b i l l  wou ld fo l low South Dakota's lead by 
tweaking the 80-year-old law. Under the legislation,  operations with no more than 640 leased or  
owned acres wou ld be al lowed to incorporate under the exem ption.  

"Our goal is to provide  com p lementary operations where farmers can maintain  thei r land and 
corporations manage the an imals and operations,"  Wanzek said in a statement. "The sheer start­
up  costs alone for a hog o r  dairy operation make it cost-proh ibitive without more access to 
capita l ." 

The b i l l  a lso would benefit the corn and soybean industries by provid ing add itional demand for 
feed , Wanzek said . 

a smal l  increase i n  demand for corn or  feedstock cou ld create at least $ 1 00 mi l l ion 
�ased agricultura l  income,"  said Bart Schott, a North Dakota Corn Growers Board member 

d former N ational  Corn G rowers Association president. 

Dairy prod uction has d ropped 42 percent in the past 1 0  years, and swine operations are on a 
s imi lar  decl ine.  

"Doing nothing is  not  an option , "  Wanzek said . "We have to do someth ing to save these industries 
in our  state ."  

http://bismarcktribune.com/business/local/anti-corporate-exemptions-proposed-for-dairy-swine/article_6a292584-dad0-5da5-be58-ef19e3ed391b.htrnl?print=tr. . . 1/1 
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J i ries looki n g  for ways to rebou n d  

JANUARY 2 1 , 20 1 5  3 :30 AM 

Dairy farming always has been a demanding business . It requ i res early morning m i lk ing fol lowed 
by another round of m i l king late in the afternoo n .  

And it's hard t o  take a break - you can't let the cows wait a day. 

N orth Dakota hasn't ranked a mong the top dairy states,  in  fact, the state's dairy nu mbers are 
fa l l ing .  In a S u nday story ,  reporter Jessica Holdman noted that the number of dairy farms has 
s l ipped from 350 in  2000 to 9 1  today. 

This has pro mpted a search for solutions.  One idea being considered is changing the state law 
that a l lows o n ly fam i ly members to form farming corporations.  

Agriculture Comm issioner Doug Goe hring warns that the future of mi lk-processing faci l ities in the 
state are at stake. He's urg ing producers to take the lead in seeking changes. 

He's suggested exceptions to N orth Dakota's non-corporate farming law for dairies,  swine 
operations and feedlots . 
" � Legislatu re wants to take this up  and the ag com m u nity wants to push it, then I would think 

.Jbably would happen (th is  session) ,"  he said . 

South Dakota has made changes to a l low corporate farming in  an effort to lure more dairy 
operators into the state . 

Goehring th i n ks out-of-state p roduce rs would move their operations to North Dakota if they could 
corporate to make it financial ly feasib le .  

H e  a lso said producers need to be able to pool  their  resou rces because dairy operations are 
expensive . 

Jerry Messer, who raises dairy cattle on Beaver Creek Ranch in Richardton,  told the Tribune 
. when South Dakota tweaked its laws to a l low multiple dairy investors instead of just one fami ly, 

the state saw success at recru iting dairies . 

A slaughter p lant sched u led to beg i n  operating in  Aberdeen ,  S . D . ,  next year already has ranchers 
interested in  starting feed lots . 

G iving new l ife to dairy farms, feedlots and swine operations can have trickle down benefits . It 
provides more customers for corn producers and al lows them to to d iversify. Also , if the corn is 
solrl loca l ly the producers don't have to rely as m uch on ra i l  service. If we produce more mi lk  it wi l l  
' �e mi lk  i mports . 

pro posals have merit and it's up  to producers to get the Legislature's approval .  Goehring 
thi n ks legislators wil l  approve but he's made it clear that prod ucers wi l l  have to lead the way. 

http://bismarcktribune.com/news/opinion/dairies-looki ng-for-ways-to-rebound/article _ 4c58a 7 4c-d980-5d7d-95f3-63f7c0d6adc 7 .htm l?print=true&cid= print 1/2 
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Dairies looking for ways to rebound f . J  7 
If the decision is made to pursue changes in the law, everyone should real ize this could just be 
the beg inning.  Once the law is  mod ified , it's l ikely to draw more attention .  

This would be a good t ime to review the entire law and see i f  fits the needs of  North Da kota in  
/0 1 5 . 

u p  to the producers to make the next move. 

http://bismarcktribune.com/news/opinion/dairies-looki ng-for-ways-to-rebound/article _ 4c58a 7 4c-d980-5d7d-95f3-63f7c0d6adc 7.htm l?print=true&cid= print 212 



Dairy Cow Headcount - IL, IN, IA, KS, MI, MN, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 97,000 176,000 208,000 134,000 380,000 464,000 54,000 18,000 94,000 1,271,000 

2012 98,000 175,000 205,000 126,000 375,000 465 ,000 56,000 18,000 92,000 1,270,000 

2011 98,000 172,000 204,000 123,000 366,000 468,000 57,000 19,000 91,000 1,265,000 

2010 100,000 170,000 210,000 119,000 358,000 470,000 59,000 21,000 92,000 1,262,000 

2009 102,000 168,000 214,000 118,000 355,000 469,000 61 ,000 23,000 94,000 1,257,000 

2008 102,000 167,000 213,000 117,000 350,000 464,000 58,000 26,000 90,000 1,252,000 

2007 103,000 166,000 213,000 110,000 335,000 460,000 59,000 29,000 85,000 1,247,000 

2006 103,000 165,000 205,000 112,000 320,000 450,000 61,000 32,000 81 ,000 1,243,000 

2005 104,000 156,000 I 95,000 111 ,000 312,000 453,000 60,000 33,000 81 ,000 1,236,000 

2004 107,000 151 ,000 193,000 113,000 303,000 463 ,000 61,000 34,000 80,000 1,241 ,000 

2003 111,000 149,000 201,000 111,000 302,000 473,000 64,000 35,000 82,000 1,256,000 

2002 115,000 I 51,000 209,000 107,000 301,000 487,000 67,000 40,000 86,000 1,271,000 

2001 l 16,000 153,000 210,000 93,000 303,000 510,000 72,000 46,000 89,000 1,292,000 

2000 120,000 146,000 215,000 91,000 300,000 534,000 76,000 48,000 95,000 1,344,000 

1995 151,000 144,000 251,000 82,000 326,000 592,000 74,000 64,000 118,000 1,490,000 

1990 174,000 156,000 280,000 99,000 340,000 710,000 97,000 85,000 140,000 1,731 ,000 

1985 227,000 192,000 352,000 109,000 394,000 913,000 109,000 101 ,000 162,000 1,876,000 

1980 233,000 201,000 368,000 123,000 395,000 862,000 121 ,000 93 ,000 159,000 1,815,000 

1975 243,000 215,000 401 ,000 142,000 411,000 884,000 152,000 I 15,000 174,000 1,812,000 

1970 297,000 237,000 497,000 188,000 433,000 949,000 174,000 137,000 183 ,000 1,814,000 

1965 422,000 330,000 718,000 247,000 585,000 1,232,000 255,000 223,000 226,000 2,075,000 

1960 570,000 426,000 851 ,000 332,000 641,000 1,265,000 327,000 277,000 248,000 2, 150,000 

1955 788,000 579,000 1,022,000 468,000 809,000 1,378,000 428,000 368,000 302,000 2,302,000 

1950 925,000 693 ,000 1,124,000 560,000 863 ,000 1,349,000 462,000 375,000 333,000 2,160,000 

1945 1,111,000 803 ,000 1,343,000 723 ,000 985,000 1,660,000 575 ,000 495,000 440,000 2,360,000 

1940 1,061,000 738,000 1,383,000 708,000 908,000 1,632,000 605,000 484,000 456,000 2, 165,000 

1935 1, 136,000 770,000 1,455,000 831 ,000 860,000 1,630,000 686,000 542,000 501 ,000 2,030,000 

1930 1,000,000 688,000 1,323,000 757,000 778,000 1,524,000 642,000 521 ,000 532,000 I ,973,000 

f7- / 
L_ __________________________ _ _ _ _ _ __ -- - - - - - - --- --- ---- - - -



Milk Production (Pounds) - IL, IN, IA, KS, MI, MN, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 1,879,000,000 3,830,000,000 4,606,000,000 2,932,000,000 9, 164,000,000 9' 140,000,000 1, 165,000,000 342,000,000 2,023,000,000 27,572,000,000 

2012 1,868,000,000 3,752,000,000 4,513,000,000 2,732,000,000 8,991 ,000,000 9,073,000,000 1, 186,000,000 347,000,000 1,968,000,000 27,224,000,000 

2011 1,814,000,000 3,553,000,000 4,323,000,000 2,585,000,000 8,478,000,000 8,890,000,000 1,173,000,000 345,000,000 1,873,000,000 26,058,000,000 

2010 1,840,000,000 3,416,000,000 4,342,000,000 2,497 ,000,000 8,333,000,000 9, 102,000,000 1, 168,000,000 384,000,000 1,884,000,000 26,035,000,000 

2009 1,862,000,000 3,383,000,000 4,301 ,000,000 2,488,000,000 7,968,000,000 9,019,000,000 1, 198,000,000 3 87 ,000,000 1,892,000,000 25,239,000,000 

2008 1,862,000,000 3 ,287 ,000,000 4,236,000,000 2,415,000,000 7,763,000,000 8,782,000,000 1,083,000,000 418,000,000 1, 796,000,000 24,472,000,000 

2007 1,917,000,000 3,371,000,000 4,278,000,000 2, 187,000,000 7,625,000,000 8,656,000,000 1,075,000,000 444,000,000 1,641,000,000 24,080,000,000 

2006 1,983 ,000,000 3,277,000,000 4, 126,000,000 2,345,000,000 7, 115,000,000 8,369,000,000 1, 118,000,000 470,000,000 1,505,000,000 23 ,3 98,000,000 

2005 1,958,000,000 3, 166,000,000 4,025,000,000 2,276,000,000 6, 750,000,000 8, 195,000,000 1,077,000,000 468,000,000 1,437 ,000,000 22,866,000,000 

2004 1,978,000,000 3,027,000,000 3 ,851,000,000 2,216,000,000 6,330,000,000 8, 102,000,000 1,049,000,000 465,000,000 1,34 7,000,000 22,085,000,000 

2003 2,047,000,000 2,939,000,000 3 ,810,000,000 2, 130,000,000 6,375,000,000 8,25 8,000,000 1, 129,000,000 500,000,000 1,3 30,000,000 22,266,000,000 

2002 2,051 ,000,000 2,658,000,000 3,804,000,000 2,030,000,000 6, 120,000,000 8,45 8,000,000 1,167,000,000 593,000,000 1,289,000,000 22,074,000,000 

2001 2,020,000,000 2,567 ,000,000 3,785,000,000 1,610,000,000 5,870,000,000 8,812,000,000 1, 166,000,000 644,000,000 1,370,000,000 22, 199,000,000 

2000 2,094,000,000 2,419,000,000 3,934,000,000 1,540,000,000 5,705,000,000 9,493,000,000 1,255,000,000 686,000,000 1,474,000,000 23 ,259,000,000 

1995 2,399,000,000 2,214,000,000 4,047,000,000 1,180,000,000 5,565,000,000 9,409,000,000 1,095,000,000 838,000,000 1,581,000,000 22,942,000,000 

1990 2,559,000,000 2,276,000,000 4,233,000,000 1,245,000,000 5,234,000,000 10,030,000,000 1,345,000,000 1,073,000,000 1,716,000,000 24, 187 ,000,000 

1985 2,721 ,000,000 2,358,000,000 4,058,000,000 1,285,000,000 5,568,000,000 10,835,000,000 1,340,000,000 1, 120,000,000 1,744,000,000 24, 700,000,000 

1980 2,540,000,000 2,210,000,000 3,994,000,000 1,330,000,000 4,970,000,000 9,535,000,000 1,315,000,000 939,000,000 1,669,000,000 22,3 80,000,000 

1975 2,446,000,000 2,210,000,000 3,893,000,000 1,392,000,000 4,411,000,000 8,946,000,000 1,431,000,000 917 ,000,000 1,556,000,000 18,900,000,000 

1970 2,850,000,000 2,3 82,000,000 4,670,000,000 1, 740,000,000 4,602,000,000 9,636,000,000 1,566,000,000 1,065,000,000 1,578,000,000 18,435,000,000 

1965 3,844,000,000 2,954,000,000 5,945,000,000 1, 749,000,000 5,528,000,000 10,731 ,000,000 1,821,000,000 1,467,000,000 1,580,000,000 18,841,000,000 

1960 4,229,000,000 3, 178,000,000 5,940,000,000 1,922,000,000 5, 173,000,000 10,272,000,000 2,008,000,000 1, 731 ,000,000 1,463,000,000 17,780,000,000 

1955 5,027,000,000 3,845,000,000 5,958,000,000 2,354,000,000 5,396,000,000 8,833,000,000 2,298,000,000 1,785,000,000 1,368,000,000 16,482,000,000 

1950 5,208,000,000 3,708,000,000 6, 171 ,000,000 2,548,000,000 5,420,000,000 8,067,000,000 2,250,000,000 1,699,000,000 1,402,000,000 14,796,000,000 

1945 5,777,000,000 3,814,000,000 6, 702,000,000 2,943,000,000 5,506,000,000 8,599,000,000 2,50 1,000,000 1,970,000,000 l ,650,000,000 14,939,000,000 

1940 5, 188,000,000 3,225,000,000 6,611 ,000,000 2,860,000,000 4,949,000,000 8,405,000,000 2,589,000,000 2,081,000,000 1,746,000,000 12,665,000,000 

1935 4,873,000,000 3,049,000,000 6,009,000,000 3,075,000,000 4,257,000,000 7,384,000,000 2,689,000,000 1,951 ,000,000 1,603,000,000 10,921,000,000 

1930 4,650,000,000 2,931,000,000 5,927,000,000 3,058,000,000 4,014,000,000 7,590,000,000 2,806,000,000 2, 136,000,000 2, 197,000,000 11 ,207,000,000 



Swine Headcount - IL, IN, IA, KS, Ml, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2014 4,600,000 3,600,000 20,900,000 1,800,000 1,100,000 7,850,000 3, 100,000 139,000 1,250,000 300,000 

2013 4,550,000 3,650,000 20,200,000 1,750,000 1,060,000 7,800,000 3,050,000 135,000 1,200,000 295 ,000 

2012 4,600,000 3,800,000 20,600,000 1,900,000 1,090,000 7,650,000 3,000,000 135,000 1,190,000 320,000 

2011 4,650,000 3,800,000 20,000,000 1,890,000 1,050,000 7,800,000 3,100,000 149,000 1,390,000 340,000 

2010 4,350,000 3,650,000 19,100,000 1,800,000 1,040,000 7,700,000 3,150,000 143,000 1,290,000 330,000 

2009 4,250,000 3,600,000 18,900,000 1,800,000 1,080,000 7,200,000 3,050,000 155,000 1,180,000 350,000 

2008 4,350,000 3,550,000 19,900,000 1,740,000 1,030,000 7,500,000 3,3 50,000 151 ,000 1,280,000 360,000 

2007 4,350,000 3,700,000 19,400,000 1,880,000 1,030,000 7,700,000 3,350,000 182,000 1,460,000 440,000 

2006 4,200,000 3,350,000 17,300,000 1,860,000 990,000 6,900,000 3,050,000 169,000 1,270,000 450,000 

2005 4,000,000 3,250,000 16,600,000 1,800,000 960,000 6,600,000 2,900,000 157,000 1,430,000 430,000 

2004 4,100,000 3,200,000 16,300,000 1,720,000 950,000 6,500,000 2,850,000 164,000 1,280,000 430,000 

2003 4,000,000 3,100,000 15,900,000 1,660,000 950,000 6,500,000 2,900,000 150,000 1,280,000 480,000 

2002 4, 150,000 3,250,000 15,500,000 1,530,000 870,000 6,100,000 3,000,000 144,000 1,330,000 520,000 

2001 4,250,000 3,200,000 15,400,000 1,570,000 960,000 5,800,000 2,900,000 154,000 1,290,000 540,000 

2000 4, 150,000 3,350,000 15,100,000 1,520,000 950,000 5,800,000 3,050,000 185,000 1,320,000 610,000 

1995 4,800,000 4,000,000 13,500,000 1,300,000 1, 100,000 4,950,000 4,050,000 280,000 1,450,000 880,000 

1990 5,700,000 4,400,000 13,800,000 1,500,000 1,250,000 4,500,000 4,300,000 265 ,000 1,770,000 1,200,000 

1985 5,400,000 4, 150,000 13,500,000 1,520,000 1,190,000 4,100,000 3,900,000 285 ,000 1,610,000 1,250,000 

1980 6,600,000 4,600,000 16,100,000 1,900,000 830,000 5,100,000 3,900,000 265 ,000 1,860,000 1,680,000 

1975 5,600,000 3,900,000 12,600,000 1,650,000 700,000 3,000,000 2,700,000 350,000 1,400,000 1, 150,000 

1970 7,630,000 5,129,000 16,110,000 2,202,000 870,000 3,752,000 3,691 ,000 408,000 2,009,000 1,932,000 

1965 6,618,000 3,944,000 12,857,000 1,242,000 652,000 2,856,000 2,761 ,000 290,000 1,493 ,000 1,476,000 

1960 7,096,000 4,850,000 12,433 ,000 1, 142,000 741 ,000 3,522,000 2,527,000 248,000 1,315,000 1,786,000 

1955 6,348,000 4,610,000 11 ,602,000 929,000 783 ,000 3,637,000 2,423,000 421,000 1,494,000 1,865,000 

1950 6,536,000 4,701 ,000 12,639,000 1,504,000 902,000 3,735,000 2,999,000 401 ,000 1,543 ,000 1,854,000 

1945 6,337,000 4, 157,000 11 ,494,000 1,470,000 949,000 4,082,000 3,168,000 621,000 1,997,000 1,866,000 

1940 5,232,000 3,938,000 9,048,000 1,276,000 977,000 3,402,000 1,813 ,000 441 ,000 1,103,000 1,729,000 

1935 3,860,000 2,942,000 7,250,000 1,248,000 620,000 2,242,000 2,238,000 345,000 855 ,000 1,340,000 

1930 4,415,000 2,63 7,000 10,509,000 2,487,000 542,000 3,665,000 4,820,000 766,000 3,000,000 1,536,000 



Swine Production (Pounds) - IL, IN, IA, KS, MI, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 2,020,410,000 1,648,744,000 10,660,075,000 901 ,099,000 571 , 196,000 3,909,753 ,000 1, 176,722,000 51 ,642,000 702,31 3,000 169,479,000 

2012 l ,962,779,000 1,753 , 128,000 10,345, 144,000 907,366,000 548,754,000 3 ,93 8, 732,000 1,239,968,000 53,480,000 790,048 ,000 166,642,000 

2011 1,867 ,443 ,000 1, 736,994,000 9,789,483 ,000 924,568,000 615 ,658,000 3,675,511 ,000 1,328,259 ,000 67,433 ,000 773 ,741 ,000 174,266,000 

2010 1,915,998,000 1,753,822,000 9,211 ,017,000 877,774,000 619,869,000 3,685,752,000 1,348,289 ,000 59,469,000 734,825 ,000 174,125,000 

2009 l ,825 ,859,000 1,726,612,000 9,614,705 ,000 910,834,000 600,484,000 3,651 ,800,000 1,3 51 ,209,000 60,908,000 667,493,000 190,076,000 

2008 1,698,057 ,000 1, 726,027 ,000 9,405,442,000 866,318,000 572,559,000 3,765,589,000 1,376,728,000 52,741 ,000 736,454,000 201 ,129,000 

2007 1,513 ,202,000 1,607,328,000 8,444,429 ,000 874,765,000 549,965 ,000 3,540,3 81,000 1,437,629,000 51 ,345,000 686,072,000 2 17 ,526,000 

2006 1,523,074,000 1,484,896,000 8,021 ,3 96,000 799,949,000 482,308,000 3,327,429,000 1,41 2,340,000 62,401 ,000 72 1,462,000 219,648,000 

2005 1,614,032,000 1,485,21 7,000 7,74 1,072,000 779,315,000 471,420,000 3,238,914,000 1,363 ,224,000 65 ,065,000 644,22 1,000 213,5 19,000 

2004 1, 732,642,000 1,424,664,000 7' 195, 120,000 754,837,000 488,241 ,000 3,107,935,000 1,374,997 ,000 66,665,000 622,884,000 207,084,000 

2003 1,827,857 ,000 1,568,223 ,000 6,797,817,000 681,291 ,000 478,077,000 3,016,013 ,000 1,427,503 ,000 62,985,000 611 ,406,000 238,925,000 

2002 1,811 ,346,000 1,466,485,000 6,701 ,425 ,000 656,466,000 499,504,000 2,785,923,000 1,508,053 ,000 79,018,000 608,553 ,000 230,983 ,000 

2001 1,826, 191 ,000 1,445,711 ,000 6,400,094,000 644,674,000 491 ,070,000 2,773,774,000 1,450,821 ,000 92,042,000 61 2,385,000 279,636,000 

2000 1,744,572,000 1,391 ,956,000 6,4 78,938,000 687,493 ,000 464,577 ,000 2,514,895,000 1,491 ,368,000 100,229 ,000 580,611 ,000 264,092,000 

1995 2, 184,541 ,000 1,753,240,000 5,681 ,967,000 587,225,000 446, 182,000 2,013,666,000 l ,705,401 ,000 110,119,000 701 ,314,000 436,632,000 

1990 2,224,798,000 1,665 ,960,000 5,394,390,000 629,510,000 480,809,000 1,714,484,000 1,623,580,000 87,885 ,000 753 ,185,000 459 ,914,000 



YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA 

2013 250,000 82,000 

2012 . 240,000 100,000 

2011 240,000 125,000 

2010 250,000 120,000 

2009 240,000 115,000 

2008 170,000 110,000 

2007 215,000 110,000 

2006 205,000 115,000 

2005 210,000 125,000 

2004 200,000 105,000 

2003 215,000 115,000 

2002 225,000 115,000 

2001 225 ,000 110,000 

2000 240,000 130,000 

1995 280,000 200,000 

1990 310,000 235,000 

1985 540,000 260,000 

1980 460,000 250,000 

1975 500,000 250,000 

1970 755,000 349,000 

1965 791,000 272,000 

Cattle on Feed (Total Head) - IL, IN, IA, KS, Ml, MN, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH 
IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA 

1,270,000 2,240,000 155,000 385,000 2,550,000 51,000 

1,3 00,000 2,370,000 150,000 340,000 2,650,000 60,000 

1,380,000 2,400,000 170,000 340,000 2,550,000 60,000 

1,360,000 2,370,000 170,000 310,000 2,500,000 90,000 

1,300,000 2,370,000 165,000 300,000 2,500,000 70,000 

1,350,000 2,630,000 170,000 325,000 2,700,000 70,000 

1,250,000 2,620,000 175,000 285,000 2,700,000 60,000 

1, 180,000 2,550,000 190,000 290,000 2,600,000 60,000 

1, 100,000 2,460,000 190,000 290,000 2,470,000 60,000 

1,050,000 2,480,000 210,000 310,000 2,450,000 65 ,000 

1,090,000 2,240,000 180,000 300,000 2,300,000 70,000 

1,020,000 2,530,000 190,000 285,000 2,400,000 62,000 

1,050,000 2,450,000 190,000 290,000 2,550,000 65 ,000 

1, 100,000 2,370,000 200,000 285,000 2,450,000 70,000 

910,000 2,040,000 210,000 300,000 1,940,000 100,000 

980,000 1,595,000 220,000 300,000 2,060,000 40,000 

880,000 1,530,000 165,000 370,000 1,880,000 38,000 

1,390,000 1,270,000 165,000 390,000 1,680,000 39,000 

1,200,000 920,000 200,000 380,000 1,160,000 36,000 

2,213,000 892,000 210,000 589,000 1,477,000 63,000 

1,850,000 451 ,000 178,000 506,000 1,027,000 136,000 
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Chairman Miller and members of  the Senate Agriculture Committee, I am Agriculture 

Commissioner Doug Goehring. I am here today in support of SB 235 1 ,  which will add 

exemptions to NDCC 1 0-6. 1 for beef, dairy, and swine facilities that lease or own less than 640 

acres. 

After many conversations with producers and reviewing livestock data, I support the proposed 

changes to NDCC 1 0-6. 1 on the condition that the bill is limited to swine, dairy and beef 

feedlots. The proposed changes would allow shareholders to invest into livestock entities and 

provide support for farmers and ranchers starting these capital intensive businesses. 

Diversification and sustainability of our livestock industry is critical to its growth, and I believe 

this bill will help achieve that goal . 

The producers of the state have been asking for ways to revitalize their industries. Instead of me 

telling their stories, I want to allow them time to provide this committee with first-hand 

information and stories regarding the real state of their industries. 

F A X  7 0 1 - 3 2 8 - 4 5 6 7  E qual Opp ortunity i n  Emp loyment and S ervices 
T E L E P H O N E  7 0 1 - 3 2 8 - 2 2 3 1  

T O L L - F R E E  8 0 0 - 2 4 2 - 7 5 3 5  



Page 2 

Chairman Miller and committee members, thank you for your time. I urge a do pass on SB 

235 1 .  I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 



) Livestock have been a n  i ntegra l pa rt of my fa m i ly's fa rm si nce my G reat 

G ra ndfather  hom esteaded h e re in  S E  South Da kota i n  1879 . My 3 brothers, 

b rother- i n- law a nd 3 n e p hews ca rry on that tra d it ion today with a beef cow herd 

a n d  beef feed lot .  Back i n  1997 we were looking for op portu n it ies to grow o u r  

bus i ness s o  t h a t  we cou l d  m a ke room fo r o u r  5th ge nerat ion.  W e  thought l a n d  

p rices were way too h i g h  t o  b u y  a l ot more l a nd a n d  the corresponding l a nd rents 

were a lso too h igh we t h ought (back then ! ) .  So we m a d e  the decis ion to try a n d  

get mo re o u t  o f  every a cre w e  ope rated rather  t h a n  t o  j u st get m o re a cres. 

We looked to l ivestock to acco m p l is h  that a n d  sett led o n  spea rhea d i ng a n  effort 

to b u i l d  a 1500 cow d a i ry .  We we re a b le  to get a few ne ighbors i nte rested but  

saw that we were go ing need to attract some outs ide ca p ita l to m a ke t h at 

h a p pen .  We d id,  t he  Tu rner  Cou nty Da i ry was b u i lt a n d  has  worked out so wel l  

fo r the fa rmers that  we h ave s i nce bought out a l l  but  two of  o u r  outs ide i nvestors. 

I n  ro u n d  n u m bers, se l l i ng ou r corn to the d a i ry has retu rned us $100 m o re per  

a cre t h a n  com b i n i ng t he  corn  a n d  se l l ing i t  to the l oca l e l evator. 

We do not have m a ny of these "coope rative" d a i r ies h e re in  SD, but in o u r  ca se, 

we wou ld not have bee n a b l e  to acco m p l ish  th is  without the outs ide ca p ita l .  

Accord ing to o u r  South Da kota State U n ivers ity econ o m ist, Dr.  G a ry Taylor, each 

d a i ry cow ge n e rates $14,000 i n  a n n ua l  economic  a ctivity. S i m i la r mod e l ing has 

been done in  M i n n esota a n d  Iowa a n d the n u m ber  is  we l l  ove r $20,000 per cow 

per yea r. We l l  ove r ha lf of that "activity" stays in the l oca l com m u n ity, p ri m a ri ly 

to the loca l fa r m e rs that a re ra is ing the feed and gett ing the orga n ic  nut rients 

retu rned to t h e i r  so i l .  

.) O u r  G overnor, Den n is Dauga a rd grew u p  on a d a i ry fa rm a n d  I was fortu nate to 

serve as  h i s  fi rst Secreta ry of Agricu ltu re .  We s ha red a passion for l ivestock a nd a 

I 
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) 

vis ion fo r the economic  wel l -being of o u r  rura l com m u n ities.  Livestock 

d eve lopment was o n e  of our  top pr iorities. 

Agricu ltu re is South Da kota' s  n u m ber  one ind ustry a nd agricu ltu re is  the o n ly 

i n d u stry that is cons iste nt ly i nvest ing i n  o u r  rura l co m m u n ities.  Fort u n ately, o u r  

Legis lators u nd e rsta nd that  a nd have witnessed fi rstha n d  how e n co u raging S D  

a gricu lture h a s  ben efited o u r  state. The refore, s i nce ou r Fa m i ly Farm Act of 1974 
was e n a cted, t he  law has  been a m ended a nd a l l  but the swi n e  i n d u stry h a ve been 

exem pted .  That be ing sa id,  an Attorney Genera l ' s o p i n i o n  has  given new l ife to 

our swine i n d ustry so that  it has been a b le  to expa n d  by 5% each of the l a st 3 
yea rs .  

A vi b ra nt a nd expa n d i ng l ivestock i n d u stry is critica l to the  futu re success of  o u r  

fa rme rs, ra nche rs a nd t h e  co m m u n ities they l ive i n .  

W a lt Bones 

45874 268th St. 

Pa rker, S D  57053 
605.940.8371 



Chairman Mil ler and members of the committee I am Clark Price, a fourth generation farmer, 
rancher, feedlot and stocker operator from the Washburn area. Thank you for the opportunity to 
appear before the committee. I am here today in support of SB 235 1 with an amendment that 
would add an exemption for feedlot facilities. 

Mr. Chairman, you can't choose your family, but under this structure I can choose my partners. I 
would like the ability for four of my neighbors, fellow producers, college friends, local 
businesses or maybe Blue Flint Ethanol to contribute capital to form this business. 

Corporate structures can and wil l  help feedlot owners like myself by shifting the structure under 
which we do business. The ability to form a corporation would benefit me personally and 
everyone else in the industry in the fol lowing ways. 

• This structure limits personal risk and protects individual assets. 
o Corporations can retain earnings until the profits from the company move to the 

investors in the form of dividends. This will put more revenue back into the 
business immediately, preventing further borrowing. 

• Feedlot operations require about ten pounds of corn/DDGs per pound of beef. This 
structure presents good opportunities for com farmers. Those growers should have the 
opportunity to invest, and find local markets to add value to their farms. 

o This would relieve transportation constraints . 
o Reduce commercial fertilizer use for area farmers. 

I want my family and neighbors to have the ability to be involved in this business. The 
Cobblestone Inn is trying to bui ld a facility in Washburn and looking for local investors. Once 
they hit 40% equity, they wil l  build the hotel .  Why in this state am I not allowed to do that same 
exact thing to build a feedlot? 

Mr. Chairman, we have a state-of-the-art processing facility just south of our border in 
Aberdeen, SD. This facil ity has the capacity to process 425,000 head of fed cattle. I personally 
believe this business structure is a necessity for North Dakota to compete in a market where 
feedlots are shifting north. North Dakota cattle need to be supplying this facility. We have the 
cheapest feed supplies in the nation and yet, we aren't feeding cattle here. 

There were 940,000 calves in North Dakota in 20 1 3  but we only had 5 1 ,000 head of cattle on 
feed. In the same year, South Dakota had 4 1 0,000 cattle on feed; of which 20,000 are in the five 
counties that border southeast North Dakota. 

Chairman Miller and committee members, I urge you to support SB 23 5 1  with a feedlot 
exemption amendment. I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

p . I 
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3. Domestic corporations and limited liability companies owning and operating a feedlot facility, 

provided the land owned or leased for that purpose does not exceed six hundred and forty 

acres. 
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Testimony SB 23 5 1  
Kenton Hol le Yd Generation Dairy Farmer 

Mandan, ND 
I would l ike to address three areas in my testimony in support of SB 235 1 .  
F irst I would l ike to update you on the status of our present dairy farm industry. 
Second would be what impact this bi l l  would have on our dairy producers. 
Third is the impact it would have on the other Ag producers in North Dakota. 
It is wel l  known that the numbers of dairy farmers in our state is on the decl ine. 

There are several reasons for the lack of dairy farms. I don't think that I could rank them 
as far as the most prominent reason. Dairy farming is a very capitol and labor intensive 
business . It requires 24-7-365 attention. Fami ly l ife style often suffers because of the 
labor requirements. Often times more labor for the farm than the fami ly can provide is 
required. F inding good year around dairy farm help is difficult. That in itself  is a very 
strong reason why some farmers quite or for that matter why a younger generation may 
not want to be involved. 

Many of the dairy farm fam i l ies in the state are using a faci l ity that more than 
l ikely their grandfather built, which at one time their fathers remodeled or added onto 
and at some time the current generation added to that barn. So the faci l ity is getting out 
dated and maybe even worn out. Many of today's dairy farming technologies are 
difficult to fit into a barn that was built more than 1 5  years ago. The so lution to that 
would be to build a new faci lity. Dairy faci l ities require a lot of capitol to build and in 
order to provide for a sufficient cash flow to meet debt payments, may require a sizable 
increase in the number of milking cows . A new faci lity and additional cows means a lot 
of money. A producer may not be able to secure the needed credit or is not interested in 
making the jump to a different larger faci lity. 

Those are probably some of the maj or reasons for our decl ining herd numbers. 

Now lets consider those fami l ies who have a strong desire to continue in our state 
or someone who may wish to build a new facil ity. 

The new robot mi lking technologies are a definite advantage to the labor struggles 
that we face. 

With the larger herd size the requirements for labor is  a must. So with either the 
robots or the large herds the individuals family labor roles change. Many times shifting 
from managing cows to managing computers and people.  So a more acceptable l ifestyle 
can be achieved by updating the dairy. 

Changes, updates or new construction cost wil l  certainly be in the hundreds of 
thousand of dollars and for new l arge barns into the multimi l l ion s of dol lars. 
I f  an existing farm wishes to finance with the local bank they may run into credit l imits 
that might restrict them on the amount of capitol available to borrow . 

I 



I am aware of the programs that the Bank of North Dakota has available to those 
banks who would be interested in financing a dairy farm expansion. It takes an 
exceptional institution wil l ing to take on the role of the lead lender for a project such as 
this .  

The area of start up capitol is  where the pass ing of this bi l l  would have a very 
positive impact on not only the dairy but the swine industry as wel l .  These l ivestock 
development programs take a lot of capitol .  

One o f  the greatest financial needs i s  that o f  patient capitol. When a l ivestock 
faci l ity is  just starting there is a period of time, and it can be any where from 2-5 years, 
when the returns are not very good. We all know that no matter how good the terms we 
get from our bank, interest starts working against us as soon as we sign the note and the 
banks are looking for payments on a regular basis.  I nvestors in these projects know that 
and they must be wil l ing to wait it out t i l l  the cash flow has begun to generate some 
positive returns to get a return on their investment. 

The other i mportant part of the financial picture is the knowledge of the industry 
by the person lending or investing in a l ivestock faci l ity. Having a knowledgeable  and 
experienced financial person with l ivestock insights can be so critical to the success of 
an operation. Someone from within a corporate structure can bring that kind of expertise 
to a farming operation. 

Eleven years ago our farm moved 45 miles from New Salem to St Anthony. I saw 
an opportunity to expand our farm from 1 20 cows to 600. My wife and I had been 
considering expanding our herd for several years but could never find a financial 
package that made that poss ible.  F inding a built but not finished faci l ity that was for sale 
al lowed us to expand and make room for the next generation. That moved changed a lot 
of things for us. One of the biggest things it did was to put us into a community where 
we did not really know anyone. Without our land base c lose by we became a marketing 
option for those farmers around us. Our cows require a minimum of 600 acres of corn 
si lage every year, because of the cost to truck the wet s i lage those acres need to be with 
in 8 miles from our farm .  Over the years we have bought thousands of tons of alfalfa hay 
and thousands of bushels of corn grain from a very large radius around St. Anthony. I n  
the spring and fa l l  we inject the l iquid manure from our lagoon onto the neighbors 
cropland. In 20 1 4  between the cropland we farm at the dairy and what we appl ied onto 
our neighbors land we put down over $ 1 00,000.00 in soil  nutrients . 

The vendor l ist that we do business with in our local area numbers in  the 
hundreds. Repairs and improvements, fuel,  feed, dairy farm supplies, just to name a few. 

I only tel l  you that information so you can get an idea of the impact that a 
l ivestock faci l ity can have. 



Some are being very critical of this bil l  and are alarming others that it will  
completely change the structure of agriculture in North Dakota. When I compare the 
swine and dairy industry to the other sectors of North Dakota agriculture we really need 
to change. I stared farming with my Dad in 1 976, a lot has changed s ince then and my 
old neighborhood doesn't look the same. Most of the dairy farms are gone they are sti l l  
farms but are now thousands of acre crop farms and have hundreds of head of  beef 
catt le .  The current corporate structure is fitting those producers just fine and they are not 
requesting any changes. 

The wide spread support that this bill has would not be present if it were not 
restricting the scope and size of the operations able to participate. 

I certainly would not be in support of it with out the acreage and faci lity 
restrictions in p lace. 

I understand that many of the issues I addressed relating to investors and partners 
could already happen within the financial structure we have in North Dakota. 

Passage of this b i l l  would be another financial tool,  another option, for the 
development of our dairy and swine industry. 

Mr Chairman and Senators of the Ag Committee, since the year 2000 the North 
Dakota Dairy Coalition has been working to promote our states dairy industry from 
within and attracting others to come to North Dakota. It has had limited success and 
quite possibly we didn't have enough to offer. Even though this bi l l  offers tremendous 
opportunities, it does not come with any guarantee's to our Swine and Dairy Industry. 

The only thing that we know for sure is without this bi l ls  passage, what we have 
seen in the past wil l  continue to happen, our swine and dairy numbers wil l  decl ine.  
Without passage of SB 235 1 we wont see the type of developments that others have 
indicated a strong interest in bringing to our state. 

With the restrictions and requirements that this bill carries, why wouldn't we allow 
for the expansion of an agricultural base that can bring so many new and promising 
opportunities to our existing farms. 
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') Good morn i ng Cha i rm a n  M i l ler  a nd mem bers of the Senate Agricu ltu re 

Com m ittee .  For the record my n a m e  is  J eff E nger. I am a 2nd ge neration fa rmer 

a nd l ivestock p roducer from Ma rion, North Da kota . I am former cha irman of the 

North Da kota Ag Coa l it ion a nd a former c h a i r m a n  of the N o rth Da kota Corn 

Uti l ization Cou nci l .  My brother, son, nephew a nd I a re a ctive in a 1,000 head 

Ho lste in  cattle feedlot operation . I sta n d  i n  s u p port of Senate Bi l l  235 1 .  

) 

Cu rrently we get o u r  catt le from N ortheast I owa a n d  se l l  them fin ished to Tyson 

i n  Sioux City. The cu rre nt da i ry i nfrastructu re is not e nough for us to p u rchase 

catt le i n  N o rth D a kota . Ba rnes Cou nty where our fa rm and feed lot a re located is  

down to 4 fu n ct ion ing d a i ries.  O u r  cattle buyer fo l lows the ca lves a n d  hea lth 

p rogra m from b i rth to 550 l bs.  which is when we p u rchase them to be fin ished . 

The ca re a n d  hea lth p rogra m is then tra nsferred to ou r veterina ria n .  

You wi l l  l i ke ly get a rguments that b y  cha nging th is  l a w  out of state interests wi l l  

come i n  a n d  ru n s m a l l  o pe rations l i ke o u rs out of bus iness.  I ' m here today t o  te l l  

you that it i s  gett ing h a rder a nd h a rd e r  fo r o u r  ope ration to fu nction beca use so 

many have a l ready gotten out of the bus iness .  This leads to less l a rge a n i m a l  

veterina ria n's, l ess feed supp l iers, l ess sa le  ba rns, less students for l ivestock 

ca reers - ge nera l ly less i nfrastructure.  This cha nge in the law wi l l  not i m pede 

fa m i ly fa rms but it wi l l  com p l i ment the m .  My only con ce rn with ma king an 

exemption for ou r d a i ry and swi ne i n d u stries is that we may a l ready be too late . 

I wi l l  not be red u n d a nt i n  my testi mony.  You have hea rd from others that we a re 

d own to 16,000 d a i ry cattle in  North Da kota . We a re now a net importer of m i l k. 
This is a critica l cha nge in  the law that may save the N orth Da kota d a i ry ind ustry.  

A 1,600 head d a i ry for today's economy of sca le has an estimated cost of $7.7 to 

$9.5 mi l l ion  to b u i l d .  Current s ing le own e r  fa m i ly fa rms do not have the ca pita l, 

l a bor resou rces a nd m a n  power to com pete at th is  economy of sca le .  By gra nting 

these exe m ptions i n  the law you wi l l  su pport the cu rre nt economy of sca le a nd 

a l low more a ccess to ca pita l for faci l ities deve lopment a nd operating needs.  

Livestock p roduction is a method of a d d i ng va lue  to crops by processi n g  feed 

) through a n i m a ls .  More l ivestock  p rod uction i ncreases loca l ma rkets for corn, 
./ 

soybea n mea l, d isti l ler's gra i ns a nd othe r  feeds.  Corn production i n  N o rth Da kota 
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has  expa nded from 120.7 m i l l ion bushe ls  i n  2004 to 352 m i l l ion  bushe l s  i n  2014. 
Eve n though the corn industry has expe rie nced treme ndous growth in the past 

ten yea rs, the o pposite has occu rred i n  ou r states d a i ry a nd swine i n d u stries.  

Beca use of this  our feed is u n d erva lued i n  North Da kota due to ra i l road 

congestion  a n d  d ista nce to term i n a l  ma rkets . Livestock  ca n add rea l va l u e .  In  

looking at B lue F l i nt ( U nderwood) a nd Tha ra ldson (Casselto n )  etha no l  p l a nt 

cu rre nt bids for the months of Febru a ry through May basis leve ls  a re at - .50 to -
.70 per  bushel . I n  looking at neighbor ing states that have more d a i ry, swi n e  a n d  

l ivestock prod uction, particu la rly southwestern M i n nesota a nd southeastern 

South Da kota, typica l  ethano l  p l a n t  bids for the same de l ivery months a re - .23 to -

.30 per bushe l .  J u st across the bord e r  i n  Lyons & Sioux cou nties, Iowa - corn b ids 

a re - .05 to - .13 .  Sioux cou nty, I owa has  an esta b l ished l ivestock i n d u stry a nd is a 

net i m porter of corn .  Th i n k  a bout that for a m i n ute . Another  .45 to .57 cents per  

bushe l  at cu rrent p rod uction leve ls  wou ld y ie ld  a n  a d d itio n a l  $158.4 to $200 
m i l l i o n  to our  economy before m u lti p l ie r  effects .  Th is is d u e  to the gra i n  a n d  the 

l ivestock industry com petit ive ly b i d d i ng to loca l fa rms.  

Livestock e nterprises he lp  m itigate r isks of weather, ma rkets a n d  p rice va ria b i l ity 

of crops.  l ntergrated crop a nd l ivestock p roduction is more bio logica l ly 

susta i na ble as l ivestock m a nu re for fe rt i l izer i m p roves soi l hea lth a nd crop 

p rod uctivity. When we export our corn we a re a lso exporting phos p h o rous a nd 

oth e r  vita l soi l  n utrients in  u n it tra i n  loads of gra i n .  Livestock enterprises wou l d  

serve t o  reta i n  a n d  recycle these n utrie nts i n  state a nd create a more s u sta i n a b le  

agricu ltu ra l  economy for the long term . 

M e m be rs of the Com m ittee, I wou l d  u rge a yes vote on Senate B i l l  2351 and 

wou l d  be happy to ta ke a ny q uestions .  



Test imony SB 2351 

M ister cha i rm a n, members o f  the com m ittee, 

My n a m e  is H a rvey Hoff, cha i rman of the N D  D a i ry Coa l it ion, a n d  3rd generation d a i ryfa rmer from 

Richardto n .  My wife J a n a  I a n d  I have been d a i ry fa rming together for 34 years. We consider o u rseves a 

fa m i ly d a i ry m i l king 100 cows with a n  a d ditio n a l  100 head of yo u ngstock.  

I n  2001 we completed our new 18,000 square foot d a i ry fac i l ity to house a n d  milk 120 head of d a i ry 

cows. I n  February 2012 we retrofitted 2 Le ly A3 n ext robotic m i l ke rs into the barn .  This new tech no logy 

he l ped us better m a nage o u r  cows, fa rm, a n d  fa m i ly l ife, but it came at a h uge cost, one that a you nger 

d a i ry co u p l e  co uld not i ncur.  

I sup port S B  2351 beca use it wo u l d  give yo ung couples and exist ing fa rmers a nother option fo r 

fi na ncing.  Loca l b a n ks a re carefu l w h e n  lend ing mon ey to d a i ries because of c redit l im its a n d  capita l 

needed.  It would a l low exist i ng d a i ries a n d  n ew d a i ries to expa n d  a n d  g row to meet o u r  states needs 

fo r d a i ry prod ucts i n  our  groce ry sto res a n d  schoo ls .  

I be l ieve th is  b i l l  would he lp  us w h e n  we p l a n  our ret irement strategy i n  the future, a s  it wo u l d  m a ke it 

eas ier  to pass it o n  to a new generat ion o r  couple wanting to d a i ry.  Our fac i l ity a lone is  worth seve ra l 

h u n d re d  thousand d o l l a rs a nd would  be i m possible for them to bo rrow mo ney fro m a loca l b a n k .  This 

would be and opportun ity fo r us o r  a nother i n d iv id u a l  to i n corpo rate a nd give them that needed sta rt 

a nd keep a nother d a i ry farm from sitting e m pty. 

This b i l l  would a lso bring d a i r ies fro m other states a n d  possibly b ring a p rocessing p lant  with them, 

creating m o re jobs a n d  h e l p  bui ld  the d a i ry i nfrastructure i n  our state . 

P lease pass th is  S B  2351 to h e l p  br ing back d a i ries a n d  the m uch needed ba la nce o u r  Ag state needs.  
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Alan Qua! 
1 3407 7yct ST SE 
Lisbon, N .D .  58054 
February 1 2, 20 1 5  

Senate Agriculture Committee 
Legislative Assembly of North Dakota 

Dear Senate Agriculture Committee: 

I am a long-time resident of our state and I am writing to support Senate Bill  235 1 .  

I have watched our North Dakota Dairy Industry retract for the past 40 years and we need to 
make a move that will improve the future expansion and regrowth of our industry in our state . 

This bill has in place acreage limits that will keep it focused on Dairy and Swine Farms and not 
impact other ranching and farming enterprises. 

This bill will also allow family dairy farms incorporated under the Family Farm Corporation 
rules to maintain their operations without being forced to dissolve them if relationship rules can 
no longer be met. This is provided they do not exceed the acreage rules. 

The next generation of my family members may face this challenge on our family' s dairy farm. 

Please consider supporting this legislation and help North Dakota's  Dairy I ndustry get back on 
track towards a bright future. 

Thank you! 

Alan Qual 



') M ister  C h a i r m a n ,  m e m bers of the  co m m ittee; 

My n a m e  is Cra ig J a ro l i m e k, a Pork P rod u cer fro m Forest R ive r 

located i n  W a l s h  Cou nty 

I co me before th is co m m ittee today i n  s u p port of Sen ate B i l l  

235 1 

Passage of t h i s  b i l l , a l l ow i n g  a n  exce pt ion  to the own e rs h i p  o r  

lease of l a n d  for swi n e  a n d d a i ry operati ons  i s  vita l t o  t h e  fut u re 

s u sta i n a b i l ity a n d  growth of l ivestock operat ions  i n  th i s  State 

Defeat of t h i s  b i l l , p uts N D  i n  t h e  back  row; perh a ps n ot even a 

seat i n  t h e  a rena of l ivestock b a sed agricu ltu re .  

You wi l l  hea r two m essages from t h e  o p p o n ents of  t h is b i l l ; 

1)  Passage of t h i s  b i l l  h i n d e rs a n d  com petes with t h e  fa m i ly 

fa rms ra i s ing  swi n e  a n d  o perat i n g  d a i ries .  

2 )  That mega fa rms or  CA FOS wi l l  a ppea r i n  N D, d estroy i n g  

o u r  environ m e nt a n d  d estroy i n g  o u r  co m m u n it ies .  

I u rge you n ot to  be swayed by these fa l se a nd m is l e a d i n g  

m essages 

Both m essages a re based on fea r  a n d  e m ot ion,  n ot fa ct . 

Let m e  a d d ress the 1st a ccusat io n ;  

That th is w i l l  h i n d e r  t h e  fa m i ly fa rm op port u n it ies .  

1)  Pa ssage of  th is  b i l l  a ct u a l ly e n h a n ces the  opportu n ity of  a 

fa m i ly fa rm wish i n g  to e nter i nto a ca reer  i n  agri c u ltu re .  

P · J 



Th e cu rre nt l a w  h i n d e rs i n d iv id ua ls' a ccess to ca p ita l ,  

m a n agement s u p po rt, s u sta i n a b l e m a rkets, veter i n a ri a n  

s u pport, a n d  r isk  m a n agement .  

If e n a cted th is  b i l l  offe rs the  o p portu n ity fo r an i n d iv i d u a l s  

to partner  with e ntit ies t h at ca n bri n g  th ese expert ise to 

t h e m, great ly i n crea s i n g  t h e i r  opport u n ity to s u cceed i n  

t h e i r  vent u re .  

An i m a l  agricu ltu re i s  m a ny t i m es used a s  a n  entra n ce to 

fa m i ly  fa rmi ng .  

I wou l d  go so fa r as  to say the  cu rre nt statu re has  been the 

h i n d ra n ce to t h e  fa m i ly fa rm opportu n it ies .  It has  been a 

cata lyst to l a rge a creage fa rm i ng w h i ch l e a d s  to t h e  

d ec l i n e  of o u r  ru ra l  ch u rc h es a n d  schoo ls .  

A yo u n g  person  wis h i ng to engage i n  prod u ct ion  

agricu l ture i n  N D  e i ther  h a s  to  be born  i nto a fa m i ly  or  

m a rry i nto one or  h ave a r i ch  re l at ive that  is  wi l l i n g  to h e l p  

out .  

For  a you ng person  to sta rt o ut today ta kes a t re m e n d o u s  

a m o u nt of ca p ita l with m a ny r isks.  

Th is  exe m pt i o n  to the cu rrent  statu re a l l ows a n  i n d iv id u a l  

wish i ng to enter  p rod u ct i o n  agri c u ltu re t o  pa rt n e r  w ith  

t h ose t h at have t h e  experi e n ce a n d  ca pita l to s u cceed 

A c u stom fee d i ng swi n e  operat ion often is  a step p i n g  

sto ne t o  co m p l ete own e r  h e l d  operat ions, o n ce 

m a n agement exp e rt ise i s  l ea rned,  d e b it is  ret i red ,  a n d  

ca p ita l i s  bu i lt .  

Be ing an e m p l oyee of  a swi n e  operat ion or  d a i ry is  a 

lea rn i n g  experi e n ce of m a n agement a n d  bus i n ess  

p ra ct i ces need to s u cceed . Also i n d u stry re l at ion s h i ps ca n 



be b u i lt d u ri n g  t h at per iod that ca n s p u r  ass ista n ce i n  

sta rt ing  t h e i r  o w n  operat i o n .  

Th e 2 n d  a ccusati o n ;  

T h e  com m u n ity a n d  env i ro n m e nt .  

Tod ay we h ave at least 10 swi n e  o perati ons  a n d  seve ra l  

d i a ri es operat ing i n  th i s  state that  wou l d be co n s i d e rs 

CAFO' s o r  m ega o p e rations .  

Al l have gone t h ro ugh a perm itt i n g  and  com m u n ity 

a p p rova l p rocess i n  operate i n  t h i s  state.  

Th ey a re cont i n u a l l y  m o n itored a n d i nspected by o u r  State 

H ea lth  Dept 

To my knowl edge,  t h e re have n ot been a ny m aj o r  

v io lat ions  or  d a m age to the  envi ro n m e nt fro m t h ese 

o perati o n s .  

The p rocess to site a l ivestock o p e rat ion n eeds State a n d  

Cou nty a p p rova l .  

I h ave trust i n  t h i s  p rocess to b e  t h e  gate kee pers to 

protect o u r  e nv i ro n m e nt a n d  way of l ife in N D  

Be l ieve m e, a s  o n e  w h o  h as gone t h rough th i s  process i n  

s it ing  a n d  o p e rat i n g  a l a rge swi n e  o perat ion,  t h i s  p rocess is  

th orough a n d  i ntense .  

To rece ive a perm it o n e  m u st su b m it a co m p l ete p l a n  of 

constru ct ion  b l u e  p r i nts, m a n u re m a n agement co m p l ete 

with easeme nts to a cres fo r m a n u re a pp l i cat ion,  n ot every 

yea r, but eve ry t h i rd yea r, a n d  m o rta l ity m a n agement .  

( s h ow book l et fo r p e r m it of  Tu rt l e  Mt  Pork) 



• _ )  

-- -- -- --- - - -----------

This  p l a n  fo r Tu rt le  Mt Po rk, west of Bott i n ea u h a d  to be 

a p p roved by t h e  State and Bott i n ea u Cou nty Co m m iss i o n . 

A p u b l i c  hea r ing  was he ld  fo r the  p u b l ic to co m m e nt on 

the  a p p l icati o n . 

Al  t h o ug h  pa i nfu l a n d  stressfu l ,  t h i s  p rocess l eads  to good 

p l a n n i n g  a n d  safe operat ions .  

We m u st move fo rwa rd and n ot be l eft beh i n d 

Wit h o ut t h i s  exe m ption swi n e  a n d  d a i ry wi l l  co nti n u e  to 

strugg l e  in t h is state 

Th a n k  you fo r yo u r  t i m e  a n d  I a m  wi l l  a nswe r a ny 

q u estio n s  t h e  comm ittee m ay h ave . 



Chairman M i l l e r, a n d  members of the Senate Agricu lture Com m ittee, 
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M y  n a me i s  Ta m ra Heins, I l ive i n  New Salem, N D, I a m  here both persona l ly and 

professiona l ly to u rge you to support a "do pass" recom mendation of Senate B i l l  

235 1 .  

I a m  a ra ncher, hog fa rmer, wife, mother a nd ste p mother of 6 a n d  have been 

i nvolved in l ivestock p rod uction agriculture my entire l ife . 

Professio n a l ly, I have served as the Executive Di rector for the Nort h  Da kota Pork 

Counci l  for the last 15 months. I have learned m uch a bout modern swi ne 

prod uction a n d  how d ra m atica l ly it has cha nged in j ust a few yea rs. Being a "pig 

fa rmer" has beco m e  a h igh tech i n dustry with ope rations run by well tra i ned and 

wel l  educated people.  Whi le  attending a nat iona l  meeti ng, I was curious why our 

state has d ra m atica l ly decreased i n  num bers of produce rs w h i le others have not? 

Our  state has so much to offer the swine ind ustry. Our  geogra phy a n d  

demogra p h ics p romotes a n  i n herit level of biosecu rity that is  critica l ly im porta nt 

for modern swi ne operations. As crop genetics h ave a l l owed the corn and 

soybean belt to grow fa rther north and west, we have more a b u n d a nt feed 

resou rces to offer than ever before. And I be l ieve the farmers of North Dakota 

wou l d  enjoy the idea of na rrowing their basis a n d  being a ble to del iver corn 

loca l ly. We cou l d  beco me less dependent on ra i l  service a nd enjoy corn prices 

that a re s i m i l a r  to our  M i n n esota, South Dakota a n d  Iowa counterpa rts. 

In working with swine operations that a re looking at North Da kota for new 

opportun ities, I h ave fou n d  the biggest h u rd le  in growi ng the North Da kota swine 

ind ustry is o u r  cu rrent century code. Currently, swine operations would  have to 

change their  p resent busin ess structu re to operate with i n  o u r  state. They have 

been unwi l l i ng to do that si n ce their  present business structu re has a l lowed them 

to operate successfu l ly i n  other states; so they look elsewhere to operate. By 

supporti ng Senate B i l l  235 1 we would be saying to them that we a re open to 

entertai n  opport u nities for swi ne ind ustry development i n  North Da kota . 

As taxpaye rs, we have supported the N DSU Swi ne Barn a n d  the teaching a nd 

resea rch that h a p pen there when other states were closing their swine faci l ity 

doors. We support a State Swine Extension S peci a l ist, m a ny other states do not, 

a n d  we a re lucky to have one of the best i n  the nation.  At N DSU, we have some 
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of the la rgest e n rol lme nts i n  swi n e  prod uction classes i n  the n ation, yet upon 

graduation we tell them to go to a neigh boring state to find a job i n  the swi ne 

i ndustry. 

With more growth a nd development in the swine i n d ustry in North Da kota, we 

wou l d  see more veteri n a rians  with swi ne expertise, more a n i m a l  hea lth 

com pa n ies and more feed com p a n ies that wou ld help to support the existing 

swi ne producers, l i ke myself, in this state. 

Perso na l ly, as  a pa rent, if you h ave c h i l d ren in North Da kota that h ave a passion 

for l ivestock p roduction agri cu lture, there a re very few job opportu n ities in our 

state. This  bi l l  cou ld  he lp  to create opportun ities for fa m i l ies such as mine a nd 

others l i ke mine that wou ld  have outside capital  a n d  expertise ava i lab le  to them. 

We could work with a n  existing swi n e  operation to beco me a contract grower or 

m a ny other  options that wou ld  o n ly be ava i la b le through the passage of this b i l l .  

As a com m u n ity mem ber of N ew Salem, a town that is proud of its da i rying 

heritage, j udging by the 40 foot da i ry cow and h avi ng their tea m  mascot be the 

Holstei ns, the loss of their m i l k  p rocesso r  would  o n ly mean more d a i ry farmers 

that a re my friends a n d  neighbors, leavi ng the ind ustry, by no fa u lt of their  own . 

I be l ieve this would  be detri menta l to our  co m m u n ity. I h ave a l ready witnessed 

the sel l ing of herds i n  my a rea that have made local employees have to search for 

other employment outside of agriculture a n d  our com m u n ity. 

For generations we have not a ltered our  centu ry code to a l low for l ivestock 

developme nt, a n d  here we a re with record low n u m bers of da iry a n d  swi ne.  

Whi le  some say this bi l l  goes too fa r, some say it doesn't go fa r enough. I say that 

this is com p rom ise, the fou n dation of good government. These ind ustries are not 

asking for you to do someth i ng vis ion a ry, but to pass this b i l l  so we a re a l lowed to 

o nce aga i n  be com petitive i n  the swi n e  a n d  da i ry industry. 

Th a n k  you Chairman M i l ler  for the opportun ity to speak a nd I u rge you a nd the 

comm ittee members to vote for a do pass recommendation on Senate B i l l  2351.  

p. � 
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North Dakota Pork Council 

Seth Bacon, President 

3444 25th Ave NE 

Larimore, ND 58251 

Chairman M i l ler a n d  members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, 

My n a me is Seth Bacon. I am currently the p resident of the North Dakota Pork 

Cou nci l .  Our orga n izatio n  rep resents a wide va riety of hog p roducers. We have 

members who raise 4-H a n d  FFA show pigs, n iche p roducers, who d i rect sel l  their 

product, as wel l  as l a rger commercia l  fa rms. O n  behalf of these producers, our 

boa rd passed a resolution on February 3, 2015, to support Senate Bi l l  2351 to 

a l low corporations a nd LLC's to own and operate swi ne a nd da i ry fa rms. 

We fee l  that this wil l  be a major ste p  for promoti ng the da i ry a nd swi ne industry 

in our state a n d  wi l l  a l low us to be a b le to com pete with our  neighboring states 

for ma rket share .  Th is b i l l  wi l l  a lso bring jobs a n d  economic development to 

sma l l  town North Da kota . 

On behalf of the mem bers of the North Da kota Pork Cou nci l, we ask you to 

recom mend a do pass for Senate B i l l  2351.  

Tha n k  You, 

Seth Bacon, P resident 

North Da kota Pork Counci l  

#=-II 
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North Dakota Soybean Growers Association 
1 555 43rd Street South, Suite 1 03 ,  Fargo, ND 581 03 

(70 1 )  640-521 5  I www.ndsoygrowers.com 

1 3  Feb 1 5  

The soybean industry i s  has been thriving i n  North Dakota for a n umber of years. I n  
2007 North Dakota farmers produced 1 08 ,630 ,000 bushels on sl ightly over 3 mil l ion 
acres at an average price of $9.63. I shared with the legislature that we had produced 
North Dakota's first $ 1  B i l l ion Soybean Crop. 

In 201 4  North Dakota farmers produced 202,5 1 5 ,000 bushels on 5.87 mi l l ion acres at 
a n  average price of . . .  maybe $1 0 .  I wil l  share with you today that we produced 
second $2 Bi l l ion Soybean Crop. ( 1 st one was in 201 2) .  

I n  2014  we were the nation's 5th largest producer of soybeans and  it's 2nd leading 
exporter. 

We believe there has been a significant model revision across agricultural  i n  the last 
couple of decades d riven by market and production efficiencies, technology and 
demographics. The fami ly da i ry farms of my youth were rooted in  sparl i ng fami ly 
structures rich in  generational i nheritance opportunities. Large fam il ies farmed in close 
proxim ity to other close and extended fami ly members with individual  enterprise, and 
sharing necessary feedstock activity labor, equ ipment and perhaps storage. 

Many of these farms were very d iversified . Many had a variety of l ivestock and poultry, 
both for thei r own consumption and for market. And as more competitive markets 
evolved , requ i red efficiency improvements g radual ly led to narrowing of focus on the 
most profitable activities based on a number of considerations about existing cond itions 
and future needs and i ntentions. Some farms g rew, others stabil ized at a "good enough" 
level to be viable and some d isappeared with the next economic downturn or retirement. 

The storied Acme Bothers Farms of yesterday have become the Acme farm of today. 
The demographics of smal ler  fami l ies coupled with ever increasing cost of entry and 
production ,  an individual 's appetite for risk tolerance and business ski l ls to g row an 
agricultural enterprise have all combined to reduce the n umber of farms and ranches i n  
o u r  state and elsewhere. The business structures of these enterprises have evolved as 
wel l .  S ingle entities and simple partnersh ips find themselves in the company of Limited 
Liabi l ity companies and corporations, fami ly corporations ,  and more. 

M any of today's farm and ranch owners seek also to mitigate their financial risk by 
i nvest ing in other entities as wel l .  Many of the Soybean Growers I serve wou ld jump at 
the chance to invest in a soybean value-added p rocessing enterprise that could 
generate additional i ncome when commod ity prices are lower. Other value-added 
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processing opportun ities present themselves, as do other business opportun ities , time 
passes. Some succeed and some do not. 

Farming and Ranching are noble vocations, but they do not come with anymore cradle 
to grave economic promises than any other business or vocational endeavor. 

The soybean industry is basically a feedstock industry. The soybean produces both 
soybean meal and oil.  The oil is used for a variety of products ranging from fuel to 
cosmetics to car seat material to printer ink. Soybean meal is feedstock . . .  for 
poultry, swine, beef, dairy and aquaculture . Soybeans are also human food . 

I nclude in  my testimony is study data provided by the United Soybean Board, the 
soybean communities national check-off organization, on the value of Animal 
Agricultu re in North Dakota. 

SB2351 proposes a process to grow industries that consume soybean feed stocks. We 
would very much like to be in a growing position to provide our feedstock to animal 
agricultural enterprises right here in North Dakota . 

Those opportunities would provide some of N D ' s  Soybean Growers with reduced 
transportation costs (basis change),  increasing profit potential; a diversified 
investme nt option, spreading risk; and provide access to potential fertilizer cost 
reductions with local manure available.  

Each and Every Cow and Pig are Value-Added Processing to us . . .  



NATIONAL 

Total value of animal agriculture on each state1s economy 

$345,641,880,873 

The estimated household income generated from poultry 
and livestock 

$60, 124,968,243 

Total employed in animal agriculture at the farm, 
processing and manufacturing levels 

1,850,813 

Funds received by local , state and federal governments 
from taxes imposed on income from poultry and livestock 
operations 

$12,223,406,044 

Funds received by local , state and federal governments 
from taxes imposed on property related to poultry and 
livestock operations 

$6,223,047 ,000 

• 
NORTH DAKOTA 

Output 
Total value of animal agriculture on each state's economy 

$2,563,850,052 

arnings 
The estimated household income generated from poultry 
and livestock 

$408,669,799 

Employment 
Total employed in animal agriculture at the farm , 
processing and manufacturing levels 

10,535 

Income Tax 
Funds received by local, state and federal governments 
from taxes imposed on income from poultry and livestock 
operations 

$94,607,058 

Property Ta (using lates assessment 
Funds received by local , state and federal governments 
from taxes imposed on property related to poultry and 
livestock operations 

$110,963,000 

Animal Agriculture Economk Analysis: National , 2002 - 2012,United Soybean Board 
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• EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

ANIMAL AGRICULTURE ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 
The impact of animal agriculture in North Dakota 

Soybean meal (SBM) plays an important role in animal agriculture in North Dakota, which in 
turn has a significant impact on the state's economy. In North Dakota: 

Animal agriculture in 2012 used an estimated 47,000 tons of SBM: 48% in beef production , 
37% for pork, and 7% in milk production ; 

At the state level , animal agriculture represented $2.6 billion in revenues, $409 million in 
household income, and 10,500 jobs. In addition, it yielded an estimated $95 million in 
income taxes and the last census (2007) reported $111 million in property taxes; and 

Over the past decade, the contraction of animal agriculture in North Dakota has led to 
decreases of S 166 million in economic output, $28 million in household wages, 720 jobs, 
and $6.4 million in tax revenue. 

This report provides a concise look at the positive impact animal agriculture has on North 
Dakota's economy. 

1. INTRODUCTION 

Domestic livestock industries are by far the major source of demand for US soybean meal, and 
future soybean demand is tightly linked to the health of those industries. In order to act at the 
state and local levels, one needs data and analysis on the economic importance of animal 
agriculture at those levels. This report addresses this constraint. 

On behalf of the United Soybean Board , Agralytica has compiled data on the breakdown of 
animal agriculture by species in each state, estimated soybean meal consumption by species, 

and analyzed the economic impact of animal agriculture by calculating its effect on output, 
wages, employment and tax revenue. We have also highlighted long-term trends and recent 
developments, where relevant. 

For explanations on data sources and our analysis, please review our national report , "Animal 
Agriculture Economic Analysis: 2002-2012." 

2. ANIMAL AGRICULTURE SBM USE: NORTH DAKOTA 

In this section, we provide information on soybean meal use in animal agriculture in the state. 
The state database contains information such as: livestock production and value data, taxation 
data, and computation of meal use by livestock and poultry. 

Animal agriculture in North Dakota used an estimated 47 ,000 tons of soybean meal in 2012. 

I' Dur SovCheckaU· 1 
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ANIMAL AGRICULTURE ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 
The impact of animal agriculture in North Dakota 

SBM use by animal agriculture category: North Dakota 

ND SBM Usage Share 

2012 1,000 s. tons Percent 

Beef 23 48.3% 

Pork 18 37.1% 

Broilers 

Turkeys 

Eggs 1.3% 

Milk 3 6.8% 

Other 3 6.5% 

TOTAL 47 100.0% 

Source: NASS, Agralytica 

SBM usage in North Dakota is dominated by beef production, which accounted for 48%; pork 

(37%) and milk (7%) accounted for most of the rest. A gray row indicates a product for which 

data was withheld or not collected. 

3. THE IMPACT OF ANIMAL AGRICULTURE IN NORTH DAKOTA 

3.1 . Output, earnings and employment multipliers 

To estimate the impact of livestock production on North Dakota's economy, we applied RIMS II 

multipliers from the Department of Commerce for cattle ranching and farming, dairy cattle and 

milk production, poultry and egg production, and other animal production (mostly hogs and 

pigs), when applicable. The table below shows the multipliers for North Dakota. They 

represent the impact associated with $1 million of industry sales. 

Economic impact multipliers: North Dakota 

ND Output($) Earnings($) Employment (jobs) 

Cattle & calves 2.7048 0.4290 11.0528 

Hogs, Pigs, & Other 1.8966 0.3107 7.9587 

Poultry & Eggs 2.4467 0.3877 9.5476 

Dairy 2.1195 0.3594 9.4065 

Source: RIMS II, BEA, Department of Commerce 

The economic impact of animal agriculture in North Dakota is substantial. $1 million in 

production in the above segments yields $1.9-2.7 million in total economic activity, $310,000· 
$430,000 in household wages, and 8-11 additional jobs. 

• 
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ANIMAL AGRICULTURE ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 
The impact of animal agriculture in North Dakota 

3.2. Impact estimates for output, earnings, employment, and taxes 

When applied to production values for each livestock category, the multipliers above yield an 
estimate of the overall economic impact, household earnings, and jobs supported in North 
Dakota by the livestock industries. 

Economic impact of animal agriculture - North Dakota 

Total Economic Impact 

Output ($ 1,000) $ 

Earnings ($1,000) $ 

Employment (jobs) 

Income taxes ($ 1,000) $ 

Property Taxes in 2007 ($1,000) $ 

2012 

2,563,850 

408,670 

10,535 

94,607 

110,963 

Change 2002 -

2012 

(166,461) 

(27,675) 

(718) 

(6,407) 

% change 2002 

- 2012 

-6.10% 

-6.34% 

-6.38% 

-6.34% 

Source: RIMS II, BEA, Department of Commerce; NASS; USDA Census; Agralytica 

At the state level, animal agriculture in North Dakota represents $2.6 billion in revenues, $409 

million in household income, and 10,500 jobs. In addition to the effect on income and jobs, 
animal agriculture is a significant source of tax revenues. In North Dakota in 2012, it yielded 
an estimated $95 million in income taxes. The last Census of Agriculture (2007) also reported 
receipts of $111 million in property taxes. 

3. 3. Long term impact of animal agriculture 

The contraction of animal agriculture in North Dakota over the past ten years has led to 
decreases of $166 million in economic output, $28 million in household wages, 720 jobs, and 
$6.4 million in tax revenue. 

Note: In order to remove the influence of price changes, we used production unit values (at 
2012 prices) as the basis for comparison over time. In addition, our multipliers are for 

categories that aggregate poultry and egg production, and hogs and pigs and "other." Thus, 

for example, a decline in egg production can be masked by an increase in broiler or turkey 
products. 
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ANIMAL AGRICULTURE ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 
The impact of animal agriculture in North Dakota 

4. RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND LONG TERM TRENDS 

4. 1. Recent developments 

Animal agriculture in North Dakota means cattle, which in recent years have accounted for 80· 
90 percent of the value of animal products produced in the state. The North Dakota 

Stockmen's Association has been very concerned about the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency collecting and publishing the names and locations of animal feeding operation, since 

that information can be misused by activists who oppose animal agriculture. The Association 

contends that the Section 308 reporting rule exceeds EPA's authority under the Clean Water 

Act and puts the national food supply at risk by publicizing private business information. In 
early 2013, environmental groups were able to obtain the information through a Freedom of 

Information Act request. 

4.2. Long term trends 

National Cattle & Calves (million lbs) 
45 ,000 
40,000 _____ ___, ___ ~-----~----t--i-----

35,000 ~l-----l-i----l-i----1--1----1---1-----
30,000 -----~-----~-----t--i----t--i-----

25,000 -------~-----t-l----t--i----t--i-----

20,000 -r--.1-----l-i----l--1----l---l----l---l-----
15,000 t-llH---.H---.H-----H-----1-1-----
10,000 -r--.l-i----1---1----1---1----1---1----1---1-----
5,000 +-111-•-111----111----.H---.H-----

North Dakota Cattle & Calves (million lbs) 
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Cattle 

Nationally, cattle product ion has 

decreased by 2.8% in the last decade. 

Production has varied by up to 2% 
from year to year. 

In North Dakota, cattle production 
expanded through 2006, but has since 
varied sharply. 

In 2012 cattle production was 679 

million pounds. 

• 
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Hogs and pigs 

Nationally, hog and pig production 
has increased by 22. 7% in the last ten 
years. 

Production set a record in 2012, at 
32.2 billion pounds. 

North Dakota Hogs & Pigs (million lbs) 

80 . ----------------------·-- In North Dakota, production dropped 
27.8% over the past decade, to 57 
million pounds. 
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Eggs 

National egg production has increased 

by 7% over the past decade. 

Production reached an all-time high in 
2012 at 92. 9 billion eggs. 

Egg production data is withheld for 
North Dakota . Agralytica has 
estimated these numbers using the 
2002 and 2007 Census of Agriculture 
data. Using these estimates, 
production is estimated at 30 million 
eggs. 

Agralytica 



ANIMAL AGRICULTURE ECONOMIC ANALYSIS 
The impact of animal agriculture in North Dakota 

National Milk (million lbs) 
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Milk 

Milk production has grown by 17.8% 

over the past decade. 

National milk production reached a 
record 200 billion pounds in 2012. 

In stark contrast, milk production in 
North Dakota has decreased 
substantially, from 593 million pounds 
in 2002 to 347 million pounds in 2012 . 

• 
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From: Bruce Gibbens [mailto:bruce@gibbenslaw.com] 
Sent: Sunday, February 01, 2015 12:15 PM 

Dennis Johnson 
ject: Senate Bill 2351 

#/] 

Judy said you would like me to look at the above noted bill relating to an exception, for corporate farming for dairy and 
swine operations. I think the bill is fine and it is needed, because anyone thinking of owning and operating either one of 
these type operations needs some type of liability protection for their personal, unrelated assets. 

These are also fairly intensive, high capital operations, that make it difficult for an individual or fam ily to be able to 
provide all the necessary funding and expertise to operate such a business. If you have the corporate option available, I 
would think it will allow a group of people, with diverse areas of expertise, to come together to pool their expertise and 
resources, thus improving the odds of having a successful business result from their undertaking. I just think it is very 
difficult in today's environment, for an individual or a family, to have all of the necessary tools and expertise to make 
these kind of businesses successful. That doesn't mean it is impossible, but I think it clearly is much more difficult going 
it alone and having to secure all of the funding necessary, plus hire all of the additional expertise that is needed, rather 
than being able to form an entity and bring those type of assets and people into the business in a sha red ownership 
arrangement. 

That is just my thoughts. 

Good luck. 

ruce Gibbens 
ibbens Law Office 

P.O. Box 708 
Cando, ND 58324-0708 
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· Firii1°eKrs Union 
SB 2351 
Senate Agriculture Committee 
February 13, 2015 

Chairman Miller and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, 

My name is Mark Watne. I am the president of the North Dakota Farmers Union. Our 

organization stands in strong opposition to SB 2351. We believe this bill is unwarranted, and we 

see this as a fundamental change to North Dakota's system of family agriculture, which is the 

foundation of our state's economy, society and future. We believe agriculture is best left in the 

hands of individual entrepreneurs, who own the land and animals. NDFU has advocated for 

policies that ensure that ownership, operation and management of a farm or ranch is held within 

the family who makes a livelihood from that land and lives in or near the community that land is 

adjacent. 

This bill is being promoted as the only solution to stop the decline in dairies. We disagree. SD has 

been the example to justify this change. Our research, which was provided to you on Wednesday, 

shows that the number of dairy farms in South Dakota has declined at a similar rate as North 

Dakota, dropping from 1404 in 1997 to 260 in 2014. South Dakota changed their corporate 

farming law in 2008 and it did not stop this decline. According to the 2012 Ag census, t here are 

51 corporations in SD; 49 of them are family corporations and these are allowable in ND. South 

Dakota has done some additional work to stimulate growth in their state, including a county 

siting program. We need to have a conversation about the causes of the declines and be creative 

in finding solutions. 

The sponsors of SB 2351 say this bill is necessary to give producers needed access to investment 

capital and credit in order to expand, or diversify. Access to credit is not what's standing in the 

way of agricultural profitability. There are plenty of lending institutions across this state that can 

finance agricultural operations. What's standing in the way of agricultural profitability in dairy 

farming is low commodity process and high production costs. Current law already provides 
channels for investment in agriculture-the very thing this bill claims to do. Through legal tools 

such as partnerships, loans, and family corporations, individuals can already invest in agriculture 

in North Dakota and they don't need to form a corporation to do so. 

What this bill is really about is the ownership of assets and land. Who in North Dakota do we 

want to own our land and animals? Corporations or family farmers and ranchers? 

SB 2351 guarantees farmers and ranchers will have to compete against corporations to buy, rent 

or even access land. Opening up our corporation farming law does not guarantee great er profits 

for farmers and ranchers. It does not guarantee more good jobs. It does not guarantee greater 

patronage or economic returns for rural main street businesses. Why? Because non-family 

corporations are focused on stockholder profits. If a greater return on investment can be realized 
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for stockholders through volume d iscounts on commod ities for feed and inputs outside the state, 

corporations wi l l  do so. 

M r. Cha i rman and committee members, there is no compel l ing argu ment to pass SB 2351.  

North Dakota's corporate fa rming law can not si ngle-handedly guarantee the existence of hea lthy, 

independent fami ly fa rmers and ranchers.  What it cu rrently does guarantee is a leve l p laying 

fie ld that requ i res a l l  Ag part ic ipants to be l i ab le  for the ir  actions and responsib le to com mu nities. 

And I bel ieve that the vast majority of fa rmers and ranchers in th is state do not support 

legislation to weaken this law. 

Sound  pub l i c  pol icy in North Dakota bu i lds  fami ly fa rm agricu lture .  We bel ieve it would be much 

more productive to lead a conversation that i ncludes a l l  stakeholders, to explore a l l  possib le 

solutions to th is issue. This is an approach that we be l ieve wou ld  un ite the agricu ltural 

com m u n ity, instead of d ividing it .  

We ask for the committee to give a do not pass to SB 235 1 .  I wil l  stand for any questions .  
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Dairies in South Dakota 
"'2000 to 2014"' 

From 2000 to 2014, South Dakota lost 76% of their 
dairy operations while North Dakota lost 74%. 

uth Dakota Secretary of Agriculture, South Dakota Dairy Facts - 2015 
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Testimony of J ustin Sherlock 

Before the North Dakota State Senate Sta nding Committee on Agriculture 

February 13, 2015 

Chairman M i l le r  and membe rs of the Committee. My name is  Justin Sherlock a nd I 'm here to 

oppose SB 2351. I am a young beginn ing farmer from Dazey, North Dakota, a smal l  town located 

northwest of Va l ley City in Barnes County. The ground I farm is  a lso spread out in  southwestern Griggs 

county and northeastern Stutsman county. Fi rst a nd foremost, I am a proud North Dakotan, having 

grown up here my entire l ife and having attended North Da kota State U niversity ( N DSU) in  Fargo where 

I majored i n  Agribusiness. Al l  my l ife I have spoken confidently a nd proudly of our state to a nyone and 

everyone whenever I had the opportunity. I te l l  you these things a bout myself not to brag or boast or  to 

bore you to sleep this morning, but to show you that agricu lture and where I come from have a lways 

and wi l l  continue to be two of the most im portant things in my l ife, a nd that I have a nd wi l l  cont inue to 

do what I can to he lp support agricultural and the fami ly farmers that m a ke our state such a great place 

to grow up, operate a farm and ra ise a fami ly. 

With that in mi nd, I am here today to speak a bout this bi l l .  I am here as a beginn ing farmer who 

is just getting on his feet. My operation is  a young operation. My father was one of the success stories in 

agricu lture where a new producer made his sta rt and beca me successfu l .  He worked for a larger fa rmer 

in  my home a rea for over a decade a nd put his a l l  i nto doing the best job possible.  I n  turn, just over a 

decade ago, that farmer a l lowed my father the opportunity to rent some land from him and fa rm a few 

acres of his own. From there, he was a ble to find some additional acres to rent, and combined with the 

several good years agriculture experienced in the past decade he was a b l e  to purchase some farmland 

and get a decent l i ne of machinery. Today I rent some of the land he fa rmed from my mother and a few 

other landlords, and I operate us ing the machi nery he had purchased . I cannot descri be how truly 

blessed I fee l  to now have that chance to farm. G rowing up, I d id not think I would have the opportunity 

to farm as there wasn't room for me in our operation with my father just getting started h imself. 

However, my start in fa rming did come a bout how I would have l i ked or had chosen for it to occur but 

instead came a bout with the unexpected loss of my father a few years ago. I 'm working ha rd to continue 

our  operation a nd carry on what he started. I even have the hope that someday I wi l l  be a ble to pass our 

fa mi ly's farm on to yet a nother generation so they can farm a nd be good stewards of the land i n  their  

t ime as wel l .  

I n  order t o  continue fa rming however, I need t o  m a i nta in  my present farm size or possibly even 

grow in the com ing years. The cost of machinery a nd labor, combined with the shrinking margins over 

the past few yea rs because of increased i nput cost, lower commodity prices and significant farm la nd 

rental rate increases has made it d ifficult to support a fami ly a nd earn a l iv ing from our  operation as we 

head i nto 2015 and beyond.  Should this  bi l l  be passed, I truly feel it would on ly add to the cha l lenges 

prod ucers a re facing and h u rt our state's fam ily farming operations. 

As a young and begin n i ng producer, I do not have the ca pita l reserves and equity to take on 

other more establ ished farmers or  private i nvestors who a re looking to purchase or  rent add itional  

fa rmland.  I do hope to purchase some land myself someday, a n d  I have bui lt that into my business goa ls  

for the future, however, if this bi l l  i s  passed it wi l l  invite outside ca pita l to come i n  and com pete d i rectly 
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with me for fa rmland.  I truly be l ieve that a l lowing corporations a nd o ut of state i nvestors o r  companies 

to purchase fa rmland wi l l  be a significant detriment to myse lf and other young producers throughout 

the state. Our  abi l ity to purchase fa rmland and continue our  own operations wi l l  be i mpacted, as we 

would now have to compete with e ntities a nd individuals who l i kely view land strictly as a n  i nvestment 

or asset, and only view it for its moneta ry va l ue or ab i l ity to generate a certa i n  rate of return per year. 

To me, land is what I work hard, sweat and bleed for. Whi le we often assign a dol lar  value to land, for 

most agricultura l  producers and even for those individuals who may not fa rm a nymore or for those who 

grew up o n  the farm, land is much more than j ust a n  asset. Land is a part of a family's legacy, someth ing 

we can be proud of and that we wish to protect and preserve for future generations to come. 

Whi le  I bel ieve the authors of this b i l l  mean for it to be wel l  i ntentioned; helping support the 

shr inking da i ry industry with in  the state for exa mple, I do not feel that this is the best course of action to 

ach ieve a positive outcome for those sectors of the agricultura l  economy. If protecting and fostering 

growth i n  certa in  key sectors of the agricultural economy is one of the primary objectives, then perhaps 

a better a lternative would be to use resources a l ready with i n  North Dakota, such as the Bank of North 

Da kota ( B N D ) .  The Bank of N orth Dakota has been successfu lly used in the past and present to i nvest i n  

key priority areas for our  states future. A few examples include support ing higher education through 

affordable co l lege loans to North Dakota students, funding feed lot expansions, i rrigation, and land 

improvement projects such as loans for the i nsta l lation of d ra inage t i le, etc. 

When we a l ready have such an amazing i nvestment mechanism a nd pa rtner in place, I ca l l  i nto 

question the need for this b i l l  that would a l low corporate and o ut of state i nvestment when we can 

l i kely meet the needs with our  own i n-state resources. If a n  e ntity operating a farm or proposi ng to sta rt 

a farming operation can make a good e nough business p lan and proposal to convince a company or out 

of state i nvestor to spend money here i n  North Dakota, there is a bsolutely no reason that that same 

business proposal could not be presented to B N D  for loans  to  start or grow an operation. What  would 

make an  i nvestor or business from outside of North Dakota be wi l l ing to stake their  capital here that 

B N D  would not? I f  the argument is that there a re sticking points to BND funding such projects, then 

perhaps the Agricultural Department should put some additional  focus and effort i nto working with B N D  

a n d  t h e  Governor's office t o  develop a plan t o  address those issues a n d  a l low i nvestment i n  t h e  key 

priority a reas this b i l l  perta ins to. S imply opening the floodgates to corporate i nvestment is not the 

solution .  Our  N o rth Dakota owned and operated fam i ly farming operations have proven themse lves to 

be successful t ime a nd time aga i n  a nd wi l l  cont inue to do so. 

Thank you for the opportunity to spea k today. Aga i n, I urge you to not pass SB 2351.  I can try to 

a nswer a ny q uestions you may have. 



SB 235 1  Testimony. 

Good morning, Chairman  Mi l ler  and  members of tha Senate Agriculture 

Comm ittee. For the record my name is Larry Kinev, board chairman of the l ndependant 

Beef Association of North Dakota. I stand opposed to Senate Bi l l  2351.  I BAND has  a 

stand ing pol icy opposing corporate farming legislation .  

We see the a larming decl ine i n  swine  and da iry operations i n  North Dakota. That 

dec l ine is in large part attributed to concentration i n  the swine  industry, and loss of 

p rocessing faci l ities in  the da i ry industry. It is doubtfu l that a mending our  corporate 

farming law wi l l  br ing back swine  processing or guara ntee that an aging da iry 

proccessing faci l ity faced with costly regulatory u pgrades wi l l  rema in  in  operation . 

Our fami ly farms and l imited l iab i l ity partnersh ips have served our state very 

wel l .  Whi le  we recognize the tremendous amount of capital requ i red to start a nd 

operate these ventures, we point out the fact that these costs a re not u nique  to th ese 

segments of the North Dakota agricultura l  i ndustry. A l l  sectors of North Dakota 

Agricu ltu re requ i re large amounts of fund ing to establ ish and operate. We wou ld  hope 

that our  state owned bank wou ld perhaps focus its attention on fami ly enterprises who 

would i nject dol lars i nto our local economy rather than i nvite participation of outside 

corporations who would take their profits to boardrooms beyond our  borders. 

1 

-1:J:.. IC 
�/!3/1s 



TESTIMONY TO ND SENATE AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE 

February 13, 2015 

Members of the Senate Agriculture Committee 

Sen. Bill 2351 is one of the most ill-conceived proposals in recent history. The sponsors have 

made the claim that to amend our anti-corporate farming laws will result in resurgence in the 

dairy and hog industries. This claim is made upon the flawed premise that it will attract 

investment capital and thereby revitalizing those industries. No evidence exists to support this 

assertion. 

What is most troubling of the apparent disregard for the very reasons that the anti-corporate 

law exists in the first place. It is intended to prevent that European system of the landed gentry 

and a serf class, which by the way is one of the reasons for the founding of our great Nation in 

the first place. The passage of time can never negate those facts and to claim that this proposal 

is in tune with our modern America and to bring North Dakota agriculture into the "21st 

Century" is at best absurd. 

It is indeed strange that those who have sponsored this Bill seem unaware that both the dairy 

and hog industries floundered many years ago. The demise of these highly efficient operations 

has but one singular cause--A PRICE FAR TOO LOW TO BE PROFITABLE. 

Both of these industries as well as the rest of production agriculture will prosper with a price 

structure that allows well run businesses to be profitable. No amount of investment capital can 

provide profits. Onlv a price can do that. One could ask just why unprofitable businesses would 

ever attract investment capital. 

• Here is some current data available (Source:USDA/NASS). 

• The cash price for milk in January of 2015 was $20.09 per cwt. 

• The parity price for milk in this period was $54.30 per cwt. 

• Creating a deficiency of $30 per cwt. for every drop of milk produced 

• The cash price for milk in Jan. of 1980 was $12.35 per cwt. 

• The parity price for that period was$17.40 per cwt. 

ff"/7 
gB l 3 SI 

'J./n/ts-
f ·I 



� 
( 

( 

• I n  the past 35 years, the price decline per year as a percentage of parity amounts to 
$1.00 per cwt. per annum. 

First, this lack of adequate cash flow was the direct cause of the decline in dairy fa rms in North 
Dakota. The decline in the income derived from that production could never get to Main St. No 
amount of  investment capital could ever replace a price that was adequate to sustain both the 
farms producing the milk or the communities that relied on that income. As you can plainly 
see, these facts have a domino effect---business, schools, the tax base in decline and the list 
goes on. 

If you look at the results of a further industrialization of agriculture in other states, the 
consequences a re self-evident. Dairies, hog facilities and feedlots staffed mostly with cheap 
foreign labor, the further demise of the rural com munities that are surrounded by these 
operations, potential environmental problems, and a further erosion of independent businesses 
both on the fa rm and off, with a natural tie to the community. 

Decades ago, our legislators had the wisdom and foresight to envision the harmful effects of 
a bsentee ownership of our second greatest resource-----THE LAND-----just behind our 
greatest resource--- OUR PEOPLE. 

Today, we a re faced with a simila r situation in the oil patch. An artificial price decline will have 
a devastating impact on our state and not only in state revenues but more importantly the 
impact on the genera l economy as well as the immediate i l l  effects in the Bakken. If oil falls to 
the parity equivalent of wheat, it will drop to $22 per ba rrel. A corporatized agriculture wil l  
have a negative impact on our  state. 

My opposition in not born of nostalgia. It is born of the observation that corporate agriculture 
is detrimental to communities and society in general.  You in this body a re charges with the 
responsibility of ca reful ly managing our State for the benefit of al l  of our citizens. If one only 
considers the economic aspects, it is obvious that a modification to the present anti-corporate 
fa rming law will have no benefits whatsoever---business type or structure does not determine 
either the profitability or viability of any business. 

Thank you 

Tom Asbridge 

Bismarck, ND 701-222-3621 



TESTIMONY in O P POSITION to SB 2 3 5 1  

My name i s  Charles Linderman. I have farmed near Carrington N D  for 40 years. I 
have a master's degree in agricultural engineering from N DSU. I am a registered 
professional engineer, retired. I have worked for the USDA Agricultural Research 
Service, the N DSU Extension Service, and as a private consultant. My area of 
specialty is l ivestock waste management. I have long been supportive of dairy 
farms. 

I looked at the maps furnished by the Agriculture Commissioner showing N D  dairy 
locations in 2003 and 2 0 14. All nine existing dairies in my area (Foster, Eddy, and 
Wells Counties) had disappeared during that time. I am sure the explanation is that 
the owners of these small d ai ries retired and had no one to take their place. We do 
not have a l ivestock culture amongst many of the younger generation of farmers. 

I have attended a couple livestock development workshops sponsored by the N D  
Agriculture Department a n d  N DSU Extension. Dairy always came t o  the top of the 

various livestock species when it comes to benefits to the community and the rest of 
agriculture. I thought that bringing some dairies to my community would provide 
markets for feed crops and good paying j obs. Therefore, I took part with a small 
group of local farmers and economic development people looking into the 

possibilities of bringing dairies to our community. We were given the impression 
that our d istance fro m  milk processors was our biggest challenge. Since then, a 
dairy farm family from Canada did relocate to j ust east of Carrington and they 
appear to be operating successfully. 

SB 2 3 5 1  does not address any of the basic reasons why the dairy industry in ND is 
declining. I f  dairy prospects for profit are good, someone will find a way to do it. 
Otherwise, it will not happen. There are many ways in existing law to structure a 
livestock operation in N D. Certain family owned corporations are legal if one of the 
members is active in and l iving on or near the operation. A cooperative could be 
formed. O f  course, a private family or partnership can be used. Again, if profit is 
available, a way to structure it will be found. 

Please do not open our ND farmlands to outside corporate ownership. I know from 
personal experience that the biggest challenge to a beginning farmer is competition 
for available land. We should not pit outside corporations against our local farmers 
and particularly beginning farmers. SB 2 3 5 1  will hurt local farmers without 
providing any real fix for the decline in our dairy numbers. 







15.0895.01001 
Title . 

Prepared by the Leg islative Council staff for 
Senator Miller 

February 17, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2351 

Page 1, line 13, remove "or" 

Page 1, line 16, after "acres" insert: "; or 

.1. Domestic corporations and limited liability companies owning and 
operating a livestock feedlot, provided the land owned or leased for that 
purpose does not exceed six hundred and forty acres" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01001 
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Good morning Chairman Johnson and House Agricu lture Committee members. 
My name is Terry Wanzek, State Senator from district 29. 

In my many years in the legislature, there is an issue, now and then, that is very 
difficult to address and/or d iscuss. Many times these issues bring out strong 
conviction, passion, and emotion. While they are difficult to deal with and it 
would be easier to ignore and just leave them alone, that would be 
i rresponsible as a state legislator. We are charged with addressing problems 
facing our state and seeking solutions. We are expected to deal with the tough 
issues, not just the easy ones ! 

This is one of those bi l ls .  Wil l  it be the answer? I bel ieve it could be. Only time 
wi l l  tel l .  But we cannot afford to ignore and do nothing about this issue. If it 
should not work, as I see it, we would be no worse off for trying. We have tried 
many other approaches to deal with this problem over the years, and they 
obviously are not working. This bi l ls proposal has been implemented in other 
surrounding states and seems to be working. This bi l l  would be very similar to 
the current law in SD. It patterns the SD law. (Agweek article) 

This bill is an attem pt to he l p the dying Da iry industry and our decl ining Swine 
Industry in this state by opening the door, just a little bit, to al low capital 
investment into these two specific agriculture enterprises. This is accomplished 
in SB 2351 by exempting Dairy and Swine operations from our anti-corporate 
farming law. However, the bi l l  would restrict dairy and swine operations to a 
total of 640 acres of farmland, owned or leased . SD law is unl imited in acres 
owned or leased . 

There are 9 states with anti-corporate farming laws. In  other words 41 states 
have no anti-corporate farming laws. Yet USDA says 93% of a l l  farms in the US 
today are family owned and operated. Three states, Nebraska, South Dakota 
and Iowa's laws were ruled unconstitutional  recently under the dormant 
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commerce clause. Kansas total ly repealed its anti-corporate farming law in 
2012. All of these other states al low l ivestock exemptions, of one kind or 
another, except for our law (ND). 

These farming industries, dairy and swine, have been on a steady decline over 
the past years in our state, especia l ly the dairy industry. ND Dairy production 
fe l l  by 41.5% from 2002 to 2013, from 585 mi l l ion lbs.(2002) to 320 mi l l ion 
lbs. (2014). ND Dairy cow numbers went down 60% from 40,000 (2002) to 16000 
(2014). Dairy production in 1990 was 1.1 bil l ion lbs. and 85000 mi lk  cows. If 
you look back to the 30's to 40's we had over 500,000 dairy cows in ND and over 
2 bi l l ion l bs. of mi lk.  At one time ND led the nation in the production of cream!  
Today we are down to 90  dairy farms with a number of those l ikely to quit 
within the year. In  2002 we had over 350 dairy farms. We already have ND 
dairy processors importing mi lk. These processing plants wil l  be in jeopardy of 
closing if there is no mi lk production in ND. I hope we are not too late ! 

I n  comparison, SD has increased, over the past 13 years, from 86,000 dairy cows 
in 2002 to 97,000 cows in 2014. 7000 head were just added in last 6 years since 
SD passed their corporate farming exemption for dairy. Another 24000 head are 
permitted to enter into SD in 2015. SD Dairy production went from 1.29 bil l ion 
l bs. of mi lk  in 2002 to 2.02 bi l l ion lbs. of milk in  2013, an increase of 730 mi l l ion . 
SD's annual production increase a lone is more than double what ND produces 
currently in tota l annual mi lk production. All this information is from NASS 
(National Ag Statistical Service of the USDA). 

I bel ieve our farm producers need access to the same business tools that other 
state's farmers have to be competitive. I bel ieve this measure can make a 
difference. Not many family farmers want to take on the risk and labor 
commitment alone, nor do they have the personal capita l it requires, to develop 
such an enterprise l ike a current dairy farm. I believe capital generation is a 
barrier to development. They need more opportunity to access equity capital, 
not just debt capita l .  Today a 1600 head dairy farm demands anywhere from $7 
to $10 mi l l ion in investment to construct. A hog facil ity is between $14-16 
mi l l ion with annua l  operating expenses of $5-$6 mi l l ion. 

Some say this wil l  bring "out of state" investment into our state. Is that a bad 
thing? That could happen, but I a lso see this as an opportunity for our state's 
farmers and other community citizens to build from within, to expand on an 
existing dairy for instance. Case in point, this could be my cousin, who happens 



to be one of the remaining 90 dairy farms. He is adding robots to mi lk cows and 
may be interested in expanding his herd but can't swing it alone. He has 
mentioned he may be interested in seeking equity partners. He does not need 
more debt; he needs someone wil l ing to take on some of the risk with him. 

If we do nothing to enhance our milk production in ND, we will lose our dairy 
industry and our processors. Our fel low ND citizens wil l continue to consume 
dairy products that wi l l  be shipped in from SD or MN or another state at a 
higher cost and ironical ly, most l ikely produced on an out of state corporate 
dairy farm ! One way or another, ND citizens wil l be supporting corporate 
dairies. I prefer to support dairies vested within our own state. 

Mr. Chairman and House Ag committee members, I would l ike to share with you 
that I am a fourth generation family farmer. My G reat Grandparents, both 
maternal and paternal, were some of the first farmers to cu ltivate land in 
Stutsman County in the 1880's. We have a 5th generation of Wanzeks' currently 
starting their careers and preparing to take over our family farm, and hopeful ly 
the 6th generation, our grandchildren, wil l have that opportunity too. 

Our ancestors fol lowed a Catholic priest to ND and started a mission church and 
have been instrumental in bui ld ing our Cathol ic Church, our community and our 
farm in its current location. So, I get it when it comes to supporting and 
protecting our family farms and community way of l ife. I share that value with 
those who oppose this bi l l .  There is no one in this legislature more invested in 
ND fami ly farming than myself. But farming sti l l  comes down to the fact that it 
is a business. It is a business that has to be financial ly successfu l to stay within 
our family. 

As much as some of us would l ike things to be the way they were in the good 
old days, a family farm on every section raising crops and a few mi lk cows, a few 
beef cattle, a few hogs, a few sheep and chickens, it is not real ity today! Our 
farms have changed but I contend they are sti l l  mostly operated by famil ies. 
Again USDA says 93% of all our farms in the US today are family owned and 
operated even though only 9 states have anti-corporate farm laws and 41 don't. 

So, I, as a family farmer in ND, personal ly do not feel my/our way of l ife wil l  be 
threatened by this measure. This wil l not create any serious competition threat 
for our land. There is much more risk in competition for my land from our 
neighbors than there is in this bi l l .  This can help and wil l assist our family 
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farmers by presenting more opportunities. It wil l  diversify our ag economy. It 
wi l l  provide balance between grain and animal production. These dairy and 
swine operations wil l  need to contract with our loca l farmers to grow the feed 
for the cows and receive the manure, a very high qual ity organic fertil izer. It 
would benefit the corn, soybean, feed, implement, etc. industries by provid ing 
additional  demand for feed, equipment, suppl ies, electricity, etc. I could go on. 
Just a small  increase in demand for corn or feedstock could create at least 
$mi l l ions increase in agricultural  income. These l ivestock farms are value added 
agricu lture operations. 

The ND Century Code wi l l  continue to protect our family farmers by keeping the 
land in the hands of family farmers. That is where the true power l ies, a l lowing 
only our family farmers to control the land through ownership or leasing. Our 
strong anti-corporate farming law wil l stil l  be there, in ND Century Code.  As our 
state coat of arms motto reads "Strength from the Soil" ,  our family farmers gain 
their strength from the soil ! We are sti l l  keeping the soi l  in control of family 
farmers. 

There wil l  be some here today who wil l tell you that this won't work. If that is 
true, what is their worry? We wil l be no worse off than we currently are.  Then 
the same folks wil l say this is going to result in the whole state owned by 
corporations. If that is true we will have a lot of dairy farms and swine farms, 
because that is the only way they could own that much land. It can 't be both. It 
wil l  not open the flood gates. Most of our farms wi l l  continue to be family 
farms, as they are today, because our law remains. But hopefu l ly there wil l  be a 
few new dairy and swine operations developed to restore our once proud 
l ivestock enterprises. 

I wou ld also encourage those who will oppose this effort, and I respectful ly 
recognize that is their right, to offer their solution to this problem. To sum up 
my position on this issue, "doing nothing is not an option" !  The question should 
be " Do you want to save our dairy and swine industries or doesn't it matter"? 
Thank you and I wi l l  try to answer any questions. 



North Dakota Dairy Industry: By the Numbers 
1115/2015 

Two largest dairy producing counties i n  North Dakota: Emmons and Morton 

*Dairy Production: 
• North Dakota dairy production fell from 585 mill ion lbs. (2002) to a low of 342 million lbs. 

(20 1 3) 
o 4 1 .5% decrease 
o Still falling 
o Since 2007, lost 1 02 million pounds of production 

• 23 .0% decrease 
• South Dakota dairy production steadily increased from 1 .4 mill ion lbs. (2002) to 2.0 million 

lbs. (20 1 2) 
o 53 .8% increase 
o Since 2007, added 3 .3 billion pounds of milk production 

• 22% increase 
*Dairy Headcount: 

• North Dakota: Down from 40,000 (2002) to 1 6,000 (20 14) 
0 60.0% d;L�.&2 

• South Dakota: >from 9� (2002) to 97,000 (20 1 4) 
1 · " <"J�, �increase 'ff k/>'7° ' o>l l  � 

o Increased 7,000 head just six years after passing corporate farming reform 
• From 90,000 in 2008 to 97,000 in 20 1 4  

o 25,000 head already permitted to enter the state in 20 1 5  

Costs to construct a dairy facility: 
• Minimum herd size recommendation : 1 600 head 
• Cost: $,4800-$5 ,900/cow; $7.68 - $9.44 million total 

Smaller dairy operations: 
• Can utilize robotic milkers effectively 
• Robotic milkers cost approximately $250,000 

• One robot milks 55-60 cows/day 

Processors: 
• Currently there are two large-scale, fluid milk processors in the state: 

o Dean's  Foods, Bismarck 
o Kemps/Cass-Clay, Fargo 

• Dry, specialty cheese plant in Polluck, SD heavily supplied by North Dakota milk 
• As milk production in North Dakota continues to fall, the likelihood of losing a dairy processor 

greatly increases. 

* F u rther info rmation ava i lab le  on pg. 2 gra phs , 
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State Non-Corporate Farming Laws 
1/26/2015 

� :�ht states have laws that prohibit or limit corporate farming-Kansas completely repealed their law in 20 12 .  

• South Dakota, including exemptions for: 
o Certain breeding stock, products and facilities 
o Certain greenhouse operations 
o Facilities for feeding poultry or producing meat or eggs 
o Dairy on agricultural lands 
o Banks and trust companies-Purchase of agricultural land through pooled investment fund 
o Land owned by a corporations as of July 1 ,  1 974 
o Encumbrance taken for security exempt 
o Gifts to nonprofit corporations exempt 
o Farms, for scientific, medical, research, or experimental purposes exempt if sale of products incidental 
o Raising breeding stock for resale exempt-nurseries and seed farms 
o Livestock feeding 
o Family farm and authorized corporations 

• Family farm-majority of stock held by family members 
• North Dakota 

o No exemptions 
• Oklahoma, including exemptions for: 

• 

• 

o Exemptions limited to domestic corporations 
o Engages in research and or/feeding arrangements concerned with the feeding of livestock or poultry, but 

only to the extent of such research and/or feeding arrangements or such livestock or poultry operations 
o Engages in operations concerned with the production and raising of livestock or poultry for sale or use as 

breeding stock 
o Swine operations, including only directly related operations, such as facilities for the production of 

breeding stock, feed mills, processing facilities, and providing supervisory, technical and other assistance 
to any other persons performing such services on behalf of the corporation 

o Engages in poultry operations, including only directly related operations, such as operating hatcheries, 
facilities for the production of breeding stock, feed mills, processing facilities, and providing supervisory, 
technical and other assistance to any other persons performing such services on behalf of the corporation 
to the extent of such operations in this state by the corporation on the effective date of this act 

o Engages in forestry 
o Non-profits 
o Presently engages in fluid milk processing 

Iowa, including exemptions for: 
o Authorized farm corporation 

• Stockholders do not exceed 25, are all natural persons or acting in a fiduciary capacity for the 
benefit of natural persons or nonprofit corporations 

o Land owned by nonprofit corporations 
o Land owned by municipal corporations 
o Agricultural land held for research or experimental purposes 

Minnesota, including exemptions for: 
o Authorized farm corporations 

• No more than five shareholders, who are natural persons and obtain specific amounts of their 
receipts from agriculture, actively engaged 

o Authorized livestock farm corporation 
• Engaged in production of livestock other than dairy 
• All shareholders are natural persons, family farm trusts, or family 
• Revenue does not exceed 20% of gross receipts 
• Does not own more than 1 500 acres of agricultural land 7 



o Religious farms 
• Wisconsin, including exemptions for: 

o Owned by a corporation on June 5, 1 974 
o Acquired to meet pollution control requirements 
o Engaged primarily in research, breeding operations or the production of any crop primarily for seed 

• Nebraska, including exemptions for: 
o Family Farm corporations 
o Non-profit corporations 
o Indian tribal corporations 
o Held by a corporation to meet the requirements of pollution control regulations 
o Raising poultry 
o Alfalfa production 
o Growing seed, nursery plants, or sod 
o Mineral rights on agricultural land 
o Custom spraying, fertil izing, or harvesting 

• Missouri, including exemptions for: 
o Authorized farm corporation : all shareholders are natural persons and it must receive two-thirds or more 

of its total net income from farming 

• Kansas 

• Family farm corporation includes corporations created for the purpose of farming, 
• At least one-half of the voting stock is held by and at least one-half of the stockholders are 

members of a family related to each other within the third degree of consanguinity, 
• At least one stockholder must be actively operating a farm 

o Completely repealed in 20 1 2. 

-ri..e United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit has struck down the Nebraska, South Dakota and Iowa laws 
_on the dormant commerce clause. 
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rop i n  d a i ry d isco u rag i n g  

Drop in dairy discouraging 

JANUARY 1 8 , 20 1 5  7 : 1 5 AM • BY JESSICA HOLDMAN 

A drop i n  the number of North Dakota da iry farms -­
from 350 in 2000 to 9 1  today -- has led to scrutiny of 
a state law that a l lows on ly fam i ly members to form 
farm ing corporations. 

Whi le the rule protects fami ly-owned enterprises from 
corporate- entit ies, farm numbers have dropped so 
low that the viab i l ity of m i l k-processing faci l ities in the 
state has become endangered , accord ing to Doug 
Goehring ,  the state's commissioner of agriculture .  

Some producers say  they wou ld l i ke to fol low South Dakota's lead to a l low corporate fa rming in an  
effort to l u re more da i ry operators i nto the state . 

"Ou r  dairy industry is hurting terrib ly ,"  Goehring sa id . p-- esult ,  Goehring proposed to a l low exceptions to North Dakota's non-corporate farming law 
I ries ,  swine operations and feedlots to a fu l l  room of legis lators during the first week of the 
leg ative sess ion .  

" I f  the leg islature wants to take this u p  and the ag  community wants to push it, then I would th ink it 
probably wou ld happen (this session) , "  said Goehring ,  adding producers need to own the issue in 
order to faci l i tate the change. 

In 2000 , there were about 49,000 dairy cows . Now, there are about 1 6 ,000 dairy catt le, accord ing 
to Goehring .  For swine operations ,  the headcount has decreased from 1 8 ,500 p igs in 2000 to 
1 3 ,900.  Beef cattle numbers have remained more stable ,  and a new slaughter plant schedu led to 
come on l ine in  Aberdeen , S . D . ,  next year has more ranchers interested in start ing feedlots . 

"Dairy has p robably been the one that has been the most hu rt and in  more d i re need . We just 
continue to see decl ines," said Goehring ,  adding that out-of-state producers see benefits to 
moving their operations to North Dakota , but they would need to corporate to make it financia l ly 
feasib le .  

Jerry Messer, who ra ises dairy cattle on Beaver Creek Ranch in  Richardton ,  said , when South 
Dakota tweaked its laws to a l low multip le dairy investors instead of just one fami ly, the state 
became successfu l at recru iting dai ries.  

r ive ram ifications I 

A nt dairy industry a lso benefits corn growers by al lowing them to d ivers ify and make more 
money, accord i ng to Messer. 

"I n North Dakota , corn goes to two places: It either goes to the ethanol  p lants or on a tra in to 
http://bismarcktribune.com/news/agnews/drop-in-dairy-discouraging/article_02ab0a8b-25c3-53b4-8aab-a2f0d3d326b4.htm l?print=true&cid=print • 
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another market , "  said Goehring ,  adding that gra in  farmers want another option for their grain . "For 
· every 3 ,300 bushels of feed that is consumed by a cow or pig , that means one less rai l  car going 

out of the state ." 

' · ort ing m i l k  
mi lk  process ing fac i l ity i n  central North Dakota has been operating at a 600-cow-a-day 

e 1cit, forcing it to import m i lk into the state . 

"When operations have to start doing that, p lants start clos ing doors , "  Goehring sa id . "We don't 
have enough cows i n  centra l  North Dakota anymore."  

Goehring gave the example of a 25-partner outfit a long the border. Farmers partnered with a dairy 
operation , provid ing feed whi le the one fami ly operated the da iry. The dairy wasn't i n  competition 
with the farmers for land because it was content to a l low others to g row feed whi le it did what it 
does best - manage the a n imals .  

" I  th ink it's those type of structures that seem appeal ing and seem to be work ing , "  Goehring said . 

Kenton Hol le ,  of Northern L ights Dairy of Mandan ,  agreed there is  room for expansion of the 
industry. 

"I th ink that there's a real  poss ib i l ity in North Dakota to see some l ivestock i ndustries expand , "  
said Hol le ,  adding the adoption of cu rrent laws govern ing corporate farming wou ld help .  

Ho l le sa id  he did not  know of any da iry processing plants importing out-of-state mi lk .  He said he 
th inks m i l k  produced i n  the state now is adequate to keep them runn ing . 

. . .. that's the key to it r ight there , "  Hol le said of partnerships between da iries and farmers 
growing feed crops .  If a law change were to be proposed , he says there shou ld be a clause 
prohib i t ing large producers from buying up large amounts of land to p lant their feed . 

I nvestme nt dol lars 
Producers need the ab i l ity to pool resources because dairy operations cost so much ,  accord ing to 
Goehring , who said an  operation often needs to be mi lk ing 600 to 800 cows to break even and a 
1 ,600-head dairy operation takes several m i l l ion dol lars to start . 

"Most farmers don 't have that k ind of money s itting around , "  he said , and many banks won't lend it 
to a si ng le i nvestor. 

"Because our state has been primari ly g ra in production . . .  lenders are not very fami l iar  with 
an imal agriculture .  It 's hard for them to understand the ebbs and flows that exist in the l ivestock 
industry, and they have more apprehension about lend ing , "  he sa id . 

Messer, who is chairman of the Midwest Dairy Association and a member of the North Dakota 
Dairy Promotion Commission ,  said ,  with much of its new o i l  wea lth , North Dakota is in  a good 
position to recru it more dairies. 

He suggested creating an i nvestment fund for those with o i l  roya lties who want to support North 
r· agriculture .  He said the investors wou ld get tax write-offs and the fund wou ld supp lement 
t. g rams offered by the Bank of North Dakota for starting and g rowing farmers .  

/O 
http://bismarcktribune.com/news/agnews/drop-in-dairy-discouraging/article_02ab0a8b-25c3-53b4-8aab-a2f0d3d326b4.html?print=true&cid=print .. 
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Repea l i ng corporate fa rm i ng laws 
3 en Speidel • Daily News newsmonitor@midconetwork.com I Posted: Wednesday, February 4, 
W :00 pm 

l'o  compensate for the decline in  both dairy and swine 

>roduction, the North Dakota Legislature is looking into 

epealing its corporate farming laws . 

�oth industries have shown significant declines the past 1 0  

·ears . Legislators say without intervention, swine and dairy 

1roduction may disappear from the North Dakota plains . If 

he current law is amended, it would only allow corporate 

arming in the swine and dairy industries . 

� orth Dakota has had anti-corporate farming laws on the 

tate books since 1 932 .  Until 1 98 1 ,  all corporations were 

rohibited from farming within the state until the Legislature 

mended its law to prohibit corporations from owning or 

nd used for farming or ranching. 

Luick, R-District 25, supports repealing the 

Jrporate farming laws, as long as there are limits . He said 

Repea l i n g  corporate fa rm ing  
laws 
To compensate for the decline in both dairy 

and swine production, the North Dakota 

Legislature is looking into repealing its 

corporate farming laws . 

le trend among corporate farms is to buy valuable farmland and squeeze out local farmers . The Legislature 

looking to limit the amount of land that can be purchased to only the property on which the facility will 

� located, Luick said. 

llowing limited corporate farming by itself should not be a deterrent, Luick said, since many N.D.  farmers 

ready have formed corporations . Corporations themselves are more about tax structures and to limit 

:tbility. 

e said there are large dairies in other states interested in locating to North Dakota, but only if they have 

.e protection of a corporation. 

1e Legislature has looked at amending its corporate farming law during the past three sessions. Luick said 

� thinks this is the year it will be amended to allow corporate dairy and swine farms. 

1e past 10 years have shown significant decreases in swine and dairy production within the state as there 

e fewer head of hogs and 20,000 fewer head of dairy cows. 

Jrth Dakota had 467 dairy producers in 2003 . That number dropped to 9 1  dairy producers in 20 1 3 .  Since 

en, Luick said, two more dairies have closed and two more are on the brink of closure, to leave North 

http://www.wahpetondailynews.com/news/repealing-corporate-farming-laws/article _ef12a1c0-ac86-1 1e4-889e-5b8d23ce6b71 .htm l?mode=print • /) 
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)�kota with about 87 dairy producers. 

'North Dakota is importing milk. We 've never had to do that before," Luick said. 

A' as raised on a beef and hog farm, and said his neighbor operated a dairy. He understands the work 

m in keeping a dairy operation running. "Kids are not wanting to pick up a dairy business. The 

1hysical demands and commitment isn't  there to milk twice a day," he added. 

'o compound the issue, processors themselves are looking at pulling out of the state because there aren't  

nough materials to stay operational. 

'estimony was heard in the Senate Agriculture Committee that shifts are being cut at two dairy processing 

fants, Cass Clay in Fargo and Dean Foods in Bismarck, since milk production is down. 

>airy farming in the United States is undergoing dramatic changes, driven by both supply and demand 

:i.ctors, according to a report by the Economic Research Service with the U.S .  Department of Agriculture. 

'he number of dairy farms with fewer than 200 cows is shrinking rapidly while very large operations, with 

,000 to 30,000 cows on one site account for rapidly growing shares of production. 

>airy production continues to increase in South Dakota and Minnesota, according to monthly numbers 

�leased Jan. 22 by the National Agricultural Statistics Service, an arm of USDA. So far, North Dakota 

oesn't produce enough milk to be included in the report. South Dakota produced 1 83 million pounds of 

iilJr · · ecember, 6.4 percent more than the same month a year ago, while Minnesota produced 784 
unds, up from 766 million pounds in the same period a year earlier. 

here are two Grade A dairies in Richland County. Luick said repealing the corporate farm ownership 

mong dairy and swine operations should benefit local dairies . 

uick said he sees many benefits to corporate farming, such as better utilizing com for feed, alfalfa, 

)ybean meal and other ethanol plant byproducts. "It is another market for grain raised in a specific area. 

1 e are shipping way too much soybean and grain out of this state. We should focus on adding value to that 
roduct and utilize it here in our state," he added. 

I� 
http://www .wahpetondai lynews.com/news/repealing-corporate-farm ing-laws/article _ ef12a 1c0-ac86-1 1e4-889e-5b8d23ce6b71 .htm !?mode= print -



Anti-corporate exemptions proposed for dairy, swine 

i -corporate exe m ptions proposed fo r d a i ry,  swi ne 

JANUARY 26 ,  20 1 5  5 :00 PM • BY JESS ICA HOLDMAN 

As the da i ry industry contin ues to shr ink in North Dakota , lawmakers are looking to save it by 
al lowing operators to incorporate . 

Sen . Terry Wanzek ,  R-Jamestown , i ntroduced a b i l l  Monday that would exempt certai n  dairies 
and swine operations from the state's anti-corporate farming law. 

Wanzek, a fourth-generation fami ly farmer, said the bi l l  would fol low South Dakota's lead by 
tweaking the 80-year-o ld law. Under the legislation , operations with no more than 640 leased or 
owned acres would be a l lowed to incorporate u nder the exemption .  

"Our  goa l is to  provide complementary operations where farmers can mainta in  their land and 
corporations manage the an imals and operations , "  Wanzek said in a statement.  "The sheer start­
u p  costs alone for a hog or  da iry operation make it cost-proh ibitive without more access to 
capita l . "  

The b i l l  a lso would benefit the corn and soybean i ndustries by provid ing add itional  demand for 
feed, Wanzek said . 

" smal l  increase in demand for corn or  feedstock cou ld create at least $ 1 00 m i l l ion 
i r .  sed agricultu ra l  income,"  said Bart Schott, a North Dakota Corn Growers Board member 
and former National  Corn Growers Association president. 

Dairy production has dropped 42 percent i n  the past 1 0  years ,  and swine operations are on a 
s im i lar decl ine .  

"Doing noth i ng is not an option ," Wanzek said . "We have to do someth ing to save these industries 
i n  our  state . "  

http://bismarcktribune.com/business/local/anti-corporate-exemptions-proposed-for-dairy-swine/article_6a292584-dad0-5da5-be58-ef19e3ed391 b.htm l?print=tr . . .  
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i ries l ooki ng for ways to re bou nd 

JAN UARY 2 1 ,  20 1 5  3 :30 AM 

Dairy farm ing a lways has been a demanding busi ness. It requ i res early morn ing m i lk ing fol lowed 
by another round of m i lk ing late i n  the afternoon .  

And it's hard to  take a break - you can 't let the cows wait a day. 

North Dakota hasn't ran ked among the top da iry states ,  in fact, the state's dairy numbers are 
fa l l i ng .  I n  a Sunday story, reporter Jessica Holdman noted that the number of dairy farms has 
s l ipped from 350 in 2000 to 9 1  today. 

This has prompted a search for solutions.  One idea be ing considered is chang ing the state law 
that a l lows on ly  fam i ly members to form farming corporations .  

Agricu ltu re Com missioner Doug Goehring warns that the future of mi lk-processing faci l ities i n  the 
state are at stake . He's u rg ing producers to take the lead in seeking changes . 

He's suggested exceptions to North Dakota's non-corporate farming law for dairies,  swine 
operations and feed lots . 

" 
Leg is lature wants to take this up  and the ag commun ity wants to push it ,  then I would th ink 
ab ly wou ld happen (th is session) , "  he said . 

South Dakota has made changes to a l low corporate fa rming i n  an effort to lu re more da i ry 
operators i nto the state . 

Goehring th i nks out-of-state p roducers wou ld move their operations to North Dakota i f  they cou ld 
corporate to make it financia l ly  feasib le .  

He a lso said producers need to be ab le to pool the i r  resources because dairy operations are 
expens ive . 

Jerry Messer, who raises da iry cattle on Beaver Creek Ranch i n  Richardton ,  told the Tribune 
when South Dakota tweaked its laws to a l low mu lt ip le da iry investors instead of just one fami ly, 
the state saw success at recru iting dairies . 

A s laughter p lant schedu led to beg in  operating i n  Aberdeen ,  S . D . ,  next year already has ranchers 
i nterested i n  start ing feed lots . 

Giv ing new l i fe to da i ry farms, feedlots and swine operations can have trickle down benefits . It 
p rovides more customers for corn producers and a l lows them to to d iversify .  Also , if the corn is 
solrl loca l ly the producers don't have to rely as much on ra i l  service .  If we produce more mi lk  it wi l l  
r • mi lk  imports . 

The proposals have merit and it 's up to producers to get the Leg islature's approval . Goehring 
th i n ks leg is lators wil l  approve but he's made it clear that producers wi l l  have to lead the way. /-Y 

http://bismarcktribune.com/news/opinion/dairies-looking-for-ways-to-rebound/article_ 4c58a74c-d980-5d7d-95f3..63f7c0d6adc7.html?print=true&cid= print • 
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I f the decision is made to pursue changes in  the law, everyone should real ize this cou ld j ust be 
· the beg inn ing .  Once the law is mod ified,  it 's l ikely to d raw more attention .  

This wou ld be a good time to  review the ent ire law and see if fits the needs of  North Dakota in 
'") ("'\  5.  

p to the producers to make the next move. 

/6 
http://bismarcktribune.com/news/opinion/dairies-looking-for-ways-to-rebound/article_4c58a74c-d980-5d7d-95f3-63f7c0d6adc7.html?print=true&cid=print ._ 



North Dakota Swine Industry: By the Numbers 
1/15/2015 

Two largest swine producing counties in North Dakota: Grand Forks and Towner 

*Swine Production (thousand pounds): 

• North Dakota swine production fell from 6.7 million lbs. (2003) to a 5.2 million lbs. 
(2013) 

o 22.4% decrease 
o Still falling 

• South Dakota swine production steadily increased from 604.4 million lbs. (2003) to 
702.3 million lbs. (2013) 

o 16.2% increase 

*Swine Headcount: 

• North Dakota: Down from 150,000 (2003) to 135,000 (2013) 
o 10% decrease 

• South Dakota: Down from 1.3 million (2003) to 1.2 million (2013) 
o 7. 7% decrease 
o Proposing bill to add swine exemption this year 

Costs to construct a swine facility: 

• 5,400 head farrowing unit start-up cost: $16 million 
o Structure: $12 million 
o Animals, feed, labor: $4 million 

• Annual Operating Expenses: $5-6 million 

Feedstuffs used in 5,400 head farrowing operation (annually) 

• Corn: 150,000 bushels 

• Soybean Meal: 7 5 0 tons 
• DDGs: 2,500 tons 

• Minerals, Vitamins & Minor Grains: 250 tons 

*Further information available on pg. 2 graphs • 16 
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Dairy Cow Headcount - IL, IN, IA, KS, MI, MN, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 97,000 176,000 208,000 134,000 380,000 464,000 54,000 18,000 94,000 1,271 ,000 

2012 98,000 175,000 205 ,000 126,000 375,000 465,000 56,000 18,000 92,000 1,270,000 

2011 98,000 172,000 204,000 123 ,000 366,000 468,000 57,000 19,000 91 ,000 1,265,000 

2010 100,000 170,000 210,000 119,000 358,000 470,000 59,000 21 ,000 92,000 1,262,000 

2009 102,000 168,000 21 4,000 118,000 355,000 469,000 61 ,000 23 ,000 94,000 1,257,000 

2008 102,000 167,000 213 ,000 117,000 350,000 464,000 58,000 26,000 90,000 1,252,000 

2007 103,000 166,000 213 ,000 110,000 335,000 460,000 59,000 29,000 85 ,000 1,247,000 

2006 103,000 165,000 205,000 112,000 320,000 450,000 61 ,000 32,000 81,000 1,243,000 

2005 104,000 156,000 195,000 111 ,000 312,000 453 ,000 60,000 33 ,000 81 ,000 1,236,000 

2004 107,000 151 ,000 193,000 113,000 303,000 463 ,000 61 ,000 34,000 80,000 1,241 ,000 

2003 111,000 149,000 201,000 111 ,000 302,000 473 ,000 64,000 35 ,000 82,000 1,256,000 

2002 115,000 151 ,000 209,000 107,000 301 ,000 487,000 67,000 40,000 86,000 1,271 ,000 

2001 116,000 153 ,000 210,000 93 ,000 303,000 510,000 72,000 46,000 89,000 1,292,000 

2000 120,000 146,000 215,000 91 ,000 300,000 534,000 76,000 48,000 95 ,000 1,344,000 

1995 151,000 144,000 251,000 82,000 326,000 592,000 74,000 64,000 118,000 1,490,000 

1990 174,000 156,000 280,000 99,000 340,000 710,000 97,000 85 ,000 140,000 1,73 1,000 

1985 227,000 192,000 352,000 109,000 394,000 913 ,000 109,000 101 ,000 162,000 1,876,000 

1980 233,000 201 ,000 368,000 123,000 395,000 862,000 121 ,000 93 ,000 159,000 1,815,000 

1975 243 ,000 215,000 401 ,000 142,000 411,000 884,000 152,000 115,000 174,000 1,812,000 

1970 297,000 237,000 497,000 188,000 433,000 949,000 174,000 137,000 183,000 1,814,000 

1965 422,000 330,000 718,000 247,000 585,000 1,232,000 255 ,000 223 ,000 226,000 2,075,000 

1960 570,000 426,000 851 ,000 332,000 641 ,000 1,265,000 327,000 277,000 248,000 2,150,000 

1955 788,000 579,000 1,022,000 468,000 809,000 1,378,000 428,000 368,000 302,000 2,302,000 

1950 925 ,000 693 ,000 1,124,000 560,000 863 ,000 1,349,000 462,000 375,000 333,000 2, 160,000 

1945 1,111 ,000 803 ,000 1,343,000 723 ,000 985 ,000 1,660,000 575 ,000 495 ,000 440,000 2,360,000 

1940 1,061,000 738,000 1,383,000 708,000 908,000 1,632,000 605 ,000 484,000 456,000 2,165,000 

1935 1,136,000 770,000 1,455,000 831 ,000 860,000 1,630,000 686,000 542,000 501 ,000 2,030,000 

1930 1,000,000 688,000 1,323,000 757,000 778,000 1,524,000 642,000 521 ,000 532,000 1,973,000 



Milk Production (Pounds)- IL, IN, IA, KS, Ml, MN, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 1,879,000,000 3,830,000,000 4,606,000,000 2,932,000,000 9, 164,000,000 9, 140,000,000 1, 165,000,000 342,000,000 2,023 ,000,000 27,572,000,000 

2012 l ,868,000,000 3, 752,000,000 4,513 ,000,000 2,732,000,000 8,991 ,000,000 9,073,000,000 1, 186,000,000 347,000,000 1,968,000,000 27 ,224,000,000 

2011 1,814,000,000 3,553,000,000 4,323,000,000 2,585,000,000 8,478,000,000 8,890,000,000 1,173,000,000 345,000,000 1,873 ,000,000 26,058,000,000 

2010 1,840,000,000 3,416,000,000 4,342,000,000 2,497,000,000 8,333,000,000 9,102,000,000 1,168,000,000 384,000,000 1,884,000,000 26,035 ,000,000 

2009 1,862,000,000 3,383,000,000 4,301 ,000,000 2,488,000,000 7 ,968,000,000 9,019,000,000 1, 198,000,000 387,000,000 1,892,000,000 25,239,000,000 

2008 1,862,000,000 3,287,000,000 4,236,000,000 2,415,000,000 7,763,000,000 8,782,000,000 1,083 ,000,000 418,000,000 1,796,000,000 24,472,000,000 

2007 1,917,000,000 3,371 ,000,000 4,278,000,000 2, 187,000,000 7 ,625,000,000 8,656,000,000 1,075,000,000 444,000,000 1,641 ,000,000 24,080,000,000 

2006 1,983,000,000 3,277,000,000 4, 126,000,000 2,345,000,000 7,115,000,000 8,369,000,000 1,118,000,000 4 70,000,000 1,505,000,000 23 ,398,000,000 

2005 1,958,000,000 3, 166,000,000 4,025,000,000 2,276,000,000 6,750,000,000 8, 195,000,000 1,077,000,000 468,000,000 1,43 7 ,000,000 22,866,000,000 

2004 1,978,000,000 3,027,000,000 3,851 ,000,000 2,216,000,000 6,330,000,000 8, 102,000,000 1,049,000,000 465 ,000,000 1,347,000,000 22,085,000,000 

2003 2,047,000,000 2,939,000,000 3,810,000,000 2, 130,000,000 6,375,000,000 8,258,000,000 1, 129,000,000 500,000,000 1,330,000,000 22,266,000,000 

2002 2,051 ,000,000 2,658,000,000 3,804,000,000 2,030,000,000 6, 120,000,000 8,458,000,000 1,167,000,000 593 ,000,000 1,289,000,000 22,074,000,000 

2001 2,020,000,000 2,567 ,000,000 3,785,000,000 1,610,000,000 5,870,000,000 8,812,000,000 1, 166,000,000 644,000,000 1,3 70,000,000 22, 199,000,000 

2000 2,094,000,000 2,419,000,000 3,934,000,000 1,540,000,000 5,705,000,000 9,493,000,000 1,255,000,000 686,000,000 1,474,000,000 23 ,259,000,000 

1995 2,399,000,000 2,2 14,000,000 4,047,000,000 1, 180,000,000 5,565,000,000 9,409,000,000 1,095,000,000 838,000,000 1,581 ,000,000 22,942,000,000 

1990 2,559,000,000 2,276,000,000 4,233,000,000 1,245,000,000 5,234,000,000 l 0,030,000,000 1,345,000,000 1,073,000,000 1,716,000,000 24, 187 ,000,000 

1985 2,721 ,000,000 2,358,000,000 4,058,000,000 1,285,000,000 5,568,000,000 l 0,835,000,000 1,340,000,000 1, 120,000,000 1, 744,000,000 24, 700,000,000 

1980 2,540,000,000 2,2 10,000,000 3,994,000,000 1,330,000,000 4,970,000,000 9,535,000,000 1,315,000,000 939,000,000 1,669,000,000 22,380,000,000 

1975 2,446,000,000 2,210,000,000 3,893,000,000 1,392,000,000 4,411 ,000,000 8,946,000,000 1,431 ,000,000 917 ,000,000 1,556,000,000 18,900,000,000 

1970 2,850,000,000 2,382,000,000 4,670,000,000 1, 740,000,000 4,602,000,000 9,636,000,000 1,566,000,000 1,065,000,000 1,578,000,000 18,435,000,000 

1965 3,844,000,000 2,954,000,000 5,945 ,000,000 1,749,000,000 5,528,000,000 10,731 ,000,000 1,821 ,000,000 1,467 ,000,000 1,580,000,000 18,841 ,000,000 

1960 4,229,000,000 3, 178,000,000 5,940,000,000 1,922,000,000 5, 173,000,000 10,272,000,000 2,008,000,000 1,731 ,000,000 1,463,000,000 17,780,000,000 

1955 5,027,000,000 3,845,000,000 5,958,000,000 2,354,000,000 5,396,000,000 8,833,000,000 2,298,000,000 1,785,000,000 1,368,000,000 16,482,000,000 

1950 5,208,000,000 3,708,000,000 6, 171,000,000 2,548,000,000 5,420,000,000 8,067,000,000 2,250,000,000 1,699,000,000 1,402,000,000 14,796,000,000 

1945 5,777,000,000 3,814,000,000 6,702,000,000 2,943,000,000 5,506,000,000 8,599,000,000 2,501 ,000,000 1,970,000,000 1,650,000,000 14,939,000,000 

1940 5, 188,000,000 3,225,000,000 6,611 ,000,000 2,860,000,000 4,949,000,000 8,405,000,000 2,589,000,000 2,081 ,000,000 1,746,000,000 12,665 ,000,000 

1935 4,873 ,000,000 3,049,000,000 6,009,000,000 3,075 ,000,000 4,257,000,000 7,384,000,000 2,689,000,000 1,951 ,000,000 1,603 ,000,000 10,921 ,000,000 

1930 4,650,000,000 2,931 ,000,000 5,927,000,000 3,058,000,000 4,014,000,000 7,590,000,000 2,806,000,000 2, 136,000,000 2,197,000,000 11 ,207,000,000 



Swine Headcount - IL, IN, IA, KS, Ml, NE, ND, SD, WI 
Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2014 4,600,000 3,600,000 20,900,000 1,800,000 1, 100,000 7,850,000 3, 100,000 139,000 1,250,000 300,000 

2013 4,550,000 3,650,000 20,200,000 1,750,000 1,060,000 7,800,000 3,050,000 135,000 1,200,000 295 ,000 

2012 4,600,000 3,800,000 20,600,000 1,900,000 1,090,000 7,650,000 3,000,000 135,000 1,190,000 320,000 

2011 4,650,000 3,800,000 20,000,000 1,890,000 1,050,000 7,800,000 3, 100,000 149,000 1,390,000 340,000 

2010 4,350,000 3,650,000 19,100,000 1,800,000 1,040,000 7,700,000 3,150,000 143 ,000 1,290,000 330,000 

2009 4,250,000 3,600,000 18,900,000 1,800,000 1,080,000 7,200,000 3,050,000 155,000 1, 180,000 350,000 

2008 4,350,000 3,550,000 19,900,000 1,740,000 1,030,000 7,500,000 3,350,000 151 ,000 1,280,000 360,000 

2007 4,350,000 3,700,000 19,400,000 1,880,000 1,030,000 7,700,000 3,350,000 182,000 1,460,000 440,000 

2006 4,200,000 3,350,000 17,300,000 1,860,000 990,000 6,900,000 3,050,000 169,000 1,270,000 450,000 

2005 4,000,000 3,250,000 16,600,000 1,800,000 960,000 6,600,000 2,900,000 157,000 1,430,000 430,000 

2004 4, I 00,000 3,200,000 16,300,000 1,720,000 950,000 6,500,000 2,850,000 164,000 1,280,000 430,000 

2003 4,000,000 3,100,000 15,900,000 1,660,000 950,000 6,500,000 2,900,000 150,000 1,280,000 480,000 

2002 4,150,000 3,250,000 15,500,000 1,530,000 870,000 6,100,000 3,000,000 144,000 1,330,000 520,000 

2001 4,250,000 3,200,000 15,400,000 1,570,000 960,000 5,800,000 2,900,000 154,000 1,290,000 540,000 

2000 4, 150,000 3,350,000 15,100,000 1,520,000 950,000 5,800,000 3,050,000 185,000 1,320,000 610,000 

1995 4,800,000 4,000,000 13,500,000 1,300,000 1,100,000 4,950,000 4,050,000 280,000 1,450,000 880,000 

1990 5,700,000 4,400,000 13,800,000 1,500,000 1,250,000 4,500,000 4,300,000 265,000 1,770,000 1,200,000 

1985 5,400,000 4, 150,000 13,500,000 1,520,000 1, 190,000 4, 100,000 3,900,000 285,000 1,610,000 1,250,000 

1980 6,600,000 4,600,000 16, 100,000 1,900,000 830,000 5,100,000 3,900,000 265,000 1,860,000 1,680,000 

1975 5,600,000 3,900,000 12,600,000 1,650,000 700,000 3,000,000 2,700,000 350,000 1,400,000 ! , 150,000 

1970 7,630,000 5,129,000 16,110,000 2,202,000 870,000 3,752,000 3,691 ,000 408,000 2,009,000 1,932,000 

1965 6,618,000 3,944,000 12,857,000 1,242,000 652,000 2,856,000 2,761 ,000 290,000 1,493,000 1,476,000 

1960 7,096,000 4,850,000 12,433 ,000 1,142,000 741,000 3,522,000 2,527,000 248,000 1,315,000 1,786,000 

1955 6,348,000 4,610,000 11 ,602,000 929,000 783 ,000 3,637,000 2,423 ,000 421 ,000 1,494,000 1,865,000 

1950 6,536,000 4,701 ,000 12,639,000 1,504,000 902,000 3,735,000 2,999,000 401 ,000 1,543,000 1,854,000 

1945 6,337,000 4,157,000 11 ,494,000 1,470,000 949,000 4,082,000 3,168,000 621,000 1,997,000 1,866,000 

1940 5,232,000 3,938,000 9,048,000 1,276,000 977,000 3,402,000 1,813 ,000 441 ,000 1,103,000 1,729,000 

1935 3,860,000 2,942,000 7,250,000 1,248,000 620,000 2,242,000 2,238,000 345,000 855 ,000 1,340,000 

1930 4,415,000 2,637,000 10,509,000 2,487,000 542,000 3,665,000 4,820,000 766,000 3,000,000 1,536,000 



- i 
Swine Production (Pounds) - IL, IN, IA, KS, Ml, NE, ND, SD, WI 

Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 2,020,410,000 1,648, 744,000 10,660,075,000 901 ,099,000 571 , 196,000 3,909,753 ,000 1, 176,722,000 51 ,642,000 702,31 3 ,000 169,479,000 

2012 1,962,779,000 1,753 ,128,000 10,345 ,1 44,000 907,366,000 548,754,000 3,938,732,000 1,239,968,000 53 ,480,000 790,048,000 166,642,000 

2011 1,867,443,000 1, 736,994,000 9,789,483,000 924,568,000 615,658,000 3,675,511 ,000 1,328,259,000 67,433 ,000 773 ,741 ,000 174,266,000 

2010 1,915 ,998,000 1, 753 ,822,000 9,211 ,017,000 877,774,000 619,869,000 3,685,752,000 1,348,289,000 59,469,000 734,825,000 174, 125,000 

2009 1,825,859,000 1,726,612,000 9,614,705 ,000 910,834,000 600,484,000 3,651 ,800,000 1,351 ,209,000 60,908,000 667,493 ,000 190,076,000 

2008 1,698,057,000 1,726,027,000 9,405,442,000 866,318,000 572,559,000 3,765,589,000 1,376,728,000 52,741 ,000 736,454,000 201 ,1 29,000 

2007 1,513 ,202,000 1,607,328,000 8,444,429,000 874,765 ,000 549,965 ,000 3,540,381 ,000 1,437,629,000 51 ,345,000 686,072,000 217 ,526,000 

2006 1,523,074,000 1,484,896,000 8,021 ,396,000 799,949,000 482,308,000 3 ,327 ,429 ,000 1,412,340,000 62,401 ,000 72 1,462,000 219 ,648,000 

2005 1,614,032,000 1,485,217,000 7,741 ,072,000 779,315,000 4 71 ,420,000 3,238,914,000 1,363,224,000 65 ,065 ,000 644,221 ,000 213 ,519,000 

2004 1,732,642,000 1,424,664,000 7, 195, 120,000 754,837,000 488,241 ,000 3, 107,935,000 1,374,997,000 66,665 ,000 622,884,000 207,084,000 

2003 1,827,857,000 1,568,223 ,000 6,797,817,000 681,291 ,000 478,077,000 3,016,013 ,000 1,427,503 ,000 62,985 ,000 611 ,406,000 238,925,000 

2002 1,811 ,346,000 1,466,485 ,000 6,701,425,000 656,466,000 499,504,000 2,785,923,000 1,508,053,000 79,018,000 608,553 ,000 230,983 ,000 

2001 1,826,191 ,000 1,445,7 11 ,000 6,400,094,000 644,674,000 491 ,070,000 2,773,774,000 1,450,821 ,000 92,042,000 612,385,000 279,636,000 

2000 1,744,572,000 1,3 91 ,956,000 6,4 78,93 8,000 687 ,493 ,000 464,577,000 2,514,895,000 1,491 ,368,000 100,229,000 580,611 ,000 264,092,000 

1995 2, 184,541 ,000 1,753,240,000 5,681 ,967,000 587,225,000 446, 182,000 2,013 ,666,000 1,705,401,000 110,119,000 701 ,314,000 436,632,000 

1990 2,224,798,000 1,665,960,000 5,394,390,000 629,510,000 480,809,000 1, 714,484,000 1,623,580,000 87,885,000 753 , 185,000 459,914,000 



-----1 
Cattle on Feed (Total Head) - IL, IN, IA, KS, MI, MN, NE, ND, SD, WI 

Source: National Agricultural Statistics Service, www.nass.usda.gov 

NORTH SOUTH 
YEAR ILLINOIS INDIANA IOWA KANSAS MICHIGAN MINNESOTA NEBRASKA DAKOTA DAKOTA WISCONSIN 

2013 250,000 82,000 1,270,000 2,240,000 155,000 385,000 2,550,000 51,000 410,000 260,000 

2012 . 240,000 100,000 1,300,000 2,370,000 150,000 340,000 2,650,000 60,000 380,000 270,000 

2011 240,000 125,000 1,380,000 2,400,000 170,000 340,000 2,550,000 60,000 410,000 280,000 

2010 250,000 120,000 1,360,000 2,370,000 170,000 310,000 2,500,000 90,000 400,000 260,000 

2009 240,000 115,000 1,300,000 2,370,000 165,000 300,000 2,500,000 70,000 390,000 260,000 

2008 170,000 110,000 1,350,000 2,630,000 170,000 325,000 2,700,000 70,000 400,000 250,000 

2007 215 ,000 110,000 1,250,000 2,620,000 175,000 285,000 2,700,000 60,000 420,000 240,000 

2006 205,000 115,000 1,180,000 2,550,000 190,000 290,000 2,600,000 60,000 400,000 230,000 

2005 210,000 125,000 1,100,000 2,460,000 190,000 290,000 2,470,000 60,000 400,000 225,000 

2004 200,000 105,000 1,050,000 2,480,000 210,000 310,000 2,450,000 65,000 375,000 210,000 

2003 215 ,000 115,000 1,090,000 2,240,000 180,000 300,000 2,300,000 70,000 395,000 200,000 

2002 225,000 115,000 1,020,000 2,530,000 190,000 285 ,000 2,400,000 62,000 370,000 200,000 

2001 225,000 110,000 1,050,000 2,450,000 190,000 290,000 2,550,000 65,000 385,000 180,000 

2000 240,000 130,000 1,100,000 2,370,000 200,000 285,000 2,450,000 70,000 360,000 190,000 

1995 280,000 200,000 910,000 2,040,000 210,000 300,000 1,940,000 100,000 340,000 150,000 

1990 310,000 235,000 980,000 1,595,000 220,000 300,000 2,060,000 40,000 260,000 120,000 

1985 540,000 260,000 880,000 1,530,000 165,000 370,000 1,880,000 38,000 355,000 120,000 

1980 460,000 250,000 1,390,000 1,270,000 165,000 390,000 1,680,000 39,000 350,000 112,000 

1975 500,000 250,000 1,200,000 920,000 200,000 380,000 1,160,000 36,000 345,000 135,000 

1970 755 ,000 349,000 2,213,000 892,000 210,000 589,000 1,477,000 63 ,000 361,000 146,000 

1965 791,000 272,000 1,850,000 451,000 178,000 506,000 1,027,000 136,000 322,000 137,000 
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South Dakota's 
thriving dairy industry 

sets example for 
North Dakota 

............. 
Agwlllc ..., Wltllr 

PABDR. 8.D. - Seutla Delllea'I ..., oowa 1aUW111oe1t-.... 
mentllltbepu&._..Mlecnae 
wttbwellMlllla..,.... 
llractunl, IMlt allo ..... apilaliltlc 
clellre ad ....... poU&ieal mpport. 

OH oltM ....... brJftpre9 la re-cut,_,..._..._ ........ mot 
Parlrer, 8.D., ... ..-..... 
DUota acrlealllae ... ..., .. . 
,... iDOot. n-ta... ... .... 
llialllntioll. a-. ...... ..... 
to tbe ..... iaAprilllll, ... --... , ... ..-o1...., ... llft. 
dock deftloplHilt .......... ... 
iaare.,.......U•ollll-md 
adaptabllh;J. 

·1 tbtnt it'l ID ............ .... 
acrtculture commwe1tr;• ..... ..,._ 

South Dakota bu lliMDdld ill anti· 
corporate tarmiDI law .......a ti-. 
The-' impoltM& m f .. U· 
empted poultry ud ea operatiCllll 
and ltveatoclt leecltDl&ms lD 21006, 
aad dairy fanu 1n-. ......... 
The state has seen s to I l)el'Cellt u­
nual lncreues in hOl lllUllberL Dail1 
has 10ne up 25,000 cows In apaa­
sions and new operatiOlll lD the pall 
twoyean. 

DMmll See Page 11 
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DAIRIES 
Conllnued tom Page 1 

,,..._.,,side ii harder to 
tna Local zoning boards 
.._denied some proposed 
ftllllot projeetl. 

ortb Dakota, Agricul­
tula(:ommissioner DoUI 
~ad certain Repub­
U.. acrtculture leaden have 
PftPlll'!d I001enillg the state'& 
utkolporate larmiDg law to 
au.et corporate dairy and 
nlle enterprises to the state, 
bvillll or leasing llP to MO 
aCNL The measure aims to 
get the state in step with Its 
ae11Jabon to the east and .... 

Biil anti-corporate legtsi. 
Uea 18 oalJ one factor in a pic­
tal8 wltb llWl1 parts. 

9olllla.a......,. 
Soutll Dakota bu gotten a 

lot of dairy int in the put sev­
eral Jtllft, but llianelota ii 
hlstoricallJ a dairJ powel'­
bouse. llillnesota operates 
3,400 dairies and raDkl third 
or foartb amODI states in 
dalry ~ aumhen-more 
tba the DakoCu ad Iowa 
umllilled The state ls also 
No. l ID turbJs ad No. S in 
bop. 

Jim Saller, a Univenitr of 
llillllelota Bx&ealion dairy 
speeialilt at Sl Cloud, ..,. his 
state ii open to datrr deftlop­
llllld, but the polltleal empha­
sis ii aach llOl9 OD ll'OWilll 
tbe llate'B current lndutrf 
tlllm aUraedna oatlide dairies 
to.,,. Giera. State and ln­
dutrJ oalctall met in the ftnt 
..U otl'ebrauF to clileaa 
tbe dlreetioB to tab. 

.......... ii "preUJ restrle­
Uft• ill HI eorponte f'armbll 
~Saller IQL Some areu 
ottbe ...... llacll •Morris, in 
Steplama Couty, baft ll'OWD 
llaelr dalry herd namben and 

-·--.. Otber potential uus nela u llOutlrnlt 111.n-
DelCllll doll'tpw mueb in 
......... part becll1IH 
ru--matlqproftU in 

~ii a pocbtofdalry 
...... Plpeltaae. .. Saller 
..,., batlt ..... the not 
combillatlOD of people to rec­
CJIDiae tlae eeoaoalc and IOil 
llealtllb...aaoldhenUlea­
tlaa. 

1.-ldlll ..... tile~ 
Balllr- 8olllll nu. 
bellll aarealte at attraeting 

dairies of all kinds to feed a 
growing processing industry. 

North Dakota has been less 
forward, but has 1118111 natural 
advantages for dairy- open 
land, relatively few people, 
plentiful, dordabla feed; dis· 
tiller's grain, SIJiU beets, po­
tatoes ad other bJproducts. 

Salferd1,.1...., .., ...... 
ti.on that cold weather ii a 
problem. 

"Cows are d'ected moN bJ 
beat stress,• Saller IQI. "Peo­
ple get afl'ected by the cold. n 

An important i1111e ii how a 
state views itlalf. 

"Does the culbue of the 
state want to be a dairy, beef 
or cash crop state?" Salter 
IQI. "There ll8eds to be polit­
ical ene1111 aro11Dd what's 
going to happen- hopefully 
more tha lip aenice." 

Corpolnequ• .. • 
Bones..,. the corporate 

form can be a helpful tool for 
certain kinds of livestock en­
terprises. 

"WhJ slaould we limit farm. 
en and ranchen to operate 
with buiness structures that 
other entities can uae? It's 
eaaier for estate planning and 
liability, n Ile SIJL 

The Bones famU:r ia an ex­
ample ol uiDg various govel'­
nance structures. The farm 
headquarters, 12 miles west ol 
Sloas l'alll, is famous for Its 
livestock enterprlseL The 

family came to 
the regloa in 
1879and is 
most famous 
for purebred 
Hereford eat­
tle, a buine11 
thatwu 
stroDg in the 

9- l980I to the 
mid-1880I. 

BonelJlen.. 
lml Baacla ii the lad and fa. 
cllltl...-aiq enti~. with 
lllDe llaarellolden, inclucllDI 
Walt'I _._, Wbmle. The 
Bow lamil1 formed Bezad 
......... partnenhip that 
leual laad aad ftleillti•. Tile 
actlw tar... IDclade Walt 
aad lais two brotlaen, tlaree 
aeplwn aad a brothel-in-law. 

Tile ISollel fudtr ralle 
CCll'll, IQf'beaDs and beef cattle 
and are part owners of'l'anaer 
COllllflJ Dairy, an operation 
llartad in 11111tlWmilb2,000 
laaad tlaree times a clay ia two 
lclatiou Bow l'ee4lrud bu 
beeD la the ftltoa eaatle 
feediDI baslDen lliaca ta. 

Feedlot employees back­
greand-laed and breed beifen 
fer the dairy. The family Opel'­
ates Bones Blevator, with 1 
million bu.lhels or storage ill 
two locatio111. Bend farms ls 
a partner ill JBB Farma, 
which c1r1-.1tores and han­
dles crata. and in l'ora&'8 Part. 
Den I.LP, wlaiela OWDll l'oraee 
hal'ftltiag machiaery OD be­
Ulf ollouDding memben of 
the dairy. 

"We're prettJ divaniflad," 
BoneslQI. .................... 

Soldla Dabta bu permitl 
fbr aboa& 18,000 to 21),000 dalry 
eows oa the baob for ccmaple­
tioa ID the next fear aad a 
half, UJI Boler Scheibe of 
Brookiap, dlrector olladu­
tr:r CMltnacla for Kidwell 
Dairy Alloelatioa. 

The state .... had grown by 
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about 15,000 or 30,000 COWi, 
but there laave been dairies 
aolDg out of busilleu 10 the 
cmreat population Is about 
81,000to18,000 COWi. The in· 
dU8&rJ hopes to brilll in an­
other 1118,000 dairy COWi, 
lall'8l:r in the latentata 211 
~ aloqthe eutern 
ead of tbe ltate. 

"lt'I prattJ lllll"Ulh'e. but 
la the past ZG 1ean, we've laad 
lllO,OOO to Sll0,000 COWi la the 
ltate," Scheibe Ufl. "We've 
had the COWi before, but Dot 
prod1IClag u much milk u the 
new operators. 

"II oalJ mates sense tlW 
MJ........a., Nortll Dakota, 
Soatll Dakota, Iowa aad Ne­
brub lhould be implement­
... PfOll'8IU to protect aad 
grow" tbe iDdustry, Scheibe ..,._ 

Ila...,. Bismarck should be 
a sr-tla area for fee4liD& IJOI>' 
lllation ceaten to the west. 

Southeast Nordl 
would also be a prlmi spot. 

Bones aot politieall1 ln· 
volted 11 :run ago wlaen 
DaYisco Poodl DDOUDCed it 
would ezpand in Lake NOl'­
den, 8.D., with a c1a- pla 
BoHI lnmtled the eastern 
part ol the state with tllea­
Secnal7 of Airiculbue Lari 
Chbl1el, wlao WU promotiDC 
the 1Ddusb7 la the ear)J' ~ 

Bona l8necl .. acrtcultmi 
lecretar:r from 21)11 to 21)1J, • 
time wlaea the DepartlDellt of 
Aplealtme .... worldDI to 
dmr41,000eon to attract 
and deftlop the Bel Brands 
USA cbeese plat iD Brook-

~ amiou for dairy dei 
valopau&, the pemor'a oiJ 
ftce waatecl to focu on local 
control - aot ltate directive~ 
- fbr loeatlng dairy sites. 
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DAIRIES 
Canllnulld flam 1'11118 11 

"In South Dakota. we laold our live­
stock people to a much higher stan­
dard," Bonet 18JB. "The hardest put 
)ftbe euvironmental approval process 
s wHb the local zonJng_ Jmtead of an 

approval of three out or five IOllina 
board -ben, a livestock operation 
requires a CouJ'.in-ftve super majority 
to approve.. 

Bonel..,. raral South Dakota 
neecll UYeltoet. 

llHdfw .. HlmDk 
South Dalrota Slate UnivenitJ, 

wbole ICrGlll clabJ ICienee depart. 
meat 1181 belped attr.et dairJ produe­
thm ad 1>JOCa1iD1. conducted an 
eeoncmic anaiJ1ia ID 31110 that fOUDd 
dalr7 eon~ aboattit,080 or 
annual Impact. Kodell &om Wiscouin 
and Jlimaesota put the 6pre higher at 
$25,00D. 

Todd Kaya, a regional northeast 
South Dakota ec:oaomic developer ID 
Watertown, S.D., atarted an ana111i1 
that slaowed ...... 40-acre dairJ de-
...._.., ... pcmible in COlllidertq 
the ball-mile to l...Ue Mlbaeb from 
l'tllideDcel, elnuehu and aquifen, u 
well u diltaDce hm raral water 
liJl8I, ~ eleetrlcal power 
androadl. 

Gnat ComitJ, S.D., held 108 ortbe 
sitee. From the 1111 OJiljnal sites, tbe 

'11•19:1;1.il•l;iW 
are all owned by bog farmers and ha 
chosen to have them prot9ssionally 
managed." 

South Dakota hu seen some pro­
posed large operations belnC turned 
down by a supel'ma.iori~ of the zoning 
ofticlals - a beef feeding plan In tbe 
lliller, S.D., area, for example - but 
those have been family llnniDg co 
rations, Bones llQ'I. 

In his own backyard, Bones 118¥1 the 
Soutegard Foods family ID Sioux 
Falls is looldn& at sites to build a laJ'I 
ea-1-Jinl operation north of Parker, 
ror teO million. It would co11SU1De 10 
8 million bushell of com and create 
100 jobs, producbli eggs and procen­
lni them. The project will go through 
public bearings in the next couple of 
months. Despite reactiou, required 
setbacks and other conditions are es­
tablished, and the zoninl board can 
only decide It the project meets the 
rules. 

Bones says the local ea and poultry 
issue ia emotional and emblematic of 
tlle strufgle. 

"If it meets our IOllina require­
ments, I am in favor of it," be llQ'S. 

Agriculture is the only illdutry ln­
vestiJll in communities and rural 
areas, Bonea empbuizes. 

"People jut don't get it Citibank ii 
not IOinl to IDftlt ti lllillioa here. 
Sallford is DOt IOinl to Hild a '80 mil­
lion hospital. Acrlculture is the only 
industry lnvestiJlg in oar rural towns." 

Pro-GMO labeling senators plan amendment 
ponsors confident 

of success 

Bluaeathal 1aid people 1bould "tbiDk 
oCtbe A word - amendaeat" and tlaa 
RepUlica IMdenblp'I comailmeat 
to allowial aaeaclma&s to be oJfered. 

DeJ'uio aoled tlaat be and Sea. 
Patrick I..eabJ, D-Vt., bad lll8d Ille 
ameadmeat proeen in 1l80 to &et tbe 
federal cnpnic 1abe1inC law enacted. 
Tbat effort 1acceeded •qaiut all 
odds," DeJ'uio said. ..,. thou&b the 
Democratic leadenhip wa1 ol>POl8d to 
IL 

"We need to set off a wave so tllat 
people know this ii coaln&" aad can 
tell their aenaton and npn11entatlves 
tbat th91 mpport the meuva, Bour 
laid.. 

Bour aated that wlaen .. lint ill­
trodaced a GllO labeUDI bW 11,.... 
aao. sbe llecl ao ce-epouon; aow. lbe 
lm 11. llGar alllo aalild tbat sbe ae-
ceeded lar.erca~eaaettlae 
do tua biUml ~---:e:ot J'SJAEtl"ol 

~, .... ~---..... ..,.._. .. _._ m1nwllbae fads,.., ....... dectliom .. 
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M r. President a nd members of the Senate. 

Our da i ry industry is in  decline. Our swine ind ustry needs suppo rt .  The b i l l  before you is the vehicle we 

need to bui ld  these industries. 235 1 provides an exemption in the Corporate Limited l iabi l ity company 

farming section of code to a l low a non-fam ily owned Corporate or LLC model to engage in Dairy or 

Swine production. 

Currently we a re l im ited to a related 15 member structure to the 3rd degree of Kinship o r  roughly 1
st 

cousins to operate in  a Corporate o r  Lim ited L iabi l ity Company. Cha pter 10 Section 6.1  is the Corporate 

Farm ing section. Add ing to su bsection 1 2 . 1 .  This su bsection describes who is a l lowed to engage in 

fa rming under a corporate or LLC model .  

With the passage of SB 2 3 5 1  we wi l l  reta in a l l  the  provisions and protections we currently have when a 

Corporation may acq u ire fa rmland.  

When a corporation or LLC a cq u ires a p iece of farmland through lease o r  sale greater than twenty a cres 

they must file with the attorney genera l :  

1 .  The name of the com pany 

2 .  The agent 

3 .  The acreage and location 

4. The date a nd method of acqu isition 

Each yea r, as  is normal  with other corporations and LLCs, these companies wil l  be requ ired to fi le with 

the Secretary of State, in a s imi lar  fash ion to the requ irements of the Attorney General  but in  a broader 

more deta iled manner. 

Each yea r  the Attorney General  is to conduct a random compl ia n ce check of at least 5 percent of 

Corporations that orga n ize under this chapter. 

Corporations or LLCs that hold fa rm l a nd in ownersh ip or lease that a re not engaged in farming m ust 

d ivest the hold ing within 3 yea rs. 

U nder this b i l l  the Corporation or LLC m ust place a da i ry or Swine operation on the land owned or lease. 

They cannot s imply buy land to support a nother operation .  

The b i l l  l im its a Corporation or LLC to one section of  land to  own or lease. 

M r. President, I am confident i n  the solid function of this b i l l .  I bel ieve it properly complements the 

current law and does not create issues of d iscrim ination that i n  othe r  states have shown to be a 

violation of the dormant com m e rce clause. That clause proh ibits the obstruction of interstate 

com merce based on discri m ination of state of origin. O u r  current proposa l does not d iscriminate in that 

manner as it a l lows a l l  Domestic Corporations or LLCs to engage in the practice of Dairy or Swine.  

I 



I, M r. President, desire a n i m a l  agriculture to flourish in North Dakota .  It benefits not on ly those engaged 

d i rectly in the business, but a l l  fa rme rs that produce feedstock. We need more l ivestock in  North 

Dakota . This is good for economic development. 
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s�a.-� Pi .... U� CHAPTER 1 0-06.1  

CORPORATE OR LIMITED LIABI LITY COMPANY FARMING 

1 0-06. 1 -01 . Defin itions. 
3/ 5 I /5 

For the purposes of this chapter, unless the language or context clearly ind icates that a 
different meaning is intended : 

1 .  "Farming or ranching" means cultivating land for production of agricultural crops or 
l ivestock, or the raising or producing of livestock or l ivestock products, poultry or 
poultry products, milk or dairy products, or fruit or horticultural products. It does not 
include production of timber or forest products, nor does it include a contract whereby 
a processor or distributor of farm products or supplies provides grain ,  harvesting, or 
other farm services. 

2 .  "Farming or  ranching corporation" means a farm or  ranch corporation, joint-stock 
company, or association which, at al l  times, complies with the requirements of this 
chapter. 

3 .  "Farming or ranching l imited liabi l ity company" means a farm or ranch l imited l iabil ity 
company which, at all times, complies with the requirements of this chapter. 

4 .  "Nonprofit organization" means a n  organization o r  trust that has tax-exempt status 
under at least one of the following sections of the Internal Revenue Code: 
a. An organization that was in existence on December 31 , 1 984, and that is 

organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, testing for 
public safety, l iterary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to 
children or animals under section 501 (c)(3), or is a domestic fraternal 
organization under section 501 (c)( 1 0). 

b. A charitable, rel igious, educationa l ,  or scientific organization classified as either a 
private foundation or as a public charity having status as an organization 
described in section 509(a)( 1 )  or (3). 

c. A trust described in section 4947 for which a deduction is allowable under section 
1 70. 

1 0-06.1 -02. Farmi ng or ranching by corporations and l imited l iabi l ity companies 
prohibited. 

All corporations and l imited l iabil ity companies, except as otherwise provided in this chapter, 
are prohibited from owning or leasing land used for farming or ranching and from engaging in 
the business of farming or ranch ing. A corporation or a l imited liabil ity company may be a 
partner in a partnership that is in the business of farming or ranching only if that corporation or 
l imited l iabi lity company complies with this chapter. 

1 0-06.1 -03. Retention of mineral interests prohibited. 
For land and minerals acquired after Ju ly 1 ,  1 985, any corporation or l imited liabil ity 

company that acquires mineral interests through foreclosure or in l ieu of foreclosure which were 
not specifical ly valued at the time the security interest in the minerals was acquired, and which 
is prohibited from owning or leasing land used in farming or ranching, is prohibited from 
retaining mineral interests in land used for farming or ranching when the corporation or l imited 
liabil ity company divests itself of the land, and the mineral interests must be passed with the 
surface estate of the land when the corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company divests itself of the 
land under this chapter. 

1 0-06.1 -04. Conversion of corporations. 
A business corporation organized under chapter 1 0-1 9 . 1  may convert to a farming or 

ranch ing corporation by adopting an amendment to its articles of incorporation which specifies 
that the corporation elects to be subject to this chapter and by complying with all requirements 
of this chapter. The amendment must be filed with the secretary of state with the prescribed fee 
and with the initial report required by section 1 0-06. 1 -1 5 . A farming or ranching corporation may 
convert to a business corporation by adopting an amendment to its articles of incorporation . The 
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amendment must be filed with the secretary of state with the prescribed fee. The amendment 
must be accompanied by a report outl ining the information , as of the date of the amendment, 
which is required under section 1 0-06. 1 - 1 7, and the manner in which the corporation has 
divested itself of its owned or leased land holdings and its bus ness of farming or ranching . 

1 0-06.1 -05. Conversion of l i mited l iabi l ity company. 
A domestic business l imited l iabi l ity company organized under chapter 1 0-32 may convert to 

a farming or ranching l imited l iabi l ity company by adopting an amendment to its articles of 
organization which specifies that the l imited l iabi l ity company elects to be subject to this chapter 
and by complying with all requirements of th is chapter. The amendment must be filed with the 
secretary of state with the prescribed fee and with the initial report required by section 
1 0-06. 1 - 1 5 . A farming or ranching l imited l iabil ity company may convert to a domestic business 
l imited l iabil ity company by adopting an amendment to its articles of organization.  The 
amendment must be filed with the secretary of state with the prescribed fee. The amendment 
must be accompanied by a report outl ining the information ,  as of the date of the amendment, 
which is required under section 1 0-06. 1 - 1 7  and the manner in which the l imited l iabi l ity company 
has divested itself of its owned or leased land holdings and its business of farming or ranching. 

1 0-06. 1 -06. Surface coal mining - Exception. 
A corporation or l imited l iabi lity company not engaged in the business of farming or ranching 

may own or lease lands used for farming or ranching, when the business of such a corporation 
or l imited l iabi l ity company is the conducting of surface coal m ning operations or related energy 
conversion, and when the owning or leasing of lands used for farming or ranching is reasonably 
necessary in the conduct of the business of surface coal min ing or related energy conversion. 
When the necessity for owning or leasing of lands used for farming or ranching no longer exists, 
the exception provided in this section ceases and the corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company 
owning or leasing such lands is subject to this chapter. 

1 0-06.1 -07. Industrial and business purpose exception. 
A corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company that is not engaged in the business of farming or 

ranching may own or lease land used for farming or ranching when the land is necessary for 
residential or commercial development; the siting of buildings, plants, faci l ities, industrial parks, 
or similar business or industrial purposes of the corporation or l imited l iabi lity company; or for 
uses supportive of or ancil lary to adjacent nonagricultural land for the benefit of both land 
parcels. The farmland or ranchland while not being immedia:ely used for any purpose of the 
corporation or l im ited l iabi l ity company must be available to be leased by persons who farm or 
ranch as sole proprietorships or partnerships, or by corporati ons or l imited l iabi l ity companies 
allowed to engage in farming or ranching under section 1 0-06. 1 - 1 2 . 

1 0-06.1 -08. Cooperative corporations allowed to engage in the business of farming or 
ranching - Requirements. 

This chapter does not prohibit cooperative corporations . seventy-five percent of whose 
members or shareholders are actual farmers or ranchers residing on farms or ranches or 
depending principally on farming or ranching for their livelihood, from acquiring real estate and 
engaging in cooperative farming or ranching. 

1 0-06. 1 -09. Certai n  nonprofit organizations or trusts may own or lease land - Certain 
nonprofit organizations m ay continue farming or ranching - Restriction on acquisition 
and ownership of land. 

1 .  A nonprofit organization or a trust for the benefit of an individual or a class of 
individuals related with in the degrees of kinship specified in subsection 2 of section 
1 0-06. 1 - 1 2  may own or lease farmland or ranchland if that land is leased to a person 
who farms or ranches the land as a sole proprietorship or partnership, or a corporation 
or l imited l iabi l ity company al lowed to engage in farming or ranching under section 
1 0-06. 1 - 1 2. 
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2.  To the extent farming or ranch ing is essential to a nonprofit organization's charitable 
purposes, a nonprofit organization actively engaged in the business of farming or 
ranching in this state on January 1 ,  1 983, may continue to engage in the business of 
farming or ranching without interruption after January 1 ,  1 983. 

3 .  A nonprofit organization that owned farmland or ranchland for the preservation of 
unique historical, archaeological ,  or environmental land before January 1 ,  1 983, may 
continue ownership of that land without interruption after January 1 ,  1 983. An 
organization that is holding land for scenic preservation shall either prohibit all hunting, 
or if any parcel of the land is open to hunting, it must be open to hunting by the general 
public. 

1 0-06.1 -1 0. Acqu isition of certain farmland or ranch land by certain nonprofit 
organizations. 

A nonprofit organization may acquire farmland or ranchland only in accordance with the 
following:  

1 .  Un less it is permitted to own farmland or ranch land under section 1 0-06. 1 -09, the 
nonprofit organization must have been either incorporated in this state or issued a 
certificate of authority to do business in this state before January 1 ,  1 985, or, before 
January 1 ,  1 987, have been incorporated in this state if the nonprofit organization was 
created or authorized under Public Law No. 99-294 [ 1 00 Stat. 4 1 8] .  A nonprofit 
organization created or authorized under Public Law No. 99-294 [ 1 00 Stat. 4 1 8] may 
acquire no more than twelve thousand acres [4856.228 hectares] of land from interest 
derived from state, federa l ,  and private sources held in its trust fund. 

2 .  The land may be acquired only for the purpose of conserving natural areas and 
habitats for biota, and, after acquisition: 
a.  The land must be maintained and managed for the purpose of conserving natural 

area and habitat for biota. 
b. Any agricultural use of the land is in accordance with the management of the land 

for conservation and agricultural use, and is by a sole proprietorship or 
partnership, or a corporation or l imited liabil ity company allowed to engage in 
farming or ranching under section 1 0-06. 1 -1 2 . 

c. If any parcel of the land is open to hunting , it must be open to hunting by the 
general public. 

d. The nonprofit organization must fully comply with all state laws relating to the 
control of noxious and other weeds and insects. 

e. The nonprofit organization must make payments in  lieu of property taxes on the 
property, calculated in the same manner as if the property was subject to full 
assessment and levy of property taxes. 

f. All property subject to valuation must be assessed for the purpose of making the 
payments under subdivision e in the same manner as other real property in this 
state is assessed for tax purposes. Before June thirtieth of each year, the county 
auditor of any county in which property subject to valuation is located shall give 
written notice to the nonprofit organization and the tax commissioner of the value 
placed by the county board of equal ization upon each parcel of property subject 
to valuation in the county. 

3. Before farmland or ranchland may be purchased by a nonprofit organization for the 
purpose of conserving natural areas and habitats for biota, the governor must approve 
the proposed acquisition. A nonprofit organization that desires to purchase farmland or 
ranchland for the purpose of conserving natural areas and habitats for biota shall first 
submit a proposed acquisition plan to the agriculture commissioner who shall convene 
an advisory committee consisting of the director of the parks and recreation 
department, the agriculture commissioner, the state forester, the director of the game 
and fish department, the president of the North Dakota farmers union, the president of 
the North Dakota farm bureau, the president of the North Dakota stockmen's 
association, and the chairman of the county commission of any county affected by the 
acquisition , or their designees. The advisory committee shall hold a public hearing with 
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the board of county commissioners concerning the proposed acqu isition plan and shall 
make recommendations to the governor with in forty-five days after receipt of the 
proposed acqu isition plan .  The governor shall approve or d isapprove any proposed 
acquisition plan ,  or any part thereof, within thirty days after receipt of the 
recommendations from the advisory committee. 

4 .  Land acquired in accordance with this section may not be conveyed to the United 
States or any agency or instrumental ity of the United States. 

5 .  On fai lure to q ual ify to continue ownership under subsection 2 ,  the land must be 
disposed of within five years of that failure to qual ify. 

1 0-06.1 -1 1 .  Required divestiture of agricultural land. 
I n  addition to the divestiture requirements of sections 1 0-06. 1 -1 0  and 1 0-06. 1 -24, a 

nonprofit corporation that acquires land by gift or devise after December 3 1 , 1 984, the 
ownership of which is not permitted under this chapter, shall d ivest itself of the land within ten 
years after the acquisition. For purposes of this section, "ownership" means holding either fee or 
equitable title, unless fee title is held solely as security for payment of the purchase price, or 
unless fee title does not carry with it the right to immediate possession of the property. If the 
corporation fai ls to divest itself of the land within the required time, the attorney general shall 
take action under section 1 0-06 . 1 -24. 

1 0-06. 1 -12 .  Corporation or l imited l iabil ity company allowed to engage in the 
business of farmi n g  or ranching - Requirements. 

This chapter does not prohibit a domestic corporation or a domestic l imited l iabi l ity company 
from owning real estate and engaging in the business of farming or ranching,  if the corporation 
meets all the requirements of chapter 1 0- 1 9 . 1  or the l imited l iabi lity company meets all the 
requirements of chapter 1 0-32 which are not inconsistent with this chapter. The following 
requirements also apply: 

1 .  I f  a corporation,  the corporation must not have more than fifteen shareholders. If a 
l imited l iabi l ity company, the l imited liabil ity company must not have more than fifteen 
members. 

2 .  Each shareholder o r  member must be  related to each of the other shareholders or 
members with in one of the following degrees of kinship or affinity: parent, son, 
daughter, stepson, stepdaughter, grandparent, grandson, granddaughter, brother, 
sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, great-grandparent, great-grandchild , first cousin ,  or 
the spouse of a person so related . 

3 .  Each shareholder or member must be an individual or one of the following: 
a. A trust for the benefit of an individual or a class of individuals who are related to 

every shareholder of the corporation or member of the l imited l iabi l ity company 
within the degrees of kinship or affinity specified in this section . 

b .  An estate of a decedent who was related to every shareholder of the corporation 
or member of the l imited liabi lity company within the degrees of kinship or affinity 
specified in this section . 

4 .  A trust or  an estate may not be a shareholder or  member i f  the beneficiaries of  the 
trust or the estate together with the other shareholders or members are more than 
fifteen in number. 

5 .  Each ind ividual who is a shareholder or member must be a citizen of the United States 
or a permanent resident al ien of the United States. 

6. If a corporation,  the officers and directors of the corporation must be shareholders who 
are actively engaged in operating the farm or ranch and at least one of the 
corporation's shareholders must be an ind ividual residing on or operating the farm or 
ranch . If a l imited liabil ity company, the governors and managers of the l imited l iabil ity 
company must be members who are actively engaged in operating the farm or ranch 
and at least one of its members must be an individual residing on or operating the farm 
or ranch. 

7. An annual average of at least sixty-five percent of the gross income of the corporation 
or l imited l iabi l ity company over the previous five years, or for each year of its 
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existence, if less than five years, must have been derived from farming or ranching 
operations. 

8. The income of the corporation or limited liabil ity company from nonfarm rent, nonfarm 
royalties, dividends, interest, and annuities cannot exceed twenty percent of the gross 
income of the corporation or l imited l iabil ity company. 

1 0-06. 1 -1 3. Appl icabil ity of North Dakota Busi ness Corporation Act. 
Chapter 1 0- 1 9 . 1  is appl icable to farming or ranching corporations, which have the powers 

and privileges and are subject to the duties , restrictions, and l iabil ities of other business 
corporations except when inconsistent with the intent of this chapter. This chapter takes 
precedence in the event of any conflict with the provisions of chapter 1 0-1 9. 1 . 

1 0-06.1 -14. Applicabil ity of North Dakota l imited l iabi l ity company laws. 
Chapter 1 0-32, except those sections which pertain to foreign l imited l iabil ity companies, is 

appl icable to farming or ranching l imited l iabi lity companies, which have the powers and 
privileges and are subject to the duties, restrictions, and l iabil ities of other business l imited 
l iabil ity companies, except when inconsistent with the intent of this chapter. This chapter takes 
precedence in the event of any conflict with the provisions of chapter 1 0-32. 

1 0-06.1 -15.  Initial report - Shareholder and member require ments. 
1 .  Every farming or ranching corporation or limited l iabil ity company shall file an in itial 

report with its articles of incorporation .  The report must be signed by the incorporators 
or organizers and must contain the fol lowing: 
a .  The name of the corporation or  l imited l iabi lity company. 
b. With respect to each shareholder or member: 

( 1 )  The name and address of each , includ ing the names and addresses and 
relationships of trusts and estates that own shares or membership interests; 

(2) The number of shares or membership interests or percentage of shares or 
membership interests owned by each; 

(3) The relationship of each; 
(4) A statement of whether each is a citizen or permanent resident alien of the 

United States; and 
(5) A statement of whether each is actively engaged in operating the farm or 

ranch, whether each resides on the farm or ranch, and whether each 
depends principally on farming or ranching for a livelihood. 

c. With respect to management: 
( 1 )  If a corporation, then the names and addresses of the officers and members 

of the board of directors; or 
(2) If a l imited liabi lity company, then the names and addresses of the 

managers and members of the board of governors. 
d. A statement l isting the acreage [he ctarage] and location l isted by section , 

township, range, and county of al l  land in the state owned or leased by the 
corporation or l imited l iabil ity company and used for farming or ranching. 

2. A corporation or a l imited liabil ity company may not commence farming or ranching in 
this state until the secretary of state has received and filed the articles of incorporation 
or articles of organization and the initial report required by this section . The corporation 
or l imited l iabi l ity company shall furnish to the official county newspaper of each county 
or counties in which any land is owned or leased by the corporation or limited l iabil ity 
company a legal notice reporting the following: 
a.  The name of the corporation or l imited l iabil ity company and its shareholders or 

members as l isted in the initial report. 
b. A statement to the effect that the corporation or l imited l iabil ity company has 

reported that it owns or leases land used for farming or ranching in the county 
and that a description of that land is available for inspection at the secretary of 
state's office. 
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1 0-06. 1 -1 6. Share and membership i nterest transfer records. 
Every corporation owning or leasing land used for farming or ranching or engaged in 

farming or ranching after June 30, 1 981 , shal l  keep a record of transfers of shares or transfers 
of interests in the corporation. Every l imited liabil ity company owning or leasing land used for 
farming or ranching or engaged in farming or ranch ing shall keep a record of transfers of 
membership interests in the limited liabi lity company. If a corporation ,  the corporation's secretary 
shall cause to be recorded in the record all transfers of shares or transfers of interests among 
and between the corporation and its respective shareholders or holders of interest. If a lim ited 
l iabil ity company, the l imited l iabi l ity company's secretary shal l cause to be recorded in the 
record al l  transfers of membership interests among and between the l imited l iabi lity company 
and its respective members. The record must contain at least the fol lowing: the names of the 
transferor and transferee, their relationship, the date of the transfer and, if a corporation , the 
number of shares or the percentage of interests transferred or, if a l imited l iabi lity company, the 
number or percentage of membership interests transferred. 

1 0-06. 1 -1 7. Annual report - Contents - Fi l ing require ments. 
Before April sixteenth of each year, every corporation engaged in farming or ranching after 

June 30, 1 98 1 , and every l imited l iabil ity company engaged in farming or ranching shall file with 
the secretary of state an annual report signed as provided in subsection 54 of section 
1 0-1 9 . 1 -01  if a corporation and subsection 58 of section 1 0-32-02 if a l imited liabi l ity company. If 
the corporation or l imited l iabi lity company is in the hands of a receiver or trustee, it must be 
signed on behalf of the corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company by the receiver or trustee. An 
annual report in  a sealed envelope postmarked by the United States postal service before the 
date provided in this section or an annual report in a sealed packet with a verified shipment date 
by any other carrier service before the date provided in th is section meets the fil ing date 
requirement. An annual report must include the fol lowing information with respect to the 
preceding calendar year: 

1 .  The name of the corporation or l imited l iabil ity company. 
2 .  The name of the registered agent of the corporation or l imited l iabi lity company as 

provided in chapter 1 0-0 1 . 1  and, if a noncommercial registered agent, the address of 
the registered office of the corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company in this state . 

3 .  With respect to each corporation : 
a .  A statement of the aggregate number of shares the corporation has authority to 

issue, itemized by classes, par value of shares, shares without par value, and 
series, if any, with in a class. 

b .  A statement of the aggregate number of issued shares, itemized by classes, par 
value of shares, shares without par value, and series, if any, with in a class. 

4 .  With respect to  each shareholder or  member: 
a .  The name and address of  each, including the names and addresses and 

relationships of beneficiaries of trusts and estates which own shares or 
membership interests; 

b. The number of shares or membership interests or percentage of shares or 
membership interests owned by each; 

c. The relationship of each; 
d .  A statement of  whether each i s  a citizen or  permanent resident alien of the United 

States; and 
e. A statement of whether at least one is an individual residing on or operating the 

farm or ranch . 
5. With respect to management: 

a .  If a corporation,  then the names and addresses of  the officers and members of 
the board of d irectors; or 

b .  If a l imited l iabil ity company, then the names and addresses of the managers and 
members of the board of governors. 

6 .  A statement l isting the acreage [hectarage] and location l isted by section, township, 
range, and county of all land in the state owned or leased by the corporation or l imited 
liabi lity company and used for farming or ranch ing. The statement must also designate 
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which, if any, of the acreage [hectarage] is leased from or jointly owned with any 
shareholder or member and l ist the name of the shareholder or member with that 
acreage [hectarage]. 

7. A statement of the percentage of the annual average gross income of the corporation 
or l imited liabil ity company which has been derived from farming or ranching 
operations over the previous five years or for each year of existence if less than five 
years. 

8 .  A statement of the percentage of gross income of the corporation or l imited l iability 
company derived from nonfarm rent, nonfarm royalties, dividends, interest, and 
annuities during the period covered by the report. 

9 .  A corporation engaged in farming which fails to  file an annual report is subject to the 
penalties provided in section 1 0-1 9. 1 - 1 4  7 except that the penalties must be calculated 
from the date of the report required by this section. 

1 0 . A lim ited liabi lity company engaged in farming which fails to file an annual report is 
subject to the penalties provided in subsections 5 and 6 of section 1 0-32-1 49 except 
that the penalties must be calculated from the date of the report required by this 
section. 

1 0-06. 1 -1 8 .  Reports of corporations and l imited l iabi l ity companies not engaged in 
farming or ranching.  

Any business or nonprofit corporation and any limited l iabil ity company not engaged in the 
business of farming or ranching which owns or leases a tract of land used for farming or 
ranching which is larger than twenty acres [8.09 hectares] in  size shall file with the attorney 
general, with in twelve months of any transaction involving the purchase, sale, or surface leasing 
of such farmland or ranchland by that corporation or l imited liabil ity company, a report conta ining 
all of the following information: 

1 .  The name of the corporation or l imited liabi lity company and its place of incorporation 
or organization and, if a nonprofit corporation , a copy of its section 501 (c)(3) 
exemption letter from the internal revenue service. 

2 .  The name of the registered agent of the corporation or  l imited liabi lity company as 
provided in chapter 1 0-0 1 . 1  and, if a noncommercial registered agent, then the 
address of the noncommercial registered agent in this state. 

3 .  The acreage [hectarage] and location l isted by  section, township, range, and county of 
al l  such land in the state owned or leased by the corporation or l imited liabil ity 
company and used for farming or ranching. 

4 .  The date and method of acquisition o r  d isposal of such farmland o r  ranchland. 

1 0-06.1 -1 9 .  Exemption from certain disclosure and other require ments for certain 
organizations. 

Sections 1 0-06. 1 -1 2 , 1 0-06. 1 -1 5, 1 0-06 . 1 - 1 7 , and 1 0-06 . 1 -1 8 do not apply to nonprofit 
organizations or to corporations or l i mited l iabi lity companies such as banks , trust companies, or 

foundations serving in a fiduciary capacity as the personal representative or trustee of an estate 
or trust for an individual described in subsection 2 of section 1 0-06. 1 -1 2 . 

1 0-06.1 -20. Fai lure to fi le report - Penalty. 
Every corporation or l imited l iabil ity company which fai ls to file any report required under 

this chapter or wil lful ly files false information on any report required under this chapter is gui lty 
of a class A misdemeanor. 

1 0-06. 1 -2 1 .  Secretary of state to transmit information of noncompliance. 
If the secretary of state finds from the annual report that the corporation or limited liability 

company is not in compl iance with the requirements of section 1 0-06. 1 -1 2, the secretary of state 
shall transmit such information to the attorney general and the governor. 
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1 0-06.1 -22. Tax commissioner to compare returns and reports. 
Each year the tax commissioner shall select at random at least five percent of the income 

tax returns filed by corporations or l imited l iabil ity companies which report on income from 
farming or ranching operations and shall compare such returns with the annual report required 
to be filed with the secretary of state by section 1 0-06. 1 - 1 7  and shall forward any apparent 
violations to the attorney general and the governor. 

1 0-06.1 -23.  Attorney general to conduct random compl iance program. 
Each year the attorney general shall select at random at least five percent of the total 

number of corporations and l imited liabi lity companies authorized by this chapter for requests for 
information to determine compliance with this chapter. For such purpose, the attorney general 
may request affidavits, share transfer records, certified copies of marriage l icenses, birth 
certificates, deeds, leases, and such other records and documents necessary to determine 
compliance. 

1 0-06. 1 -24. E nforcement - Penalty. 
1 .  The recorder shall mail or del iver a copy of every instrument filed or recorded, within 

thirty days after the instrument is recorded, to the attorney general if the instrument 
documents evidence of a lease agreement or purchase agreement pursuant to 
subsection 6 or 7 or if the instrument conveys the title to farmland or ranchland to a 
corporation or l imited l iabil ity company. The attorney general shall commence an 
action in the district court of the county in which the substantial portion of farmland or 
ranchland used in violation of this chapter is situated if the attorney general has reason 
to believe that any person is violating this chapter. The attorney general shall file for 
record with the recorder of each county in  which any portion of the land is located a 
notice of the pendency of the action .  If the court finds that the land in question is being 
held in violation of this chapter, or that a corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company is 
conducting the business of farming or ranching in violation of this chapter, the court 
shall enter an order so declaring.  The attorney general shall file any such order for 
record with the recorder of each county in which any portion of the land is located. 
Thereafter, the corporation or l imited l iabil ity company shal l ,  with in the time set by the 
court not to exceed one year from the date of the court's final order, d ivest itself of any 
farming or ranching land owned or leased by it in violation of this chapter, and cease 
all farming or ranching operations. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 1 0 , any 
corporation or l imited l iabil ity company that fails to comply with the court's order is 
subject to a civil penalty not to exceed twenty-five thousand dollars and may be 
dissolved or terminated by the secretary of state . 

2. The divestment period is deemed to be a covenant running with the title to the land 
against any corporate or l imited l iabil ity company grantee, corporate or l imited l iabil ity 
company successor, or corporation or l imited l iabi lity company assignee of the 
corporation or l imited l iabi lity company not authorized to do business under this 
chapter. 

3 .  Any land not d ivested with in the divestment period prescribed must be sold at public 
sale in the manner prescribed by law for the foreclosure of real estate mortgage by 
action.  In addition , any prospective or threatened violation may be enjoined by an 
action brought by the attorney general in the manner provided by law, including 
enjoining the corporation or l imited l iabil ity company from completing performance on 
the remainder of any leasehold which is in violation of this chapter. 

4 .  Subject to the divestiture requirements of  subsections 5 ,  6 ,  and 7, a domestic or 
foreign corporation or l imited liabil ity company may acquire farmland or ranchland as 
security for indebtedness, by process of law in the collection of debts, or by any 
procedure for the enforcement of a lien or claim thereon, whether created by mortgage 
or otherwise. 

5. Unless retention of the farmland or ranchland is permitted under subsection 6 or 7, al l 
farmland or ranchland acquired as security for indebtedness, in the collection of debts, 
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or by the enforcement of a lien or claim shall be disposed of with in three years after 
acquiring ownersh ip, if the acquisition would otherwise violate this chapter. 

6 .  The disposition requirement does not apply to a corporation or  limited liabil ity company 
that has acquired title to the land through the process of foreclosure of a mortgage, or 
a deed from a mortgagor instead of a foreclosure,  if, by the expiration of one month 
after what is or what would have been the redemption period of the mortgage if the 
mortgage had been foreclosed, that corporation or l imited l iabi lity company leases to 
the prior mortgagor from whom it was acquired, with an option to purchase, and if 
documents evidencing the lease agreement have been filed with the recorder of each 
county in which the land is located . A copy of a notice of lease is sufficient evidence. 
The exemption in this subsection applies for only five years and then only if the 
property has been appraised in accordance with subsection 8. The annual lease 
payments required of the tenant may not exceed seven percent of the appraised 
value. 

7.  The disposition requirement does not apply to a corporation or l imited liabil ity company 
that has acquired title to the land through the process of foreclosure of a mortgage, or 
a deed from the mortgagor instead of foreclosure, if, by the expiration of one month 
after what is or what would have been the redemption period of the mortgage if the 
mortgage had been foreclosed, that corporation or limited l iabil ity company contracts 
for the sale of the land to the prior mortgagor from whom it was acquired , and if 
documents evidencing the purchase agreement have been filed with the recorder of 
each county in which the land is located . A copy of a notice of the contract for deed is 
sufficient evidence. An exemption under this subsection is valid only if an appraisal has 
been made in accordance with subsection 8, and if it is val id,  the exemption is 
unl imited in duration . The sale price may not exceed the price determined by the 
appraisers. 

8. If  an appraisal is required, the appraisal must be made by three independent 
appraisers, one selected by the corporation or l imited liabi lity company, one selected 
by the prior mortgagor, and the third selected by the first two appraisers . 

9.  If a corporation or l imited liabi lity company holds land pending divestiture, and the 
holding is not otherwise governed by this section, the land must be leased to persons 
actually engaged in farming or ranching and a disposal may not be to a corporation or 
l imited l iabil ity company unless ownership by that corporation or l imited liability 
company is authorized under this chapter. 

1 0 . The civil penalty for a violation of section 1 0-06. 1 - 1 0  may not exceed one hundred 
thousand dollars. 

1 1 .  Except as provided in subsection 1 0 , any corporation or l imited l iabil ity company 
continuing to violate this chapter is subject to a civil penalty not to exceed twenty-five 
thousand dollars and may be dissolved or terminated by the attorney general in 
accordance with the laws of this state. 

1 0-06. 1 -25. Private enforcement. 
This chapter may be enforced in the same manner as provided in section 1 0-06 . 1 -24 by any 

corporation or limited l iabil ity company authorized to engage in farming or ranching by this 
chapter or any resident of legal age of a county in which the land owned or leased by a 
corporation or l imited l iabi l ity company in violation of this chapter is located . If such action is 
successfu l ,  all costs of the action must be assessed against the defendant and a reasonable 
attorney's fee must be al lowed the plaintiff. If judgment is rendered for the defendant, such costs 
and a reasonable attorney's fee for the defendant must be paid by the plaintiff. 

1 0-06.1 -26. Protection of m inority shareholders. 
If a shareholder owns less than fifty percent of the shares of a farming or ranching 

corporation doing business under this chapter, and if the terms and conditions for the 
repurchase of those shares by the corporation or by the other shareholders are not set forth in 
the bylaws or the instrument which transferred the shares to the shareholder, or are not the 
subject of a shareholders' agreement or an agreement between that shareholder and the 
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corporation, then the disposition of such shares must be determined by th is section upon the 
withdrawal of the shareholder. Any shareholder who desires to withdraw from the corporation 
shall first offer the shares for sale to the remaining shareholders in proportion to the shares 
owned by them. If not all of the shareholders wish to purchase the shares, any one shareholder 
may purchase all of the shares of the withdrawing shareholder. If no shareholder desires to 
purchase the shares of a withdrawing shareholder, then the corporation may purchase the 
shares. If the corporation chooses not to purchase the shares of the withdrawing shareholder, 
then the withdrawing shareholder may sell the shares to any other person eligible to be a 
shareholder. If the withdrawing shareholder is unable to sell the shares to any other person 
eligible to become a shareholder, then the withdrawing shareholder may bring an action in 
district court to dissolve the corporation. Upon a finding that the withdrawing shareholder cannot 
sell the shares at a fair price, the court shall enter an order directing that the corporation itself or 
any or all of the remaining shareholders pro rata or otherwise shall have twelve months from the 
date of the court's order to purchase the shares of the withdrawing shareholder at a fair price as 
determined by the court and that if the shares of the withdrawing shareholder are not completely 
purchased at said price, the corporation shall be d issolved and the assets of the corporation 
shall be first used to pay all the l iabi l ities of the corporation with the remaining net assets to be 
distributed pro rata to the shareholders in proportion to their ownership of shares. For the 
purpose of this section, a fair price for the shares of the withdrawing shareholder must be 
determined as though the shares were being va lued for federal g ift tax purposes under the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

1 0-06. 1 -27. Protection of m i nority members. 
If a member owns less than fifty percent of the membership interest of a farming or ranching 

l imited l iabi l ity company doing business under this chapter and if the terms and conditions for 
the repurchase of that membership interest by the l imited l iabi l ity company or by the other 
members are not set forth in the bylaws, the instrument that transferred the membership interest 
to the member, or are not the subject of a member-control agreement or other agreement 
between that member and the l imited l iabi lity company, the disposition of the membership 
interest must be determined by this section upon the withdrawal of the member. Any member 
who desires to withdraw from the l imited l iabil ity company shall first offer the membership 
interest for sale to the remaining members in proportion to the membership interests owned by 
the remaining members. If not al l  of the members wish to purchase the membership interest, 
any one member can purchase al l  of the membership interest of the withdrawing member. If no 
member desires to purchase the membership interest of the withdrawing member, the l imited 
l iabi l ity company may purchase the membership interest. If the l imited l iabil ity company chooses 
not to purchase the membership interest of the withdrawing member, the withdrawing member 
may sell the membership interest to any other person eligible to be a member. If the withdrawing 
member is unable to sell the membership interest to any other person el igible to become a 
member, the withdrawing member may bring an action in district court to terminate the limited 
l iabi l ity company. Upon a finding that the withdrawing member cannot sell the membership 
interest at a fair price, the court shal l enter an order directing that the l imited l iabi lity company or 
any of the remaining members pro rata or otherwise, have twelve months from the date of the 
court's order to purchase the membership interest of the withdrawing member at a fair price as 
determined by the court and that if the membership interest of the withdrawing member is not 
completely purchased at the fair price, the l imited l iabi lity company must be d issolved and the 
assets of the l imited l iabi l ity company must be first used to pay al l  l iabi l ities of the l imited l iabil ity 
company with the remaining net assets to be distributed pro rata to the members in proportion 
to the member's membersh ip interest ownership. For the purpose of this section, a fair price for 
the membership interest of the withdrawing member must be determined as though the 
membership interest was being valued for federal gift tax purposes under the Internal Revenue 
Code. 
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Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture Committee, I am Agriculture 

Commissioner Doug Goehring. I am here today in support of SB 2351 , which will add 

exemptions to NDCC 10-6.1 for dairy, and swine facilities that lease or own less than 640 acres. 

After many conversations with producers and reviewing livestock data, I support the proposed 

changes to NDCC 10-6.1 on the condition that the bill is limited to swine, dairy and beef 

feedlots. The proposed changes would allow shareholders to invest into livestock entities and 

provide support for farmers and ranchers starting these capital intensive businesses. 

Diversification and sustainability of our livestock industry is critical to its growth, and I believe 

this bill will help achieve that goal. 

The producers of the state have been asking for ways to revitalize their industries. Instead of me 

telling their stories, I want to allow them time to provide this committee with first-hand 

information and stories regarding the real state of their industries. 

Chairman Miller and committee members, thank you for your time. I urge a do pass on SB 

2351. I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
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Former South Dakota Secretary of Agriculture 

45874 2681h St. 

Parker, SD 57053 

Chairman Johnson and Members of the House Ag Committee: 

Livestock have been an integral part of my family ' s farm since my Great Grandfather homesteaded here 

in SE South Dakota in 1879. My 3 brothers, brother-in-law and 3 nephews carry on that tradition today 

with a beef cow herd and beef feedlot. Back in 1997 we were looking for opportunities to grow our 

business so that we could make room for our 51h generation . We thought land prices were way too high to 

buy a lot more land and the corresponding land rents were also too high we thought (back then!). So we 

made the decision to try and get more out of every acre we operated rather than to just get more acres . 

We looked to livestock to accomplish that and settled on spearheading an effort to build a 1500 cow 

dairy. We were able to get a few neighbors interested but saw that we were going need to attract some 

outside capital to make that happen. We did, the Turner County Dairy was built and has worked out so 

well for the farmers that we have since bought out all but two of our outside investors. In round numbers, 

selling our com to the dairy has returned us $100 more per acre than combining the com and selling it to 

the local elevator. 

We do not have many of these "cooperative" dairies here in SD, but in our case, we would not have been 

able to accomplish this without the outside capital. 

According to our South Dakota State University economist, Dr. Gary Taylor, each dairy cow generates 

$14,000 in annual economic activity. Similar modeling has been done in Minnesota and Iowa and the 

number is well over $20,000 per cow per year. Well over half of that "activity" stays in the local 

community, primarily to the local farmers that are raising the feed and getting the organic nutrients 

returned to their soil. 

Our Governor, Dennis Daugaard grew up on a dairy farm and l was fortunate to serve as his first 

Secretary of Agriculture. We shared a passion for livestock and a vision for the economic well-being of 

our rural communities. Livestock development was one of our top priorities. 

Agriculture is South Dakota's number one industry and agriculture is the only industry that is consistently 

investing in our rural communities. Fortunately, our Legislators understand that and have witnessed 

firsthand how encouraging SD agriculture has benefited our state. Therefore, since our Family Farm Act 

of 1974 was enacted, the law has been amended and all but the swine industry have been exempted. That 

being said, an Attorney General ' s opinion has given new life to our swine industry so that it has been able 

to expand by 5% each of the last 3 years. 

A vibrant and expanding livestock industry is critical to the future success of our farmers, ranchers and 

the communities they live in . 

Walt Bones 

45874 2681h St. 

Parker, SD 57053 

605.940.8371 



Mister Chairman, members of the committee; 

My name isQaig Jarolimek)a Pork Producer from Forest River located in Walsh County. I 
come before this committee today in support of Senate Bil® 

During the Senate hearings and debate, we heard from political leaders, producers of the dairy, 
swine, beef, com, soybeans, and other agricultural leaders on the merits of this bill and what it 
can do to change the direction of the livestock sustainability in ND. Very positive, valid 
comments were given in favor of this change. There should be no doubt that this bill is critical 
for North Dakota to attract livestock development, which our State desperately needs. 

However, there are still those that question the need for this bill. Why do we need to make 
changes to the intact law, there has been successful livestock development in ND using LLLP or 
Family Partnerships/Corp? 

Let's talk about this; 
I have neighbors and friends in Walsh County that are one of the few independent family farm 
pork producers left in ND. Tim & Kevin Zikmund own and operate a 600 head sow farrow to 
finish operation along with a couple thousand acres of corn and pinto beans. They would be here 
to testify in favor of this bill but Kevin is deeply involved in his church and has a prior 
commitment. Tim is home making things work while Kevin is away. 

What do they have to gain from this bill? Why would they support this change? The opposition 
of this bill says they should oppose this change because it causes unfair competition, destroys our 
family way of life, it is not the moral way to farm, and if we were able to do it without this law, 
they can do it too. 

When Kevin and Tim and I discuss this bill, they are quick to point out the need for this change. 

Tim & Kevin feel that we or the next generation may want to expand our swine operation. That 
means building more buildings, dealing with more outside family labor, more capital needed, and 
risk in marketing. With some creative thinking and planning we could do this in ND under 
current law. However, we would have a large debt load and be putting our current assets at risk. 
If we could invest along with others in a larger more efficient farrowing operation we could grow 
our business for future for family members with limited risk. Reality is under current law we are 
very limited on the entities we can partner with. Our opportunity of success is increased by 
partnering with those that have access to capital, have done this before and know what they are 
doing. 

We raise more corn than we can feed. Basis is killing us, making our grain farming less 
competitive to other regions. If we had more livestock feeding, there would be a local demand 
for our corn, lowering our basis. It's a win for us. If we can feed more pigs our own corn without 
adding large capital investments that will help us in the long run. 

Infrastructure. Today we are lone wolfs out here. If we need to update a building, or want to add 
new construction, we have to go outside the state or to Canada to find equipment and contractors. 

I 



We use out of state nutritionists, veterinarians, and other support at a greater cost than our 
neighbors in SD or MN. 
Labor, we struggle with finding labor that is familiar with swine/livestock. More livestock farms 
mean a larger labor pool of experienced people available to choose from. 

As you can see, we see benefits to changing the law rather than as a threat. They are looking 
beyond their driveway, they are businessmen. This change in the Non Corporate Farming Law is 
not about those that are successful or those that have been able to make gains with the law we 
currently have. This bill is about creating opportunity for those that are looking for the 
opportunity in l ivestock production and have limited resources. This bill  is about bringing 
resources to ND for all to utilize. This bill is about allowing access to a network of connections 
creating opportunity for family farms. Lacing up your boots and hard work are stil l  and wil l  
always be keys to success, but unless you have knowledge of where to go with those boots on 
and work smart your successes will be limited. 

Voting yes on this bi l l  will create opportunity not hinder opportunity, will create opportunity for 
those currently involved and those that want to be involved in swine and dairy, wil l  level the 
playing field with our neighbors, and we currently are the only state that does not have this 
exemption. 

There is tremendous opportunity in this state with livestock development. This exemption allows 
freedom in seeking those opportunities. Voting yes is the right thing to do. 

Questions? 

• 



Annual U.S. Commercial Disappearance 
As the previous charts indicates, milk is used in a variety of different ways. This charts tracks the five main uses of milk, each color representing 
the various uses and showing how demand for these products has changed over time. While the trends show rising overall usage of milk products, 
demand for fluid milk (the blue bar) is slowly declining. Yogurt, which has seen a significant demand increase in recent years, is represented with 
ice cream in the green bar. Note that the 2014 bar represents numbers year-to-date. (updated 2123115) 
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U.S. Total Cheese Inventories 
Inventory levels indicate how much product has already been produced and is now being stored until there is demand for it. Typically, higher levels of inventory 

indicate lower prices because there is excess supply. This chart tracks U.S. Total Cheese Inventories from 2012-present. (updated 2123115) 
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Good morning Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture 

Committee. For the record my name is~I am a 2nd generation farmer 

and livestock producer from Marion, North Dakota. I am former chairman of the 

North Dakota Ag Coalition and a former chairman of the North Dakota Corn 

Utilization Council. I also serve on the North Dakota Corn Growers Association 

Ethanol & Livestock Marketing Committee. The North Dakota Corn Growers 

Association stands in support of Senate Bill 2351. 

My brother, son, nephew and I are active in a 1,000 head Holstein cattle feedlot 

operation. Currently we get our cattle from Northeast Iowa and sell them finished 

to Tyson in Sioux City. The current dairy infrastructure is not enough for us to 

purchase cattle in North Dakota. Barnes County where our farm and feed lot are 

located is down to 4 functioning dairies. Our cattle buyer follows the calves and 

health program from birth to 550 lbs. which is when we purchase them to be 

finished. The care and health program is then transferred to our veterinarian. 

You will likely get arguments that by changing this law out of state interests will 

come in and run small operations like ours out of business. I'm here today to tell 

you that it is getting harder and harder for our operation to function because so 

many have already gotten out of the business. This leads to less large animal 

veterinarian's, less feed suppliers, less sale barns, less students for livestock 

careers - generally less infrastructure. This change in the law will not impede 

family farms but it will compliment them. My only concern with making an 

exemption for our dairy and swine industries is that we may already be too late. 

I will not be redundant in my testimony. You have heard from others that we are 

down to 16,000 dairy cattle in North Dakota. We are now a net importer of milk. 

This is a critical change in the law that may save the North Dakota dairy industry. 

A 1,600 head dairy for today's economy of scale has an estimated cost of $7.7 to 

$9.5 million to build. Current single owner family farms do not have the capital, 

labor resources and man power to compete at this economy of scale. By granting 

these exemptions in the law you will support the current economy of scale and 

allow more access to capital for facilities development and operating needs. 

I 



Livestock p roduction is a method of a d d i ng va l u e  to crops by p rocessing feed 

through a n ima ls .  M o re l ivestock p roduction increases loca l ma rkets for corn, 

soybea n meal ,  d i sti l le r's gra i ns  a nd other  feeds .  Corn p rod uction i n  North Da kota 

has  expa nded from 120.7 m i l l ion  bushels  i n  2004 to 352 m i l l ion bushels  in 2014. 
Even though the corn i n d u stry has experienced tre me ndous growth in  the past 

ten yea rs, the opposite has occu rred i n  o u r  states d a i ry a nd swine i n d u stries.  

Beca use of this our feed is  u nd e rva l ued i n  N o rth Da kota due to ra i l road 

congestion a nd d i sta nce to term i n a l  ma rkets. Livestock ca n add rea l  va l u e .  I n  

looking a t  B l u e  F l i nt ( U nd e rwood) a nd Tha ra ldson (Casselton) etha nol  p l a nt 

cu rrent b ids  for the months of Febru a ry t h rough May basis  leve ls a re at - .50 to -

. 70 per bushe l .  I n  looking at n e ighboring states that have more d a i ry, swi n e  a nd 

l ivestock p rod uction, pa rticu la rly southwestern M i n n esota a nd southeastern 

South Da kota, typica l  eth a n o l  p l a nt b ids for the sa me d e l ivery months a re -.23 to -
.30 per bushe l .  J u st across the border i n  Lyons & Sioux cou nties, Iowa - corn b ids  

a re - . OS to - .13 .  Sioux cou nty, Iowa has a n  esta b l ished l ivestock i n d u stry a nd is  a 

net i m porter of corn .  Th i n k  a bout that for a m i n ute . Another .45 to .57 cents per 

bushel  at cu rrent p rod uction leve l s  wou ld yie ld an a d d it iona l $158.4 to $200 
m i l l ion to o u r  economy before m u lt ip l ier  effects . Th is is  d u e  to the gra i n  a n d  the 

l ivestock i n d u stry com petitively b i d d i ng to loca l fa rms.  

Livestock enterprises help m itigate r isks of weather, ma rkets a nd p rice va ria b i l ity 

of crops. l ntergrated cro p  a nd l ivestock prod uction is more biologica l ly 

susta i na bl e  as  l ivestock m a n u re for fert i l i zer  i m p roves soi l  hea lth a nd crop 

prod uctivity. When we export o u r  corn we a re a lso exporti ng phosphorous a nd 

other vita l soi l  n utrie nts i n  u n it tra i n  loads of gra i n .  Livestock e nterprises wou ld 

serve to reta i n  a nd recycle these n utrients i n  state a nd create a more susta i na b le 

agricu ltura l  economy for the long te rm.  

Mem bers of the Com m ittee, I wou l d  u rge a yes vote on Senate B i l l  2351 a nd 

wou ld be h a p py to ta ke a ny q u est ions.  
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Good morning, I am Kenton Holle a third generation dairy farmer from south 
Mandan I am here in support of SB 23 51. I am representing our farm and also the ND 
Assoc of Milk Producers who support this bill. 

I have affectionately labeled this bill the "HAM AND CHEESE BILL!" 

Eleven years ago My wife Bobby Jo and I relocated our dairy from New Salem to 
St. Anthony. We were at a pivotal time for our family and our farm. We were at a 
position where many producers in North Dakota have found themselves in. Working 
tremendous hours, in facilities that were outdated and even worn out. Upgrades and 
updates or new barns to milk the same number of cows is not feasible. So it was either 
expand or get out. 

All three of our sons helped us to start our new venture. Currently Bobby Jo and I 
are in partnership with our son Andrew his wife Jennifer and their 4 children. Our other 
two sons have chosen careers within other sectors of agriculture. 

I only bring up this part of our story to give you a glimpse into the hard choices 
and decisions that need to be made when a family must decide to stay in or to get out of 
dairy farming. The same is true no matter what enterprise their farm is in. 

I have watched other dairy farm families have to make similar decisions. Some 
have made the commitment to continue in the business. But unfortunately many have 
not. I certainly don't hold anything against anyone who had to make the tough decision 
to get out of the dairy business. 

Long hours, worn out facilities and the cost to update or build new are tough odds 
to overcome. Updates and expansions can easily cost in the hundreds of thousands of 
dollars and new facilities are in the multi-millions. Coming up with the needed equity is 
not easy nor is it simple to get the needed financing. 

J 



During the discussion in the Senate Ag committee for this bill it was brought out 
that the maj or reason for the decline in dairy farm numbers was the lack of a decent 
price for milk. Certainly having a price for milk above the cost of production is 
necessary but in 20 1 4  we saw the highest prices for milk in our history and we continue 
to see producers leave the industry. 

I will  not deny that we milk cows in some very volatile financial times.  I 
would venture to say that every other agricultural producer could look back over the 
years and they as wel l  could say they have seen some times of rather poor economic 
returns. 

Price, labor, facil ities, and the need for capital are all  part of the discussion . 
Every farmer has the same hurdle, the price we get for what we produce. We use 
whatever leverage we have to increase our margins and take some of the financial 
pressure off. 

North Dakota agriculture has changed a lot over the decades, every enterprise has 
seen changes. Our farming practices are different now, the equipment that we use and 
the role that technology plays is stunning. Our farms range from producers who have 
chosen to keep their overhead down and farming only what they can take care of while 
having a j ob off the farm all the way to the farmers who have expanded to tens of 
thousands of acres and hundreds of cattle, and taking advantage of the economies of 
scale.  

No matter what the size of the farm may be, family farming is stil l  a way of l ife . 
We may struggle at times to pay the bills and keep the bank current. But providing for 
our families is  a top priority. 

We embrace the thought of some j ust starting a tradition in farming while others 
have a long family tradition of farming. 

This bill is focusing on the dairy and swine industry which have seen numbers 
that continue to decline. Each industry has been holding campaigns to try and bring new 
life into the country side . Many farmer organizations have stepped forward with their 
check books and with administrative expertise to help put some momentum behind the 
efforts . S ome success has been achieved but not enough to off set those who have left 
the business. 

The opponents to this bil l  are probably going to j ump all over me for what I am 
about to say - but - I think we are over thinking thi s  bil l . It is really quite simple. This 
bill would provide another financial tool ,  another option for a business structure of a 
l ivestock facility. A faci lity that is restricted to 640 acres and to swine and dairy only. All  
the other methods of business structure are stil l  available, it is  not requiring and it  is  not 
restricting. Thi s  is a system that is being used in other states and has resulted in the 
growth of the industry. 



Not only have other states seen the growth of the dairy and swine but those 
farmers who are in the vicinity of the operations have benefited from having a market 
source right next door. In addition they receive the manure from the barns as valuable 
soil nutrients. 

I will use our dairy as an example . We milk 600 cows, when we add in the dry 
cows and replacement heifers and calves that total gets to be 1 ,000 head. That takes a lot 
of corn silage, com grain, alfalfa hay, soybean meal, canola meal, straw and etc. 
That is  600 acres of corn for silage and it needs to be within a 4 mile radius to avoid 
high trucking costs . The corn grain and alfalfa hay comes from a wider area. The total 
acres we require is over 2,000. We only milk 600 cows, a new dairy built today would 
need to be over 1 500 cows. That is  a tremendous marketing opportunity for farmers . The 
farmer who raises corn for silage only has to plant the crop and spray it. The dairy takes 
care of it from there, he has no harvest cost, no trucking, no shrink, no dockage and no 
drying cost 

The nutrient analysis of our l iquid manure for 20 1 4  that we applied to neighbors 
land had a value of $ 1 00,000 .00.  

I understand a new faci lity can be built using the variety of business models that 
are approved for farmers . Those benefits that I just mentioned can happen now. But 
when was the last facility built? I am not aware of any in the last ten years . I am not so 

aive to say that nothing happened because we had anon corporate farming law. But at 
the same time was it a factor in someone's choice? 

As a dairy farmer I am beginning to feel l ike a dinosaur, and that is not a 
comfortable place to be. 
If  we lose our dairy farms and milk plants the need for milk and other dairy products 

wil l  not go away with it. We stil l  need milk. That will have to come into our state and 
how will  the consumers react to that? So our consumers will  be supporting corporate 
farming only another state. 

Mr Chairman and members of the House Ag Committee we could very well be at 
a defining moment for the swine and dairy farmers. 

I know the passing of a corporate farming bill has a very negative tone to it. But 
within the restrictions of thi s  bil l  we have contol .  

S o  what are we to do? 
One choice is  to do nothing, change nothing and just hope for the best . .  That seems to 

be the answer that some would suggest. 
No one else has brought anything else to these industries .  

There are indications that farmers from outside of the state are interested incoming to 
North Dakota but because they have incorporated they are b locked. We can turn them 
away and miss out on the growth of the industry and agriculture in general . 
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There is the possibil ity that this structure could fit our existing farms. A couple 
months ago I had one of those milestone birthdays and we are looking at all the options 
as we begin the transition from my wife and myself to Andrew and Jenni . The corporate 
structure could be a tool we use and also could be a benefit in the future as Andrew's 
family would look at expansion. 

What is the long range plan for the business structure of our North Dakota Family 
Farms? 
Whether this bill passes or fails  no one in this room can predict or guarantee what the 
outcome of that decision wil l  be.  

Maybe it wont make a difference one way or the other. Even though some have 
indicated an interest in coming to North Dakota, no one is sitting at the border waiting 
for thi s  vote. 

We can only use our judgment passed upon the past, looking at our current needs, 
seeing the results of others. To make a decision that can be an opportunity for someone. 



Testimony S~ 
Mister Chairman, Members of the Committee, 

My name is@~vey H-0f9 I am a 3rd generation dairy farmer. My wife Janal and I have been 
dairy farming together for 34 years. We consider ourselves a family dairy milking 100 cows with 

an additional 100 head of youngstock. 

I support SB 2351 because it would allow existing and new dairies to expand and grow to meet 
our states needs for dairy products in our grocery stores and schools. 

Our opponents say our industry is failing because of low milk prices paid to our producers, and 
their solution is to allow a state funded processing plant to be built to bring us another market. 
Our state currently imports milk to fill our needs. To my testimony I have attached a map that 

was recently published in Hoard' s Dairyman magazine, it is titled ' 27 States can' t meet milk 
needs' . As you can see, we are one of those states. Building another processing plant sounds 
good, but first we need to do something to expand current dairies and bring in new dairies. We 
need more cows and more milk to supply our current processing plants and then plan future 

processing plants after we have a supportive milk supply. 

I support the 640 acre limit because this will bring family run dairies that will concentrate on 
their animals and allow neighbors to incorporate and grow their feedstuffs and use the animals 
waste products to help fertilize crops. The more dairies and swine operations we have in the 
state gives our feed growers another outlet for their products. This 640 acre limit will discourage 
large business corporations from coming to our state and purchasing large amounts of land. 
Currently religious organizations are a bigger threat to the family farms because of their power 
and money to purchase land at very high prices. 

If we choose to do nothing our industry will soon be at a very low number of farms . This will 
put us in a position of possibly only having one processor for the entire state. With no 
competition this will be bad for our industry with even lower prices for our products and higher 
freight to get it to the plant. Also quality of our finished products will suffer because of the need 
of milk from other states, and prices of dairy products will increase because of milk shortages. 

The original bill was written in 1932. At that time every farm had a couple of milk cows, 
chickens, and swine. Living off the land was a lifestyle. Times have changed and now it is time 
to change this bill. 

Please pass SB 2351 to help bring back our dairy and swine industry and to balance our 

agricultural state needs. 

I 
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Lisbon, N.D. 58054 

February 12, 2015 

Chairman Johnson and Members of the House Ag Committee: 

I am a long-time resident of our state and I am writing to support Senate~ 

I have watched our North Dakota Dairy Industry retract for the past 40 years and we need to 

make a move that will improve the future expansion and regrowth of our industry in our state. 

This bill has in place acreage limits that will keep it focused on Dairy and Swine Farms and not 

impact other ranching and farming enterprises. 

This bill will also allow family dairy farms incorporated under the Family Farm Corporation 

rules to maintain their operations without being forced to dissolve them if relationship rules can 

no longer be met. This is provided they do not exceed the acreage rules. 

The next generation of my family members may face this challenge on our family ' s dairy farm. 

Please consider supporting this legislation and help North Dakota's Dairy Industry get back on 

track towards a bright future. 

Thank you, 

Alan Qua! 
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Bank of North Dakota History 

During the early 1900s, North Dakota's economy was based 
on agriculture. Serious in-state problems prevented cohesive 
efforts in buying and selling crops and financing farm 
operations. Grain dealers outside the state suppressed grain 
prices; farm suppliers increased their prices; and interest rates 
on farm loans climbed. 

By 1919, popular consensus wanted state ownership and 
control of marl<eting and credit agencies. Thus, the state 
legislature established Bank of North Dakota and the North 
Dakota Mill and Elevator Association_ 

Bank of North Dakota (BND) was charged with the mission of . . . 
"promoting agriculture, commerce and industry" in North Famung Ill North Dakota on the early 1900's 
Dakota. It was never intended for BND to compete with or replace existing banks. Instead, Bank of North Dakota was 
created to partner with other financial institutions and assist them in meeting the needs of the citizens of North Dakota. 

BND opened July 28, 1919, with $2 million of capital. Over the 
years, our fiscal responsibilities to the state have increased 
dramatically. Today, the Bank operates with more than $270 
million in capital. The State of North Dakota began using bank 
profits in 1945 when money was first transferred into the General 
Fund. Since that time, capital transfers have become the norm to 
augment state revenues. 

Commercial, farm and secondary marl<et real estate programs 
were established to benefit state residents and the local financial 
institutions who serve them. BND's federal funds program provides 
an alternative funding source for banks to access additional capital 
for consumer loans. 

. . . . , In 1967, Bank of North Dakota made the first federally insured 
Missoun Valley Motor Bud dong 1920- BND s First Home student loan in the nation. The Bank continues to provide a variety 

of loans for students and their families wanting to pursue post-secondary education. 

In partnership with more than 100 other North Dakota financial 
institutions, Bank of North Dakota continues to meet and 
expand its 90-plus year mission to promote the development of 
agriculture. commerce and industry in North Dakota. 
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NDM History 

The North Dakota Mill and Elevator Association began 
operating October 22, 1922 as a value-added market for 
wheat produced in North Dakota. In the early 1900's, the 
flour mills and grain exchange in Minneapolis were the 
primary wheat markets for North Dakota tanners and 

....::~•illllira:illi!2:!:....J elevators. After freight costs to Minneapolis were deducted 

The Company 

The Mill & Elevator 

The Interactive Mill 

from Minneapolis market prices, North Dakota fanners 
received a low price for their wheat. The North Dakota Mill 
came into existence to help solve this problem. 

The North Dakota Mill facil ities include seven milling units, a 
tenninal elevator and a packing warehouse to prepare bagged products for shipment. All Mill facilities 
are located in Grand Forks and have been paid for from operating profits. 

With seven milling units, the Mill produces and ships 36,000 cwt. of milled products daily. In addition, 
the Mill ships over 13,500 cwt. of food grade bran and wheat midds daily. The Mill cleans, processes 
and mills over 80,000 bushels of top quality North Dakota wheat daily. On an annual basis, the Mill adds 
value to 23 million bushels of spring and durum wheat. 

The tenninal elevator has a storage capacity for 4.3 million bushels of wheat. The tenninal elevator 
blends, cleans and transfers wheat to the six milling units and provides wheat storage to farmers, 
country elevators and government agencies. 

70% of the Mill's flour and semolina is shipped on bulk rail cars and trucks, 30% of finished products are 
packaged in 5, 10, 25, 50 and 100 pound bags for shipment via boxcars and trucks. Product is also 
packed in totes/super sacks for shipment. The Mill also sells a line of bread machine and pancake 
mixes for the retail trade. 

The Mill also has an organic certification for processing organic wheat products. 

The North Dakota Mill receives no funds or financial assistance from the State of North Dakota to 
subsidize the milling operations. Selling value- added milled wheat products to bakery and pasta 
customers, as well as retail and food service suppliers, generates all operating funds. Over 90% of 
sales revenues are derived from customers outside the State to create value-added income for the 
State of North· Dakota. The North Dakota Mill supports the local economy with a payroll of $7 million 
annually. 

The North Dakota Mill and Elevator Association has contributed in excess of 50% of its profits to the 
North Dakota State General Fund for more than 35 years and continues to be a valuable asset to the 
State of North Dakota. 

The North Dakota Mill and Elevator Association is the only state-owned milling facility in the United 
States. The North Dakota Mill and Elevator Association has, over the years, worked cooperatively with 
state agencies in promoting North Dakota and its high quality products by participating with and hosting 
international trade teams and serving as a resource center for training , research and testing . 

The North Dakota Mill and Elevator is currently pursuing new marketing strategies to achieve desired 
profit levels. The new marketing strategies include increasing branded product sales; targeting bakery 
customers that prefer superior quality flours with excellent unifonnity and purity and aggressive 
marketing of new products at the retail and food service levels. 9/10/09 

For more infonnation or the name of a distributor call : 

1-800-538-7721 
North Dakota Mill & Elevator 
P.O. Box 13078, Grand Forks, ND 58208-3078 

https://www .ndmill.com/history .cfm 3/4/2015 
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Summary of North Dakota History - Statehood 
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On November 2 , 1889, President Benjamin Harrison approved the admission of North 
Dakota to the Union. The new state was a Republican Party stronghold . The first Governor, 
John Miller, presided over a turbulent initial legislative session that, among other issues, 
fought about the question of legalizing lotteries and prohibition. 

Political life revealed an insurgent tendency that has continued to 
the present day. In 1890, the cooperative Farmers Alliance formed 
an Independent Party to challenge the "McKenzie Gang" that 
dominated the Republican Party. The Independents fused with the 
minority Democratic Party in 1892 and captured state government 
with a platform promising significant reforms. Their efforts, 
however, were frustrated by political inexperience, and in 1894 the 
Republican Party regained power. Controlled by conservatives, 
North Dakota government encouraged investment by establishing 
liberal banking, regulatory, and taxation policies; to support their 
policies, conservatives argued that capitalists would not invest in 
North Dakota unless state government did its part to diminish risk 
and enhance profits. 

Gov. John Miller, 03.17.1890 
State Archives #0079-0004 

Though severely criticized by progressives, the strategy did result 
in some industrial development. Large lignite mines opened near Beulah and Wilton , and 
local brickworks and flour mills soon dotted the state. The railroad industry, bolstered by 
completion of both James J. Hill's Great Northern Railway in 1887 and the Sao Line in 1893, 
built branch lines and fostered new towns. Rail expansion peaked in 1905 when the GN and 
Sao squared off in a "railway war" in northern North Dakota. 

Evidence of development, however, did not quiet the progressive opposition . In their opinion , 
the state provided too many incentives, and they pointed out that huge profits were being 
taken from North Dakota, that the distant leadership of rail and commodities companies was 
often arrogant and unresponsive to the needs of their customers, and that rural people were 
often taxed out of proportion to their means. Most galling, however, was the frequent 
evidence that out-of-state corporate interests dominated North Dakota government, using it 
to further private goals rather than the general welfare of the citizens. 

By 1905, the swelling chorus of protest caused a political upheaval. 
Republican progressives united with Democrats to elect John Burke 
as Governor, and his election commenced a reform era. In the next 
decade, a series of other movements surfaced. For example, in 1907, 
a new cooperative movement, the American Society of Equity, came 
to North Dakota and by 1913 had procreated well over 400 marketing 
and purchasing locals throughout the state. Among the many new 
settlers who immigrated during the second Dakota "boom" after 1905 
were radicals, and they united into the North Dakota Socialist Party . 
Both the cooperative and radical movements questioned the 
preference given to out-of-state corporations, called for fair taxation , 
and demanded better services from state government. For these 

Gov. John Burke. 1908 movements, the goal was returning control of North Dakota's 
State Archives #A2713 government and economy to the people, and they were not afraid to 

demand that state government organize and operate banking , 
insurances, and processing businesses in order to bring the benefits of competition, lower 
costs, and better services to the people. 
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Summary of North Dakota History - Nonpartisan League 

Previous I Next 

These movements procreated the Nonpartisan League, North 
Dakota's greatest political insurgency. The NPL, born in 1915, 
united progressives, reformers, and radicals behind a platform that 
called for many progressive reforms, ranging from improved state 
services and full suffrage for women to state ownership of banks, 
mills and elevators, and insurances. Led by A. C. Townley, the 
N PL used the primary election to take control of the Republican 
Party in 1916, dominated all state government by 1918, and 
enacted its program in 1919. Its administration, headed by 
Governor Lynn J . Frazier, instituted many reforms in state 
government; among them were re-organization of state services, 
expansion of educational services, development of health care 
agencies, and improved regulation of public services and 
corporations. However, its core program generated fierce 
opposition fueled by funds from out-of-state corporations; those 
interests used every means to obstruct the NPL program, A. c. Townley 
including lawsuits and extreme propaganda. State Archives #A5630 

--------- The anti-NPL movement gained strength during and after World 
War I. Charging that the NPL's leaders, many of whom were 
former Socialists, were opponents of American participation in 
World War I, the anti-NPL forces coalesced in late 1918 into the 
Independent Voter's Association. Vitriolic political infighting 
followed. The IVA attacked on many fronts, rapidly sowing disunity 
within the NPL and splitting the coalition of cooperative groups that 
had helped support the League. Economic distress caused by the 
precipitous decline in grain prices after World War I and a drought 
in western North Dakota helped diminish NPL support. In 1920, 
the IVA took control of one legislative house and in 1921 forced a 
recall election that deposed Governor Frazier and other members 
of the lndu.strial Commission that governed state-owned 
industries. The NPL era , one that significantly altered North 

Gov. Lynn J . Frazier Dakota government, had ended. 
State Archives #C0279 

The NPL left an indelible mark on the state. The Bank of North 
Dakota at Bismarck, opened in 1919, has become a large and powerful economic force; the 
State Mill and Elevator at Grand Forks, completed in 1922, provided a market for grain and a 
source of feed and seed; the state hail insurance program benefitted many farmers until its 
elimination in the 1960s. Perhaps most importantly, the NPL established an insurgent 
tradition in the state that blurred party lines for four decades, and both the League and the 
IVA elevated a generation of leaders to power. Each official recalled in 1921 , for example, 
later regained public office. 

For North Dakota the 1920s and 1930s proved to be watersheds. An economic Depression, 
starting with the 1920 collapse of wartime prices for grain, punctured the economic 
expansion of previous decades. More North Dakota banks closed in 1921 than in any other 
year; the resulting contraction of credit caused many farm foreclosures. Simultaneously, 
farm sizes increased, and many farmers mechanized their operations. A dramatic shift to 
motorized transportation placed greater emphasis on better roads and bridges. As the times 
changed , new devices entered the state's homes; radio, especially, became commonplace 
after the first stations went on the air in North Dakota in 1922. Likewise, motion pictures 
attracted thousands, and many theaters were built in towns across North Dakota. These 
economic and social factors had by 1930 made North Dakota a different place than a 
decade earlier. The fire that destroyed the old state capitol building on December 28, 1930, 
symbolized the end of an era. 

http:/ !history .nd.gov/ndhistory/npl.html 
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The Advantages of a Corporation Over a Partnership and Sole Proprietership I Chron.com 

Overview 

A corporation is owned by shareholders, who profit from the 

company's gains. A partnership is owned by two or more 

people who divide the business' profits. A sole proprietorship 

is owned by one person who alone is responsible for losses 

and reaps profits. A corporation is the most complex form of 

business and involves the most paperwork and expenses to 

set up, but it can offer certain rewards that other forms of 

business do not. 

Liability Protection 

The biggest benefit a corporation offers over other business 

structures is liability protection, according to 

Entrepreneur.com. Shareholders do not risk losing personal 

assets because of a company's debts, because corporations 

are considered separate legal entities from the people who 

own them. Owners of partnerships and sole proprietorships, on 

the other hand, are held responsible for all company debts and 

legal responsibilities, and are subject to losing personal assets 

if the company goes bankrupt or is caught up in costly legal 

situations. 

Related Reading: Sole Proorietorship & Partnership 

-- -- ·-- ----·--Access to Funds 

Corporations can more easily raise funds than other forms of 

businesses, according to the U.S. Small Business 

Administration. Corporations can sell stock to raise money for 

business expenses or cover debts. Sole proprietors and 

business partners, on the other hand, must try to come up with 

funds on their own or turn to loans or credit programs to raise 

money. It takes less time and effort to sell stocks than it does 

to apply for loans or seek out investors for a business. 

Tax Benefits 

Corporations enjoy some tax benefits that sole proprietorships 

and partnerships do not. Corporations must file taxes 

separately from the shareholders. Owners of corporations pay 

taxes on any salaries, bonuses and dividends they earn from 

the corporation. However, loopholes exist to ease the burden 

of paying taxes as a corporation and as individual 

shareholders. A corporation is not required to pay tax on 

earnings paid as compensation to employees or shareholders, 

and it can deduct the payments as a business expense. Also. 

the corporate tax rate is usually lower than the personal 

income tax rate. The owners of sole proprietorships and 

partnerships pay income taxes at regular rates on the profits 

they earn from their companies. 

by Marnie Kunz, Demand Media - - -- - - -

---- -
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Chairman Johnson, and members of the House Agriculture Committee, 

My name i6ffira He~l live in New Salem, ND, I am a rancher, hog farmer, 

business owner, wife and mother. On November 15, 2013 I was named the State 

Executive Director of the North Dakota Pork Council. 

I have been involved in livestock production my entire life, but quite honestly, I 

didn't know much about the commercial swine industry. I wish everyone could 

have the crash course I have had and I wish I was a more articulate 

communicator to explain it to everyone. 

According to the National Pork Board's Pork Quick Facts Publication, 98% of pig 

farms in the United States are family owned. A lot of these family owned 

businesses are corporations. Many started as a partnership two or three 

generations ago and have, over time, turned to the corporate business structure 

for many reasons. Largely, our industry, by nature does have a more corporate 

base than other ag commodities. I am not here to say that is a good or bad thing, 

but I am here to say it is a fact. 

Because our current century code has not evolved with the way the swine 

industry does business, we have lost both in state and out of state opportunities 

for growth. The U.S. swine industry is not going to change how they do business 

for North Dakota, so to grow the industry we need to make this exemption 

happen in an effort to grow our industry. I have been told point blank, when your 

law changes, we will be there. And this is why at the ag commodity meetings held 

by the Ag Commissioner is November, I brought up the need to look at making an 

exception to century code for swine enterprises. 

All I see is opportunity, with wide open spaces to insure our excellent biosecurity 

and cheap, abundant feed resources. Our crop genetics and great farmers have 

allowed the corn and soybean belt to move further west and north and I think 

they would enjoy the narrowing basis like their South Dakota and Minnesota 

counterparts. 

But yet, with all these positives, in 2014, we ranked 26th in hog production. I 

don't think any other commodity group in this room would be satisfied with that 

number. 

I 
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If we could expand o u r  l ivestock p roduction i n  North Dakota, I bel ieve we would 

have m ore o pportu n ities for our youth. We h ave a great Ani m a l  Science progra m 

at N DSU, where we have a swi n e  resea rch fac i l ity a n d  the l a rgest nu mber 
students in swine productio n class in the nation, yet when they graduate we ask 
them to go elsewhere to get a job. 

Last spri ng, I taught a n  Animal  Scien ce c lass at BSC, last week, I had a former 

student, with a great G PA and excel l ent work eth i c, cal l  me and ask me if I knew 

of a ny jobs. She i s  from the northwest p a rt of the state, her b rother a l ready 

works in the oil  patch, a n d  she spent l ast sum mer at an Agronomy fac i l ity, a n d  

that wasn't for her, s h e  wants t o  work in  the livestock business. I wish I could tel l  

her differently, but the fact of the m atter i s, the jobs i n  North Da kota a re 

Agron omy jobs, not a n i m a l  scien ce jobs. 

M ost people don't know, the headquarters for the North Dakota Pork Council is 
i n  N ew Salem, N D. I guess it is i ro n ic that we a re h e re togethe r, fighting for our  

i n d ustries together. The swin e  i n dustry is  at a critica l poi nt, i n  fact my i ndustry 

a l ready has felt the loss of a p rocessor, when the fac i l ity i n  M i n ot closed a few 

yea rs ago, a n d  we l ost m a ny p roduce rs a ro u n d  a n d  west of M in ot a n d  Bismarck 

a rea.  

I tru ly bel ieve that passing this law wi l l  p rovide the opportu n ity for growth in  the 

swi ne i nd u stry in North Dakota, I d on't a nticipate b u i l d i ng a 40 foot p ig, to put on 

a h i l l  near Salem Sue, b ut I d o  bel ieve it is necessa ry . 

I n  social media, we use the hash tag, #realpigfarming to tel l  the story of the 

i n dustry. I hope the com mittee members wi l l  pass Senate B i l l  2351 a n d  support 

#rea lp igfa rm i ng i n  North Da kota. 

Thank you .  



North Dakota Pork Council 

Qeth Bacon, President;, 
3444 25th Ave NE 

Larimore, ND 58251 

Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture Committee, 

My name is Seth Bacon. I am currently the president of the North Dakota Pork 
Council. Our organization represents a wide variety of hog producers. We have 
members who raise 4-H and FFA show pigs, niche producers, who direct sell their 
product, as well as larger commercial farms. On behalf of these producers, our 
board passed a resolution on February 3, 2015, to support Senate Bill 2351 to 
allow corporations and LLC's to own and operate swine and dairy farms. 

We feel that this will be a major step for promoting the dairy and swine industry 
in our state and will allow us to be able to compete with our neighboring states 
for market share. This bill will also bring jobs and economic development to 
small town North Dakota. 

On behalf of the members of the North Dakota Pork Council, we ask you to 
recommend a do pass for Senate Bill 2351. 

Thank You, 
Seth Bacon, President 
North Dakota Pork Council 



To: North Dakota Legislative Committee 
From: Marv Post, President of South Dakota Dairy Producers 
RE: Support of the dairy farms to be exempted from corporate or LLC farming 

Good Morning Mr. Chairman and committee members: 

If Ila_ 
3/ 5/;·5 

s-e ~3S/ 

My name is@f'arv Po~nd I am President of the South Dakota Dairy Producers organization. 
SDDP was organized five years ago to represent the dairy farm families of SD. Today our 
membership represents 2/3 of the cows in SD and roughly 75% of the milk produced in SD as 
well as many other dairy industry associate members. Approximately 30% of the dairies with 
over 500 cows in South Dakota have non-family investors. 

Since 2001 South Dakota has aggressively attempted to grow dairy in SD. Former secretary of 
Agriculture, Larry Gabriel, started the effort to revitalize our rural communities. At the time the 
upper Midwest had an out migration of our rural young citizens to the cities. Our cow numbers 
were falling and our dairy infrastructure could ill afford to be lost. 

Dr. Gary Taylor, Economics Department-SD SU, conducted a study of the economic impact of 
a dairy cow to the economy of South Dakota with approximately $14,000/cow per year. In 2013 , 
South Dakota had $1.28 billion economic impact with about 94,000 cows, $10 million in taxes 
and 1,838 employees. SD only produces 1 % of the nation's milk supply or the equivalent of 
what Starbucks uses in milk per year. There is a need for more milk to meet a growing world 
population and to save our dairy infrastructure in the Upper Midwest. Today, SD has 100,000 
cows. We have bustling dairy towns like Castlewood, Lake Norden, Elkton, Milbank and 
Brookings. 

There was a study done in ND in about 1998 that identified the number one reason people got 
out of the dairy business was because of quality of life issues. The same was true in SD. It was 
also the number one reason people wanted to be in dairy-quality of life-time to spend with 
family and running their own business. During those twenty years we lost a generation of dairy 
families. 

The desire to start a dairy or maybe have a family member or two come back to the farm is very 
capital intensive. The dairy farm needs to be either large enough to justify outside labor to 
address those quality of life issues or it needs to be mechanized with robots. The cost becomes 
$10,000 to $15,000 per cow in overhead. 

South Dakota exempts dairy farming from the restriction of having all partners being family 
members. Approximately 30% of the dairies with over 500 cows in South Dakota have non­
family investors. This allows for them to have a distant relative, friend or neighbor crop farmer 
to go into business with them. It is a lot like it was years ago. Neighbors went together to farm, 
sharing equipment and harvest work. Today you have a neighbor crop farmer putting in crops 
for the dairy. Someone else pumps and injects the organic fertilizer into the crop ground. 

I 



Workers from down the road or in town help with the milking The local veterinarian has steady 
work. 

Allowing capital infusion of outside individual money in the £ rm of an LLC and or an LLP 
allows that neighbor crop farmer or anyone to infuse the capital needed to expand that dairy that 
allows for a better quality of life for all .  Most of the time the :amily is the managing partner or 
they hire someone who is specifically trained to operate a larger operation to be the manager 
with ownership shares as an incentive. 

A SD study i l lustrates the economic impact of a 3 ,000 cow dairy to a local community in SD. 
• Total taxes paid in 20 1 4 :  $2 1 0,000 or $68/per cow 
• Payments made to local vendors: $ l 6M or $5200/cow 
• Gross payrol l :  $2.4M or $766/cow 
• Payrol l  taxed not FICA: $ 1 88,000 or $60/cow 
• Gross average per full time employee: $52,000 at 62 employees 

That is about $6, 1 00 per cow. Then you have the rest of the economic factors to revitalize some 
of our local communities. Dairy farmers spend a lot of their ooney locally. 

Respectful ly submitted, 

Marv Post 
2 1 242 46 l 5t Ave 
Volga, SD 5707 1 
605 . 826.4227 



DRUMGOON DAIRY LP 
19048 US HWY81 
LAKE NORDEN, SD 

57248 
TEL: 605 785 2 151 

Chairman Johnson and Members of the House Ag Committee: 

/{ff 6 
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My name is odney Elliot d I have been dairy farming since 1982, both in Europe and now in the 
USA. During e ear y 2000's I became very frustrated with the lack of opportunity in Europe. Milk 
quota, fragmented land management, high operating costs, urban encroachment and lack of 
Government support to production agriculture all led me to look for other places in the world to 
continue to do what I love to do which is Dairy Farming. 

I went to a meeting in Northern Ireland to hear about the dairy industry in South Dakota, I was 
intrigued with the possibility of running a large scale dairy and using an abundant supply of locally 
grown, high quality feed to feed my cows. So much so that I decided to visit South Dakota in April 
2004. 

My expectations were exceeded during the week I spent touring along the 1-29 corridor visiting 
existing dairies, supporting industries, milk processors and local government. I was excited by the 
availability of land, cattle, labor and a strong milk market. Having already visited other countries 
throughout Europe with the intention of relocating I could find nowhere else that matched the 
opportunities I found in South Dakota. 

Moving forward 10 years I have grown my dairy farm from 1400 cows to currently 3100 cows, and 
hope to be milking 4500 cows by fall 2015. I currently raise all my own heifers. We purchase feed 
from 10 - 12 local crop farmers and grow a small portion of our requirements ourselves. Our feed 
purchases total $5,000,000.00 for last year 65% of which is spent in our local county. We currently 
employ 45 people directly and indirectly support many other local jobs through construction, 
transportation and repairs. 

We brought our children to SD when they were aged 10, 12 and 14 years old, all three graduated from 
Estelline High School and have gone on to Universities in SD. Our eldest son graduated from Dakota 
Wesleyan University, Mitchell, our second son will graduate this year from Mount Marty College, 
Yankton and our daughter has attended SDSU since 2013. We are very involved with our local 
community through church, school and local volunteering opportunities. 

Whilst we chose South Dakota and believe it was the right decision for our family, we see many of the 
same opportunities in North Dakota and believe strongly that there should a thriving dairy industry in 
the state. We would have no hesitation recommending North Dakota to others considering to relocate 
to the Midwest to dairy farm. 

Yours sincerely, 

Rodney Elliott 
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Chairman Johnson and members of the committee, I a~a fourth generation farmer, rancher, stocker 

and feedlot operator from the Washburn area . Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you today. I am 

here today representing myself and my family in support of SB 2351 with an amendment that would add an 

exemption for feedlots . 

Mr. Chairman, you can't choose your family, but under this struct ure I can choose my business partners. I believe 

that th is structure is vitally important to the feedlot industry in our state. This structure would allow for some of 

my corn farming friends and neighbors as well as maybe some of my cow/calf producing neighbors and maybe 

even blue flint ethanol to contribute capital and build a feedlot to finish cattle in our state. 

The Corporate structure can and will benefit feedlot owners like myself by shifting the structure under which we 

do business. The abil ity to form a corporation with my neighbors would benefit me personally and everyone else 

in the industry in the following ways. 

1. This structure limits personal risk and protects individual assets. 

Corporations can retain earnings until the profits from the company move to the investors in the 

form of dividends. This allows for more working capital within the company which in return 

reduces the amount of borrowing needed. 

2. Feedlot operations require about 10 pounds of corn/DDGs per pound of beef produced . This 

structure allows the corn farmer another market for his corn vs the traditional markets we have 

today such as the local elevator (which goes on the rail for export out of our state) or an ethanol 

plant. 

This also gives another potential market for our ethanol plants to market DDG's rather than putting it 

on the rail for export out of our state. 

3. The addition of feedlots to the state will also alleviate some of the need for commercial fertilizer 

needed by the local corn farmers. 

I want my family and neighbors to have the ability to be involved in this business. The Cobblestone in is trying to 

build a hotel in Washburn and they are looking for local investors. Once they reach an equity position of 40% they 

will bu ild the hotel. The question needs to be asked that if we allow this structure to be used on main street in our 

small towns why am I not allowed to do that same structure to build a feedlot . 

Mr. Chairman, we have a state of the art processing facility just south of our border in Aberdeen South Dakota . 

This facility has the capacity to process 425,000 head of fed cattle annually. I personally believe this business 

structure is necessary for the producers in our state to be able to compete at a level at least equivalent to our 

South Dakota and Minnesota neighbors. North Dakota cattle that are fed in North Dakota need to be supplying 

this facility. We have the cheapest feed supplies in the nation and yet we are not finishing cattle here. 

There were 940,000 calves in North Dakota in 2013 but we only had 51,000 head of cattle on feed . In the same 

year South Dakota had 410,000 cattle on feed : of which 20,000 are in the five counties that border sout heast 

North Dakota . 

Chairman Johnson and members of the committee, I would like to urge you to amend SB 2351 to include feedlots 

and also would like to also express my support of the bill. Lastly I would like to pass out some written testimony 

from some of my fellow feedlot owners from within the state that couldn't be here today because they are feeding 

cattle that would like to express their support of this amendment as well as the bill. 

I would be happy to answer any questions. 
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North Dakota 
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Factors Sole Single Member C Corporation S Corporation Partnership LLC 
Prop1·ietorshi LLC 

Ownershi Owuer Member Shareholder Shareholder Pm1ner Member 
Nmnber of owners 1 1 Unlimited u to 75 2+ 1+ 
Examples Mom & Pop ice Any business Public Corporation. Small business or Auto repair shop. Real Estate 

cream shop. a11s operated by a sofu-,.'are company. family business bakery. investment 
and craft shops. single member teleconuuunications. such as a print restamant. property. 
graphic designer. such as a automobile maker shop. pizza parlor. beauty salon restaurant. 
website developer convenient store. constrnction beauty salon 

beautician. realtor company 
Limited Liability Owner has Yes Yes Yes No if General Yes 

unlimited liability Partnership 
and can lose Yes if Limited 

ersonal assets Partnership 
Length of Owner either Member either Perpenial PeqJetual Typically death Delavvare allows 
Existence ceases doing ceases doing or \Vithdra\Yal of an LLC to ha,·e 

business or dies business or dies a partner perpetual 
dissolves GP existence 

Operational Easiest with few Annual repo11ing Annual meetings. Annual meetings. GP·s typically Annual reporting 
procedures legal requirements required filings. and reporting filings. and have few legal required 

required. Board of repo11ing required. requirements. 
directors and officers Board of directors 
must be maintained. and officers must 

be maintained. 

----- --- ---- -



Factors Sole Single Member C Cor ti on S Corporation Partnership LL 
Proprietorship LLC 

Management Owner has Member has Officers manage day to Officers manage Partners have Management is 
complete control complete control day corporate activity. day to day equal outlined in the 
of management of management Directors manage the corporate activity. management LLC's Operating 

officers and overall Directors manage authority unless Agreement. 
company. Directors are the officers and stated otherwise 
elected and managed by overall company. in the partnership 
the Shareholders. Directors are agreement. 

elected and 
managed by the 
Shareholders. 

Lower audit No No No No Yes Yes 
profile 
Easily select fiscal No No Yes No No No 
year end 
Lower corporate No No Yes No No No 
tax rate 
Start up costs Cost of Business Formation of Incorporation of Incorporation of Formation of Formation of 
(prices given are License starting at business $90.00. business $89.00+. business $89.00+. business $90.00. business $90.00. 
Delaware fees as $75.00 Business License. Business license. Business license. Business Business 
of 8/1/09) May be subject to Annual franchise filing Annual franchise License. Annual License. Annual 

annual LLC/LP $125.00+ filing $125 .00+ LLC/LP tax LLC/LP tax 
tax filing of filing $200.00+ filing $200.00+ 
$200.00+ 

Taxation Taxed once Taxed once Double; both the Taxed once Taxed once Taxed once 
corporation and the 
shareholders are taxed 

Pass through Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
taxation of income 
and loss 
Transferability No. Unless sold to No. Unless sold to Shares of stock are Yes. Some IRS No Depends n the 

another party. another party. easily transferred regulations on operating 
stock ownership. agreement 

Deduct interest on Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
money borrowed 
to invest as 
business interest 



Sole Single Member S Corporation Partnership 
Pro LLC 

Easily distribute Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes 
back the owners 
investment 
Home office Yes Yes No No Yes Yes 
deductions 
A void payroll Yes Yes No No Yes Yes 
taxes and 
administration (if 
no employees 
exce towner) 
Can avoid FICA No No No Yes No Maybe 
taxes by Yes Yes No No No No 
A. Distributions 
B. Paying children 
under 18 

Subject to : Yes Yes Yes No No No 
A.AMT No No Yes No No No 
B. PHC & AE tax 

Dissolution Easiest Complex. Most complex. Requires Most complex. Complex. Complex. 
Requires filing filing dissolution Requires filing Requires filing Requires filing 
cancellation with document with State. dissolution cancellation with cancellation with 
State. document with State. State. 

State. 
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I am writing in support of the proposed amendment to SB 2351 ~~f/15 
would provide for corporate ownership of up to 640 acres for the 

purposes of owning and operating a beef feedlot. North Dakota stands 

uniquely positioned to benefit from this provision as the state is a 

massive producer and exporter of the two inputs that go into cattle 

feeding - cattle and feed. North Dakota ranchers produced a ca lf crop 

of 860,000 head in 2014 of which only an estimated 100,000 were fed 

to finish weight in the state. The remaining 760,000 or 88% were 

shipped to other states to be finished . Similarly, North Dakota 

produced 396 million bushels of corn during the 13/14 crop year with 

over half of this production being exported out of state and less than 

5% of it used for livestock production. This extreme dependence on 

global logistics not surprisingly has resulted in our state having the 

lowest corn prices in the country. Similarly, North Dakota produced 

over 1.1 million tons of distillers grains in 2014 with the vast majority 

also being exported. Clearly, a goa l of more meat production is 

attractive given this abundance of feed and cattle and it also stands to 

benefit North Dakota family farmers and ranchers as creating end user 

demand locally for their products is the only way to improve the 

competitiveness of our state's agricultural commodities. Lastly, in 

allowing this, I don't believe the state would be creating a pathway for 

business operators that don't share our North Dakota values or have an 

economic interest in the state. Rather, those who seem most likely to 

engage this amendment would be local North Dakota industry 

participants seeking to pool resources, spread risk and achieve scale 

efficiency. 

Sincerely, 

c§VidSp~ 
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My name i~abe Thompso~ am a cow calf producer and small grain farmer from Antler ND. I would like to share a 
bit of history of"our operation as it relates to this discussion. My grandfather immigrated from Norway around the turn 

f the century. On 8 quarters of land, he raised 8 children putting 6 thru college and helping two get started in 
griculture. My father raised 3 children putting all 3 thru college and provided me an opportunity to start in agricultu re 

but to do so he had to increase the amount of acres he operated on over double what his father did. I am now raising 4 
ch ildren with the goal of putting them all thru college and providing those that wish, a start in agriculture production as 
well. To do this I have had to once again double the amount of acres in our operation over what my father farmed and 
ranched. The fact of the matter is there is a trend line that wishing will not change when it comes to the necessity to 
develop an increasing economy of scale in agriculture to accomplish what generations before us did and that simply will 
not change as the population grows and less people wish to be involved particularly in animal agriculture. 

There is much talk of the "fam ily farm" relating to this bill. This ideology in reality is tied to a Norman Rockwell trip back 
to my Grandfathers time that simply is not what current agribusiness is. And agribusiness is exactly what the industry of 
animal agriculture has become. We are told not to refer to what we do as an industry or a business as consumers do not 
like those terms, but that is the reality of what livestock production in agriculture has become that we cannot deny. 

Every industry and most businesses I patronize as a production livestock agribusiness has been allowed the usage of the 
tools of management under a corporate structure. They have been allowed the competitive advantages and risk 
management this structure allows. Many businesses that the consumers that some claim polls say want to protect the 
"family farm" do business with, is a corporate structure. "Family farms" are allowed the corporate structure .. ....... . to a 
point. And yet family businesses on main street still thrive, fam ily farms still thrive .............. it is animal agriculture 
particularly confinement animal agriculture that is not. This bill allows the legislature to address that by allowing the 
fiscal and risk management tools of a corporate structure t o bring vitality thru investment back to dying livestock 
industries. 

nd as was testified to on the Senate side, this IS a tide that would raise all ships. Not just the dairy and swine 
roduction industries, but the business on main street rural "USA that supports these operations, farms that grow and 

provide feed stuffs, as well as the plants that process these products that have disappeared from our communities 
taking jobs and families with them that leave lasting impacts seen more significantly in rural communit ies. 

In a 60 mile radius of our operation two dairy processing facilities, Winger Cheese and Bridgeman Dairies as well as a 
swine processing plant Cloverda le have closed. The last da iry left Bottineau County where I live last yea r. The loss of the 
diversity of enterprise these businesses and the animal ag production sector brought to these communities makes a 
significant impact. In rural communities especially where agriculture is the primary business impact, the loss of an imal 
agriculture intensifies the impacts of commodity price swings on the businesses supporting the farming industry that are 
left behind. 

We have an opportunity to change that with this bill. I would strongly encourage the addition of feedlots into the 
exemptions written into this bill. As a cattle producer I would like our industry to be one of the "ships" that rise with th is 
opportunity to use the tools other industries take for granted. The addition of even a handful of larger feedlots bidding 
on calves locally will have a positive impact that will benefit the cattle industry in the longer term . While ND has a 
growing back grounding industry, many of these operations seek to move their calves on elsewhere to finish them. Once 
again those corporate feedlot operations in ND will provide opportunity not just for cow calf producers but back 
grounding lots, neighboring farmers and businesses that will be needed as the scale of operations increase. 

And all this is being done thru this bill without anyone asking the legislature for monies. No request for the state to 
provide grants, fund the building of a state owned processing plant, or seek exemptions from regulation or over site. We 

re merely asking that we as livestock producers that our industries be given the same management opportunities and 
ols virtually every other business entity in the state is allowed to determine the success of our own future . 

I thank you for the opportunity to share these thoughts with the committee and will try to answer any questions. 



<i~g~ r Effe~I am part of the Effertz Key Ranch incorporated. That has been operating as a 

family corporation for 20 or more years. I am here today representing myself and my Chairman 

Johnson and members of the committee my name is family to suppo~ith an 

amendment to add feedlots to the bill. 

My family and I have a 20 year relationship with the people in charge of operating the New 

Angus plant in Aberdeen South Dakota. With that plant expected to begin production this 

calendar year we as producers of some of the most sought after cattle genetics in the nation 

need to be supplying this plant. That plant becoming operational is a game changer to livestock 

producers of this state. My family specifically would like to be able to expand on our family 

corporation to include people from outside of our family to include maybe another family 

corporation to build a feedlot. Under our existing entities that are legally available to us today 

that is not possible. We as producers need this form of business structure to be competitive 

with our neighboring states. 

Let me clarify one thing to this body, we are not talking about the ownership of cattle . We 

already allow a corporation to own cattle in this state. We have feedlots represented in this 

room today that are feeding cattle for those corporations today. This bill only allows me to be 

on the same competitive advantage as those entities. 

I see no downside to North Dakota agriculture in allowing me to have the ability to form this 

business structure. 

Chairman Johnson and members of the committee, I would like to thank you for the 

opportunity to stand before you this morn ing and express my support of SB 2351 with the 

feedlot amendment added to the bill. 

I would entertain any questions. 

Thank You 

Roger Effertz 

Effertz Key Ranch 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name is~nd I would like to submit the 
following reasons that I am an incorporated dairyman. 

## 

1. Can transfer ownership without selling property. 
2. Easier to keep as a unit if someone wants to leave or retire . 
3. Ability to move shares as needed: To sons or maybe even longtime employees 
4. Easier to operate for doing business .... everything is taken care of in the Corporation and then 

goes out to individual owners 
5. It allows for Tax savings. In order to be profitable, you have more control of everything. 
6. With the high cost of business from Land, Buildings, and livestock it is easier to consolidate with 

other farmers and their assets. 

History of MoDak Dairy, Inc: 

The land was homesteaded in 1884 by John and Elizabeth Moes, and their nine children. It was passed 
down to Guy and Barbara Moes, and their six children . The third generation, Gerald and Eileen Moes 
had eleven children . 

When fourth generation Greg and his wife, Julie, along with his brother, Jim Moes started managing it in 
1991 they formed MoDak Dairy, Inc. They had 300 milking cows, and just over 1000 acres of land to 
farm . In 2008 they built a new dairy barn to house and milk 2000 cows. They raise most of their heifers, 
and are farming more than 2000 acres to produce feed for the livestock. 

The fifth generation, Jacob and Scott Moes (Greg's sons) and Matthew Moes (Jim's son), are working 
every day to learn how to manage all aspects of the business, they hope to own . Being incorporated will 
make it easier for the fourth generation to pass it to the fifth generation by transferring shares instead 
of having to buy out the previous generation as done before. 

Sincerely, 

Greg Moes 
greg@modak.net 
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Chairman Johnson and members of the House Agriculture Committee: 

My name is ark Watne I am the president of North Dakota Farmers Union. Our 
organization s an s m strong opposition to SB 2351. We see this bill as a fundamental 
change to North Dakota's system of family agriculture, which is the foundation of our 
state's economy, society and future. We believe agriculture is best left in the hands of 
individual entrepreneurs, who own the land and animals. NDFU has advocated for policies 
that ensure that ownership, operation and management of a farm or ranch is held within 
the family who makes a livelihood from that land and lives in or near the community 
adjacent to that land. 

The agricultural community in North Dakota would be far better served in working 
together to find a creative solution to this issue, rather than take a hurried approach that 
is likely to see no success. Low prices, distance to market, and the lower consumpt ion of 
milk are the primary reasons our dairy industry has declined. Understanding this we 
recently worked with National Farmers Union to add a Dairy provision to the 2014 farm 
bill allowing for a Dairy Margin Protection Program. When an industry is in trouble due to 
economic issues, an evaluation of economic factors and the current market situation is 
necessary. Every project, every industry in North Dakota uses some type of planning 
process and market analysis to determine a path forward. From a fertilizer plant to 
serving over 30,000 customers in four restaur,ants per week in Washington DC Farmers 
Union has identified a proper market approach and the best avenue for entrance into the 
marketplace. SB 2351 does the opposite for North Dakota producers. This bill does not 
guarantee greater profits. It does not guarantee more good jobs. It does not guarantee 
greater patronage or economic returns for rural main street businesses. 

What this bill is really about is the ownership of land. SB 2351 would create an exemption 
so broad, that it allows corporations to own a section of farmland . That provision alone 
guarantees farmers and ranchers will have to compete against corporations to buy, rent 
or even access land. If this bill is truly intended to save declining industries than why is 
swine included which has shown recent signs of growth. 

Now, the importance that North Dakotans want to keep farmland in the hands of family 
farmer needed to be substantiated. Last week, North Dakota Farmers Union 
commissioned a poll of North Dakota citizens on their attitudes toward corporate and 
family farming. By now you've seen those results, but allow me to cite some of those 
findings. Of those polled, 86 percent said North Dakota's agriculture economy is best left 
in the hands of farmers and ranchers who own, live and work the land. They also said if 
they had a chance to vote on Senate Bill 2351, 75 percent would vote no. 



M r. Chairman and committee members, there is no compel l ing a rgument to pass SB 235 1. 
And I bel ieve that the vast majority of farmers and ranchers i n  this state do not support 

legislation to weaken our  law. Sound pub l ic pol icy in  North Dakota bui lds fami ly farm 

agricu lture. We bel ieve it wou ld be m uch more productive to lead a conversation that 

inc ludes a l l  stakeholders, to explore a l l  possible solutions and  market i nformation on this 

issue. This is  an approach that we bel ieve would u nite the agricultural commun ity, instead 

of divid ing it. 

We ask for the committee to give a "Do Not Pass" recommendation to SB 235 1 .  I wil l  

stand  for any q uestions.  



Figure 1. Dairies in South Dakota 
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From 2000 to 2014, South Dakota lost 76% of their 
200 dairy operations while North Dakota lost 74%. 

Data Source: South Dakota Secret ary of Agriculture, South Dakota Dairy Facts - January 2015 
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Figure 2. North Dakota Pig Crop 
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North Dakota's Pig crop has increased by 50% since 2000. The 
data suggests North Dakota is finishing less fat hogs but 
producing more grower pigs (weanlings) . 

Data Source: USDA, Nationa l Agricultura l Statistics Service 

770 



Figure 3. North Dakota Gross Income from Hogs 
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The gross income from the hog industry 
has had its ups and downs but overall is 
trending up. 

- Recession 
- Pork over supply 
- H1N1 Scare or "Swine Flu" 

Data Source: USDA, National Agricultural Statisti cs Service 
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){ 1Q.rmer s Creeti" 

'I 6eluve a man s greatest possession is Ii.is tfitJnity anti 
tliat no ca£[ing lie.stows tliis more afmntfant[y tfian farming. 

I bduve tfiat farming, tfespi.te its fiartfsmps anti 
tfisappointments, is tfie most honest anti fwnorabfe way 

a man can spend fiis tfays on tfiis eartfi. 

I 6eluve my cliiltfren are learning vaf ius tfiat wi[[ fast a 
Cifetime antl can be [earnuf in no otfier way. 

I beluve farming provides education for Cife anti tfiat no 

otfier occupation teacfies so mucfi about birtfi, growtli anti 
maturity in sucfi a varrety of ways. 

I 6dieve many of tfie 6est tfiintls in life are intfeuf fru, 
tfie spfuufor of a sunrise, tfie rapture of witfe open spaces, 

tfie e�m.Carating sitJfit of your {anti greening eacfi spring. 
I ht[uve true liappiness comes from watcfiing your crops 

ripen in tfie fie.Ct£, your cfiiftfren grow ta{{ in tfie sun, your wfiofe 
f amify fuf tfie pritfe tfiat springs from tfieir sfiaretf e�riena . 

I 6eluve tfiat 6y my toil I am giving more to tfie worCtf tfian 
I am tafjng from it, an fwnor tfiat does not come to a[[ trUn. 

I 6eluve my Cife will be measured uftimatdy liy wfiat I nave lone 
for my f d[O'Ulman, anti liy tfiis stantfartf I fear no jutlgnunt. 

I 6elie.ve wlien a man grows oCtf anti sums up fiis tfays, fie 
slioultf k a{J{e to stanti ta{{ anti ju[ pritle in tfie Cife fie s Civetf. 

I beluve inf arming 6ecause it ma�s a[{ this possible. ' 
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Mr . hairman and Members of the House Agriculture Committee, my name is~ 
Schlosser Carlson. I represent North Dakota Farmers Union, and I also serve as 

eneral Counsel. 

For purposes of my testimony today, I've reviewed this bill through my lens as an 
attorney as though I were explaining it to a client. 

Proponents have explained today what they intend with this bill - that our state's 
prohibition on corporate farming or land ownership will not be eroded ; that investors 
will be families ; that the bill is just a tweak; that the bill only allows a very small piece 
of land to be owned by a corporation or limited liability company (LLC); and that the bill 
only applies to dairies and swine operations. 

But the language in the bill doesn 't match up. As you probably know, when a court 
seeks to find legislative intent, it looks first and foremost in the statute's words. A court 
looks to legislative history - if it considers the history at all - only after it looks at the 
statutory language. 

I thought it might be helpful to walk through this short bill and explain how I, as an 
attorney, interpret the language. First, though, I'll start with the current statute. 

NDCC Chapter 10-06.1 - the Corporate Farming Law 

The corporate farming law prohibits all corporations and LLCs from (1) owning or 
leasing l~nd used for farming or ranching and (2) "engaging in the business 9f farming 
or ranching" - that is, cultivating land for the production of crops or livestock, or raising 
or producing livestock, poultry, milk or dairy products, fruit or horticultural products. 

The prohibition applies "except as otherwise provided in this chapter." 

Despite other information you might have read , there are indeed exceptions to this 
prohibition: 

• Family Farm Corporations or LLCs may own or lease land and may farm or 
ranch if: 

o They have 15 or fewer shareholders; 

o Each shareholder is related to each other; 

o The officers and directors are shareholders and are actively engaged in 
operating the farm or ranch ; 

o At least one of the shareholders resides on the farm or ranch; 

o At least 65% of gross income over 5 years is derived from ag operations ; 

o No more than 20% of the gross income is from nonfarm rent, dividends, 
royalties, annuities, and interest. 

I 



• Partnerships:  Ind ividuals can join together in  partnersh ips to farm, and they 
needn 't meet the fami ly farm corporation requ i rements of kinship. 

o I n  fact, a specific provision even al lows a corporation or LLC to be a 
partner in  a partnersh ip that is in  the business of farming or ranching if 
that corporation or LLC compl ies with this chapter - which is to say they 
have to comply with the fami ly farm corporation or LLC requirements I 
just described . 

o As you know, there are various forms of partnersh ip ,  a l l  of which h ave at 
least one person (a general partner) making management decisions and 
running the farm, which ensures the decisionmaker's connection to the 

land , an imals and communities. Some forms l imit the l iabi l ity of a " l imited 
partner" to her investment, others l im it l iabi l ity for the "general partner. " 

Thus, there are sign ificant exemptions in  the corporate farming law that 
al low business entities- corporations, LLCs, partnerships -to farm and to 
own agricultural land.  

• Other exceptions to the corporate farming law include: 

• Allowing cooperatives to own land and farm or ranch , if 75% of the 

members are actual farmers or ranchers l iving on farms or ranches or 
depending principal ly on farming or ranching for their l ivel ihood ; 

• Al lowing certain nonprofit organizations to acquire farmland for conservation 
purposes, but only after a commission of ag groups, state agencies, ·and 
county commissions reviews the acqu isition ,  and the Governor g ives 
approval ; 

• Ownership for ind ustria l ,  development and business purposes ; 

• A contract for ag suppl ies, harvesting or ag services ; and 

• Acquisition as security or in  col lection of debt or mortgage, if the company 
divests the land,  or leases or sel ls it back to the farmer. 

SB 2351 
I invite you to turn now to the language of the bi l l : 

• The language:  "Notwithstanding any other law, prohib itions on the ownership or 
leasing of land used for farming or ranch ing by a corporation or a l imited l iabi l ity 
company and prohib itions on corporations or l imited l iabi l ity compan ies 

engaging in the business of farming or ranch ing do not apply to: [ ] Domestic 
corporations and l imited l iab i l ity companies owning and operating a dairy . . .  or 

swine [faci l ity] . . . .  " 

o I nterpretation :  Any corporation or LLC is exempt from the prohib ition on 

land ownership and farming/ranching as long as it includes a dairy or a 
swine facil ity in  its overal l  operation .  There is no language here l imiting a 

Testimony of Kristi Schlosser Carlson 
House Agricu lture Committee 
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corporation or LLC to ONLY operating a dairy or swine facil ity. I n  other 
words,  as long as a corporation or LLC has a dairy, it can farm anything 
(includ ing crops or other l ivestock) . 

• The language: " . . .  provided the land owned or leased for that purpose does 
not exceed six hundred and forty acres." 

o Interpretation : This 640-acre l imitation on ly applies "for the purpose" of 
operating the dairy or swine faci l ity . I n  other words, there is no l imitation 
on the amount that could be owned for any other purpose - which could 
be to raise crops, other l ivestock, etc. 

Further, there is nothing in this b i l l  that d iscusses the ownership requ i rements of an 
exempted corporation or LLC. 

• There is noth ing l imiting the number of shareholders. 
• There is nothing prohibiting a corporation or entity from purchasing land solely 

as investment. That is, there is nothing ensuring us that an exempted 
corporation or LLC is primari ly focused on farming or ranching and receives the 
bulk of its return from the farm or ranch. 

• None of the requi rements applying to a family farm corporation or LLC - those 

that requ i re the person making farm management decisions to actual ly farm the 
land, work the animals,  l ive in that community and answer to future generations 
- apply to these exempted corporations or LLCs. 

• There is nothing here prohibit ing a corporation or LLC from creating an aff i l iate 
or subsidiary :_ or 1 0, 1 5 , etc. subsidiaries - each own ing another 640 acres. 
On this note, I introduce testimony from Charles Carvel l prepared on our behalf. 

He is not here in  person, but I sti l l  provide you his background.  Mr. Carvell is an 
attorney at Pearce & Durick, prior to which he served 23 years as Director of 
the Attorney General's Division of Natural Resources & I nd ian Affairs. His 
d ivision managed legal matters concern ing a n umber of issues , i ncluding oi l  
and gas ,  state-owned land and minerals,  water resources, environmental 
protection,  wi ldl ife , agriculture, federal lands, and corporate farming. During h is 
t ime with the Attorney General 's Office, Charles served as lead counsel for the 
Oil & Gas Division , Board of University & School Lands, State Water 
Commission, Game & Fish Department, and Department of Agriculture. As 
attorney for these agencies, Charles assisted in ensuring compl iance with the 
law regulating water resources, hunting and fishing ,  the oi l  and gas i ndustry, 
and agriculture. I have attached h is testimony and also read it now. 

Mr. Chairman , the language in the bi l l  is broad and open. I urge you to return to the 
current statute, which I think meets the intent I 've heard proponents articulate. 

Testimony of Kristi Schlosser Carlson 
House Agricu ltu re Committee 
SB 2351 
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Ms. Kristi Carlson 
N.D. Farmers Union 
General Counsel 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 
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CHARLESM.CARVELL 
cm£ripp enr~c-lturi c k . c.mn. 

March 4, 2015 

Re: Senate Bill No. 2351 - Evaluation of Acreage Limit 

Dear Ms. Carlson: 

You asked me to review the effectiveness of the 640-acre limitation in the bill. If the intention of 
the sponsors is to limit land ownership by corporations and LLCs, this limitation will not 
necessarily achieve its intended purpose. It can be avoided, and probably without difficulty. 

For example, if the bill becomes law, individuals who want its benefits would not be confined to 
establ ishing just one LLC, they could set up several, and even many. And establishing an LLC is 
simple and inexpensive. Each of the "aligned" LLCs, because they would be deemed under the 
law as separate and distinct entities even if controlled by the same individuals or having some 
overlapping owners, would be entit led to buy or lease their own 640 acres. Further, nothing 
would prohibit "aligned" LLCs from buying or leasing adjoining land . Thus, whi le it may be 
anticipated that the law will allow only "islands" of swine and dairy operations, their geographic 
s ize could be much larger than anticipated. 

It would also be possible for "aligned" LLCs to enter contracts wi th one another to, in various 
ways, integrate their operations. So long as the LLCs kept separate books, ensured their 
contracts were formal and "arms length," and took other steps to ensure the legal independence 
of the LLCs from one another, state regulators would have difficulty stopping LLCs that 
integrate their operati ons. 

Sincerely, 

p/JJ!Y~ 
CHARLES M. CARVELL 

CMC/lr 



TESTIMONY TO NORTH DAKOTA HOUSE AGRICULTURE COMMITIEE 

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, I rise in opposition t~ 

"In an economic system where people are fed and tools are developed it seems difficult to argue that 

investment leads the way." - Charles Walters, Jr. 

The sponsors of the Bill would have you believe the preposterous idea that North Dakota dairy and hog 

producers must have more capital. It defies all logic to make such a statement. And indeed, they and 

others have presented no testimony to even vaguely support this "theory". I would add here that no 

such testimony was presented in the Senate either and the Bill was passed out of committee on a 

straight party line vote. Perhaps House members could inform the public if this issue was decided 

before the session began and if this is the type of "politics" that you believe North Dakota citizens 

expect from those whom we elect to lead us? 

One small segment of their claims is that this will help reduce "RISK" for farmers. It could be, but what 

they are really saying is that farmers wish to transfer risk to investors. No testimony was offered as to 

why investors would entertain such an investment scheme. In addition, they are describing a new way 

privatize profit and socialize risk. In the end, losses incurred by investors will be borne by the taxpayers. 

Another example of benefits for the few at the expense on the many. HOW NOBLE I!! I!! 

Sen. Wanzek and Commissioner Geohring both testified that the dairy and hog industries were in dire 

need of help. It is truly amazing to me that they just noticed this. Just where have they been for the past 

30 years while every corner of our state was witnessing this massive decline? 

Sen. Wanzek and Commissioner Goehring both cited South Dakota as proof that to allow corporate 

ownership has helped those industries. They cited production numbers but no statements as to 

profitability. In fact, as South Dakota's dairy cow numbers have increase, a substantial decline in dairy 

farm numbers has occurred. They both claim that we must save these imperiled industries and 

corporatization and investment capital will revitalize them. Is it their intent to reduce the number of 

farms in this State even further? If South Dakota is the model, then indeed, this is exactly what will 

occur. Are these the results that this Committee, the House and this Administration are seeking? If we 

now open Pandora's Box, this will most certainly happen. And our Free and Independent Private 

Enterprise system will be harmed. Absentee ownership is already an issues and it has helped in the 

demise of North Dakota's small towns. The only cause of this is an under pricing of all farm production 

since 1952. THE ONLY CAUSE! 
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It is also interesting to note that virtually all of the commodity groups heartily support this Bill. It should 

be obvious that these groups are supported by a tax on production---check-off dollars or a production 

tax. Increased production is their goal. Profitability never seems to be discussed by these groups. They 

must subscribe to the policy expressed by our NDSU Ag Economists that a "bigger truckH is what is 

needed. And with no consideration of the equation that controls this. Production x Price=lncome. It is 

gross farm income that provides the economy with the first segment of the Trade Turn and even NDSU 

validates that the Agricultural dollar will turn 7 times in the economy. 

In my previous testimony, I quoted some figures. I will restate them here and add some. The Dairy 

industry is the victim of their complete inability to establish an adequate price for their production. 

After milk leaves the farm gate, all who touch it make a profit. The Dairy industry operates in a system 

of oligopsony. Many sellers with a perishable product and a few buyers. Without adequate regulation, 

the outcome is inevitable. 

CURRENT RELEVANT DATA 

Sources: USDA NASS, ERS (National Agricultural Statistics Service/ Economic Research Service 

• Cash price for milk for January 2015-----$20.09 per cwt. 

• Parity price for milk for January 2015----$54.30 per cwt. 

This translates into an income shortfall of $30 for every cwt. of milk produced. Those lost dollars can 

never reach Main Street. 

• Cash price for milk for January 1980------- $12.35 per cwt. 

• Parity price for milk for January 1980----- $17.40 per cwt. 

Since 1980, the absence of a proper price has resulted in an economic shortfall to the National Economy 

of over $1 trillion. This is the economic impact of milk alone. The cash receipts for agriculture for 2014 

were $400.4 billion which was 37% of parity. The economic shortfall to the Nation was $700.7 billion. 

With a trade turn of 7, that means that the nation has incurred $4. 7 trillion of new and unnecessary 

debt just to make up the difference. 

Thus data has been continuously calculated by the National Organization for Raw Materials. (NORM) 

since 1937. 

We are entering into an era of low farm prices. USDA and others have been warning us of this issue for 

some time as you can see in the report below. 
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(Bloomberg) -- Declining commodity prices will reduce the 2015 cash profits of U.S. farmers to $89.4 

billion, the third straight decline and the biggest single-year drop since 1931-1932, according to the 

USDA. 

Today, we are faced with a similar situation in the oil patch. An artificial price decline will have a 

devastating impact on our state and not only in state revenues but more importantly the impact on the 

general economy as well as the immediate ill effects in the Bakken. If oil falls to the parity equivalent of 

wheat, it will drop to $22 per barrel. A corporatized agriculture will have a negative impact on our state. 

Decades ago, the people of North Dakota had the wisdom and foresight to envision the harmful effects 

of absentee ownership of our second greatest resource------THE LAND--------just behind our greatest 

resource------ OUR PEOPLE. 

Two historical figures seem to be important in this debate. Many of you are graduates of NDSU and will 

recognize the importance of the John Lee Colter annual award in Agricultural Economics. Next is Math 

Dahl, former North Dakota Agriculture Commission. Both supported a system whereby agriculture could 

be profitable. We had such a program from 1942-1952. The most prosperous era in North Dakota 

history; agriculture lead the way and without any government subsidy. 

My opposition is not born of nostalgia. It is born of the observation that corporate agriculture is 
detrimental to communities and society in general. You in this body are charged with the responsibility 
of carefully managing our State for the benefit of all of our citizens. If one only considers the economic 
aspects, it is obvious that a modification to the present anti-corporate farming law will have no benefits 
whatsoever-----business type or structure does not determine either the profitability or viability of any 
business. 

Perhaps the strongest argument is not the economic one. It truly is a moral issue. Any economic system 

that ignores the moral component, is leading our State and our Nation down the wrong path. 

Thank you 

Tom Asbridge 

Bismarck, ND 701-222-3621 

March 5, 2015 
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" I ' M  S TANDING BEFORE YOU AS A DI S APPOI NTED C I T I Z EN AND FARMER " 

I S TAND I N  OPPOS I T I ON TO CHAN G I N G  THE ANT I - CORPORATE FARM LAW I N  NORTH 
DAKOTA ( HB-2 3 5 1  ) .  I AM NOT OPPOSED TO TRY I NG TO HELP DAI RY AND SWI N E  FARMERS . 

EVER , OPEN I N G  UP THE S TATE 'TO CORPORAT I ON S  I N S ' T  GOING TO SOLVE T H E  PROBLEM . 
CANN OT BORROW YOURSELF OUT OF DEBT ! ! YOU NEED GOOD COMMODITY P R I CE S . AL S O ,  

GOOD LABOR P OOL . WH I CH WE DON ' T  HAVE R I GHT NOW . THE BAKKEN HAS BEEN A M I X E D  
BLE S S I N G . I T  HAS CREATED A LOT OF H I GH PAY I NG JOBS I N  WES TERN NORTH DAKOTA . 
WH I CH H A S  U T I L I Z ED MOST OF THE AVAI LABLE WORK FORCE , PLUS BROUGHT I N  WORKERS F ROM 
OUT OF S TATE . ( WH I CH HAS CREATED I T S  OWN ADD I T I ONAL PROBLEMS ) .  

I P ER S ONN ELLY WENT THROUGH SOMEWHAT OF A S I M I LAR S I TUATION I N  T H E  7 0 ' s  and 
8 0 ' s . WE HAS THE RU S S I AN WHEAT SALE I N  THE EARLY 7 0 ' s .  THE WHEAT MARKET S P I KED 
AND CAME DOWN BELOW WHAT IT WAS BEFORE I T  S P I KED IN ABOUT A YEARS T I ME . H OWEVER , 
I N P U T S  WENT UP AND STAYED U P  FOR 1 0 - 1 2 YEARS ( TH I S  I N CLUDED LAND P R I CES , PERT � 
I L I ZER , SEED , FUEL , EQU I PMENT , CHEM I CALS , ETC ) . WHEN LAND PRI CES D I D  DROP ? THEY�TO 
DRO P P ED BELOW WHAT THEY WERE BEFORE THEY JUMPED . 

DUR I NG TH I S  SAME T IME WE HAD BANKS TALK FARMERS I NTO GOI N G fFMHA TO GET D I S ­
EAS TER L OAN S TO PAY OFF THE BANKS AND PUT ; 'EARMERS MORE I N  DEBT . ( YE S  THERE WERE 
LOW I NE T ERST RATES BUT THE FARMER WAS STILL IN MORE DEBT . THERE WAS TH I S  TWI S TED 
I DEA THAT FARMERS COULD BORROW THEMSELVES OUT OF DEBT ) . I SEE THE S AME PATTERN 
HAP P EN I N G  AGA I N  JU S T  D I FFERENT VERBAGE . OH YES , LETS N OT FORGET THE DAIRY BUYOUT 
PROGRAM THAT CAME A LONG A B I T  LATER . 

WHY I S N ' T  THE NORTH DAKOTA AG DEPARTMENT WORK I N G  TO PROMOTE DAI R Y  I N S TEAD OF 
TRY I NG TO F I ND A WAY TO BORROW MORE MONEY . " ( LOAN S S T I LL HAVE TO BE P A I D  BACK ) " .  
ALS O  WHERE ARE THE DAI RY PROMOT I ON BOARD AND THE DAIRY AS S OCI AT I ON O R  WHATEVER 
THE Y  ARE CALLED . I fERSONNELLY HAVE SEEN VERY L I TTLE ADVERTI Z I N G  PROMOT I N G  DAIRY 

ANY F ORM . HOWEVER , I D I D  SEE ON THE NAT I ONAL NEWS EARLY ONE MORN I NG . I NTER­
W I N G  A MOTHER FROM SOME WHERE ON THE EAST COAST SAY SHE DOESN ' T  LET HER K I D S  
N K  C OWS M I LK . SHE G I VES THEM ALMOND , SOY , OR SOME OTHER FORM OF NONE DAI RY ! (  

MI L K . HER COMMENT WAS , " WHY WOULD ONE MAMMAL DRI N K  M I LK FROM ANOTHER MAMMAL " .  
ALS O ,  ACCORD I N G  TO SOME S TUDY THAT WAS ON THE NAT I ONAL NEWS , THE AVERAGE M I LK 
CON S UMPT I ON HAS DROPPED T©: ·ABOUT • 8 OF A GLA S S  PER PERSON , FROM OVER A GLA S S  A DA' 
NOT TOO LONG AGO . ( " QU I TE FRANKLY WE HAVE AN EDU CAT I ON PROBLEM AND I T ' S  NOT JUST 
DAI RY " ) .  BUT THAT ' S  WHAT I ' M TALK I N G  ABOU T TODAY . 

TBEREE I S  jA LARGE DAI RY I N  MY COUNTY THAT MADE THE FRONT PAGE OF AG WEEK A FEW 
YEARS AGO FOR ALL THE WRONG REASON S . FROM LOCAL FARMERS N OT BE I N G  PA I D  FOR THE 
FEED THEY S OLD TO THE DAI RY , TO LABOR AND MANAGER I S S U E S . I DON ' T  BEL I EVE THAT 
ANY OF Y OU WOULD WANT TH I S  S I TUATION IN YOUR N E I GHBORHOODS . THERE I S N ' T  MUCH 
ECONOM I C  BEN I F I T  T O  THE LOCAL ECON OMY I N  THAT S I TUAT I ON . 

I HAVE A HOG CON F I N EMENT OPERAT I ON JUST TO THE COUNTY NORTH OF ME . ONE OF 
THE 4 FACULI T I E S  I S  JU S T  A M I LE AND A HALF N ORTHWEST OF MY FARM . I T ' S  STARTED UP 
AND SHUT DOWN ( I  TH I NK ) AT LEAST 3 TIMES OVER THE PAST 2 0  PLUS YEARS . THE SHUT 
DOW N S  WERE ALL CAU SED BY S IMPLE E COONOM I C S . LOW PORK PRI CES THAT THEY WERE GET� I 
T I N G . WERE BELOW THE COST OF PRODU CT I ON . I BELI EVE THERE WERE SEVERAL OUT S I DE 
I NV E S TORS I NVOLVED . I DON ' T  EVEN KNOW WHAT NAME I T  GOES BY ANYMORE . 

I HAVE A LOT OF RE SPECT FOR THE DA I RY FARMER E S P C I ALLY . BECAUSE OF THE B I G  
PERS ONNAL COMM I TEMENT THEY MAKE . 2 4 / 7 / 3 6 5 . I GREW U P  M I LKING COWS AS A K I D  ON 
MY FOLKS FARM . I KNOW F I RS T  HAND THE COMM I TEMENT THAT ' S  REQU I RED . G I VE THEN 
BETTER PRI CES SO THEY CAN MAKE A GOOD L I V I NG . I T ' S  A PROVEN FACT . " I F  A FARMER , 

I RYMAN , RAN CHER , HOG PRODUCER , HAS MONEY THEY W I LL S PEND IT . • •  
THERE ARE PLENTY OF AVENUES TO BORROW MONEY ALL READY . .  

THANK YOU FOR YOUR T I M E . 

�·� 
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Hi, Thank You for the opportunity to speak to you today. I'm 
C!§~dy Richa~family farmer from Steele County, my farm is 
located near Hope, North Dakota. I operate a family farm 
partnership with my son and ex-son-in-law. My Grandfather 
farmed, my Dad farmed, and someday I hope to have 
Grandchildren that operate the family farm. 
People ask me just where is your farm located, I tell them if you 
are coming from Fargo, I live just beyond Hope, sometimes I get a 
smile or a chuckle out of people, sometimes I get a raised eyebrow 
or two, but that is the physical location of my farm. I say that 
today because over my forty plus years of farming, sometimes I 
have felt that no one really cared if my family farm survived or 
not. I have seen many changes in forty plus yrs. I've seen dairy 
farms go out of business, I've seen hog farm operations go out of 
business, I've seen farms go out of business. I've also seen family 
farm partnerships formed, I've seen family farm corporations 
formed, I've seen the size of farms grow, all due to the fact that 
they needed to be profitable, feasible, and sustainable. I've heard 
it said that we need to open up farming to corporations because 
they have the tools to do it better than we do as family farmers. 
I'm here today to suggest to you that the reason we don't have 
large dairies or large hog operations is because they are not 
profitable or sustainable, our climate works against us, we don't 
have the available workforce and our distance from large urban 
populations that would consume those products. Some people say 
we don't have the ability to finance those type of operations, that 
we don't have the access to capital. I would like to tell you that I 
don't believe that is true. I serve as chairman of the board of 
LaRinascente Pasta, LLC, a limited liability corporation, which is a 
durum processing facility that was purchased from a company in 
New Jersey and moved to Hope, North Dakota, it is owned by 
thirty shareholders, all local people. I also serve on the Board of 
Directors of SRS Commodities Limited, a LLC, limited liability 
corporation which is an edible bean processing company located 

I 



• 

-------------------------------

in  Mayville, N.D., with an additional facility in Falkirk, N .D.  this 
company has 14 shareholders al l  local people.  If  there is  a 
business opportunity that looks l ike it could be profitable, feasible, 
sustainable and just makes good common sense, we as family 

farmers and family farm agriculture will find a way as Larry the 
Cable guy would say "WE'LL GETTER D O NE'.  I ask you to put 
some H ope back in Hope, N.D.  and show that you care about family 
farms and that you care about the future of Agriculture in the state 
of North Dakota. That you send a message to the citizens of this 
state, to the farmers of this state, and to our grandchildren, that 
you believe that family farm agriculture is what is right for the 

future of this State. That we do not, need to open the door to 
corporation farming in North Dakota. I ask you to vote no, vote do 
not pass on Senate Bil l  2 3 5 1 .  

Respectfully, 

y � 
Randy Richards 



Representing the Diocese of Fargo 
and the Diocese of Bismarck 

Christopher T. Dodson 
Executive Director and 
General Counsel 

r · fYl. 

The North Dakota Catholic Conference , representing Bishop John Folda of 

Fargo and Bishop David Kagan of Bismarck, opposes SB 2351. This position is 

not new. North Dakota's Catholic bishops, like faith leaders here and around 

the country, have for decades appealed for laws that preserve and maintain farm 

ownership and control in the hands of local family farmers. In fact, seventy-six 

years ago Catholic bishops of the United States, led by Fargo Bishop Aloisius 

Muench - the only bishop from North Dakota to be named a Cardinal -

warned that investor ownership of farms would threaten families, communities , 

and our obligations as stewards of creation.1 

Some could argue that agriculture has changed since 1939, and they would be 

right. But who we are as human perso11s and what farming means to us as 

humans has not changed . That is why this is a rel igious issue. It is ".l religim s 

issue , because it is a moral issue. It is a moral issue , because it is a human 

issue. It is a human issue because, as Pope Francis stated just a few weeks ago , 

farming is "characteristically and fundamentally human ."2 

Indeed, Pope Francis' recent address on the vocation of agricul ture is 

enlightening in that it illustrates precisely why investor-ownership of fam1s is so 

risky. Pope Francis explains that the relationship a farmer has with the land is 

"familiar." The Italian word he used was "familiare ," which means not 

"familiar" as in "well known ," but "of family." This is important to understand. 

Outside investors cannot be like family. Only human persons can relate "like 

family." Only human persons are capable of entering into a covenant with 

creation . The further we remove the owner/steward from the land , the more we 

threaten that covenantal relationship intended by our creator. 

103 S. 3rd St., Suite lO • Bismarck, ND 58501 
(701)223-2519 • 1-888-419-1237 • FAX#(701)223-6075 

http://ndcatholic.org • ndcatholic@btinet.net 
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Testimony ofQ0;in Sh~ 
Before the North Dakota State House Standing Committee on Agriculture 

Chairman Johnson and members of the committee. My name is Justin Sherlock and I'm here to 

oppose SB 2351. I am a young beginning farmer from Dazey, North Dakota, a small town in Barnes 

County located northwest of Valley City. The ground I farm is also spread out in southwestern Griggs 

county and northeastern Stutsman county. 

My farming operation is fairly young. My father was one of the success stories in agriculture 

where a new producer made his start and became successful. He had worked for a larger farmer in my 

home area for over a decade and put his all into doing the best job possible. In turn, just over a decade 

ago, that farmer allowed my father the opportunity to rent some land from him and farm a few acres of 

his own. From there, he was able to find some additional acres to rent, and combined with the several 

good years agriculture experienced in the past decade he was able to purchase some farmland and get a 

decent line of machinery. Unfortunately, two years ago he passed away suddenly and unexpectedly. 

Today I rent some of the land he farmed from my mother and a few other landlords, and I 

operate using the machinery he had purchased. I cannot describe how truly blessed I feel to now have 

that chance to farm. Growing up, I did not think I would have the opportunity to farm as there wasn't 

room for me in our operation with my father just getting started himself. I'm working hard to continue 

our operation and carry on what he started. I even have the hope that someday I will be able to pass our 

family's farm on to yet another generation so they can farm if they choose to and be good stewards of 

the land in their time as well. 

In order to continue farming however, I need to maintain my present farm size or possibly even 

grow in the coming years. The cost of machinery and labor, combined with the shrinking margins over 

the past few years because of increased input costs, lower commodity prices and significant farmland 

rental rate increases has made it difficult to support a family and earn a living from our operation as we 

head into 2015 and beyond. As a young and beginning producer, I do not yet have the capital reserves 

and equity to take on other more established farmers or private investors who are looking to purchase 

or rent the already very limited supply of available farmland. Should this bill be passed, I truly feel it 

would only add to the challenges our state's young producers are currently facing and hurt our family 

farms. Young producers' ability to purchase farmland and continue our operations will be impacted, as 

we would now have to compete with entities and individuals who likely view land strictly as an 

investment or asset, and only view it for its monetary value or ability to generate a certain rate of return 

per year. To me, land is something that I work hard, sweat and bleed for. While we often assign a dollar 

value to land, for most agricultural producers and even for those individuals who may no longer farm or 

for those who simply grew up on the farm, land is much more than just an asset on the balance sheet. 

Land is a part our family's legacy, something we can be proud of and that we wish to protect and 

preserve for future generations to come. 
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I would like to leave you with those and a few additional thoughts. First, while I do oppose 

SB2351, if you feel  that it should receive a do pass vote, I would ask that you consider amending the bi l l  

to include some form of the following restrictions: 

1.  A corporation that is proposing to bui ld a dairy or  swine operation and p urchases the 

maximum amount of land a l lowed in this bi l l  wil l  not be a l lowed to purchase any additional 

land through the use of a subsidiary corporation, parent corporation, LLC, leasing com pany 

or any other type of entity it is invested in. 

2.  After making the purchase of land, a corporation p roposing to build a dairy or swine 

operation m ust begin construction and become operational within a set amount of time or 

they wil l  be required the sell the land and a ny partial or unfinished faci lities. The period of 

time reasonably a l lowable should be determined by the North Dakota Commissioner of 

Agriculture after reviewing typical time periods this type of activity requires in other states. 

I would l ike to finish today by stating that I bel ieve this bi l l  represents nothing short of a 

complete shift in philosophy for our  state in regards to agriculture. While I believe the sponsors and 

supporters of this bi l l  have nothing but the best of inte ntions, especia l ly considering the proposed 

l imited types of operations this bil l  pertains to, a yes vote wil l  nonetheless mean that you have voted for 

a significant change in how we view agriculture within N orth Dakota. For generations, as a state we have 

regarded family farming as a fundamental va lue we hold to be true. We have protected the family 

farming ideals by codifying those va lues into our laws. While I understand the need for laws a n d  

regulations t o  adapt and evolve over time, I fee l  that changing this law represents such a significant shift 

in a core value that it deserves more consideration and time than is presently being given.  

I believe this legislature has a duty and responsibi l ity to examine a l l  possible ways to help 

support agriculture and save dairy farming in the state, yet I don't think enough facts have been 

presented to show how al lowing corporate farms wil l  succeed in saving our states dairy industry. South 

Dakota's success in growing dairy numbers is often cited, but where is the hard data to back up this 

claim? How many new jobs have been created, what is the volume and value of additional feed being 

consumed local ly, how m uch va lue and long-term growth have these corporate operations brought to 

the state? I believe there should be publ ic forums, ideologica l debates, economic studies and the l ike 

before deciding to simply pursue a shift in our  va lues by making such a striking change in the cou rse of 

only a month's time. 

Tha n k  you for the o pportunity to speak today. Again, I urge you to not pass SB 2351. I can try to 

a nswer a ny questions you may have. 



Testimony 08 
Chairman Johnson and members of the committee: 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. My name isff im Tei~ and 
my wife Rita and I farm near Rugby, working with our son and his young 
family. Our son Dave is the fourth generation to work our farm, which was 
started in 1907, and included dairy cows until 197 5. 

One of the arguments for this change to weaken the corporate farming law is 
that none of the other proposals to boost dairying and hog production in 
North Dakota have worked, and this is the only other idea available. A 
recent editorial concluded that this proposed change "won't do any harm, 
but in the long run it won't make much difference." While I agree SB 2351 
is not a good solution, I want to point out a couple of other news stories in 
that same publication this past month which point out concerns expressed by 
residents of other areas which have less restrictive land ownership laws than 
North Dakota. 

One article tells of our neighbors in Saskatchewan considering toughening 
their rules on buying farmland by investor groups. Saskatchewan's rules, 
described as some of the strictest in North America, ban the purchase of land 
by pension funds, but recently made an exemption for the Canada Pension 
Plan Investment Board, which bought 115,000 acres in 2013. Farmers in 
Saskatchewan have responded by expressing concerns about those large 
scale purchases. Their Agriculture Minister promises to review their laws, 
saying farmers "are not high on the idea of institutional investors competing 
with them for the purchase of farmland." I suspect that sentiment is common 
among farmers in North Dakota, too, especially young farmers who are 
trying to get established. 

A second article reported on a large corporate farm in Minnesota starting to 
clear nearly 12,000 acres of timber land for potato production. That land 
clearing was stopped by the state, largely because of concerns regarding 
deep irrigation wells adversely impacting ground water supplies in that 
community. 
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Another article that I saw this winter told of a company owned by Harvard 
University's management firm recently buying 1 0,000 acres of vineyards 
and deep water well rights in California wine country - and concerns 
whether they will drill to make profits rather than protect the water supply 
amidst the drought that area is experiencing. Similar investments by Harvard 
include dairies in New Zealand, timber in Argentina, farmland in Africa, and 
agriculture in Brazil, prompting 39 civil society organizations around the 
world to write a letter of concern to the Harvard President. 

Does that mean that these or all corporations will be bad actors and disregard 
conservation and stewardship practices? Of course not, but with the size of 
those investments, the impact of any similar problems will likely be 
significantly larger than an infraction by a family farm, and more difficult 
and expensive to mitigate. 

One other lesson from these articles is that a 640 acre limit can easily be 
circumvented by establishing a number of companies under a parent 
corporation to acquire as many 640 acre units as they wish. Language such 
as that in SB 235 1  which merely removes restrictions for entities like dairy 
and hogs without including safeguards leave the door open for abuse. 

I also disagree with the premise that the change proposed in SB 235 1  will 
simply provide additional capital from some benevolent partner for dairy or 
hog operations. Prospective investors will not be like a family member 
helping out a child, a sibling, or a cousin (which are already allowed under 
present law). Corporate investors will expect substantial return on 
investment, and likely require some control of the decision-making process. 
Those operations will be far different than family farms. 

It seems apparent that the "simple" proposed change to the present law could 
result in unintended consequences to our current farm structure, the 
environment, and our communities. These consequences could be far greater 
than what the suggested "tweaking" of our current law implies. 

I urge you to reject this proposal. 
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S8 d 3 5 t  
Mr. Chairman and members of the committee :  

As I 've listened to the discussion o n  SB 2 3 5 1  I 've noticed that there i s  a point 

of view that has been absent from the debate. That point of view is how the 

results of last November's election applies to this issue. 

There were two questions on the ballot that are very similar to the question 

before us today. The first was the proposed clean water, parks, and recreation 

amendment. 

We all saw and heard a thousand different advertisements from a hundred 

different angles but the underlying idea was the same. The ads planted a seed 

in the voter's mind as to what could be accomplished with the large sum of 

money that would be invested. Whether the ads featured an Olympic hockey 

player promising skating rinks in every neighborhood or a grandfather 

promising that this was the way to ensure that future generations will have 

good fishing holes, they all claimed that financial investment was the key to 

conserving North Dakota's resources. 

On the other side of the issue was a large coalition of North Dakota based 

groups that had a far different idea. Their thought was that true, long-term 

conservation is best entrusted to family agriculturists who are tied to the land 

in a way that a corporation never could be. 

There is no common ground between these two views and the citizens of 

North Dakota were asked to decide which direction the state will go. The 

question was this:  which is more important to the future of our resources, 

money or people? After the votes were counted there could be no questioning 

the results. By an overwhelming margin, nearly 80o/o of the people wanted 

local control of the land by the families who tend it as it has always been in 

our state. 
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The second measure on the ballot whose idea runs in very close parallel to SB 

2 3 5 1  was the proposed change in pharmacy ownership. 

The supporters of expanding corporate ownership claimed economic benefits 

of corporate efficiency over that of any other structure. With the promise of 

$4 prescriptions, the voters were told that the existing law holding back 

corporations is actually holding us back financially. By changing this law, we 

would have to give up some local control of our pharmacies but we were 

assured again and again that the benefits would far outweigh any negative 

consequences. 

Those opposed to expanding corporate ownership had serious doubts. They 

argued that increasing corporate influence could not and would not provide 

the benefits that were being advertised and that the loss of local control would 

make the situation worse, not better. The opponents of the measure claimed 

that having pharmacies owned by local people who are tied to the community 

is the best ownership structure for the long term. 

Again, the voters were presented with two sides of the issue and were asked 

• to decide which argument was valid and correct for the future of the state. In 

a landslide vote, 75% of the people chose local control over the promise of 

corporate effeciency. 

When this legislature considers weakening North Dakota's long standing anti­
corporate farming law with SB 2 3 5 1, it would be a grave blunder to ignore the 

clear message that the voters put forth only four months ago. North Dakotans 

trust the stewardship of our resources to family-owned agriculture, not 

monetary interests, and if given the choice between local control or corporate 

investment, local control is always the priority. 



The Planted ·Row:5h:1 
If you'd like to voice your opinion on any topics Involving 

agriculture, call Farm Forum Editor Stan Wise at 
605-622-2304 or toll-free at 1-800-925-4100, ext. 304. You 

can also email comments to farmforum@aberdeennews.com 

Agriculture better off in the hands of families 
When ~Y paternal grandfa- ' 

ther was a young man, he took 
a factory job in a to"(ll near our 
family's farm. He was a hard 
worker, but his supervisor de­
manded that he do more. So he 
did more work, and his supervi­
sor demanded that he do even 
more. So he worked as hard as 
he possibly could and achieved 
what his supervisor asked of 
him. Once again, his supervisor 
asked him to do even more, but 
my grandfather was already 
iliviog everything he had and 

, couldn't do any more. So, after 
work one day, he walked up to 
his supervisor and said, "I've · 
~n giving you all rve got, and 

·you keep asking for more. rm . 
telling you now that I won't be 
here in the morning.• 

,- His supervisor said, "\\'.ail a 
minute, W1Se. Don't go. You're -
one of the hardest workers I've 
got. This is just bow you have 
to work.people.in a factory.• 

My grandfather replied, "I've 
peen giving you a day's work 
1or a day's pay, and you keep • 
~asking for more. I won't be here 
• in the morning." And he wasn't. 

Not Jong after that the man- . 
ager of the factory sh<JWed up ' 
at my grandfather's farm and 
asked him to come back to the 

"' factory and offered him a job as 
a_supervisor. My grandfather · 
turned him down and said that 

·he would starve to death on the 
.farm before he would treat peo­
ple the way the manager would 
want"him to treat the "!Orkers 

in the factory. · 
My grandfather was lucky 

that he had a farm to· go home 
to. The-other workers in the 
factory weren't so lucky, and 
they couldn't afford to quit 
their jobs, despite how they 
were·being treated. 

His farm was a slnall one, 
but through hard'work, he grew 
it. He bUilt a country store to • 
help supplement his income, 
and when could, he bought 
land. He retired a successful 
farmer, and while his farm 
would be considered small by 
farmers in the Upper Plains, it 

·was large for the time in north­
east Mississippi. 

My grandfather had a good 
life and raised a happyfamily 
of six kids - all because be got · 
his start with a small farm. The 
chances of someone having 
a similar life story today are . 
dwindling. The USDA National 
Agricultural Statistics Service 
released a report last week that 
says wliat most in the ag world 
already know - 'there are much 
fewer small farms thaii there 
were a year go and there are 
more large farms. There are 
fewer farms overall , 

When the number of farms 
dwindles, more people leave 
rural communities, and they 
begin to die off. With high land 
prices and low prices for com 
and soybeans, it's hard for small· 
farmers to compete with the. 
larger, more established farms. 

They sell out: the larger farms 
get bigger, .anil the populations 
in rural towns drop: 
· lmagioe bow much worse 

thingS would be if farmers had 
to compete not only with each 
other, but also large corpo­
rations. Whatfamily-owned 
farm, even a large one, could 
compete-with the resources of a 
large corpor.itioo for land? 
· At the time of this writing, 
the North Dakota Senate has 
approved a measure that would 
allow non-family corporations 
to own.farms. The law being 
considered would limit corpo- · 
rate farms to 640 acres. Once 
the public~ used to the idea 
of corporate.fanning, bow long 
do you think it will be before 
That acreage is expanded? 
Three years? F1Ve,..,ars? ~ 

According to an Associated 
Press story by James MacPber­
son, sapporters of the bill say . 
jt would help save the dairy 
and swine industry in-North 
Dakota. rm not sure large, 
corporate-owned farms would · 
save the industty. I 'feel ~ 
certain they would take over 
the industry.Did the introduc­
tion of large department stores 
save the locally-owned general 
store-retail business? 

H this law passeS, people like 
my grandfather who decide to 
quit their jobs and go bacl< to 
the farm may-find a different 
kind of factory waiting for .them 
wh~ they get home. 

Fann Forum P~oll: There are two WllYS to reply: 
1. Call (605) 622-2385 or 1--800-92H100, ext. 2385. 
The voice on the line will ask the question and then 
you may record your response plus any comments 

. you'd like to make. , ' 
What do you th~nk( 

"'2. Go onllne to www.farmforum.net. Go to the poll 
· and click on yaur response. , 

Do you think North Dalwta -
· · should allow rnm1amily corpo­

Thank ~u for letttng us know what you think! 
Last week's questicn: 

Do you &grtie with the U.S. Senate blllt~t would allow 

rations to own farms? 

a. Yes 
b.No 

~ ~ banks to ext.end Cf'!ldlt to c~,'!..buyers? . _ 

~"-'°"'"""''" . -~ a. Yes-29'!1> O..No.~ ~ 
Percentage Includes pbone calls end lntemet postings shown 
as of 10 a.m. Wednesday. 
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While the Secretary of State has a neutral position on this bill , the agency requests that the committee 
considers amendments that will assist the agency in the processing of the registrations that might be filed 
under th is law. Here is a brief summary of the procedures now followed under current law and the 
processing challenges that could exist under the bill as currently written . 

Under current law, organizations engaged in farming and organized under chapter 10-06.1 of the Century 
Code are clearly identified in the Secretary of State's database as farming or ranching organizations, 
which have a reporting requirement with the Secretary of State. This report provides a description of the 
acreage owned or leased by the organization as well as the names of all of the shareholders or members 
of the organization . The information related to the shareholders defines the kinship of the shareholders to 
each other as well as an indication whether those shareholders are citizens or aliens. 

Senate bill 2351 would allow a general business corporation created under chapter 10-19.1 of the 
Century Code or a general. business limited liability company (LLC) created under Chapter 10-32 to 
engage in the operation of a dairy or a facility for swine production. While the bill appears to limit 
acquisition of land for these specific purposes by domestic corporations and LLCs, this can easily be 
circumvented by an out-of-state entity creating a domestic corporation or LLC as a wholly owned 
subsidiary with the out-of state or foreign entity being the shareholder or member of the organization. 
Under those circumstances, it could mean that an organization created for dairy or swine production 
could have shareholders or members that are large corporate organizations from another state or another 
country. This may or may not be the intent of the bill . 

Because N.D.C.C. § 10-06.1-23 requires the attorney general to conduct random compliance checks of 
organizations engaged in farming , the Secretary of State annually supplies the attorney general copies of 
the annual report of those corporations or LLCs that the attorney general has selected for compliance 
checks. These organizations are now easily identified in the agency's database and the information is 
identified and provided. However, that "identifying" feature will not exist for a "true" business corporation 
or LLC operating a dairy or a facility for swine production without it having a specific identifying factor. 

"True" business corporations or business LLCs may file their articles of incorporation or organ ization by 
stating they exist for "general business purposes" and also not contain any information relating to land 
owned or leased. With a general business purpose and a name of the organization that is very general , 
for example, Ralph Jones, Inc., there would be nothing in the documents filed with the Secretary of State 
to indicate that the organization is operating a dairy or a facility for swine production . Even if they did, the 
agency is limited in its ability to "tag" these entities in its database so that they would be easily identified. 
These organizations will be co-mingled with over 60, 738 domestic and foreign corporations and LLCs. 
Unless their purpose is required by law to be stated in the filing documents submitted for these two types 
of operations, they could not be identified as being related to a dairy or swine operation when they were 
submitted . 

The Secretary of State will comply with the decision of the legislature, but it does request that it be 
allowed to review any amendments to the bill to ensure that the agency will be able to fulfill its statutory 
responsib ilities for the administration of this particular bill. 



15.0895. 01004 
Title. 

JI:/ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL N@ 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with: 

"1.,, This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited liability 
company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company, provided: 

~ The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres (258.99 hectares]; 

~ The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the land 
is acquired ; and 

c. The dairy farm is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
fifty cows. 

2. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company, 
provided: 

~ The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres (258.99 hectares] ; 

b. The swine production facility is operational within three years from the 
date the land is acquired; and 

c. The swine production facility is permitted as a concentrated animal 
feeding operation by the state department of health and consists of at 
least five hundred swine. 

~ The agriculture commissioner shall by rule develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section. 

4. ~ If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating with in the 
exceptions provided by this section . the commissioner shall notify the 
secretary of state and the attorney general. 

b. A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01004 



15.0895.01003 
Title. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BIL~ 
Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with: 

"1.,_ This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited liability 
company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company provided: 

§..:. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

b. The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the land 
is acquired; and 

~ The dairy farm is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
fifty cows . 

2. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company 
provided : 

a. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

Q_,_ The swine production facility is operational within three years from the 
date the land is acquired ; and 

~ The swine production facility is permitted as a concentrated animal 
feeding operation by the state department of health and consists of at 
least five hundred swine . 

.1. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a cattle feedlot by a domestic corporation or a limited 
liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a cattle feedlot by a 
domestic corporation or a limited liability company provided: 

§..:. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares]; 

Q_,_ The cattle feedlot is operational within three years from the date the 
land is acquired; and 

~ The cattle feedlot is permitted as a concentrated animal feeding 
operation by the state department of health and consists of at least 
two hundred fifty cattle. 

4. The agriculture commissioner by rule shall develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section. 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01003 



§.,_ a. If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating within the 
exceptions provided by this section , the commissioner shall notify the 
secretary of state and the attorney general. 

b. A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 2 15.0895.01003 



15.0895.01005 
Title. 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BIL~ 

~I 

In lieu of the amendments adopted by the House as printed on page 954 of the House Journal, 
Senate Bill No. 2351 is amended as follows: 

Page 1, replace lines 7 through 16 with : 

"1,. This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic corporation or a limited liability 
company and does not prohibit the operation of a dairy farm by a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company, provided: 

§.,. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares] ; 

b. The dairy farm is operational within three years from the date the land 
is acquired ; and 

~ The dairy farm is permitted as an animal feeding operation or as a 
concentrated animal feeding operation by the state department of 
health and consists of at least fifty cows. 

~ This chapter does not apply to the ownership or leasing of land used for 
the operation of a swine production facility by a domestic corporation or a 
limited liability company and does not prohibit the operation of a swine 
production facility by a domestic corporation or a limited liability company, 
provided: 

§.,. The land owned or leased for the authorized purpose does not exceed 
six hundred forty acres [258.99 hectares] ; 

~ The swine production facility is operational within three years from the 
date the land is acquired ; and 

~ The swine production facility is permitted as an animal feeding 
operation or as a concentrated animal feeding operation by the state 
department of health and consists of at least five hundred swine. 

~ The agriculture commissioner shall by rule develop reporting and 
monitoring requirements to ensure compliance with this section . 

4. §.,. If the agriculture commissioner determines that a domestic 
corporation or a limited liability company is not operating with in the 
exceptions provided by this section , the commissioner shall notify the 
secretary of state and the attorney general. 

~ A domestic corporation or a limited liability company that is not 
operating within the exceptions provided by this section is subject to 
the enforcement provisions of this chapter." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0895.01005 
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